
Property / Regeneration Briefing  
 
The council is now holding virtual meetings. This plays a part in helping us to maintain 
the safety of the public, staff and councillors. 
 
The City Mayor has asked that, as far as possible, there is still public involvement and 
input into the decision-making process. 
 
Therefore, should you wish to raise a question or comment on any of the items listed, 
which will be presented at the meeting on your behalf, you can do so in writing, by 
sending an email to the address at the bottom of this agenda. 
 
Please do this by 4.30pm on the day before the meeting is due to take place. 
 
Further information on the coronavirus and what it means for Salford can be found on 
the council website - https://www.salford.gov.uk/coronavirus 

 
DATE: Monday, 25 January 2021 
 
TIME:  11.00 am 
 
VENUE: Microsoft Teams Meeting 

 
 

AGENDA 
 

 THE PROCEEDINGS OF THIS MEETING CAN BE VIEWED LIVE 
ON THE DAY VIA THE FOLLOWING LINK: 
https://teams.microsoft.com/l/meetup-
join/19%3ameeting_NmJhZTUzZDgtMTIyMi00ZjQ3LWJjNjctMTQwM
TZhMWFiYWJj%40thread.v2/0?context=%7b%22Tid%22%3a%2268
c00060-d80e-40a5-b83f-
3b8a5bc570b5%22%2c%22Oid%22%3a%22573d04a0-0ae6-41ac-
938f-3d1aa4fc5fd1%22%2c%22IsBroadcastMeeting%22%3atrue%7d 
 

 

1   Apologies for absence  
 

 

2   Declarations of interest  
 

 

3   Items for Decision - Part 1 (Open to the Public)  
 

 

3a Salford Roosters ARLFC, Winton - Clubhouse Project  
 

(Pages 1 - 8) 

3b Crescent Development Framework 2021  
 

(Pages 9 - 378) 

4   Public Briefing/Information Items  
 
The following items are for the primary purpose of providing members 
of the public with all relevant information on the respective matters, 
other than those elements, which in accordance with the relevant 

 

Public Document Pack

https://teams.microsoft.com/l/meetup-join/19%3ameeting_NmJhZTUzZDgtMTIyMi00ZjQ3LWJjNjctMTQwMTZhMWFiYWJj%40thread.v2/0?context=%7b%22Tid%22%3a%2268c00060-d80e-40a5-b83f-3b8a5bc570b5%22%2c%22Oid%22%3a%22573d04a0-0ae6-41ac-938f-3d1aa4fc5fd1%22%2c%22IsBroadcastMeeting%22%3atrue%7d
https://teams.microsoft.com/l/meetup-join/19%3ameeting_NmJhZTUzZDgtMTIyMi00ZjQ3LWJjNjctMTQwMTZhMWFiYWJj%40thread.v2/0?context=%7b%22Tid%22%3a%2268c00060-d80e-40a5-b83f-3b8a5bc570b5%22%2c%22Oid%22%3a%22573d04a0-0ae6-41ac-938f-3d1aa4fc5fd1%22%2c%22IsBroadcastMeeting%22%3atrue%7d
https://teams.microsoft.com/l/meetup-join/19%3ameeting_NmJhZTUzZDgtMTIyMi00ZjQ3LWJjNjctMTQwMTZhMWFiYWJj%40thread.v2/0?context=%7b%22Tid%22%3a%2268c00060-d80e-40a5-b83f-3b8a5bc570b5%22%2c%22Oid%22%3a%22573d04a0-0ae6-41ac-938f-3d1aa4fc5fd1%22%2c%22IsBroadcastMeeting%22%3atrue%7d
https://teams.microsoft.com/l/meetup-join/19%3ameeting_NmJhZTUzZDgtMTIyMi00ZjQ3LWJjNjctMTQwMTZhMWFiYWJj%40thread.v2/0?context=%7b%22Tid%22%3a%2268c00060-d80e-40a5-b83f-3b8a5bc570b5%22%2c%22Oid%22%3a%22573d04a0-0ae6-41ac-938f-3d1aa4fc5fd1%22%2c%22IsBroadcastMeeting%22%3atrue%7d
https://teams.microsoft.com/l/meetup-join/19%3ameeting_NmJhZTUzZDgtMTIyMi00ZjQ3LWJjNjctMTQwMTZhMWFiYWJj%40thread.v2/0?context=%7b%22Tid%22%3a%2268c00060-d80e-40a5-b83f-3b8a5bc570b5%22%2c%22Oid%22%3a%22573d04a0-0ae6-41ac-938f-3d1aa4fc5fd1%22%2c%22IsBroadcastMeeting%22%3atrue%7d
https://teams.microsoft.com/l/meetup-join/19%3ameeting_NmJhZTUzZDgtMTIyMi00ZjQ3LWJjNjctMTQwMTZhMWFiYWJj%40thread.v2/0?context=%7b%22Tid%22%3a%2268c00060-d80e-40a5-b83f-3b8a5bc570b5%22%2c%22Oid%22%3a%22573d04a0-0ae6-41ac-938f-3d1aa4fc5fd1%22%2c%22IsBroadcastMeeting%22%3atrue%7d


 

sections of the Local Government Act 1972, remain confidential and 
require that any arising decision is taken in Part 2 of the agenda. 
 

4a Ordsall Residential Development Sites review - Developer Proposals 
v Self-Build Option (see item 6(a))  
 

(Pages 379 - 390) 

5   Exclusion of the Public  
 

 

6   Items for Decision - Part 2 (Closed to the Public)  
 

 

6a Ordsall Residential Development Sites review - Developer Proposals 
v Self-Build Option  
 

(Pages 391 - 392) 

7   Any other business  
 

 

 
Contact Officer: Mike Relph, Senior Democratic Services Advisor 
Tel No: 0161 793 3013 
E-Mail: decisionmakingandscrutiny@salford.gov.uk 

mailto:decisionmakingandscrutiny@salford.gov.uk


 1 

 Part 1 - Open to the Public ITEM NO. 

 

 
 

REPORT OF STRATEGIC DIRECTOR FOR PLACE 

 
 

TO THE CITY MAYOR’S PROPERTY AND REGENERATION BRIEFING 
 

ON 
 

25th January 2021  
 

 
 
TITLE: Salford City Roosters Clubhouse Project – grant award conditions constraints 
 

 
 
RECOMMENDATIONS:  
 
That the City Mayor approves: 

 
1. The placing of a restriction on Salford Council’s freehold legal title at the 
new Salford City Roosters Clubhouse as security for a Grant from Sport 
England for a maximum term of 15 years from the 9th July 2019; the date of 
acceptance of the Grant. 

 

 
 
EXECUTIVE SUMMARY:  
 
Within Salford City Council’s Playing Pitch Strategy there is an action to improve 
ancillary facilities at the site which is currently leased to Salford City Roosters.  The 
clubhouse now requires significant maintenance investment to bring it up to modern 
standards which falls outside the scope of the lease.  The CREATEDBY RLWC2021 
Capital grants programme, arising from the Rugby League World Cup in 2021 has 
provided an opportunity to replace the clubhouse with direct access onto the sports 
pitches. The successful application to this fund resulted in a grant of £377,863 being 
awarded to Salford City Council. 
The offer of funding is subject to grant conditions which have been accepted in 
principle.  A specific requirement is to place a restriction on Salford Council’s freehold  
title (land shown edged red on the attached plan) as security for the Grant for 15 
years, (duration of the Grant condition). 
The purpose of this report is to seek approval to the restriction being placed on the 
council’s title. 

 
 
BACKGROUND DOCUMENTS: Plan showing the extent of the restriction on the 
registered title – Salford City Rooster Legal Title Plan (12/8/20) 

Page 1

Agenda Item 3a



 2 

 
 
KEY DECISION: NO 

 
 

1.0  Background 

   
1.1  The project comprises the provision of new clubhouse together with 

associated parking and external works for use by Salford City 
Roosters Amateur Rugby League Club. 

   
1.2  The site of the current clubhouse was a former school, then a sports 

centre and is currently the home of Salford Roosters Rugby Club; 
the club hold a lease over the wider Schofield Road site for a term of 
30 years from 2007.  The Roosters took on the semi-derelict 
building and transformed it into a well-used facility, however the 
clubhouse is now no longer fit for purpose and is highly inefficient.  
A condition report undertaken in 2014 concluded that further 
maintenance expenditure would not be a solution. The building also 
fails to meet current standards from an accessibility or sporting 
perspective. 

   
1.3  Salford City Council’s Playing pitch strategy identifies the need to 

improve ancillary facilities which relates to the changing rooms, club 
house and car parking for the club and is stated as an action within 
the plan.  The CREATEDBY RLWC2021 Capital grants programme 
arising from the original RFL legacy grant programme has provided 
an opportunity to delivery this action.  

   
1.4   The proposed new clubhouse is located within the land shown 

edged red on the attached plan, currently a rough tarmac area.  The 
building will benefit from an outlook directly onto the pitches. As part 
of the proposals the existing clubhouse site will become surplus to 
the club’s requirements and will be surrendered back to the Council.  
Following surrender, City Mayor approved (at City Mayors 
Regeneration Meeting on 24th June 2019) the disposal of the 
clubhouse site to Forviva, local housing provider. ForViva is looking 
to progress the development of a 47unit 100% Social Housing 
Scheme.  

   
 

1.5   The funding for the clubhouse project making up a total of 
£1,095,863 comprises of: 

£377,863  CREATEDBY RLWC2021 Grant 

£690,000  Salford City Council (Leisure) 

£  14,000  Salford City Roosters 

£  10,000  Booths Charities (provisional 
award) 

Page 2



 3 

£    2,000  Standing Together Fund 

£    2,000  ForViva Group 

 
 

   
2.0  Detail 

   
2.1  On the 28th May 2019, Sport England who are managing the above-

mentioned grant made an award of £377,863 to Salford City Council 
towards an estimated project cost of £1,095,863. 

   
2.2   As per the norm with grant giving bodies, there are “general terms 

and conditions of grant” which in this case apply to a period of 15 
years from the acceptance of the grant award (9th July 21019) 

   
2.3   In addition to the general conditions, Sport England require a 

restriction to be entered on the Council’s legal titles (MAN159365 
and MAN119061) and recorded at the Land Registry (land shown 
edged red the attached plan). The restriction prevents the land 
subject to the grant being transferred during the term of the grant 
without the consent of Sport England. Sport England may request 
that the grant being repaid if they feel that the transfer does not fulfil 
the reasons for the grant being made. 

   
2.4  The wording of the restriction states: 

 
“No disposition of part of the registered estate edged red by the 
proprietor of the registered estate or by the proprietor of any 
registered charge, not being a charge registered before the entry of 
this restriction is to be registered without a written consent signed by 
THE ENGLISH SPORTS COUNCIL (whose operating name is 
Sport England) Company Number RC000766 of First Floor 21 
Bloomsbury Street, London, WC1B 3HF (“Sport England”). 

   
2.5  The new lease with Salford City Roosters will include a clause which 

recognises this necessary restriction and the need to comply.  
   
3.0   Recommendations 
   
3.1  That the City Mayor approves: 

 
1. The placing of a restriction on Salford Council’s freehold 
legal title at the new Salford City Roosters Clubhouse as 
security for a Grant from Sport England for a maximum term 
of 15 years from the 9th July 2019; the date of acceptance of 
the Grant. 

   

 
 
KEY COUNCIL POLICIES:  

Page 3



 4 

 Playing Pitch Strategy & Action Plan, adopted by the Council in 2016 (updated 
2018). 

 Salford Unitary Development Plan 2006, Saved Policy R2 Provision of 
Recreation Land and Facilities. 

 Salford Publication Local Plan 2020, Policy R5 outdoor and indoor sports 
facilities. 

 
 
EQUALITY IMPACT ASSESSMENT AND IMPLICATIONS: N/A 

 
 
ASSESSMENT OF RISK: Low 
 

 
 
LEGAL IMPLICATIONS Supplied by Wendy Burgess Legal Officer, Property Section 
Tel 0161 234 3130  
 
Date : 11th August 2020, further reviewed 30/11/20 
 
The risks that are already identified and set out in this report are of a financial and 
commercial nature.     

 
 
 
FINANCIAL IMPLICATIONS  
 
Supplied by Alison Woods, Finance Officer (Capital), Tel. 925 1135 
 
Date: 10th August 2020, further reviewed 27/11/20 
 
Subject to the terms and conditions set out in the grant confirmation letter and award 
agreement, dated 28th May 2019, Sport England has agreed to award Salford City 
Council a grant of £377,863, towards a total project cost of £1,095,863, for the 
development of the Salford City Roosters Amateur Rugby League clubhouse.  
 
Partnership match funding towards the total project cost of £1,095,863 has been 
confirmed from the following sources. 
 
  Amount  Source 

£377,863  CREATEDBY RLWC2021 Grant 

£690,000  Salford City Council (Leisure) 

£  14,000  Salford City Roosters 

£  10,000  Booths Charities (provisional award) 

£    2,000  Standing Together Fund 

£    2,000  ForViva Group 
The Sport England grant award is subject to specific Project Conditions, which 
“permit Sport England to enter a restriction on title or caution in respect of the 

Page 4



 5 

property at Land Registry in respect of the registered title”.   Failure or unacceptable 
delay in meeting any of the Project Conditions may lead to Sport England 
considering the termination of the Agreement and a withdrawal of the grant funding 
offer of £377,863. 
 

 
 
PROCUREMENT IMPLICATIONS Supplied by: N/A 
 

 
HR IMPLICATIONS Supplied by: N/A 
  

 
 
OTHER DIRECTORATES CONSULTED: Salford Community Leisure 

 
 
CONTACT OFFICER: J Ashley TEL NO: 07515 188242 

 
 
WARDS TO WHICH REPORT RELATES:  Winton  

Page 5



This page is intentionally left blank



1
7
 to

 2
3

9

2
5
 to

 3
1

1
7

Barton Old Hall
32

25

(site of)

W
a
rd

 B
d
y

W
o
rs

le
y
 B

ro
o

k

4
6

8

3
1

16

1

2
1

2
3

20.4m

BARTON HALL AVENUE

20.7m

2

15

HALLSWORTH ROAD

3
3

9

3
4

7

10

2
5

Moat Hall

Sports Centre

3

7

4
7

S
C

H
O

L
F

IE
L
D

 R
O

A
D 6
0

Plan Ref:

Legal title restriction plan Dec 2019

Property
Information Section

Salford Civic Centre
Chorley Road

Salford
M27 5AW

Plan Ref:
Scale @ A4:
Date:
OS Map Ref:
Area:

1:1250
12/08/2020
SJ7598SW

This map is based upon Ordnance Survey material with the permission of
Ordnance Survey on behalf of the Controller of Her Majesty's Stationery
Office © Crown Copyright. Unauthorised reproduction infringes Crown
copyright and may lead to prosecution or civil proceedings. 100019737 2020

Page 7



This page is intentionally left blank



 
 

ITEM NO. 

 

 

REPORT OF THE STRATEGIC DIRECTOR, PLACE

 

TO PROPERTY AND REGENERATION BRIEFING  

ON  

25th January 2021  

 

TITLE: Approval of the Crescent Development Framework 2021

 

RECOMMENDATIONS: 

That the City Mayor: 
 

1. Notes the content of this report;  

2. Approves the Crescent Development Framework 2021 as a material planning 

consideration for future planning decisions; and  

3. Approves the cancellation of the Crescent Development Framework 2014. 

 

EXECUTIVE SUMMARY:  

In March 2020 the City Council and University appointed the English Cities Fund as Private 
Sector Partner to deliver the Crescent Masterplan. Since March, the partners have been 
reviewing and testing the initial Masterplan proposals developed by 5plus architects (endorsed 
by Cabinet in February 2018) and developing the delivery programme. The need to prepare a 
new up-to-date Development Framework for the area to replace the now outdated Crescent 
Development Framework (2014) was identified as a key early action. 
 
A scoping consultation on the draft vision and objectives for the new Draft Crescent 
Development Framework was undertaken between June-August 2020. Public consultation on 
the new Draft Crescent Development took place from 20th October-1st December 2020. The 
framework has been updated (where appropriate) in light of responses received, and a final 
version is now presented for approval.  

 

BACKGROUND DOCUMENTS:  

- Report of the Head of Development to Property and Regeneration Briefing on 13th 

February 2017. 

- Report of the Strategic Director, Environment and Community Safety to Property and 

Regeneration Briefing on 10th April 2017. 

- Report of the Strategic Director, Place, to Property and Regeneration Briefing on 22nd 

May 2017.  

Page 9

Agenda Item 3b



- Presentation to the City Mayor by 5plus architects on 4th December 2017.  

- Report of the Strategic Director, Place, to City Issues Briefing on 5th February 2018. 

- Report of the Strategic Director, Place, to Property and Regeneration Briefing on 12th 

February 2018.  

- Report of the City Mayor to Cabinet on 27th February 2018. 

- Development Team Presentation to Growth and Prosperity Scrutiny Panel 21st May 

2018. 

- Report of the Strategic Director, Place, to Property and Regeneration Briefing - 

Crescent and University Masterplan 26th November 2018. 

- Report of the Strategic Director, Place, to Property and Regeneration Briefing on 11th 

March 2019.  

- Report of the Strategic Director, Place, to Procurement Board on 13th March 2019.  

- Development Team Presentation to Growth and Prosperity Scrutiny Panel 25th March 

2019. 

- Report of the Strategic Director, Place, to Property and Regeneration Briefing 

(Salford Crescent and University District Masterplan: Appointment of Private Sector 

Partner), 24th February 2020.  

- Report of the Strategic Director, Place, to Property and Regeneration Briefing 

(Consultation on Draft Crescent Development Framework), 12th October 2020.  

- Presentation to Growth and Prosperity Scrutiny Panel, 23rd November 2020. 

 

KEY DECISION: YES  

The Development Framework covers an area of 102 hectares, and includes sites within 4 

wards (Broughton, Irwell Riverside, Langworthy and Ordsall).  

 

DETAILS: 

1.0  Background 
   
1.1  In March 2020 the City Council and University appointed the English Cities Fund as 

Private Sector Partner to deliver the Crescent Masterplan. Since March, the partners 
have been reviewing and testing the initial Masterplan proposals developed by 5plus 
architects (endorsed by Cabinet in February 2018) and developing the delivery 
programme. The preparation of a new up-to-date Development Framework which fully 
reflects the partners ambitions for the area has been a key focus of the project team 
over recent months. An initial scoping consultation with properties within the proposed 
red line boundary of the new Development Framework (and properties located within 
150m of the red line boundary) and statutory consultees took place between June-
August 2020, and public consultation on the new Draft Development Framework took 
place from 20th October – 1st December 2020. Approval of the Crescent Development 
Framework 2021 is now sought, which will replace the Crescent Development 
Framework (2014).  
 

   
2.0  The need for and scope of the new Development Framework  
   
2.1   The 2018 Crescent Masterplan prepared by 5plus architects was indicative only, and 

as such has no ‘weight’ in planning terms. The existing Crescent Development 
Framework (2014) no longer functions as an effective planning tool to guide future 

Page 10



development across the area as it does not reflect the refreshed ambitions of the 
Council, University and the English Cities Fund, nor did it anticipate the scale of 
development that has been seen across the area in recent years. A refreshed up-to-
date Development Framework is therefore required to set out the future development 
ambitions of the partners and to help guide future development across, and secure 
investment in, the Crescent area over the next decade and beyond.  

   
2.2  The boundary for the new framework is almost identical to that of the existing Crescent 

Development Framework. The key difference being that a small area of additional land 
is included in the vicinity of McDonald’s / Albion Way. This area has been included as 
it is important that the new framework considers future infrastructure opportunities in 
the area surrounding Salford Crescent Station in light of the partners ambitions to 
develop a new transport hub and secure Metrolink connectivity to the area.  
 

 
 

 
 

3.0  Overview of the Crescent Development Framework  
   
3.1  The Crescent Development Framework 2021 provides a planning framework for the 

Crescent area that is up-to-date, robust and provides clear direction regarding what 
can be delivered to ensure it becomes a successful and vibrant new city district. The 
proposals aim to create an inviting, attractive and unified place which provides a range 
of quality new homes, generates jobs, improves knowledge and enhances the wider 
Salford economy. It promotes a radical improvement to public realm and sustainable 
transport, the celebration and enhancement of the areas wealth of green, blue and 
heritage assets and aims to establish strong physical connections between the 
University Campus and surrounding communities, to create a coherent, modern and 
connected place which benefits existing and new residents, students, workers and 
visitors. The Development Framework supplements a number of saved policies in 
Salford’s adopted Unitary Development Plan (primarily Policy MX1 which sets a vision 
for the Regional Centre as a vibrant mixed-use area) and its proposals are also 
supported by policies in the emerging Salford Local Plan: Development Management 
Policies and Designations. 

   
3.2  The Development Framework incorporates the following vision for the Crescent area: 

 
The Crescent Development Framework 2021 aims to transform this part of Salford into 
a globally recognised destination for people to live, learn, work, visit, play and be 
active. It will build on the existing positive characteristics of Salford, such as the historic 
environment around the Crescent Conservation Area, to deliver a distinctive sense of 
place. It will create an inspiring, attractive and sustainable place which generates 
professional and educational opportunities for the benefit of the wider community 
whilst also protecting and enhancing the natural environment.  

   
3.3  The following key framework objectives have been developed collaboratively with the 

partners and align with the Council’s ‘Great 8’ priorities, local and national planning 
policy and the UN sustainability goals:   
 
Learning and Innovation 

 Support and enhance the future development of the University 

 Enhance the local experience for students and University staff 

People, Community and Tackling Inequality 

 Provide high quality homes and a mix of tenures 

 Respond to and integrate with local communities 

 Create opportunity for all and ensure nobody is left behind 

Page 11



 Support healthy lifestyles, improved well-being and enhanced opportunities to 

be physically active 

Culture and Creativity 

 Create a place with culture at its heart 

Strong and Diverse Economy 

 Generate high quality employment opportunities and create a truly unique 

and compelling innovation district 

Connectivity, Movement and Sustainable Transport 

 Radically change and enhance existing infrastructure and public realm 

Environment and Blue-Green infrastructure 

 Enhance the wealth of existing green assets and significantly increase 

biodiversity 

 Conserving and enhancing the area’s unique historic environment 

Climate Change and Sustainability 

 Lead the way to carbon neutrality 

   
3.4  The Development Framework then goes on to set out in more detail the proposed 

overarching development principles for the area, the application of those principles in 
each of the 6 development zones / character areas and the overall illustrative 
masterplan for the area. The framework concludes with a discussion about the 
implementation and phasing strategy for future development across the area. The final 
version of the Crescent Development Framework 2021 is attached to this report at 
Annex A.  

   
4.0  Public consultation – Overview of process and responses received 
   
4.1  An initial scoping consultation on the draft vision and objectives and scope of the new 

framework took place over the period 6th July – 3rd August 2020. The responses 
received informed the Draft Development Framework, which was subject to public 
consultation over the period 20th October – 1st December 2020. Given the restrictions 
associated with Covid-19, the consultation took place virtually, using a consultation 
platform developed by Aecom (https://salfordcrescent.consultation.ai/).  

   
4.2  Officers from the Development Team and representatives from the English Cities Fund 

also attended the Ordsall and Langworthy Community Committee on 10th November, 
the East Salford Community Committee on 19th November and the Growth and 
Prosperity Scrutiny Panel on 23rd November to present the new framework proposals 
and encourage attendees to submit comments. 

   
4.3 
 
 
 

 As a result of the responses received through the public consultation process, a 
number of changes have been made to the Development Framework. The key 
changes are summarised in table 1 below.  
 

 

 

 

 

Page 12

https://salfordcrescent.consultation.ai/


 

Table 1: Schedule of main changes made to the Draft Development Framework  

Consultee Relevant Sections  Changes to be made 
GMSF Throughout – 

particularly Section 2 
Ensure all text and figures updated to latest version (30 
October 2020). New section added on draft GMSF 
Publication Plan (October 2020) 

Canal & River 
Trust  

Section 1 - Figure 1.4 Figure updated to show location of canal 

Manchester, 
Bury & Bolton 
Canal Society 

Section 4 – 
Opportunities and 
Constraints and 
Historic Environment 
Text and 
accompanying 

Figure 4.5 

Section 5 - Figure 5.3 

Section 6:  

Zone 1 – Health & 
Innovation  

Zone 4 – Transport 
Hub 

Zone 6 – Crescent  

 

Section 6 

Full extent of the canal to be identified within the 
document and the approach to be taken to it to be set out 
in all relevant Zones. 

 

The section entitled “Non-designated (Locally Listed) 
Buildings” to be changed to refer to “Non-designated 
Heritage Assets”, with locally listed buildings and the 
Manchester Bolton & Bury Canal (which is considered to 
be a non-designated heritage asset) comprising 
subsections beneath this wider heading. 

 

The final line of the paragraph titled “Manchester Bolton 
and Bury Canal” should be amended as follows: 

"The former line of the Manchester, Bolton and Bury 
Canal is located to the south of the Crescent within the 
Framework area. The canal was commissioned by local 
landowners and businessmen and was constructed 
c.1791-1808 to connect Bolton and Bury with Manchester. 
The canal, when fully opened, was 15 miles long and was 
accessed via a junction with the River Irwell in Salford. 
Since its demise in the 1960s the canal has been 
culverted and some sections in-filled.” 

 

Section 4 

List of opportunities to include and recognise heritage 
assets including the former canal as a potential 
opportunity, in terms of placemaking, realising the 
heritage value of this asset, and in terms of making 
provision for active travel and access to green space. 

 

Page 92 

Reference to be made to the MB&B within the 
development principles (especially ‘Placemaking”) and 
the potential recognised in figure 5.3 

 

Page 112 Manchester Bolton & Bury Canal  

Rewording as follows to highlight aspirations for potential 
future restoration of the canal and the potential to reveal 
existing features associated with the canal where 
appropriate, such as coping stones etc.  

Page 13



Consultee Relevant Sections  Changes to be made 
“The line of the former Manchester, Bolton and Bury 
Canal will be protected as an important heritage asset. In 
order that people can appreciate the history of the canal, 
reference will be made to its former line by way of a new 
pedestrian/ cycle route that signposts the route and 
provides heritage interpretation along the way whilst 
protecting it for future restoration. Where historic 

features areas of the canal can potentially be 
revealed…….” 

 

Delivery 

Add text to state that proposals for any linear park in the 
vicinity of the canal are dealt with in a comprehensive 
manner across the whole area, both as part of the overall 
planning of the area and by developers to avoid a 
piecemeal approach to its creation and enhancement for 
the wider public benefit. 

Residents of 
Fire Station 
Square 

Throughout the DF Ensure that the square outside the Old Fire Station is 
correctly labelled as Albert Bentley Place (rather than Fire 
Station Square, which sits behind this). 

TfGM Zone 4 – Transport 
Zone 

Amendments to the illustrative masterplan to include the 
Mainline Station building to be moved to the south of the 
A6 bridge; Metrolink platforms to be moved to the east 
along the A6 

Manchester 
City Council  

Section 5 - Regarding 
de-engineering the A6 
as part of wider city 
centre proposals  

Appendix A 

Add reference to discussions ongoing with relevant 
stakeholders including TfGM and Manchester City 
Council.  

Emergent City Centre Transport Strategy to be referenced 
in Appendix A. 

Historic 
England  

Appendix A 

Section 5 – Priority 3 

Conservation Area Appraisals to be referenced within 
Appendix A. 

Reference added to the need for heritage assessment 
where necessary as proposals come forward.  

Add reference to CCA being on heritage at risk register. 
Section 5.  

Crescent Zone – changes to illustrative masterplan with 
larger masses rationalised to give better building 
separation in the higher density part of the masterplan 

Sport England  Section 5/ Section 6 Add reference to engagement with Sport England as part 
of future proposals 

EA Section 5 – Flood Risk 
and Drainage 
Development Principle  

 

Section 5 – Blue 
Infrastructure  

SuDS & contamination 

 

Adelphi Zone 

Sequential approach to be followed – add ref. in Section 
5 

 

Add ref. to consideration of contamination where there is 
reference to use of SuDS 

 

Plots adjacent to the river to include continuation of 
riverside access, continuing the riverside walk started by 
the developments to the north. 

Page 14



Consultee Relevant Sections  Changes to be made 
 

 

Trafford 
Council  

Figure 2.2 

 

Ensure Cornbrook, Pomona Island and Trafford 
Wharfside are shown as being within Trafford area (Fig. 
2.2) 

Mark TC LA area. 

United Utilities  Sustainable Drainage 
– add detail 

To be added from scoping comments: 

‘New development will be expected to incorporate 
exemplary Sustainable Drainage methods and follow the 
surface water hierarchy. Applicants will have to submit 
clear evidence of why more sustainable options within the 
hierarchy have been discounted. The expectation will be 
for only foul flows to communicate with the public sewer. 

Development proposing new public realm should allocate 
provision for the management of surface water through 
the use of sustainable drainage systems with multi-
functional benefits as part of a high quality, connected 
green and blue water environment. Any green and blue 
network must demonstrate a consideration for site 
topography to understand any naturally occurring flow 
paths and any low lying areas within the proposal where 
water will naturally accumulate. Resulting layouts should 
ensure the most sustainable drainage solution is achieved 
by mimicking existing circumstances such as topography, 
landscaping and ground conditions. 

Any development must have regards to an underpinning 
strategy that will promote the use of connecting 
sustainable drainage systems between multiple phases of 
development as part of a connected green and blue 
environment. New development should ensure unfettered 
access for new sustainable drainage infrastructure 
through a connected series of green and blue 
infrastructure. New green and blue features must consider 
the topography of the site to understand how development 
sites will link and account for any naturally occurring flow 
paths or low lying areas within the boundary where water 
will naturally accumulate.’ 

New development should ensure unfettered access for 
new sustainable drainage infrastructure through a 
connected series of green and blue infrastructure. 

To deliver the most sustainable drainage solution, design 
of development should plan new green and blue features 
around existing topography as this will help understand 
how development sites can link and account for any 
naturally occurring flow paths or low lying areas within the 
area where water will naturally accumulate and eventually 
discharge 

In terms of the phasing approach, it’s important there is 
access left as part of Phase 1 to allow subsequent phases 
to discharge surface water to the River Irwell. We would 
request further discussions are undertaken by the 
Council, ourselves and the LLFA to understand the 
proposals for this in greater detail.There is opportunity for 

Page 15



Consultee Relevant Sections  Changes to be made 
the document to refer to surface water management and 
make reference to the relevant Local Plan policies. 

Residents Section 5 and Section 
6 

Ensure issues relating to safety and security are 
referenced in the text, with regard to secure by design 
principles and natural surveillance. 

 

4.4  Following a number of discussions with TfGM and Network Rail, proposals for the 
Transport Hub have also been updated in the final Development Framework. The 
change relates to the position of the transport interchange and station and there 
has been agreement between the Partners, Network Rail and TfGM that locating 
the station to the south of the A6 would be the preferred option and would assist 
with the phased implementation of the proposals. 

   
4.5  A Consultation Statement, detailing the approach to consultation, all responses 

received, and the changes made to the framework as a result, is attached to this 
report at Annex B. 

   
5.0  RECOMMENDATIONS: 
   
5.1  That the City Mayor: 

 
1. Notes the content of this report;  
2. Approves the Crescent Development Framework 2021 as a material 

planning consideration for future planning decisions; and  
3. Approves the cancellation of the Crescent Development Framework 2014. 

 

 

KEY COUNCIL POLICIES:  

 City of Salford Unitary Development Plan 2004 – 2016: Saved Policies 

 City of Salford Publication Local Plan

 

EQUALITY IMPACT ASSESSMENT AND IMPLICATIONS:  

A Community Impact Assessment of the Development Framework has been prepared and is 

attached to this report at Annex C.  

 

SOCIAL VALUE:  

In addition to the Crescent Development Framework, the Council, University and the English 

Cities Fund are also preparing a Social Value Strategy for the Crescent area. Public 

consultation on social value matters commenced in August 2020 and ran until the end of 

November 2020. The outcomes of the consultation will inform the preparation of a Social Value 

Strategy for the area. 

 

ASSESSMENT OF RISK:  Low 

Page 16



The Development Framework will act as key additional guidance for the delivery of significant 

new development across the area.    

Following approval of the Development Framework, there is potential that land assembly will 

be required to achieve the strategic ambitions of the partners. This land assembly may need 

to be supported through the use of the Development Framework, the emerging Local Plan, 

future planning applications across the area and Compulsory Purchase Powers.   

The Council and the English Cities Fund are highly experienced in the above processes, as 

evidenced in the ongoing regeneration of the Salford Central area.  

 

Legal Implications: Supplied by Tony Hatton, Principal Solicitor. Tel. 219 6323 

Date provided: 17/12/2020 

Once the Framework has been approved it will become a material consideration for the City 

Council as Local Planning Authority. Legal Services will support the team in taking the 

proposals forward to ensure compliance with all relevant legislative and constitutional 

requirements including, where appropriate, the use of Compulsory Purchase Powers.     

 

Financial Implications: Supplied by Natalie Birchall. Tel 793 2316 

Date provided: 10/12/2020 

At this stage there are no financial implications. As the scheme progresses further approvals 

will be required.

 

PROCUREMENT IMPLICATIONS: Supplied by Christine Flisk. Tel 686 6245 

Date provided: 14/12/2020 

There are no procurement implications at this stage. The procurement team will work with 

the team to support any procurement activity as required.

 

HR IMPLICATIONS: No comments have been sought on HR implications.  

 

CLIMATE CHANGE IMPLICATIONS: Supplied by Dan Welsh 

The Development Framework objectives have been informed by the United Nations 

Sustainable Development Goals and the framework includes a specific objective related to 

climate change. In addition to the Development Framework, the Council, University and the 

English Cities Fund are also preparing a specific Sustainability Strategy for the Crescent area, 

which will set out more detailed objectives and KPI’s to guide future development across the 

area. A Sustainability Audit of the framework has also been prepared and is attached at Annex 

D. 

 

Page 17



OTHER DIRECTORATES CONSULTED: A range of Council directorates and teams have 

been engaged as the Development Framework has progressed and will continue to be 

involved moving forwards.

 

CONTACT OFFICER:  TEL NO:  

James Shuttleworth Currently working from home and available on via email 

(james.shuttleworth@salford.gov.uk) and MS Teams  

Kurt Partington Currently working from home and available on via email 

(Kurt.Partington@salford.gov.uk) and MS Teams  

 

WARDS TO WHICH REPORT RELATES: The Development Framework boundary includes 

land within Broughton, Irwell Riverside, Langworthy and Ordsall wards.  

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Page 18

mailto:james.shuttleworth@salford.gov.uk


 

 

 

Annex A: Final Crescent Development Framework 

Annex B: Crescent Development Framework Consultation Statement 

Annex C: Crescent Development Framework Community Impact Assessment 

Annex D: Crescent Development Framework Sustainability Audit 

Page 19



This page is intentionally left blank



January 2021

1

Final Development Framework
January 2021

Page 21



Fire Station Square and A6 Crescent Cross-Section Visual

P
age 22



January 2021

5

Partners

Project Team

01 Introduction

02 Salford’s Time  

03 The Vision

04 The Crescent: Contextual Analysis

05 Development Framework Area: Development Principles 

06 Character Areas: Development Principles

07 Illustrative Masterplan

08 Delivering The Vision: Implementation & Phasing

APPENDICES

Appendix A 
Planning Policy

Appendix B  
Regeneration Context

Appendix C 
Design Evolution

Contents

8

24

40

52

76

134

178

182

Final Crescent Development Framework

4

P
age 23



Final Crescent Development Framework January 2021

6 7

Salford Crescent Visual - Aerial

P
age 24



Final Crescent Development Framework January 2021

Introduction01.

8 9

Final Crescent Development Framework January 2021

P
age 25



Final Crescent Development Framework January 2021

In recent years, Salford has seen a substantial 
amount of investment in new homes, businesses, 
infrastructure and the public realm. The delivery 
of major projects such as MediaCityUK, Salford 
Central, Greengate, Port Salford and the AJ Bell 
Stadium, and the revitalisation of road and riverside 
corridors, has transformed large areas of Salford 
and had a significant impact on the city’s economy 
and profile. Investment in Salford is ongoing and 
increasing numbers of people are choosing it as a 
place to live, work and visit.

City Centre Salford, Salford Quays, and some 
adjoining areas have experienced significant 
growth and investment in recent years and provide 
a major concentration of employment, retail, leisure, 
tourism and cultural opportunities. However, there 
are still high level of deprivation in some of the 
inner neighbourhoods surrounding the City Centre. 

The Framework area lies within City Centre Salford 
bordered to the south-east by Chapel Street, 
an area of the city which has seen significant 
development in recent years with residential 
projects such as Timekeepers Square and Vimto 
Gardens and investment in traffic calming, public 
realm and landscaping. The Framework area is 
served by Salford Crescent mainline train station 
and is within walking distance of Manchester City 
Centre to the east. 

It is centred around the University of Salford’s 
campus, which is a large employer in the City 

The next 20 years are going to be very 
important for Salford; substantial progress has 
been made in securing the city’s regeneration 
with the city attracting continued investment 
from all over the world. Major developments 
such as MediaCityUK have put Salford on the 
map and development in the city continues at 
pace, rivalling that of neighbouring Manchester. 
Salford has its challenges and it is essential that 
new development is carefully integrated into the 
city in such a way that maximises benefits for 
all Salford residents and responds to identified 
challenges so that the city continues to prosper.

and contributes significantly to Salford’s economy, 
but is currently divided by natural and man-made 
infrastructure including the River Irwell, railway line 
and the A6/Crescent. This has led to parts of the 
Framework Area being left vacant or under-utilised. 
The expansion of the City Centre provides a unique 
opportunity to build on the areas existing assets 
including strong transport connections, heritage 
assets, and high quality green space to create a city 
district which links education with local industry, 
culture, heritage and residential development. 

The Development Framework promotes radical 
improvements to the public realm and aims to 
establish strong links between the University and the 
surrounding communities. 

The Development Framework has been prepared 
by Salford City Council (‘SCC’) working in close 
collaboration with its Partners, the University of 
Salford (‘UoS’) and The English Cities Fund (‘ECF’), to 
set out an ambitious long term vision for the area 
which will guide future regeneration over the next 20 
years. The Framework sets out development principles 
that will facilitate high-quality place-making, 
capitalise on the area’s unique existing assets and 
meet the needs of local communities. 

In order to fully realise the transformational vision 
for the area and the significant benefits that can 
be generated locally, a clear implementation and 
delivery strategy is proposed that forms a ‘golden 
thread’ running through the Development Framework.

01. Introduction

1110

Figure 1.1 / Transport Hub - Visual

Figure 1.2 / The Crescent - Visual

P
age 26



Final Crescent Development Framework

12

Crescent: 
A Unique 
Regeneration 
Opportunity

The area covered by the Development Framework 
sits within City Centre Salford and extends to 
approximately 102 hectares.  The Development 
Framework area primarily falls within the Irwell 
Riverside and Broughton wards with a small 
area to the south and south-east falling within 
the Langworthy and Ordsall wards (although it 
is noted that the ward boundaries are currently 
being reviewed).  

One of the key Development Framework drivers 
is to ensure that development proposals are 
brought forward in a way that maximises 
placemaking opportunities and ensure social 
value is generated through the application of the 
Development Framework.

ZONE 1 
HEALTH & INNOVATION 

ZONE 2  
PARKS & RIVER

ZONE 3 
PEEL PARK CAMPUS

ZONE 4 
TRANSPORT HUB

ZONE 5 
ADELPHI VILLAGE

ZONE 6 
THE CRESCENT

Crescent represents one of the UK’s most exciting 
regeneration opportunities and builds upon the successful 
renaissance of Salford in recent years as a key component of 
the Northern Powerhouse. The area has the potential to be 
a world class, globally recognised destination for people to 
live, learn, work, visit and play.

The Development Framework area has been divided into 
six ‘zones’ which will form distinct character areas. Each 
has a key role to play in delivering the required level of 
transformation for Crescent:

01. Introduction

13

The Framework area contains the Peel Park and 
Frederick Road Campuses of the University of 
Salford, the SCC owned Salford Innovation Park and 
civic amenities such as Salford Museum and Art 
Gallery, Peel Park and the Meadows. Surrounding 
the Framework Area are established communities 
centred around Pendleton, Lower Broughton and 
Chapel Street.  The area is a major gateway into City 
Centre Salford from the west and represents Salford’s 
principal cultural and higher education hub.

Figure 1.3 / Development Zones

Zone 1

Zone 2

Zone 3

Zone 4

Zone 5

Zone 6

January 2021

P
age 27



Final Crescent Development Framework January 2021

01. Introduction

Figure 1.4 / Aerial Image showing Key Existing Assets

INNOVATION FORUM

FREDERICK ROAD

DAVID LEWIS 
PLAYING FIELDS 

PEEL PARK

THE MEADOWS

RIVER IRWELL

CRESCENT (A6)

ALBION WAY

ALLERTON BUILDING

BRIAN BLATCHFORD 
BUILDING

SMAG

PEEL PARK 
QUARTER: STUDENT 
ACCOMMODATION

FARMER NORTON 
CAR PARK

OLD PINT POT

FORMER POLICE HQ

HEMSLEY HOUSE 
HUMPHREY 

BOOTH HOUSE

FARADAY HOUSE
CRESCENT HOUSE

PEEL BUILDING

OLD FIRE STATION

MAXWELL BUILDING

NEW ADELPHI 

NEWTON BUILDING

SALFORD 
CRESCENT 
STATION

MARY SEACOLE 
BUILDING

OLD ADELPHI

CENTENARY 
BUILDING

FORMER MANCHESTER, 
BOLTON & BURY CANAL

1514

P
age 28



Final Crescent Development Framework January 2021

16 17

The Delivery Partners

Salford City Council have overseen the preparation of the 
Development Framework in collaboration with Partners and other 
landowners. The Council has a strong track record in delivering 
large-scale mixed-use regeneration schemes across the City, working 
in partnership with the private sector and other key stakeholders. 

The University of Salford is one of Salford’s biggest employers 
and makes a significant contribution to the local economy. The 
University of Salford has been undergoing a transformation over 
recent years, much like the City of Salford itself. Rooted in Salford 
for almost 125 years through its founding institution the Royal 
Technical Institute, the University today has global reach and 
impact. Students are attracted to the city from around the world 
and the University has over 170,000 alumni in every corner of the 
globe, across all sectors and at all levels.

Salford graduates are supporting key growth sectors in the city, the 
city region and beyond – these include Acoustics; Energy; Robotics 
and AI; Health Innovation; and Automotive and Autonomous 
Vehicle Technology. The University of Salford is committed to 
building sustainable growth which includes striving to continuously 
innovate the curriculum through partnership with industry to give 
students future-proofed, real-world skills and mind-sets. 

In March 2020, The English Cities Fund (ECF) was selected as the 
Private Sector Partner (PSP) for the regeneration of Salford Crescent 
and the University District. ECF is a partnership formed in 2001 
between Muse Developments, Legal and General and Homes 
England. Since then ECF have been working with councils, landowners 
and communities to create exceptional places across the UK, 
bringing together investment, regeneration expertise and long-term 
commitment to shape our towns and cities for the better. 

ECF has delivered some of the country’s most complex and successful 
urban regeneration projects. These also include a number of schemes 
in Salford including Chapel Street, New Bailey, Valette Square, Vimto 
Gardens, Timekeepers Square and Carpino Place (these schemes form 
part of the wider Salford Central regeneration project).

01. Introduction

P
age 29



Final Crescent Development Framework

18 19

2014 
The Crescent Development Framework
In May 2014, SCC adopted the current Crescent Development Framework. 
This was subject to public consultation and forms a material consideration 
in the determination of planning applications in the area. Due to the 
changing regeneration and policy context, this guidance is now out-of-
date and has been superseded by this new Development Framework.

Progress So Far
The process of change across the Crescent area has 
already started, and this Development Framework 
builds on the significant progress made by SCC and UoS 
over recent years. A summary of masterplanning work 
undertaken to date is provided below:

01. Introduction

2020 
University Estate Masterplan Refresh
In 2020, UoS prepared a Masterplan ‘Refresh’ setting out updated proposals 
for its campus over the next 15 years (2020 -2035). Following the appointment 
of ECF in March 2020, the updated development proposals for the University’s 
Peel Park Campus are set out in this new Development Framework. 

2018 
University of Salford & Salford Crescent Masterplan
In May 2017, 5plus architects were appointed by SCC and  UoS to prepare 
an indicative Masterplan for the Crescent.

The Masterplan explored the opportunities for SCC and UoS to combine 
their assets across the area to create a development proposition of scale 
and duration. The Masterplan established an initial vision and set of 
key objectives for the area and identified a comprehensive pipeline of 
development and investment opportunities including:

Public consultation was undertaken with local residents, businesses and 
interested investors / partners on initial proposals throughout August-
September 2018.  However, the indicative Masterplan had no statutory ‘weight’ 
in planning terms as it was never formally approved by the Council. 

3,000 residential new build 
apartments / townhouses

1.6 million sq ft of new 
commercial floorspace

New multi-storey car parks

Nearly 2 million sq ft of public realm

1.5 miles green landscaped routes

1.5 miles cycleways

1,000 trees

1.1 million sq ft of new educational floorspace

Over 2,000 new student accommodation 
beds on campus

New hotel and University events 
and conferencing facility

January 2021

P
age 30



Final Crescent Development Framework

20

Purpose of the 
Development Framework
The overarching purpose of this Development Framework is to establish a clear 
vision, objectives and set of development principles that will catalyse the delivery 
of transformational change over the next 20 years, securing a range of long-lasting 
economic, social and environmental benefits across the Framework area and adjoining 
communities. It has been prepared in the context of Salford’s wider regeneration 
initiatives and embeds the following seven key Partner policy priorities at its heart:

The key objectives that flow from these priorities will provide the structure for a 
series of Framework-wide and character area specific development principles that 
will establish overarching parameters and aspirations, guiding future development. 
The Illustrative Masterplan contained within this Development Framework is a 
diagrammatical embodiment of these development principles. It is accompanied 
by a delivery strategy which provides an indication of how development could be 
accommodated across the area over time, informed by a detailed understanding of 
existing challenges and opportunities and proposed interventions. 

01. Introduction

Next Steps
Building on the extensive work undertaken to date, this 
new Development Framework will look to formalise the 
development proposals for area and will be used to 
guide future development over the next 20 years. 

Learning and 
Innovation

People, Community 
and Tackling Inequality

Culture and Creativity

Strong and Diverse Economy

Status of the 
Development Framework 
Following approval by SCC, the Crescent 
Development Framework will guide 
development across the Framework area over 
the next 20 years and will form a material 
consideration in the determination of all future 
planning applications across the area. 

The Development Framework does not form part 
of SCC’s adopted Development Plan. However, 
it has been prepared having had full regard to 
relevant legislation including national planning 
policy contained in the National Planning Policy 
Framework (NPPF) (2019), the ‘saved’ policies 
of the Salford Unitary Development Plan 2004-
2016 (UDP) (2006), the Draft Greater Manchester 
Spatial Framework (2019), and emerging policies 
within the “A Fairer City” Publication Salford 
Local Plan: Development Management Policies 
and Designations (2020). 

Once approved by SCC, the Crescent 
Development Framework will supersede the 
previous Crescent Development Framework 
(adopted May 2014).   

Benefits of the
Development Framework 
There are a number of benefits that will be derived 
from the preparation of a Development Framework 
for the long-term regeneration of the Crescent area 
including:

• Taking a holistic view of the existing challenges 
and opportunities and developing a robust 
response, informed by technical evidence 
and public consultation, that will facilitate 
high-quality place-making and deliver 
transformational change in the longer term;

• Enabling the local community and key 
stakeholders to feed into the Vision and 
development principles for the area at an early 
stage, providing vital local knowledge that will 
help shape future proposals and interventions;

• Integrating the proposals with a wider strategy 
for regeneration and infrastructure initiatives (i.e. 
large scale transport proposals), ensuring that 
proposals recognise and respond to surrounding 
communities and land uses;

• Providing certainty to investors on expectations 
for development across the area, whilst 
maintaining adequate flexibility to respond to 
development and investment opportunities 
which may come forward over the next 20 years; 

• Acting as a promotional tool to highlight the 
fantastic assets that already exist within the area 
and to demonstrate what could be achieved;

• Providing additional guidance in order to direct 
and deliver the aspirations contained within 
relevant policies of the emerging Salford Local 
Plan and ensure their effective implementation; 
and

• Establishing an indicative implementation 
and delivery strategy, plotting out how and 
when various sites will be brought forward for 
development in a phased manner.  

Connectivity, Movement 
and Sustainable Transport

Environment and 
Blue-Green infrastructure

Climate Change and 
Sustainability

21

January 2021

P
age 31



Final Crescent Development Framework January 2021

Draft Development 
Framework Consultation 
SCC’s Cabinet approved the commencement of 
public consultation on the Draft Development 
Framework for a 6-week period commencing on 
20 October - 1 December 2020 to allow consultees 
to provide views on the draft Development 
Framework. 

Due to the ongoing restrictions relating to 
COVID-19, this was undertaken via a virtual 
consultation event hosted on a dedicated website. 
The virtual consultation included a number of 
virtual boards, feedback forms and a copy of the 
Draft Development Framework for download.

Details of the draft Development Framework 
consultation were also published on SCC’s website 
and an electronic version of the Framework was 
available to download.

Finally, details of the draft Development 
Framework consultation were also published on 
the dedicated website for the project where an 
electronic version of the Framework was available 
to download. 

The representations received have been fully 
considered by the Council in the preparation of 
the final Development Framework, with formal 
responses presented within the final Consultation 
Statement which accompanies the Framework. 

Consultation

SA/SEA Screening
At an early stage of the process, CBRE Limited 
was commissioned to complete a Strategic 
Environmental Assessment (SEA)/ Sustainability 
Appraisal (SA) Screening Statement for the draft 
Crescent Development Framework Document.  The 
purpose of the Screening Statement was to identify 
whether there is a need for a standalone SEA/ SA 
to accompany the Development Framework.

Although non-statutory documents (such as 
this) are not required to undertake a SA/SEA, in 
the interest of ensuring that the Development 
Framework is as robust as possible, a Screening 
exercise was undertaken to screen the need 
for SEA/SA to be undertaken alongside the 
Development Framework. The Screening 
exercise was undertaken against the criteria 

Scoping Consultation
An initial Scoping Consultation was undertaken 
by SCC from 6 July – 3 August 2020.  SCC sought 
the views of stakeholders and consultees through 
a scoping consultation letter on its intention to 
refresh the Crescent Development Framework.  
This contained details of the revised vision and 
objectives and set out the next steps in terms of a 
review of the Masterplan.

The Scoping Letter was sent by post to 
approximately 6,000 residents and local 
businesses falling within the Framework area, and 
the area immediately adjacent to the Framework 
area, and all statutory consultation bodies.  

Details of the scoping consultation were also 
published on SCC’s website and an electronic 
version of the letter was available to download.

Finally, details of the scoping consultation were 
also published on the dedicated website for the 
project where an electronic version of the letter 
was available to download. 

Accompanying this Development Framework is a Consultation 
Statement which has been prepared in accordance with Salford’s 
Statement of Community Involvement (SCI) 2010 (as amended). 

The Consultation Statement sets out who the project team have 
engaged with in preparing both the Draft and Final Development 
Framework; a synopsis of the main issues raised by consultees, and how 
those issued have been addressed in the Development Framework. 

www.salfordcrescent.com

01. Introduction

A summary of the key stages of the Development 
Framework preparation process is set out below.

22

https://salfordcrescent.consultation.ai/

Future Development Proposals
As specific proposals/ planning applications come forward within the Development 
Framework area, further consultation will take place, providing additional opportunities 
for engagement and comment for stakeholders, residents and businesses.

www.salfordcrescent.com

from Annex II of the SEA Directive and Schedule 
1 of the Environmental Assessment of Plans and 
Programmes Regulations (2004). 

The Screening Statement concluded that the 
Development Framework is not likely to have any 
significant effects on the environment and therefore 
a full SEA is not required. Conversely, it shows that 
a number of positive benefits will be generated. In 
addition, the emerging Local Plan policies will be 
subject to a full SEA.

The SA/SEA Screening was issued to Natural 
England, Historic England and the Environment 
Agency and it was confirmed that SA/SEA was not 
required. Notwithstanding this, a Sustainability 
Audit has been prepared which accompanies this 
Development Framework.

23

P
age 32

https://salfordcrescent.consultation.ai/
https://salfordcrescent.consultation.ai/


02. Salford’s Time

24 25

Final Crescent Development Framework January 2021

P
age 33



26 27

02. Salford’s Time

Context for Change

Greater Manchester

Greater Manchester is home to over 2.8 million people, and has 
seen an increase of over 200,000 residents in the last 10 years 
alone. The population is forecast to grow by around another 
190,000 people by 2037 (GMSF Publication Draft, October 2020).  

The region is one of the most economically diverse 
in the UK, and is the main driver of the northern 
economy, generating nearly 40% of total output 
(Gross Value Added - GVA) in the North West, 
and 20% across the North of England.  At present, 
around 1.4 million jobs are provided within Greater 
Manchester. The baseline economic forecasts 
predicts an increase of around 100,000 jobs by 2037, 
increasing to 170,000 in the accelerated growth 
scenarios.

Employment opportunities are largely focussed 
around the City Centre and adjoining areas such 
as Salford Quays which collectively account for 

20% of jobs. Baseline economic trends suggest that 
the majority of employment growth would be in 
Salford, Manchester and Trafford. 

Greater Manchester’s overarching aim is to evolve 
into a world-class global city. Whilst the region has 
seen considerable growth and investment in recent 
years under the Northern Powerhouse agenda, 
in order to realise this vision, it will be critical to 
ensure that a strong economy, skilled residents, a 
high quality place and the environment, and lastly 
a diverse portfolio of investment and development 
opportunities are delivered. 

3m+  
POPULATION

£25.9m  
GVA

1.5m  
JOBS

Final Crescent Development Framework January 2021

P
age 34



Final Crescent Development Framework

28

02. Salford’s Time

KEY

BU
RY N

EW
 RO

AD

WHARFSIDE

VILLAGE

IMPERIAL WAR MUSEUM

VICTORIA

SHUDEHILL

EXCHANGE SQ

MARKET ST

PICCADILLY GARDENS

NEW ISLINGTON

PICCADILLY

ST PETER’S SQ

DEANSGATE/CASTLEFIELD

POMONA

TRAFFORD BAR

EXCHANGE QUAY

SALFORD QUAYS

ANCHORAGE
HARBOUR CITY

BROADWAY

MEDIACITYUK

LANGWORTHY

WEASTE

LADYWELL

SALFORD CRESCENT

SALFORD CENTRAL

VICTORIA

OXFORD RD
DEANSGATE/CASTLEFIELD

PICCADILLY

CORNBROOK

THE LOWRY
OUTLET

SALFORD
QUAYS

 LOWRY
THEATRE

BEETHAM
TOWER

CENTRAL
CONVENTION

COMPLEX

ARNDALE

LIBRARY

TOWN
HALL

ENTERPRISE
CITY

SPINNINGFIELDS

D
EA

N
SG

AT
E

TR
IN

IT
Y

 W
A

Y

TRIN
IT

Y W
AY

A57(M)

A57(M)

GREAT ANCOATS STREET

OLDHAM ROAD

A665

A6042

BRIDGEWATER WAY

MANCUNIAN WAY
TR

A
FF

O
R

D
 R

O
A

D

REGENT ROAD

CHAPEL STREET A6

M602

M602

A57

A56

A56

WHAFSIDE WAY
A5081

CASTLEFIELD

CENTRAL
BUSINESS
DISTRICT

NORTHERN
QUARTER

ANCOATS

NOMA

NEW ISLINGTON

FIRST
STREET

A6

BROAD STREET

3

MANCUNIAN W
AY

Metrolink Extension

Metrolink

Rail link

Main Roads

The Crescent Site Boundary

Salford City Council Boundary

City Centre Salford

29
Figure 2.1 /  Context

SALFORD CITY COUNCIL 
LOCAL AUTHORITY AREA

TRAFFORD COUNCIL 
LOCAL AUTHORITY AREA

MANCHESTER CITY COUNCIL 
LOCAL AUTHORITY AREA

January 2021

P
age 35



Final Crescent Development Framework

30

With a population of 251,300, the city has 
experienced significant growth over the last 15 
years, and this has been at a considerably higher 
rate (16.2%) than Greater Manchester (10.9%) or 
the North West (7.0%). 

Salford is a major employment centre which 
makes a significant contribution towards Greater 
Manchester’s economy. There are estimated to 
be over 9,500 active businesses in the city, and 
a significant number of these are concentrated 
within City Centre Salford and Salford Quays. The 
city’s unemployment rate has seen a substantial 
recent reduction, falling to 4.9% in the year to 
June 2018. 

Housing is an issue of great significance within 
the city. Average house prices have increased 
rapidly in recent years and are now around 15% 
above the previous peak of 2007. The house price 
to income ratio has risen above 5.6 (with above 
4 being deemed unaffordable), indicating that 
there are affordability issues in the city. Although 
the ratio is considerably lower than the average 
for England as a whole (over 7.9), a significant 
number of households still find it financially 
difficult to access the right type of housing.

There are also considerable challenges within the 
city with regards to health, education and skills. 
Salford currently suffers from significant health 
inequalities, and average health levels in the city 
are much worse than the national average.

The ongoing investment and development 
currently being undertaken in the city is 
addressing these challenges but there is still 
progress to be made. 

Salford’s Story
Salford, along with the other Greater Manchester 
authorities, has a key part to play in accommodating 
much of this anticipated growth. Salford has not yet 
reached its full potential and increasing numbers of people 
are choosing it as a place to live, work, invest and visit. 

The following key challenges have been identified by 
Salford City Council within it’s emerging Local Plan: 

Tackle inequality, promote fairness, and ensure 
that all residents share in the benefits of growth 

Increase average levels of health and 
educational attainment, and reduce disparities 

Accommodate Salford’s growing population, in 
housing that meets the full range of needs 

Continue to develop a strong, diverse economy 
that can withstand economic shocks and provide 
a range of accessible employment opportunities 

Facilitate the continued growth of those 
locations that are essential to Greater 
Manchester’s future prospects, such as the City 
Centre and Salford Quays 

Cope with the additional demand for travel 
associated with the growth in population, 
businesses and tourists, in a sustainable way 
without worsening congestion 

Deliver the infrastructure required to support a 
growing population, including transport, schools 
and health facilities 

Ensure that growth has a positive impact 
on environmental and heritage assets, and 
contributes to attractive and distinctive places 

Minimise contributions to climate change and 
adapt to its effects, including reducing the risk 
and impacts of flooding 

When developing the key principles for the 
Development Framework these challenges have all 
been considered. As the Crescent area is developed it 
is important that the ongoing challenges for the city 
as a whole are addressed to ensure places are not 
left behind as regeneration takes place.

Regeneration in Salford

Salford’s growth strategy has in recent years 
focused on investment in iconic buildings, new 
infrastructure and public realm, new homes, 
education, health facilities and business.  

From major developments to city parks, revitalised 
waterways and green spaces, Salford is being 
rebuilt and now more people than ever before 
are choosing it as a place to live, work, invest and 
visit. The City is also investing in its transport 
infrastructure, both to improve connectivity, and to 
support the sustainable growth of the city. 

Salford is capitalising on its unique identity, 
assets and entrepreneurial skills to provide real 
benefits for its growing population.  Key recent 
achievements include:

The £550 million MediaCityUK development 
at Salford Quays

The £26 million Salford City Stadium and 
future associated development

The completion of Greengate Square which 
is set to be the catalyst for £400 million in 
private sector investment

New innovative projects like the Soapworks 
and The Landing

The revitalisation of key areas along Chapel 
Street and the riverside corridors of the 
Bridgewater Canal and the River Irwell

The £650 million scheme to transform 
Pendleton which has 1,500 new homes built, 
1,300 homes modernised and 500 new jobs.

The brand new riverside development at 
New Bailey which includes hotels, offices and 
restaurants and residential accommodation 
in close proximity to Manchester’s city centre.

Building on the success of the recent and planned 
development in the surrounding area, the Crescent is on course 
to become a major new city district over the next 20 years. 

CGI: Riverside development at Two New Bailey Square

02. Salford’s Time

31

January 2021January 2021

P
age 36



Final Crescent Development Framework

The Greater Manchester context is critical in 
understanding Salford today. Salford, and 
particularly City Centre Salford, sits at the heart of 
the metropolitan area. Due to this strategic location, 
Salford has seen a turnaround in its fortunes over 
recent years, reversing decades of population 
decline and securing high levels of investment. This 
significant growth and investment in recent years 
now provides a major concentration of employment, 
retail, leisure, tourism and cultural opportunities.

The city is now delivering high levels of growth, in 
both new housing and new jobs, and is helping 
to drive forward both Salford’s and the Greater 
Manchester economies.

The Development Framework area sits within City 
Centre Salford which represents a major opportunity: 
City Centre Salford is directly adjacent to Manchester 
City Centre and this area of Salford, more than 
any other, is experiencing a period of considerable 
transformation and growth, and has potential to 
catalyse development across the rest of Salford.

02. Salford’s Time

32

A Strategic Location
City Centre Salford

Regeneration Areas:

SALFORD

Charlestown 

Chapel Street

Lower Broughton

Middlewood Locks

MediaCityUK

Greengate 

Pendleton PFI

Adelphi Riverside

Salford Central

Liverpool Street

Irwell River Park

1

2

3

4

5

6

7

9

10

11

WHARFSIDE

VILLAGE

IMPERIAL WAR MUSEUM

VICTORIA

SHUDEHILL

EXCHANGE SQ

MARKET ST

PICCADILLY GARDENS

NEW ISLINGTON

PICCADILLY

ST PETER’S SQ

DEANSGATE/CASTLEFIELD

CORNBROOK

POMONA

TRAFFORD BAR

EXCHANGE QUAY

SALFORD QUAYS

ANCHORAGEHARBOUR CITY
BROADWAY

MEDIACITYUK

LANGWORTHY

WEASTE

LADYWELL

SALFORD CRESCENT

SALFORD CENTRAL

VICTORIA

OXFORD RD
DEANSGATE/CASTLEFIELD

PICCADILLY

THE LOWRY
OUTLET

SALFORD
QUAYS

 LOWRY
THEATRE

 MEDIACITYUK

BEETHAM
TOWER

CENTRAL
CONVENTION

COMPLEX

TOWN
HALL

ARNDALE

LIBRARY

ENTERPRISE
CITY

SPINNINGFIELDS

D
EA

N
SG

AT
E

TR
IN

IT
Y

 W
A

Y

TRIN
IT

Y W
AY

A57(M)

A57(M)

GREAT ANCOATS STREET

OLDHAM ROAD

BU
RY N

EW
 RO

AD

A665

A6042

BRIDGEWATER WAY

MANCUNIAN WAY

TR
A

FF
O

R
D

 R
O

A
D

REGENT ROAD

CHAPEL STREET A6

M602

M602

A57

A56

A56

WHAFSIDE WAY
A5081

CASTLEFIELD

CENTRAL
BUSINESS
DISTRICT

NORTHERN
QUARTER

ANCOATS

NOMA

NEW ISLINGTON

FIRST
STREET

A6

A576

BROAD STREET

3

MANCUNIAN W
AY

8

St Johns

St Mary’s Parsonage

Medieval Quarter

Ramada Complex

NOMA 

Northern Gateway 

1

2

3

4

5

6

MANCHESTER

33

1

2

3

4

5

6

7
8

910

11

1

2

3

4

5

6

Figure 2.2 / Strategic Location

January 2021

P
age 37



Final Crescent Development Framework

34

WHARFSIDE

VILLAGE

IMPERIAL WAR MUSEUM

VICTORIA

SHUDEHILL

EXCHANGE SQ

MARKET ST

PICCADILLY GARDENS

NEW ISLINGTON

PICCADILLY

ST PETER’S SQ

DEANSGATE/CASTLEFIELD

POMONA

TRAFFORD BAR

EXCHANGE QUAY

SALFORD QUAYS

ANCHORAGE
HARBOUR CITY

BROADWAY

MEDIACITYUK

LANGWORTHY

WEASTE

LADYWELL

SALFORD CRESCENT

SALFORD CENTRAL

VICTORIA

OXFORD RD
DEANSGATE/CASTLEFIELD

PICCADILLY

CORNBROOK

THE LOWRY
OUTLET

SALFORD
QUAYS

 LOWRY
THEATRE

BEETHAM
TOWER

CENTRAL
CONVENTION

COMPLEX

TOWN
HALL

ARNDALE

LIBRARY

ENTERPRISE
CITY

SPINNINGFIELDS

D
EA

N
SG

AT
E

TR
IN

IT
Y

 W
A

Y

TRIN
IT

Y W
AY

A57(M)

A57(M)

GREAT ANCOATS STREET

OLDHAM ROAD

BU
RY N

EW
 RO

AD

A665

A6042

BRIDGEWATER WAY

MANCUNIAN WAY

TR
A

FF
O

R
D

 R
O

A
D

REGENT ROAD

CHAPEL STREET A6

M602

M602

A57

A56

A56

WHAFSIDE WAY
A5081

CASTLEFIELD

CENTRAL
BUSINESS
DISTRICT

NORTHERN
QUARTER

ANCOATS

NOMA

NEW ISLINGTON

FIRST
STREET

A6

A576

BROAD STREET

3

MANCUNIAN W
AY

Innovation Triangle
Not only is the Development Framework area located 
within a strategic location in terms of the Greater 
Manchester context, it also sits within the highly 
significant ‘Innovation Triangle’.  This comprises 
MediaCityUK, Salford Royal Hospital and the University 
of Salford.

MediaCityUK has changed the face of the city, creating a 
globally important home for creative, digital and media 
industries. This, coupled with the work being undertaken 
by the University of Salford, and Salford Royal Hospital, 
creates a unique Innovation Triangle across the area. 

In light of this, the Framework area should not be 
viewed in isolation – it is a critical component that 
can unlock a wider transformational opportunity to 
deliver an innovation district at scale - mixing future 
employment, residential and cultural uses. 

As a broader investment proposition, it builds on and 
will benefit from the other components of Salford’s 
Innovation Triangle including:

A Strategic Location

02. Salford’s Time

SALFORD ROYAL 
HOSPITAL

UNIVERSITY 
OF SALFORD

35

Continued growth of the  
Tech cluster already thriving at 
MediaCityUK & the Quays and 
the wider sector across GM

Rapid growth of the 
City Centre Salford

Planned doubling in size of 
MediaCityUK and the wider Quays 
areas over the next 10 years

Future development opportunity 
areas at Liverpool Street and 
the area immediately north of 
MediaCityUK.

Figure 2.3 / Innovation Triangle

January 2021

P
age 38



Final Crescent Development Framework

36

The Opportunity
The Framework area is an attractive location 
for investment due to its accessibility and 
successful existing assets. It has already seen 
some major development in recent years. 

This Development Framework seeks to 
provide further guidance to direct investment 
to the right locations to ensure that the area 
reaches its true potential and provides a 
lasting legacy for the people of Salford.

It covers one of the largest regeneration 
areas in Greater Manchester and its strategic 
location as part of City Centre Salford, close 
to the boundary with Manchester City 
Centre, at the heart of the metropolitan area, 
provides a unique opportunity to deliver 
significant and far reaching benefits. 

Planning Policy Context
In preparing the Development Framework, 
consideration has been given to national, 
regional and local planning policy. This includes 
both adopted and emerging policies in order to 
establish a full picture of the planning context 
and direction of travel. A full summary of relevant 
planning policy is provided at Appendix A and 
details of the regeneration context is provided at 
Appendix B. 

A synopsis of the key policies which have 
informed the preparation of the Development 
Framework is provided in this section. 

02. Salford’s Time

Greater Manchester Spatial 
Framework (GMSF) Publication Plan 
Draft for Approval October 2020
The GMSF sets out a clear vision for Greater 
Manchester. The vision is to bring forward 
brownfield land for development, reduce the net 
loss of Green Belt and provide stronger protection 
for important environmental assets. This will enable 
Greater Manchester to meet its local housing need, 
promote a new approach to town centres, support 
wider strategies around clean air, walking and 
cycling and underpins the ambition for the city to 
be carbon neutral by 2038. 

The ambition is for Greater Manchester to become 
a top global city with higher levels of international 
trade, investment, visitors, academic research and 
students. It will continue to develop research and 
development capabilities which are underpinned 
by the existing academic institutions as well as 
investing in strengthening existing and creating 
new employment locations so that all part of the 
city region become part of the thriving northern 
powerhouse.

The Draft Publication Plan 2020 was presented to 
AGMA Executive Committee on 30 October 2020, 
where the leaders of all 10 Greater Manchester 
councils supported in principal the latest draft of 
the Framework, intended to map areas for future 
development and support post-Covid economic 
recovery in the period to 2037.

Planning for the Future 
August 2020
On 6 August 2020, the Ministry of Housing, 
Communities and Local Government (MHCLG) 
launched the ‘Planning for the Future’ White 
Paper which proposes significant reforms of 
the planning system. Through these changes, 
Government is looking to streamline and 
modernise the planning process, bring a new focus 
to design and sustainability, improve the system 
of developer contributions to infrastructure, and 
ensure more land is available for development 
where it is needed. In the new system, local areas 
will develop Local Plans for land to be designated 
into three categories, or zones:

Growth areas are areas suitable for ‘substantial 
development’, with development approved at 
the same time plans are prepared, meaning new 
homes, schools, shops and business space can be 
built quickly and efficiently, as long as local design 
standards on parameters (such as land use, height 
and density) are met. In effect, adoption of the 
Local Plan confers outline planning permission 
(within those parameters).

Renewal areas will be suitable for some 
development - where it is high-quality in a 
way which meets design standards (such as 
land use, height and density) and other prior 
approval requirements the process will be quicker, 
utilising a new ‘statutory presumption in favour 
of permission’. If not, development will need 
planning approval in the usual way. 

Protected areas where development will be 
restricted to carry on protecting our treasured 
heritage like Areas of Outstanding Natural Beauty 
and National Parks.

Communities will be consulted from the beginning 
of the planning process – and help shape the 
design codes to guide what development can 
happen in their local area.

The consultation on the White Paper ran until 29 
October 2020. Following this, there will be further 
development of the proposals, and then there 
will be need for primary legislation, secondary 
legislation and a new NPPF. The White Paper sets 
out an aspiration for new local plans in place by 
the end of this Parliament e.g. 2024. 

37

The updated document sets out a clear vision 
for Salford Crescent as part of the City Centre 
Core Growth Area which straddles the boundary 
between Manchester and Salford and includes 
Chapel Street and the Crescent to the west, which 
will deliver a significant number of new jobs and 
new homes. 

There is a clear commitment to improved 
connectivity and provision of infrastructure 
between the City Centre and adjacent areas, such 
as between The Quays and Salford Crescent, to 
support growth across the City Centre, as well as 
in edge-of-centre locations that benefit from this 
improved connectivity and become increasingly 
suitable for higher density and the expansion of 
further knowledge based clusters of development.  
A potential Metrolink extension is identified within 
the Publication Plan from Salford Quays to Salford 
Crescent.

At its Cabinet meeting on 4 December 2020, 
Stockport Council resolved not to publish GMSF 
2020 for consultation. As a result, talks are ongoing 
with regards to progressing the GMSF as a plan 
of the remaining 9 districts that make up Greater 
Manchester.

Figure 2.4 / GMSF extract 
(Otcober 2020)

January 2021

P
age 39



Final Crescent Development Framework

38

The above policies, alongside those outlined in Appendix A, form the context 
for the development of the Development Framework.

02. Salford’s Time

39

Policy AP4 
Salford Innovation Triangle
Development shall:

• Support its role as the key focus for innovation-
led economic growth within the city;

• Enable enhancements in the area’s 
infrastructure, including: 

• Deliver the latest digital infrastructure 
throughout the area; 

• Provide a new Metrolink line between Salford 
Quays and Salford Crescent Station, potentially 
with a bus transit scheme being developed 
initially, better connecting the two anchors of 
MediaCityUK and the University of Salford.

Policy A1 
Supporting Sustainable Transport 
Development shall: 

• Help to reduce the overall need to travel 
through its location, density and mix of uses;

• Enable a modal shift towards more sustainable 
forms of transport such as walking, cycling and 
public transport; 

• Minimise any adverse impacts on transport 
networks; and 

• Be phased with the provision of sufficient 
transport infrastructure and services.

Policy ED3 
University of Salford
The continued enhancement of the facilities and 
campuses of the University of Salford will be 
supported.  Development shall:

• Form part of a comprehensive development 
strategy to ensure that the university’s estate is 
properly coordinated and managed; 

• Support an increase in use of public transport, 
cycling and walking; 

• Take advantage of opportunities for greening 
the campus; and

• Promote links between business sectors and 
the university’s skills and research strengths 
to support the Industrial Collaboration Zone 
aspirations, including enhancement of Salford 
Innovation Park.

Policy HE6
Canals
The canals in Salford will be protected as important 
heritage assets, including the Manchester, Bolton 
and Bury Canal and its former line. 

• Development alongside the line of the canal 
shall facilitate its restoration or, where this is not 
practicable, provide open space incorporating 
walking and cycling routes and heritage 
interpretation  features along its line so that the 
potential for future restoration is retained and 
people can appreciate the history of the canal. 

• Development that would prevent or significantly 
hinder the future restoration of the canal or its 
tow-path will not be permitted. 

https://map.salford.gov.
uk/publication-local-plan-
policies-map/

Policy E3
Knowledge Capital 
A Knowledge Capital, consisting of a cluster of 
knowledge-based employment, education-related 
uses, cultural facilities, and other complementary 
uses, will be developed based around the 
internationally important University of Salford and 
linking through to the universities within the city of 
Manchester.

Policy MX1/2
Mixed-Use Area 
Policy MX1 seeks to develop a vibrant mixed-use 
area with a broad range of uses and activities, and 
development within these areas will be required to 
support this.

Policy E3
Knowledge Capital 
A Knowledge Capital, consisting of a cluster of 
knowledge-based employment, education-related 
uses, cultural facilities, and other complementary 
uses, will be developed based around the 
internationally important University of Salford and 
linking through to the universities within the city of 
Manchester.

An extract of the Proposals Map relating to 
Crescent which shows the relevant designations is 
provided at Appendix A.

SCC is now preparing a new Local Plan for the city 
which, once adopted, will supersede the policies 
within the UDP.

The City of Salford Unitary 
Development Plan (UDP) 
June 2006
The ‘saved’ policies of the Unitary Development 
Plan (UDP) form part of the city’s current 
Development Plan. 

 The Salford Local Plan: 
Development Management Policies 
and Designations (SLP:DMP) 
Publication Version (January 2020)

The publication version of the Local Plan was 
published for consultation in January 2020 with 
comments invited until March 2020. The plan is 
expected to the submitted to the Secretary of 
State in 2021. The following key policies have been 
considered in the preparation of this Development 
Framework.

Policy F1 
An Inclusive Development Process
Developers are strongly encouraged to involve 
local residents, businesses and other stakeholders 
throughout the development process. 

Policy F2 
Social Value and Inclusion
Development shall be located, designed, 
constructed and operated so as to maximise its 
social value and contribution to making Salford a 
more socially inclusive city. 

Policy EF2 
Coordinated Development
Development will not be permitted if it would 
unacceptably hamper or reduce the development 
options for adjacent sites or the wider area. 
Development must make provision for, and be 
phased with, supporting infrastructure, facilities, 
and appropriate environmental mitigation.

Policy AP1 
City Centre Salford - Crescent, University 
of Salford and Innovation Park (G)
The area will provide a distinctive western entrance 
to the City Centre. Its historic buildings, coupled with 
enhanced views and connections to surrounding 
open spaces, will offer an attractive context for any 
further development. The green character of Peel 
Park will be extended across the A6 around Fire 
Station Square, and high quality public realm will 
unify the important cluster of heritage, cultural and 
university assets, providing a strong, active focus 
for the area. The university campus will continue 
to be improved and the adjacent Innovation Park 
enhanced for knowledge-based uses. Residential 
uses will be focused in the area to the south of The 
Crescent. The line of the former Manchester Bolton 
and Bury Canal provides an opportunity to open up 
new green infrastructure through this area.

Figure 2.5 / Emerging Salford Local Plan

January 2021

P
age 40

https://map.salford.gov.uk/publication-local-plan-policies-map/
https://map.salford.gov.uk/publication-local-plan-policies-map/
https://map.salford.gov.uk/publication-local-plan-policies-map/


03.

40

The Vision

41

Final Crescent Development Framework January 2021

P
age 41



42

“The Crescent Development Framework aims to transform this part 
of Salford into a globally recognised destination for people to live, 
learn, work, visit, play and be active. It will build on the existing 
positive characteristics of Salford, such as the historic environment 
around the Crescent Conservation Area, to deliver a distinctive 
sense of place. It will create an inspiring, attractive and sustainable 
place which generates professional and educational opportunities 
for the benefit of the wider community whilst also protecting and 
enhancing the natural environment.”

03. The Vision

Final Crescent Development Framework

The Development Framework presents a strong vision 
for transformational change together with a set of key 
objectives and overarching development principles 
for high-quality place-making to meet the needs of a 
growing population and the expectations associated 
with changing lifestyles. 

43

Figure 3.1 / Frederick Road Podium - Visual

January 2021

P
age 42



Final Crescent Development Framework

44

The UN SDGs are an internationally recognised set of objectives 
to 2030 that seek to achieve a better more sustainable future 
and were adopted by all United Nations Member States in 2015. 

There are 17 Sustainable Development Goals all 
of which are intrinsically connected.

United Nations Sustainable 
Development Goals (UN SDGs)

In order to deliver this ambitious Vision, twelve key 
objectives for the Development Framework have been 
identified, informed by the regeneration context, national 
and local planning policy (set out in Section 2) and the site’s 
constraints and opportunities (set out in Section 4).  
In developing these objectives regard was also had to the United Nations Sustainable 
Development Goals (UN SDGs) and the 10 characteristics set out within the National Design 
Guide which are discussed in the sections below.

Flowing from these key objectives are a set of overarching development principles at both the 
Framework-wide level and the character area level in order to ensure high-quality placemaking 
in order to deliver this ambitious vision. These are set out within Sections 5-8 of this Framework.

03. The Vision
The following SDGs are of particular relevance to the 
Framework area and have formed a key consideration in the 
development of the objectives outlined on the following pages. 

Goal 1 
No Poverty
Economic growth must be inclusive to provide sustainable jobs 
and promote equality

Goal 3 
Good Health and Well-Being
Ensuring healthy lives and promoting the well-being for all at 
all ages is essential to sustainable development.

Goal 8 
Decent Work and Economic Growth
Sustainable economic growth will require societies to create 
the conditions that allow people to have quality jobs.

Goal 9 
Industry, Innovation, and Infrastructure 
Investments in infrastructure are crucial to achieving 
sustainable development.

Goal 11 
Sustainable Cites and Communities
There needs to be a future in which cities provide opportunities 
for all, with access to basic services, energy, housing, 
transportation and more.

Goal 13 
Climate Action
Climate change is a global challenge that affects 
everyone, everywhere.

45

Figure 3.2 / UN Sustainable Development Goals

January 2021

P
age 43



Final Crescent Development Framework January 2021

Climate Change
Salford City Council is targeting 
Net Zero Carbon by 2028 
and the UK Government has 
a target of 2050. Adapting 
to and mitigating against 
climate change and the drive 
towards sustainable and 
carbon neutral development 
is a key consideration of the 
Development Framework. It will 
play a major role in the design 
of future developments within 
the Framework Area. 

The National Design Guide (October 2019)
In developing the Objectives for the framework, the National 
Design Guide has also been referenced, building upon the Vision 
and UN SDGs identified in previous sections. The National Design 
Guide identifies 10 characteristics grouped into three key pillars of 
climate change, community and character.  These ten characteristics 
are then used to create physical character, nurture and sustain a 
sense of community and work to address issues affecting climate 
change. They all contribute towards the cross-cutting themes for 
good design set out in the National Planning Policy Framework 
(NPPF) and National Planning Policy Guidance (NPPG).

These three key pillars are considered to be key drivers for the Development Framework. 
They have informed the Framework-wide and character area development principles for 
the Crescent, set out in Section 5 and Section 6 respectively. The matrix adjacent outlines 
how they link directly with the key Partner policy priorities, which are set out on page 20.

Character
The Development Framework 
identifies six zones across the 
Crescent area, taking their 
existing characteristics and 
weaving them together to 
create an area with distinctive 
physical characteristics 
running through it. 

Retaining and building 
upon the areas existing 
character whilst bringing new 
development forward presents 
a major opportunity to deliver 
a unique and distinctive new 
district in Salford. 

Community
The Framework area 
comprises a varied and 
diverse community, including 
University students and local 
residents. 

The Development Framework 
has been prepared with a focus 
on integrating the existing 
communities in order to ensure 
that both the existing and 
future communities can thrive. 

03. The Vision

46

8

Introducing the ten characteristics
35 Well-designed places have individual 
characteristics which work together to 
create its physical Character. The ten 
characteristics help to nurture and sustain a 
sense of Community. They work to positively 
address environmental issues affecting 
Climate. They all contribute towards the 
cross-cutting themes for good design set out 
in the National Planning Policy Framework. 
36 The ten characteristics set out in Part 2 
are:

■■  Context  – enhances the surroundings.

■■  Identity  – attractive and distinctive.

■■  Built form  – a coherent pattern of 
development.

■■  Movement  – accessible and easy to 
move around.

■■  Nature  – enhanced and optimised.

■■  Public spaces  – safe, social and 
inclusive.

■■  Uses  – mixed and integrated.

■■  Homes and buildings  – functional, 
healthy and sustainable.

■■  Resources  – efficient and resilient.

■■  Lifespan  – made to last.

The ten characteristics of well-designed places

A well-designed place

C
l i

m
a

t e                         C h a r a
c

t e
r

 

C o m m u n i t y

  L i fespan

b
u

il
d

in
g

s
H

o
m

es
 a

n
d 

 

P u b l i c  s p a c e s

  R
es

ourc

es Identi t y

C ontex t

N a t u r e

  Built form

U
s e s

M

ove m
en

t

Enhanced 
and 

optimised
Safe, social 

and inclusive

Mixed and 
integrated

Functional, healthy 
and sustainable

Efficient and 
resilient

Made to last Enhances the 
surroundings

Attractive and 
distinctive

A coherent 
pattern of 

development

Accessible and 
easy to move 

around

Co
nt

ex
t

Id
en

ti
ty

Bu
ilt

 fo
rm

M
ov

em
en

t

N
at

ur
e

Pu
bl

ic
 s

pa
ce

s

U
se

s

H
om

es
 a

nd
 b

ui
ld

in
gs

Re
so

ur
ce

s

Li
fe

sp
an

Learning and Innovation

People, Community and Tackling Inequality

Culture and Creativity

Strong and Diverse Economy

Connectivity, Movement and Sustainable Transport

Environment and Blue-Green Infrastructure

Climate Change and Sustainability

47

10 KEY CHARACTERISTICS - NATIONAL DESIGN GUIDE

7 
PA

R
TN

ER
 P

O
LI

CY
 P

R
IO

R
IT

IE
S

Figure 3.3 / 10 Key Characteristics 
(Source: National Design Guide, MHCLG, October 2019)

P
age 44



Final Crescent Development Framework January 2021

49

Key Objectives
Underpinning the Vision are a series of key 
objectives, grouped under the key Partner policy 
priorities. These form the structure around which 
the Framework-wide and character area specific 
principles and Illustrative Masterplan have been 
formulated to guide future development and 
investment across the area.

03. The Vision

48

Learning and Innovation
1.  Support and enhance the future 

development of the University 
• Transform the University’s Campus and the 

surrounding area to make it an outstanding 
place to study, work, live and visit and raise the 
profile of the University regionally, nationally 
and internationally.

• Enhance the Campus, bridge barriers between 
the various University zones and enhance 
existing assets.

• Create a new innovation district to forge 
stronger links between University teaching and 
research and industry and employers, bringing 
economic growth and added value to the 
Salford economy.

• Crystallise new opportunities to better connect 
the University with industry. New infrastructure 
and public realm will better connect the 
campus to cultural facilities and fantastic 
green recreational spaces across the area.

2.  Enhance the local experience for 
students and University staff

• Enhance the local experience for students and 
University staff and ensure that the University 
campus and wider Crescent area provides an 
attractive and safe long-term home-from-
home base to improve academic performance 
and graduate retention rates within the City.

• Create a ‘sticky campus’ which would include 
24/7 activity to drive economic growth and 
provide a vibrant and exciting staff and 
student experience as well as opportunities for 
local businesses. A ‘sticky campus’ refers to one 
which encourages students to stay on campus 
longer rather than go home or elsewhere for 
entertainment or food and beverage options.

People,  Community 
and Tackling Inequality
3. Provide high quality homes and 

a mix of tenures
• Bring forward a varied mix of high-quality, 

adaptable, low energy home for all.

4.  Respond to and integrate with 
local communities 

• Respond to, and fully integrate with existing 
communities which surround the area.

• Create new connections to surrounding 
communities to ensure that new buildings, 
places and infrastructure created within 
the Development Framework area benefit 
communities adjoining the area.

5.  Create opportunity for all and 
ensure nobody is left behind

• Create opportunities for everyone, reducing 
inequality, with the aim of leaving a positive 
legacy for communities within and surrounding 
the area.

• Deliver social value for the local area by 
promoting social, economic and environmental 
sustainability through the project’s life cycle 
employing a Social Value Strategy for the 
design, construction, occupation and estate 
management of the site.

6.  Support healthy lifestyles, improved 
well-being and enhanced opportunities to 
be physically active 

• Support healthy lifestyles and the improved 
well-being of students and University staff and 
of current and new residents and employees 
through the provision of safe and accessible 
green infrastructure, sustainable transport, 
enhanced public realm, quality new homes and 
a range of employment opportunities.

• Explore opportunities to develop and enhance 
physical health infrastructure and facilities 
in the locality.

P
age 45



Final Crescent Development Framework January 2021

50 51

03. The Vision

Connectivity, Movement 
and Sustainable Transport

9.  Radically change and enhance existing 
infrastructure and public realm

• Enhance existing and provide new green 
infrastructure and public realm that will allow for 
sustainable travel and connectivity throughout 
the area and into adjacent communities.

• Opportunities will be explored to create a new 
high-quality transport hub centred around 
Salford Crescent Station, including potential new 
Metrolink connections to Salford Quays, creating 
a destination that is accessible to all. 

Strong and Diverse Economy 

8. Generate high quality employment 
opportunities and create a truly unique and 
compelling innovation district 

• Generate high-quality employment 
opportunities across the area.

• The innovation zone will be an attraction to 
both skilled and creative workers, innovative 
firms, researchers and investors.

• The innovation zone will be interconnected 
with the University, MediaCityUK and Salford 
Royal NHS Foundation Trust to help realise the 
ambition of the Salford Innovation Triangle.

• The University Industrial Collaboration Strategy 
(ICS) will be used as a fundamental principle to 
encourage industry partnership schemes.

Culture and Creativity 
7.  Create a place with culture at its heart 
• Build on the fantastic existing assets across 

the area to create a place rich in culture.
• Create a new cultural hub, centred around 

the landmark Salford Museum and Art 
Gallery and former Fire Station.

• Redevelop Maxwell Hall to create a modern 
conferencing and event centre. Connectivity 
between assets across the cultural hub will 
be significantly enhanced by high quality 
public realm enhancements.

Environment and 
Blue-Green infrastructure;

10. Enhance the wealth of existing green assets 
and significantly increase biodiversity

• Capitalise on the fantastic green spaces and the 
River Irwell that already exist in the area and 
create new infrastructure and public realm full 
of rich greenery that will encourage walking, 
cycling and recreation. 

11. Conserving and enhancing the area’s unique 
historic environment

• Establish a positive strategy for the conservation 
and enjoyment of the area’s unique historic 
environment and character, celebrating the 
areas many listed buildings and structures, 
historic parks and archaeological sites. 

Climate Change and 
Sustainability

12.  Lead the way to carbon neutrality
• Lead the way to carbon neutrality with 

sustainability placed at the heart of new 
development proposals; creating sustainable 
transport and infrastructure, ensuring 
climate resilience, increasing biodiversity, 
creating healthy streets and public realm 
and developing highly sustainable and 
environmentally friendly buildings.

P
age 46



04.

52 53

The Crescent
Contextual Analysis

Final Crescent Development Framework January 2021

P
age 47



Final Crescent Development Framework January 2021

Proposed Salford Crescent and University District Development Framework Red Line Boundary
July 2020

B6186 - Fredrick Road

A6 - Crescent

A5063 - Albion Way 

A6 - Broad Street

Salford Crescent Station

The Meadow

Peel Park

A6 - Chapel Street

The Crescent lies within City Centre Salford, 
approximately 2km to the west of Manchester 
City Centre and 1.5km to the north east of Salford 
Quays. It is easily accessible due to the various 
transport links and network of walking and cycle 
routes. The A6 is a primary spine road that leads 
into Salford from Manchester City Centre.

The red line plan provided at Figure 4.1 below shows 
the extent of the Development Framework area.

The Development Framework area is comprised of 
a diverse range of existing buildings, predominantly 
associated with the University of Salford, including 
those in educational, commercial, industrial, leisure, 
cultural and residential use. 

Context

54

The Framework area also contains substantial areas 
of greenspace and parks including Peel Park, the 
Meadows and the David Lewis Playing Fields which 
all adjoin the River Irwell, which traverses the site. 

It is surrounded by the well-established residential 
communities of Lower Broughton, Pendleton, 
Charlestown, Chapel Street and Adelphi Street 
together with a range of local businesses and 
industrial operations.   

This section provides a description of the 
Framework area as it is today and identifies the key 
opportunities and challenges that have informed 
the preparation of the Development Principles and 
Illustrative Masterplan.

The Framework area covers approximately 102 hectares (252 
acres). It encompasses an extraordinary array of unique 
natural, physical, historic and cultural assets centred around 
the River Irwell and the University of Salford. 

Within the Framework area there are a diverse 
range of land uses present all centred around the 
University of Salford’s Peel Park Campus including 
educational, industrial, commercial, leisure, 
residential and cultural uses, as shown in the 
figure below.

Land Uses

To the north of the Framework area around 
Frederick Road, the Salford Innovation Park 
and the Innovation Zone there are a cluster 
of industrial buildings interspersed by low rise 
residential properties known as Strawberry Hill. 
Beyond the boundary to the north the area is 
characterised by low rise residential communities 
and industrial uses. 

The central and western elements of the 
Framework area comprise the University of Salford’s 
main campus and include associated uses including 
teaching facilities and student accommodation. 

Education

Industrial

Residential

Commercial 

Cultural

Leisure

This area also forms the heart of the Crescent’s 
rich and diverse cultural offer focussed around 
Salford Museum and Art Gallery, the Working Class 
Movement Library, Peel Hall, Maxwell Hall and New 
Adelphi Theatre. 

To the south of the A6 along the Crescent the area 
is mixed-use in nature with University buildings, 
commercial units, community uses, residential 
properties, leisure uses and industrial units together 
with a large expanse of surface car parking. 
Within this area there are a number of vacant 
buildings including the former Police HQ. Beyond 
the boundary to the south is the railway line and 
industrial uses associated with CEMEX operations 
on Hope Street. 

The east of the Framework area is characterised 
by the green spaces of Peel Park, the Meadows 
and David Lewis Playing Fields which adjoin the 
River Irwell. To the east of the river is the emerging 
Adelphi Street community, vacant buildings 
including the Old Adelphi and Centenary Building 
and surface car parks. Beyond this to the north 
and east are the well-established communities of 
Chapel Street and Lower Broughton. 

Careful consideration will need to be given as to 
how the proposals refer to and integrate with 
surrounding uses and communities.

55

04. The Crescent
Contextual Analysis

Site Boundary

University of Salford

Residential

Student Residential

Commercial

Mixed Use

Industrial

Pubs/Bars/Restaurants

Cultural

Educational

Religious Buildings

Salford City Council

Vacant Buildings

Institutional

KEY

Figure 4.1 / Red Line Plan

Figure 4.2 / Land Usage Plan

P
age 48



Final Crescent Development Framework January 2021

56 57

Salford City College;

Network Rail;

Electricity North West Limited;

Travis Perkins Limited;

Canal and River Trust;

Salix Homes;

Done (Property) Limited;

Myliko International (Wines) Limited; 

Private Residential Properties; and

Citroen UK Limited.

Land Ownership
The majority of the land within the Framework 
area (approximately 90%) is under the ownership 
or leased by the University of Salford and Salford 
City Council. However, as shown on the figure below 
there are also a number of private ownerships 
within the Framework boundary including 
landholdings controlled by:

Given that the majority of the Framework area 
is controlled by the Partners, this will enable the 
coordinated delivery of the proposals over the next 
20 years. The Partners have worked collaboratively 
to ensure that the proposals presented in this 
Framework have been prepared in a holistic 
manner in order to secure the widest possible range 
of regeneration benefits locally and across the City. 

It is recognised by the Partners that existing 
businesses, social enterprises and residential 
communities contribute to the vitality and 
viability of the area as a place to live and work. 
The Partners are committed to engaging with the 
local community to understand the issues that are 
important locally and to generate significant social 
value over the next 20 years. 

Scale and Density
As shown on Figure 4.4, the scale and density of 
existing development varies across the Framework 
area, typically ranging between 1-4 storeys in 
height. However, there are also a number of taller 
buildings present including:

The Local Crescent   16-22 storeys

Outwood Wharf  18 storeys  

Maxwell Building   10 storeys 

Peel Park Student Residential 10 storeys

Allerton Building   9 storeys

Adelphi Wharf    7-9 storeys 

The scale of development in the area continues 
to evolve, particularly around the A6, influenced 
by the large-scale regeneration schemes that 
have come forward in Salford Central and Chapel 
Street. The north of the site consists of lower-rise 
industrial buildings ranging between 1-3 storeys. 

The residential communities surrounding the 
Framework area including Pendleton, Lower 
Broughton, Charlestown and Adelphi Street 
are generally characterised by lower rise family 
housing.  

04. The Crescent
Contextual Analysis

KEY

>9 Storeys 

5-9 Storeys

2-5 Storeys

<2 Storeys

Site Boundary 

KEY

SALFORD CITY COUNCIL

UNIVERSITY OF SALFORD

SALFORD CITY COLLEGE

ELECTRICITY NORTH WEST 
LIMITED

MYLIKO INTERNATIONAL 
(WINES) LIMITED

TRAVIS PERKINS LIMITED

CANAL & RIVER TRUST

SALIX HOMES LIMITED

DONE (PROPERTY) LIMITED

PRIVATE HOUSING

OTHER OWNERS

Figure 4.3 / Land Ownership Figure 4.4 / Scale and Density

P
age 49



Final Crescent Development Framework January 2021

58 59

04. The Crescent 

Historic Environment
The name ‘Salford’ is rooted in its riverside location 
as it is derived from ‘sallow’, a type of willow, and 
‘ford’, meaning a crossing. In the early 13th Century, 
Salford began to evolve as a small town just 
east of the Framework area in a triangle of land 
bounded by the River Irwell, Sergeant Street - now 
Chapel Street, Gravel Lane and Greengate. 

By 1794, development had extended from Salford’s 
historic core to the Crescent creating large 
townhouses and gardens overlooking the River 
Irwell and surrounded by fields to the south. These 
were later largely replaced by housing and coal 
yards linked to the Manchester, Bolton and Bury 
Canal following its completion in 1808.

With the creation of Peel Park, the first public 
park in England in 1846, and the Museum and 
Art Gallery in 1850, the area became a new Civic 
Centre for Salford, home of the Fire Station, Police 
Headquarters and Technical College. 

The development of the Royal College of Advanced 
Technology (later University of Salford) and Peel 
Park Technical College (later the Salford College 
of Technology) and then the University College 
Salford during the 1960’s and 70’s, established the 
area as the main centre for higher education in the 
City. This position was further enhanced following 
the merger of these institutions in 1996 to form 
what we now know as the University of Salford.   

L. S. Lowry studied at Salford School of Art, housed 
in the present Peel Building, between 1915 and 
1928. Lowry was fascinated by the relationship 
between the Park and its industrial setting. He 
often painted Peel Park and also fantasy versions 
of Peel Park: ‘Sunday Afternoon’ features a boating 
lake, ‘The Bandstand, Peel Park, Salford’ (1931).

Designated Heritage Assets
As shown on Figure 4.5, the Framework area a 
contains a rich history which can be observed from 
the number of designated (and non-designated) 
heritage assets and parks. 

Conservation Areas 
Much of the Framework area falls within the 
Crescent Conservation Area and part of the area 
to the south-east falls within the Adelphi Bexley 
Square Conservation Area: 

• The Crescent Conservation Area was designated 
by SCC in 1981 and covers an area of 11.42 
hectares which includes Peel Park and David 
Lewis Recreation Ground to the north and 
the Civic and Educational Centre to the south, 
together with buildings along the Crescent. 
SCC prepared and adopted the Crescent 
Conservation Area Character Appraisal in 
May 2008. The Crescent Conservation Area is 
currently identified as being ‘at risk’ by Historic 
England (Heritage at Risk register, 2020).

• Adelphi Bexley Square Conservation Area was 
designated by SCC in 1978 and covers an area 
of 6.70 hectares including Chapel Street to the 
south together with the two distinct areas 
around St Philip’s Church and Bexley Square.

Listed Buildings 
There a number of Listed Buildings within the 
Framework area as listed within the table adjacent 
and shown on Figure 4.5.  These contribute to the 
area’s distinctive character. 

Non-Designated Heritage Assets
Locally Listed Buildings 
The Framework area contains a number of non-
designated heritage assets as identified in Salford’s 
Local List of Heritage Assets and as shown on 
Figure 4.5. 

Former line of the Manchester, Bolton & Bury Canal
The former line of the Manchester, Bolton and Bury 
Canal is located to the south of the Crescent within 
the Framework area. The canal was commissioned 
by local landowners and businessmen and was 
constructed c.1791-1808 to connect Bolton and Bury 
with Manchester. The canal, when fully opened, 
was 15 miles long and was accessed via a junction 
with the River Irwell in Salford. Since its demise in 
the 1960s the canal has been culverted and some 
sections in-filled.

Salford Museum & Art GalleryQueen Victoria Statue

LISTED BUILDINGS
Ref. Description Grade

1 Three totem sculptures in front courtyard of the 
Allerton Buildings on Salford University Campus II

2 Former Nurses Home II

3 Peel Building II

4 Gazebo to east of Peel Building II

5 Joule House II

6 2, 4 and 6 Acton Square II

7 Royal Art Gallery, Museum and Library II

8 Statue of Queen Victoria II

9 War Memorial in Albion Place II

10 The Old Fire Station II

11 Statue of Prince Albert II

12 Telephone Kiosk Adjacent to Albion Place II

13 1 Hulme Place II

14 22-34, The Crescent II

15 1 Massey Street II

16 19,20 and 21, The Crescent II

17 17, The Crescent II

18 Lancashire Fusiliers Memorial II

19 Islington Mill II

LOCALLY LISTED BUILDINGS
Ref. Description Salford ref.

1 Adelphi Building HE_LLIW22

2 NatWest Bank, Albion Place HE_LLIW11

3 Fire Station, Albion Place HE_LLIW01

4 1-30 Fire Station Square HE_LLIW17

Peel Building

04. The Crescent
Contextual Analysis

The Crescent Conservation Area

Nationally Listed Building or 
structure (Grade II listed)

Locally Listed Building  or structure

Former Line of the Manchester 
Bolton & Bury Canal

Site Boundary

KEY

1

18
3

8
2

6

4

7

11
9

10

13 14 16

15
17

19

12
5

1
2
3
4

Figure 4.5 / Statutory and Non-Statutory Heritage Assets

P
age 50



Final Crescent Development Framework

60

Peel Park Campus
The Peel Park campus has an indiscriminate 
character, which has been the result of many 
years of sporadic improvement and investment. 
The University has acknowledged that further 
investment and intervention is now required 
which has been reflected in the previous 
masterplanning efforts relating to the University 
campus, including the most recent 2020 
Masterplan Refresh. This Development Framework 
provides the opportunity to consider this 
holistically in the context of the wider Crescent 
area which presents a significant opportunity.

The University exerts a strong presence onto the 
A6, characterised by the red-brick grandeur of the 
Peel Building and Salford Museum and Art Gallery 
to the north - known as the ‘civic gateway’, with 
Albert Bentley Place and nearby Victorian villas 
of the Working Class Movement Library located 
directly opposite to the south.    

Moving further north into the campus, the history 
fades and the character of the campus becomes 
much less clear, with buildings of differing ages 
and characters. Most notably, the Newton Building, 
housing part of the School of Science, Engineering 
and Environment (SEE) is a low-rise workshop 
and laboratory building set low into the campus 
topography and built of concrete blocks and 
aluminium windows and now clearly showing its age. 

The original 1960’s masterplan established a North-
South pedestrian route, linking the civic gateway 
described above to a ‘college green’ at the heart of 
the campus - this pedestrian-friendly route is still 
strongly evident today.

The central area of the campus is dominated by the 
New Adelphi Building, built as part of a previous plan 
to relocate the School of Art and Media onto the main 
campus from the remote and disconnected Adelphi 
area of the campus.

Other central campus buildings such as Lady Hale and 
the Clifford Whitworth Library make little contribution 
with the latter, and whilst having recently undergone 
significant internal refurbishment, provide a very poor 
external image of a contemporary library service for 
prospective visitors and students.

Beyond the Library and New Adelphi Building, the 
campus character opens up again to reveal the 
‘college green’.  

Further north, the campus is largely characterised by 
student accommodation village, the Students Union 
Building and the Tom Husband Sports Centre.  Here 
there is a strong community feel with high quality 
residences set within a green, parkland setting 
consisting of Peel Park to the east and David Lewis 
Sports Ground to the north.

University Campus
The University of Salford has grown significantly 
since its creation in 1896 and has a proud 
heritage rooted in the Industrial Revolution. It is 
passionate about engaging with and developing 
local communities across Salford and Greater 
Manchester, through pioneering exceptional 
industry partnerships to lead the way in real 
world experiences, preparing students for life after 
University.

The University has two campuses across Salford: 
Peel Park and MediaCityUK. Peel Park is the site of 
the former Royal Technical Institute of Salford, as 
set out in the previous section; MediaCityUK is the 
digital, creative and media campus. 

61

04. The Crescent
Contextual Analysis

Campus Colour Palette
The colour scheme of the University buildings is 
dominated by shades of red which vary in hue 
across the site.

Many of the older buildings are red brick which has 
meant terracotta hues dominate the areas with 
more heritage. Newer buildings have incorporated 
stronger reds often used as accents against white 
façades.

This identity of built form gives the Peel Park 
campus a certain level of placemaking identity 
which is currently not echoed in other site features 
and materiality.

To reach the Frederick Road Campus, from Peel 
Park requires crossing the railway line via a 
footbridge, only to arrive on the edge of the A6 
rather than on campus. Connectivity is poor and 
the character of the Frederick Road campus has 
no consistency with that of the Peel Park Campus. 
The Mary Seacole building turns it back on to the 
A6 which further emphasises this.

Equally dominant is the Allerton Building - a 
vast and sprawling 20,000 sqm 1960’s concrete 
framed building which sits amongst car parking. 
Isolated yet connected to a sequence of other low 
lying support buildings, the arrangement forms a 
small but wind-swept courtyard accommodating 
the Grade II listed totem structures.  The Allerton 
Building is in poor repair and is surplus to 
requirements.  

There is a clear need to provide an appropriate 
University experience for students and staff on the 
Frederick Road site, therefore, as much as there 
is a need to provide investment in new academic 
facilities, the issues of connectivity, arrival and 
sense of place also needs to be resolved.

January 2021

P
age 51



Final Crescent Development Framework January 2021

62 63

Sustainable Transport, Connectivity and Movement
The Crescent is situated in a highly sustainable 
location within City Centre Salford. It is well 
connected to public transport via Salford Crescent 
Rail Station and a wide range of bus services that 
use the A6 Crescent, all providing good opportunities 
to access the site from varied destinations. The area 
is also bisected and surrounded by cycle routes 
(both off road and on road). 

Walking & Cycling
Cycling 
The Bee Network represents a vision for Greater 
Manchester to become the very first city-region 
in the UK to have a fully joined-up cycling and 
walking network: the most comprehensive in 
Britain covering 1,800 miles. As shown within 
Figure 4.7 there are a number of routes that have 
been identified as part of the Bee Network. The 
A6 and most of Frederick Road is identified as a 
‘Busy Beeway’ - a corridor on busier roads that 
will require a higher level of design intervention 
to improve cycling and walking.  TfGM currently 
has proposals to expand the network in the 
vicinity of the Framework area around Chapel 
Street, Islington and Trinity Way. 

Route 6 of the National Cycle Network bisects the 
Framework area from north to south partially 
travelling alongside the banks of the River Irwell 
along Meadow Road and linking to Wallness 
Lane. Improvements have been made locally 
to the riverside walkway adjacent to Peel Park 

Cycle Network (TfGM)

Beeways

Cycle Network (Sustrans)

Public Rights of Way (PROW)

Site Boundary

and David Lewis Playing Fields to enhance off-road 
pedestrian and cycle connections.  

The Development Framework represents a 
generational opportunity to significantly reduce car 
dominance and to create safe cycle infrastructure 
linking with other sustainable modes including Salford 
Crescent Railway Station. 

Walking
A Public Right of Way runs along the western edge of 
the River Irwell. Current pedestrian connections and 
infrastructure throughout the Framework area are 
disjointed with major arterial routes such as the A6, 
Frederick Road and Albion Way creating barriers to 
efficient permeability across the area. The quality of 
the public realm and footway treatments varies across 
the area; however, the overall pedestrian experience 
as it currently stands is generally poor, especially 
around the periphery of the Framework boundary.

KEY

04. The Crescent
Contextual Analysis

However, the level of vehicular traffic using the 
A6 and the physical barrier the A6 presents in 
certain locations along the Crescent, can result 
in a poor pedestrian environment during busy 
periods and limits north-south connectivity in 
some areas.

Figure 4.6 / Connectivity

Figure 4.7 / Walking and Cycling

16

| 
   

T
h

e
 c

r
e

s
c

e
n

T
 m

a
s

T
e

r
p

l
a

n

liverpool street 
& regent road

lower 
Broughton

chapel street 
& Islington

pendleton

Towards 
charlestown

Towards manchester 
city centre

A6

Frederick Road (B
618)

NCN 6

P
age 52



Final Crescent Development Framework January 2021

64 65

Bus
The Framework area is well served by several 
high frequency bus routes that stop along the A6, 
Frederick Road, Lower Broughton Road and Adelphi 
Street including services 26, 27, 34, 35A, 36, 50 and 
100C. Services connect the area to wider region 
traveling east towards Manchester City Centre and 
west across Salford and onto destinations such as 
Bolton, Leigh and the Trafford Centre. The A6 is a 
busy travel corridor with approximately 40 buses 
per hour travelling along the Crescent. 

In association with the movement of some 
University departments to MediaCityUK, there is a 
direct bus service from Salford Crescent Station to 
MediaCityUK running at 10 minutes intervals.

Train 
Salford Crescent mainline rail station lies at the 
heart of the Framework area, fronting onto the A6 
Broad Street/ Crescent, a dual carriageway radial 
route into the city fed by the A580 East Lancs Road. 
The station is built on a short common section of 
route heading north west, with platforms located 
hard up between two junctions, known as Windsor 
Bridge South Junction and Windsor Bridge 
North Junction.

Of the two diverging routes heading south east 
from the station, the northerly route heads 
towards Salford Central and Manchester Victoria. 
The southerly route, also known as the ‘Windsor 
Link’, heads towards Manchester Piccadilly via 
Manchester Oxford Road and Deansgate stations 
(the ‘Castlefield Corridor’), and a complex series 
of junctions in the Ordsall Lane area. Of the two 
routes heading north west from the station, 
the more easterly leads towards Bolton and 
Preston, and the westerly route towards 
Atherton and Wigan.

There are frequent services from the station 
and the railway in this area is heavily used. 
There are usually 11 trains per hour (tph) in each 
direction. The station and all trains serving it are 
operated by Northern (10 tph in each direction) 
and TransPennine Express (1tph in each direction). 
Destinations served include Manchester Victoria, 
Manchester Airport, Leeds Wigan Wallgate, 
Southport, Bolton, Blackpool and Edinburgh. 

The Crescent Station building as existing provides 
no sense of arrival into the Crescent area and is 
uninspiring.  The building is small and contains only 
a ticket office, ticket machine, limited waiting space 
with minimal seating.  Only one toilet is provided, 
not on the platforms.  There is no retail unit, coffee 
shop or similar anywhere in or close to the station. 
While the canopy on the platform was recently 
improved, there is still a large gap where rain falls 
directly onto the platforms.

On leaving the station, signage and legibility is 
lacking and it is unclear how to access either the 
University campuses or the wider area.

As part of their 2040 Vision, TfGM is pursuing 
a number of tramway extensions, both as 
conventional tram services, as now, and also as 
tram-train services, with vehicles capable of sharing 
infrastructure with conventional heavy rail services 
and complying with Network Rail standards. 
The Atherton line is one of four routes which 
TfGM is developing for the purpose of expanding 
connectivity in the city centre, relieving the 
congested existing central routes, and increasing 
service frequency.

Public Transport

Overall, the majority of the Framework area has a Greater Manchester 
Accessibility Level (GMAL) of 8, the highest possible accessibility. Despite 
this, there clear opportunities to enhance sustainable movements in the 

area and to encourage walking and cycling locally.

Strategic Road Network 
The Framework area is situated approximately 
three miles from Junction 3 of the M602 which 
connects to the M60 and M62 Motorway 
network. 

The A6 ‘Crescent’ and its continuation on to 
Chapel Street is a key primary route into Salford 
and Manchester City Centre from the West. It 
connects the City with the A580 ‘East Lancashire 
Road’ and wider locations to the West including 
Bolton and Preston. In recent years SCC has 
implemented significant traffic calming measures 
and public realm improvements around the 
Crescent and Chapel Street. Furthermore, public 
realm improvements have also been carried 
out on Oldfield Road to enhance the pedestrian 
experience. 

The A6 remains a very busy through route for 
traffic heading into Manchester City Centre and the 
existing road system represents a continued barrier 
to pedestrian and cycle movement. 

The area remains ‘car dominant’ as evidenced by 
the number of City Council and University surface 
car parks currently in operation. The existing surface 
car parks represent an inefficient use of land with 
many located in prominent locations better suited 
to alternative uses. Through a rationalisation of the 
current car-parking offer and taking a holistic view 
of future connectivity, there is a clear opportunity to 
better utilise prime brownfield sites and also assist 
in transitioning away from motor vehicle use.

Frederick Road (B
618)

Highways

Railways

Railway Stations

Site Boundary

KEY

04. The Crescent
Contextual Analysis

Vehicular Access

A6

Salford Crescent

Salford Central

Figure 4.8 / Strategic Road Network

P
age 53



Final Crescent Development Framework

Resources
Public Realm  
The public realm across the Framework area lacks a consistent high-quality unifying 
materiality and suffers from poor legibility which negatively impacts of pedestrian 
movement and flows in places. The photographs and key plan below provide an 
illustration of the range of treatments currently observed within the public realm. The 
numbers provided on Figure 4.9 correspond with the numbering of the photographs.

66

13

6

9

12

7

1
2

4
14

5

8
15

10

11

16

3

Cool tones - tarmac,
Concrete dominate

Cold tones - shades 
of grey granite, 
some terracotta

Natural tones - 
Golden gravel

Cool tones - 
tarmac, concrete 
and grey granite

Matte tones 
-  grey tarmac and 
concrete dominate

Warm tones - Yorkstone 
slabs/cobbles and 
Terracotta tarmac

12. Gravel path

Gravel paths are found 
throughout Peel Park dividing 
up the grassed areas, linking 
up various parts of the 
campus.

7. Concrete slab paving

Concrete slab paving is used 
in various places across the 
site including the Frederick 
Road Campus and parts of 
the crescent pavement.

1. Yorkstone slab paving

This yorkstone paving is 
found mostly in Albert Bentley 
Place and around the Salford 
Cenotaph in the conservation 
area of the site near.

9. Concrete slabs (large unit)

These large concrete units 
sit along the west bank of 
the Irwell in Peel Park and 
contribute to the river's flood 
defences whilst offering 
another pedestrian route.

11. Terracotta tarmac 
road surface

Terracotta tarmac road 
surface has been used in 
busier pedestrian crossing 
areas to signal caution to 
drivers.

16. Terracotta tarmac 
central reservation

Terracotta central reservations 
divide the busy carriagreways of 
the A6, the colour change and 
kerb helps to direct traffic flow.

8. Concrete block banding

Concrete block banding 
is used in various places 
across the site at edges of 
paved areas like the crescent 
pavement.

10. In-situ concrete surface

In-situ concrete areas have 
been used to surface less 
busy road areas including 
parking and drop off points.

5. Resin bound gravel

The resin bound gravel sites 
at the entrance to Peel Park 
at the gateway point from 
the A6.

4. Clay paving

The clay paving is found 
around the Peel building 
in the conservation area of 
the site and  echoes the red 
brickwork.

3. Granite paving (coloured)

This granite paving is found 
around the newer parts of the 
university campus including 
the Students Union and the 
New Adelphi building.

2. Yorkstone cobbles

The areas of yorkstone 
cobbles are found in Albert 
Bentley Place and in front of 
the Salford Institute for Public 
Policy in the conservation 
area of the site near.

6. Granite paving (buff)

This buff granite paving is 
found around the Statue 
of Joseph Brotherton and 
echoes the more stately 
setting of this monument.

67

14. Tarmac pavement

Tarmac pavements are 
found across the site and a 
large area of it runs from the 
University bus stop area up to 
Salford Crescent train station.

13. Tarmac path

Tarmac paths are found 
through some wooded and 
more natural north areas of 
the site near the David Lewis 
sports ground.

15. Tarmac road surface

Tarmac is used for much of 
the busier roads across the 
site including the A6.

04. The Crescent
Contextual Analysis

Figure 4.9 / Key showing location of public realm elements identified

January 2021

P
age 54



Final Crescent Development Framework January 2021

69

Greenspaces and the River Irwell
One of the defining features that gives the 
Crescent area such a unique and distinctive 
character is its abundance of high-quality green 
and open space that sits alongside the River 
Irwell. Indeed, this amount of open space located 
in the City Centre is extremely rare and provides a 
significant recreational, cultural and educational 
opportunity. The key elements of the green and 
open spaces comprise:

Peel Park 
Peel Park was the original City Park and is one 
of the oldest public parks in the UK. Lark Hill 
Mansion, dating from 1792, originally stood to 
the north of the Crescent. The house was sold 
with 7 acres of land to the Parks Committee and 
a public park was laid out and opened in 1846 
on the ground surrounding the mansion and 
meadowland to the north. This was one of three 
public parks opened on the same day within 
Manchester and Salford. 

The Park was named in honour of Sir Robert 
Peel who had been a prominent figure in the 
campaign for public parks and who had also 
contributed to the purchase. The park was typical 
of its period with a formal avenue leading down 
from the ornate gateway constructed on the 
Crescent. Historic maps indicate that the park was 

later enlarged and further developed with formal 
terracing and a flight of steps. This can still be 
appreciated today.

Peel Park is an attractive greenspace comprising 
lawns, mature tree planting, formal flower beds, 
footpaths and play space which has recently seen 
the benefit of Heritage Lottery Funding (HLF) and 
Council investment. The park provides a strong 
recreational offer for families in the surrounding 
communities and visitors from further afield. 
Opportunities exist to improve the relationship of 
the park with the River and enhance wayfinding. 

The Meadow
The Meadow is the largest area of open space 
within the Framework area at 7 hectares. It is a 
distinctive area located within the meander of the 
River Irwell that provides an important recreational 
offer for the local community as well as providing 
natural meadow, woodland and wetland habitats 
to encourage wildlife. 

As part of recent works, a new pathway has been 
installed together with seating and public art. The 
area currently represents an underutilised asset 
which results from its poor connectivity from the 
wider area, especially the A6 Crescent. 

Nature/ Public Spaces

The 
Meadows

Crescent
Vegetation

Green Corridor

Peel
Park

David Lewis 
Playing Fields

Site Boundary

David Lewis Playing Fields 
The David Lewis Playing Fields comprise of four 
full-size grass pitches and one full-size Artificial 
Grass Pitch (AGP) which recently opened in 
February 2020, together with clubhouse and 
changing facilities. The area is accessed via a 
poorly defined entrance off Frederick Road to 
the north and it sits adjacent to Peel Park and 
the River Irwell. 

The pitches are currently owned and operated 
by the University of Salford.  The new AGP pitch 
is fully floodlit and is available for use by the 
community and local schools and is therefore a 
key asset.

Other Open Space
Other areas of public space include:

• Allerton Courtyards;
• Mary Seacole Square;
• Land in front of the Salford Museum and 

Art Gallery; 
• Albion Place; and 
• Acton Square.

KEY

04. The Crescent
Contextual Analysis

Figure 4.10 / Green and Open Space

68

P
age 55



Final Crescent Development Framework January 2021

70 71

Landscape and Biodiversity Designations
Statutory Designations
The River Irwell is a designated Site of Biological 
Importance (SBI). SBIs include priority habitats 
identified in national and/or local biodiversity 
action plans, although such habitats are also 
found in other locations across the city. 

Invasive species
There is evidence of Japanese Knotweed and 
Giant Hogweed on the banks of the Irwell 
surrounding the Meadow. These invasive 
non-native species are major threats and their 
presence on site must be addressed.

Priority Habitat (Deciduous Woodland)

Open Mosaic Habitat

Priority Habitat (no main habitat)

Evidence of invasive species

Site boundary

Mature trees in grass provide 
setting to heritage buildings

Dense riverside vegetation

Open field with 
informal paths

Parkland with 
mature trees

Sports fields

Steep embankment

Formal gardens

Figure 4.11 / Landscape and Biodiversity Designations

KEY

04. The Crescent
Contextual Analysis

Risk of Flooding
The River Irwell is the main source of flood risk 
for the Framework area. As shown on Figure 
4.12 a large proportion of the Framework area 
is designated as Flood Zone 1 (low probability) 
however, the low-lying areas of Peel Park, 
David Lewis playing fields and the Meadow are 
considered Flood Zone 2 (shown on the plan 
in grey), which is an area having an annual 
probability of 0.1% to 1% for flooding to occurring in 
any year (medium probability).

An area of Peel Park falls within Flood Zone 3, 
which is an area having an annual probability of 
greater than 1% for flooding to occurring in any year 
(high probability), however the Environment Agency 
(EA) has undertaken flood defence improvements 
in recent years to manage this risk. 

Flood Zone 2 extends into the lowest elevations 
of the Innovation Zone with the existing houses, 
commercial units and industrial units off Wallness 
Avenue, Broughton Road East and Fredrick Road 
being effected by this.

Additionally, the northern area of the Adelphi Zone 
lies in Flood Zone 2, with an area of Flood Zone 

Flooding and Drainage

3 benefiting from the flood defences. This affects 
Cannon Street, Damask Avenue and Silk Street.

To mitigate the risk associated with flooding 
around the River Irwell, in 2018, the Environment 
Agency, Salford City Council and the University of 
Salford, together with local partners, completed 
the £10m Salford Flood Improvement Scheme. Built 
on the former University of Salford Castle Irwell and 
sports campus the scheme delivered on a long-
held vision to reduce the risk of flooding from the 
River Irwell and provide a boost to local wildlife 
populations by including a 5+ hectare high quality 
urban wetland habitat. 

There is a significant risk of surface water flooding 
at the southern and western sections of the 
David Lewis playing fields and along Wallness 
Lane, extending to the north, affecting sections 
of Fredrick Road and Broughton Road East. The 
proposed development of these areas should be 
sympathetic to the flood risk and key Blue-Green 
Infrastructure should be implemented to mitigate 
this risk. Any development should work with the 
natural flowpaths allowing flood water to move 
around without increasing the existing issues.

Flood Zone 2

Areas benefiting from flood defences

Flood Defence

Main River

Site Boundary

KEY

Biodiversity
The site includes a number of priority habitats 
which offer considerable ecological benefit to 
the local surroundings. The Forestry Commission 
has classified certain areas of woodland and 
woodland fringe as having high spatial priority in 
the woodland priority habitat network. The priority 
species for countryside stewardship targeting is the 
lapwing making the provision of their habitat a 
high priority. 

Figure 4.12 / Flooding and Drainage 
(Source: Environment Agency)

P
age 56



Final Crescent Development Framework January 2021

72

Topography and Levels
An ordnance datum or OD is a vertical datum used 
by an ordnance survey as the basis for deriving 
altitudes on maps. A spot height may be expressed 
as AOD stands for “above ordnance datum” and is a 
commonly used measure of height, where ordnance 
datum is vertical by ordnance survey as the basis 
for deriving altitudes. 

Topography
The topography of the Framework area undulates 
across it with the highest elevation to the north-
west at 48m AOD to the low levels of 25-27m AOD 
of the River Irwell. 

River Irwell
The River Irwell enters the Framework area with 
a channel level of 25m AOD and top of bank level 
being approximately 29m AOD. As it exists within 
the Framework boundary, the Irwell has a channel 
level of 25m AOD and a bank level of 27m AOD.

Rail Corridor 
The rail corridor enters the Framework area in a 
cutting between three and four metres depth up to 
Salford Crescent Station, although the ground drops 
away to the east of the cutting. The rail corridor 
follows southern boundary of the Framework area 
remaining in a cutting of between two and three 
metres depth. The rail corridor continues past the 
area and rises to meet the Salford Central Station to 
the east. Salford Crescent Station has a rise of over 
three metres to University Road West.

Primary Road Features
The Frederick Road bridge crosses the River Irwell 
at an approximate level between 30- 31m AOD. 
The A6 passes over the rail corridor or at a height 
of approximately 8 metres, with the underpass to 
Albion Way sitting approximately 1m higher than 
the rail corridor. As the A6 passes above the River 
Irwell, there is a 13m height difference between the 
road surface and the river channel.

Other Notable Features
Peel Park is between 6 and 10 metres lower than 
the surrounding university campus providing an 
area of flood resilience adjacent the River Irwell, 
with a sloped embankment providing a rapid level 
change at the perimeter of the park. This level 
change continues along Wallness Lane towards 
Frederick Road, with the David Lewis playing fields 
lying 3-4m lower than the industrial developments 
to the west.

A footbridge crosses the River Irwell from Peel Park 
to Hydra Close with a clearance of approximately 
2-3m above the river bank.

Site Conditions
Air Quality
The area around Albion Way, Crescent/A6 and 
Adelphi Street falls with the Greater Manchester Air 
Quality Management Area (AQMA) where national 
air quality objectives for a specific pollutant (i.e. 
NO2) are likely to be exceeded.

Noise 
Surrounding the Framework area, are a number of 
existing cultural and industrial uses. Any proposals 
will need to take account of existing noise levels 
when developing proposals. 

Environmental Issues

04. The Crescent
Contextual Analysis

73

Constraints and Opportunities

The Framework area contains a number of unique 
opportunities but also some challenges that 
need to be overcome. In order to facilitate the 
transformational change required and to harness the 
potential of the area, a holistic approach needs to be 
taken to developing proposals within the Framework 
area. This needs to be coupled with a clear vision as 
to how and when these proposals will be delivered. 

The following section provides an overview of the key issues that have been 
raised as part of the consultation process and identified by the Partners that must 
be carefully considered in developing proposals for the area. These issues have 
informed a series of development principles and an Illustrative Masterplan that 
will guide development within the Framework area over the next 10+ years. 

P
age 57



Final Crescent Development Framework

74

Car Dominance 
Major road routes and surface car 
parks in key gateway locations 
dominate the area. This is turn 
creates a poor pedestrian experience 
and fractured public realm. 

Surrounding land uses 
Industrial land uses adjoining the 
Framework area to the north and 
south of the Crescent beyond the 
railway line impact on the potential 
strategic regeneration options in 
these locations. 

Severance 
The site is currently severed by a 
number of infrastructure and amenity 
elements including the railway line, 
the A6 and the River Irwell. These 
provide a barrier to permeability 
and connectivity through the 
Framework area. 

Vacant Land and Buildings 
There are a number of vacant and 
poor-quality buildings in the area 
that detract from the appearance 
and perception of the area.

Energy Efficiency 
Many of the existing buildings within 
the Framework area, particularly 
the older stock across the University 
campus, have poor energy efficiency 
and will require significant investment 
if they are to be retrofitted. 

CONSTRAINTS
Land Ownership 
Whilst the majority of the land is 
in the ownership of the University 
of Salford and Salford City Council 
there are also a number of smaller 
private ownerships within and on the 
edge of the Framework area which 
may impact on the realisation of 
regeneration aspirations. 

Key Gateways 
There is currently no sense of arrival or 
gateway to the Framework area.

Heritage 
The Framework area is covered by 
the Crescent Conservation area and 
Adelphi Bexley Square Conservation 
Area within which there are a number 
of statutory listed and locally listed 
buildings. Furthermore, the route of 
the former Manchester, Bolton and 
Bury Canal falls within the area. 

Topography and Levels 
There is a considerable change in level 
across the Framework area particularly 
around Salford Crescent station and 
down to the River from the A6. 

Flood Risk 
The Framework area in parts is 
situated within Flood Zone 2 and 3. 

?

Transformational Change 
Potential to realise a once in a 
generation opportunity to build on 
the areas extensive existing assets 
to create a high-quality development 
that benefits all.

The University 
Build on the University’s outstanding 
reputation to facilitate the 
implementation of its ambitious 
campus improvements. 

Parks and Rivers 
Potential to enhance and better 
connect the existing parks, open 
space and river edge. Enable better 
pedestrian accessibility to the 
Meadows and around the River. 

Re-thinking Road Structures 
Potential to de-engineer the A6 Crescent 
road and assess how road traffic flows 
through the Framework area.

Connectivity, Movement 
and Sustainable Transport 
Opportunity to de-engineer the A6 
Crescent road, enhance pedestrian/ 
cycle permeability and improve public 
transport provision. 

OPPORTUNITIES
Social Value 
Opportunity to embed social value 
in the delivery of the Framework 
vision and ensure that the needs of 
the local community are addressed. 

Activation of building 
frontages along the Crescent 
Active frontages will create interest 
and enliven this important Gateway 
to the Framework area.

New Gateways 
Potential to provide active hubs and 
gateways of distinctive character. 

Re-assess car parking 
strategy and rationalise 
surface car parking 
Opportunity to review the current 
car parking strategy in light of 
future sustainable transport 
proposals and to look to utilise 
inefficient surface car parking in 
prime areas for alternative uses. 

Heritage
The area’s existing heritage 
assets and unique character 
present an opportunity in terms of 
placemaking and realising the true 
value of the area.

75

04. The Crescent
Contextual Analysis

January 2021

P
age 58



Final Crescent Development Framework January 2021

05.
Development 

Framework Area
Development Principles

January 2021Final Crescent Development Framework

7776

P
age 59



January 2021

79

05. Development Framework Area
Development Principles

The purpose of the Development Framework is to help 
guide future development across the Crescent area over 
the next 20+ years. In this context, a series of overarching 
development principles which apply to and cover the entire 
Framework area have been developed, which flow from the 
Vision and Objectives, the UN SDGs, and take cues from the 
10 characteristics of well-designed place and the associated 
Design Principles set out in the National Design Guide. 

This section focuses on the following overarching 
development principles for the Crescent as a whole. 
These principles link directly with the characteristics covered 
above and the key objectives outlined in Section 3. 

Finer grain development principles have then been 
identified for each of the six zones as set out in Section 6.

PRIORITY 1

Learning and Innovation

PRIORITY 2

People, Community 
and Tackling Inequality

PRIORITY 3

Culture and Creativity

PRIORITY 4

Strong and Diverse Economy

PRIORITY 5 
Connectivity, Movement 
and Sustainable Transport 

PRIORITY 6 
Environment and 
Blue-Green infrastructure

PRIORITY 7 
Climate Change 
and Sustainability

LEARNING AND 
INNOVATION

PEOPLE, 
COMMUNITY 
AND TACKLING 
INEQUALITY

CULTURE AND 
CREATIVITY

STRONG AND 
DIVERSE 
ECONOMY

CONNECTIVITY, 
MOVEMENT AND 
SUSTAINABLE 
TRANSPORT

ENVIRONMENT 
AND BLUE-GREEN 
INFRASTRUCTURE

CLIMATE 
CHANGE AND 
SUSTAINABILITY

VISION

KEY OBJECTIVES

SEVEN PARTNER POLICY PRIORITIES

Development Framework Area / Development Principles

Character Areas / Development Principles

UN SDGS

10 DESIGN 
CHARACTERISTICS – 
NATIONAL DESIGN 
GUIDE

OPPORTUNITIES 
AND CONSTRAINTS

PLANNING POLICY 

REGENERATION 
CONTEXT

Figure 5.1 / Flow Diagram – Vision and Objectives

Final Crescent Development Framework

78

P
age 60



Final Crescent Development Framework January 2021

Learning and 
Innovation 

PRIORITY 1

05. Development Framework Area
Development Principles

Final Crescent Development Framework

8180

January 2021

P
age 61



83

December 2020

05. Development Framework Area
Development Principles

The ‘Learning and Innovation’ theme 
encompasses a large part of what the 
Framework is looking to achieve; on one hand, 
the University of Salford is located at the heart 
of the Crescent Development Framework area, 
and transformation of this key asset will be 
fundamental to the success of the wider area. On 
the other hand, there has long been an aspiration 
to develop the University’s research and create a 
purpose-built and dedicated Health & Innovation 
Zone to facilitate collaboration between the 
University’s research and industry and employers 
in the relevant fields.  In this context the ‘learning’ 
element and ‘innovation’ element go hand in 
hand together. 

This desire reflects the Crescent’s strategic location 
within Salford’s ‘Innovation Triangle’ which is an 
internationally significant clustering of innovative 
activity across a range of sectors, incorporating 
Salford Quays and MediaCityUK, the University of 
Salford and Salford Royal Hospital (as set out in 
Policy AP4 of the emerging Salford Local Plan and 
Section 4 of this doucment). 

There is potential for further major intensification 
within the Triangle; the Triangle does not have 
rigid boundaries, and inevitably there will be 
nearby locations that can contribute to and benefit 
from innovation and research activities. There 
are separate policies in the emerging Local Plan 
relating to key parts of the Triangle, such as Salford 
Quays (Policy AP2), the University of Salford (Policy 
ED3), and Salford Royal Hospital (Policy HH3).  

This Development Framework provides the basis 
for the transformation of the University’s Peel Park 
and Frederick Road campuses (as set out in Section 
6 under Zone 2) alongside the development of 
an identified ‘Health & Innovation Zone’ (as set 
out in Section 6 under Zone 1) to the north and 
west of the campus.  The siting of the Health & 
Innovation Zone is deliberate and takes account 
of this strategic location, seeking to maximise the 
opportunity to develop both learning, research, 
innovation, industry and employment in parallel.  

The Crescent area will contribute significantly 
to the Innovation Triangle and through the 
development of this dedicated Zone will encourage 
innovation and research activities and partnership 
and collaboration between research and industry.  

This Framework will facilitate this interaction and 
will provide collision space alongside exceptional 
buildings and public realm in order to ensure 
collaboration and ultimately the success of this 
Zone.  Further details and parameters for the 
Health & Innovation Zone and Peel Park Campus 
Zone are set out in Section 6. 

The remainder of this section sets out the vision, the 
key themes, the rationale and justification for the 
future development of the Health& Innovation Zone 
and the thinking around how this may be achieved.

1

3

5

2

4

6

1. Peel Building - School of SSE

2. Humphrey Booth House

3. Maxwell Building & Maxwell Hall

4. Peel Park Student Accommodation

5. Fire Station Square

6. New Adelphi

PRIORITY  1, LEARNING AND INNOVATION 

Final Crescent Development Framework

82

P
age 62



Final Crescent Development Framework January 2021

84

05. Development Framework Area
Development Principles

Health & Innovation Zone Vision 
In late 2019, a vision for the development of an 
'Innovation Zone', was established based on primary 
research covering activities at the University of Salford 
and Salford Royal NHS Foundation Trust, and on the 
needs of the local population as expressed in various 
City Council and NHS Reports. That vision was based 
upon research and analysis which sought to identify 
themes that:

Built upon strengths or key attributes of the local area;

Are complementary to other research activity in the 
wider Greater Manchester (GM) area;

Represent sectors with business growth potential; and

Could positively impact on the health and well-being of 
the local and wider population.

A review of ongoing research at the University 
of Salford highlighted activities in the areas 
of Robotics and Autonomous Systems, Built 
Environment, Acoustics and Health as being 
of most importance and which could form the 
basis of the future development of the Health 
&  Innovation Zone.  

These activities represent a dynamic mix of 
interests that together, contribute towards 
achieving an overall ‘Healthier Living’ 
vision to meet the challenges of Salford's 
community and economy.  It will also act 
as a draw to a prospective diverse range of 
occupiers that will support growth.  

As a result, Healthier Living has been 
embedded as the overarching theme for the 
development of the Zone for the purposes of 
the Development Framework.  

The key themes for the Zone that will support the 
overarching Healthier Living vision, and will generate 
a commercially active and sustainable community 
of business, work for the benefit local people, and 
which will draw upon local expertise are:

Theme 1 
Robotics & Automation, as an anchor 
capability, one which will sustain 
and encourage innovation into other 
disciplines and knowledge areas, 
particularly the second and third themes

Theme 2 
Built environment 
(including Acoustics)

Theme 3 
Healthcare 
(including Prosthetics & Orthotics)

These interlocking core themes impact across 
multiple sectors (e.g. manufacturing, transport, 
healthcare, etc.) all of which, from an innovation 
perspective, represent growth sectors, have a 
significant role to play in the GMCA Local Industrial 
Strategy (LIS), and have a role in developing 
better environments (home and work) to support 
Healthier Living.

The Health & Innovation Zone provides a unique 
opportunity to capitalise on the concept of a Living 
Lab; a location where innovation, community, 
research and business are intertwined to develop a 
real world test bed for new innovations that support 
the ambition of developing Healthier Living for all.  

Figure 5.2 / Innovation District themes

PRIORITY  1, LEARNING AND INNOVATION 

85

P
age 63



Final Crescent Development Framework January 2021

87

Existing Assets in Innovation Zone Development Principles
There are a number of existing assets and committed projects 
within the Health & Innovation Zone which will be further 
developed and enhanced through the Development Framework. 
A number of these assets were included within the University’s 
2020 Masterplan Refresh and are at the heart of the ‘learning and 
innovation’ agenda. These assets are summarised below along 
with a brief description of their interdependencies and synergies:

05. Development Framework Area
Development Principles

The technology areas are growing and receiving 
investment, with a new build planned to create 
the North of England Robotics Innovation Centre 
for Robotics and Autonomous Systems (Theme 1), 
including space to work with SMEs.  

Energy House 2.0 is under construction to the west 
of the Zone to a create a state-of-the-art climate-
controlled testing environment for the building 
industry (Theme 2). 

These interlocking research areas create an 
interdisciplinarity that is attractive to a broad 
range of businesses across many industrial 
sectors, from manufacturers looking to use 
automation and robotics to increase productivity 
and reduce waste, to new prosthetics device 
developers needing to work with specialists in 
those areas and in robotics, or the development of 
new materials and (automated) techniques for the 
construction industry to create healthier, cleaner 

living and working environments, either through 
new build or retrofit solutions to properties.

Energy House 2.0 will provide access to facilities for 
testing and monitoring the performance of new 
construction methods and materials. In addition, 
the University’s Institute of Acoustics and Vibration 
Research is developing plans for a new set of 
facilities that will add capability to the materials 
testing capacity to support the Built Environment 
businesses in the area.

With respect to Acoustics and Vibration research 
(Theme 2), Salford has a strong teaching and 
research offering in the context of the UK. Acoustics 
is a broad and diverse discipline that impacts 
multiple industries, products and areas of society. 
The UK Acoustics sector is estimated to employ 
16,000 people and generates £4.6bn in output 
annually with around 750 companies in the field. 
Salford’s research expertise has been established 
over 20 years with interests in the testing of 
materials for their acoustic properties, whether that 
is in modelling and testing of materials to create 
a particular sound (e.g. the sound of a car door 
closing), or materials to reduce noise and create a 
healthier environment for work, travel and living. 

The University of Salford is 1 of 60 United Kingdon 
Accreditation Service (UKAS) accredited sites for 
acoustic testing of materials in the UK, and 1 of 
only 10 organisations with accreditation to perform 
acoustic calibration services. This highlights the 
unique expertise within the University.

Centre of Excellence in Intelligence 
Automation & Robotics (EIAR)

Innovation Forum

Energy House 2.0

Centre of Sound and Vision

Centre for Prosthetics and Orthotics

New Health and Society + Clinic

University at it's Heart 
Acknowledge the University at the heart of 
the Development Framework and support 
and enhance the future development of the 
University.

Raise the Profile of the University 
Build on the University's world-class reputation 
and raise the profile of the University regionally, 
nationally and internationally to make it an 
outstanding place to study, work, live and visit.

Transform the Campus 
Transform the University’s Peel Park and 
Frederick Road Campuses through proposals 
for refurbishment and enhancement of existing 
assets, new buildings and an enhanced public 
realm.

Increase Accessibility through Infrastructure 
Include major infrastructure and transport 
proposals to make the University more easily 
accessible to those travelling to it from inside 
and outside the region.

Create a 'Sticky Campus' 
Proposals which will create a vibrant student 
and staff experience through a mix of land 
uses, to encourage a 24/7 economy which is 
currently lacking, will be encouraged.

Learning and Research Innovation and the Economy
Bridge the gap between Research and Industry 
Develop an Innovation Zone (including circa 3 
million sq ft innovation and commercial floorspace) 
which bridges the gap between research and 
industry, forging strong links between University 
teaching and research and industry and employers.

Foster Economic Growth 
Create conditions for significant economic growth 
in this Zone to add value to the Salford economy 
and act as a catalyst for further development and 
investment in the area.

Increase Permeability and Improve Public Realm 
Break down existing barriers in the Framework area 
and improve connectivity by creating stronger links 
between the University’s Peel Park and Frederick 
Road campuses, major transport and infrastructure 
proposals and new and existing green spaces 
through improved pedestrian and cycle access.

Improve Student and Staff Experience 
Improve the staff and student experience and 
wellbeing through placemaking activities, public 
realm improvements and the built environment 
to ensure the wider Crescent area provides an 
attractive and safe long-term home-from-home 
base to improve academic performance and 
graduate retention rates within the City.

Integration with the Local Community 
Encourage links between the University and the 
local community.

PRIORITY  1, LEARNING AND INNOVATION 

Final Crescent Development Framework

86

P
age 64



Final Crescent Development Framework January 2021

People, Community and 
Tackling Inequality

05. Development Framework Area
Development Principles

PRIORITY 2

Final Crescent Development Framework

8988

January 2021

P
age 65



Final Crescent Development Framework January 2021

90 91

Deliver initiatives with the local community 
- not for them, and ensuring they are 
meaningful and inclusive, evolving as 
community needs change, such as:

Provide and prioritise training, employment 
and business opportunities for Salford 
residents;

Raise people most in need out of poverty 
and reduce inequalities;

Contribute to protecting and enhancing the 
natural, built and historic; environments; 

Prudent use of natural resources, the 
minimisation of waste; and pollution, and 
adapting to a low carbon economy.

Engage stakeholders and communities 
at the earliest possible stage to design policies, 
programmes and services. Ensuring that any 
barriers to people participating in that process 
are removed or reduced.

Encourage proposals to embed social value 
by committing to unlock value across the 
lifecycle of the development in accordance 
with the Social Value Strategy which is being 
prepared for the area.

Incorporate social value into future 
procurement processes including appointment 
of contractors, suppliers, consultants and estate 
managers. Successful companies will sign up to 
the Crescent Social Value Supply Chain Charter; 

Celebrate success of best-practice social value 
delivery by sharing learning so others can 
refine their own delivery strategies. Always look 
to improve how social value can be unlocked 
further at every stage; and

Incorporate social value into agreements with 
the businesses occupying new space. They have 
a role to play in delivering positive outcomes 
and will be expected to sign the Crescent Social 
Value Occupier Charter.

As has been set out in Section 2 of this Development 
Framework, more and more people are choosing Salford 
as a place to live, work and visit. It will be essential to 
ensure that both the existing and future community in 
and around the Crescent share in the benefits of growth 
and that the Development Framework tackles inequality 
and promotes fairness.  

The Development Framework will support development proposals which are well designed, 
functional, accessible and sustainable. The aspiration is to address issues of social deprivation 
in the area to meet the needs of existing residents and businesses whilst encouraging inward 
investment and creating a place which is both attractive to live, work, study and visit. 

05. Development Framework Area
Development Principles

Providing High Quality Homes
A range of high quality homes 
Provision of high quality homes across a 
mix of types and tenures designed to meet 
the need of a wide range of users and are 
adaptable to change, if required, over time.  

Responding to changing demographics 
Both the existing and changing demographic 
of the area will be considered in all proposals. 

Ensuring Healthy Lifestyles
Support healthy lifestyles 
Ensure healthy lifestyles and the improved 
wellbeing of University students and staff and 
of current and new residents and employees 
through the provision of safe and accessible green 
infrastructure, sustainable transport, enhanced 
public realm, quality new homes and a range of 
employment opportunities. 

Support proposals which promote access 
to green infrastructure and enhanced public realm.

Encourage walking and cycling  
through infrastructure and public realm 
improvements and improved connectivity.

Tackling Inequality and 
Promoting Fairness
Integrate with existing communities 
Respond to, and fully integrate with existing 
communities which surround the area.

Improve connectivity with 
adjacent communities 
Create new connections to surrounding 
communities to ensure that new buildings, 
places and infrastructure created within 
the Framework area benefit communities 
adjoining the area.

Improve health outcomes 
and provide health facilities 
Explore opportunities to develop and enhance 
physical health infrastructure and facilities in 
the locality to improve health outcomes.

Reduce inequalities 
Increase average levels of health and 
educational attainment and reduce disparities 
including through the Social Value Strategy.

Generating Social Value
Maximise social value and social inclusion 
Create opportunities for everyone, maximising wider 
social value and contributing to social inclusion, with 
the aim of leaving a positive legacy for communities 
within and surrounding the area.

Develop a Social Value Strategy  
This will follow a four-step process including 
assessing needs, engaging with the community, 
development of set of interventions and working 
with local partners to deliver these.  Once completed, 
management and monitoring against objectives will 
be undertaken.

PRIORITY 2, PEOPLE, COMMUNITY AND TACKLING INEQUALITY

Development Principles

Final Crescent Development Framework

P
age 66



Final Crescent Development Framework January 2021

92 93

05. Development Framework Area
Development Principles Placemaking

Develop a successful placemaking strategy 
Develop a successful placemaking strategy for 
the Crescent to harness the culture, green spaces 
and heritage assets, including the former line of 
the canal, and to grow and develop a community 
and destination through targeted activities, 
interventions, support and promotion.

The Right Mix of Uses 
Develop a 24/7 Economy 
Ensure that the Crescent has a successful and 
vibrant day time and night time economy by 
providing a rich mix of land uses. This would 
include commercial uses such as food and drink, 
retail, restaurants, bars and cafes to create a day 
and night time economy with a range of venues. 
This would also include world-class conferencing, 
convention, leisure and hospitality offer which 
will draw audiences from across the region and 
beyond. Build upon the existing offering and 
introduce new elements to improve the offering 
available for people using the space throughout 
the week and weekends.

Temporary and Meanwhile Uses
A Meanwhile Use is used to describe a diverse 
range of pop-up cafés, shops and temporary uses 
of empty property and land.

Activate the Area 
Encourage footfall and generate interest through 
development of temporary and meanwhile uses 
in key locations to activate the area, particularly 
in early phases of development to put the 
Crescent ‘on the map’.

Temporary and Permanent Events and Activities 
Well-placed temporary interventions along 
important site connections will animate key 
routes and create dwell spaces and opportunities 
for trails and themed linking spaces.

Improved connectivity, accessibility 
and enhanced feeling of safety
Enhanced physical connections 
and redesign key spaces 
Create new and enhance existing physical 
connections and redesign key spaces throughout 
the Development Framework area to ensure clearer 
paths into the Crescent and to improve connectivity 
across the area and between the six key zones.

Ensure Accessibility and Improve Wayfinding 
Ensure that both new and enhanced existing physical 
connections and any signage/ wayfinding schemes 
are fully accessible to a diverse group of people and 
are designed against crime. This would typically 
include dementia friendly signage/ hidden disability 
signage and commonly recognised symbols.

Embed Secure by Design Principles
Secure by Design principles shall be integrated as 
part of future proposals, including provision of Crime 
Impact Statements and engagement with Greater 
Manchester Police (GMP) as appropriate. 

Public, Civic and Green Space 
Greening of the urban area 
Greening of the urban area as a whole, including 
the A6 and other arterial routes. Improve 
connectivity and the relationship between 
Salford Museum & Art Gallery and Peel Park.

Develop a Programme of Activities 
Maximise the opportunity which Peel Park and 
other spaces present for a regular programme of 
activities ranging from small events through to 
large-scale initiatives. This would anchor people 
to the area and engage the community whist 
providing income for local businesses.

Create New Public Spaces 
Create new complementary public areas, which 
have diverse communities and sustainability 
at their heart such as the development of the 
Frederick Road podium and creation of a new 
central plaza within the Innovation Zone to 
improve connectivity, provide amenity space 
and to facilitate collaboration and collision of 
ideas between employees, students and staff.

PRIORITY 2, PEOPLE, COMMUNITY AND TACKLING INEQUALITY

KEY 

Site Boundary 

Key connective routes

Route animation zones

Opportunity for new connections

Large scale green space 

Former Line of the Manchester      
Bolton & Bury Canal

Major function / event space

Enhancing the Character of the Area
Celebrate the Crescent’s Character 
Celebrating the Crescent area's heritage assets, 
architecture and outstanding open spaces, 
including through the proposed new linear park 
referencing the line of the former canal.

New Iconic Architecture 
and High Quality Public Realm 
Development of new, iconic architecture and 
high quality public realm which will further 
establish the Crescent as a recognised destination.

Improve Arrival Experience 
De-engineering and greening of arterial routes 
such as the A6 and improving arrival experience 
at Salford Crescent station.

Ri
ve

r I
rw

ell

Figure 5.3 / Opportunities for Placemaking activities

Riverside walk 
Opportunity to enhance the 
surface and provide increased 
number of access points to the 
waters edge

Entrance 
Opportunity to create improved 
access into the site, waters edge 
and playing fields

Riverside dwell/play spaces 
Opportunity for a series of spaces 
along the river edge

Key nodes 
Opportunity to create a series 
of spaces along the primary 
pedestrian spine

Former line of the Canal 
Opportunity to reference to the 
former line of the canal and 
encourage placemaking activities

P
age 67



Final Crescent Development Framework January 2021

Examples of Placemaking Activities and Meanwhile Uses

River Edge Street Games dwell

Performance/Installation Space

Route Animation

Event Space

Nature learning/play Outdoor markets Urban farming

Art installation / exhibition

Green/ Public Spaces

05. Development Framework Area
Development Principles

Pop-ups

PRIORITY 2, PEOPLE, COMMUNITY AND TACKLING INEQUALITY

9594

P
age 68



Final Crescent Development Framework January 2021

Culture and Creativity

PRIORITY 3

Final Crescent Development Framework

05. Development Framework Area
Development Principles

9796

January 2021

P
age 69



January 2021

98 99

Salford Crescent has an active creative scene 
and unique cultural assets that should be 
embraced and promoted. The aspiration for the 
Framework area is to build on this potential to 
create a quality place that will transform Salford 
Crescent into a major visitor ‘destination’ within 
the City Centre. The area will be become a 
recognised destination for arts, culture and food 
and drink that rivals the offer in established 
locations in Manchester and the North West.

05. Development Framework Area
Development Principles

Creation of a cultural 
and creative ‘gateway’
A new ‘gateway’ for creative and cultural uses 
will be created, building on the potential of 
existing performance venues and exhibition 
space including Salford Museum and Art 
Gallery, the University’s New Adelphi and Peel 
Buildings, Hemsley House and the Working Class 
Movement Library. In this area support will be 
given to new creative spaces including Maxwell 
Hall as well as artist-led studio space which will 
tap into Salford’s unrivalled grass-roots creative 
scene and provide a focal point locally.  

Creation of a City Centre Park
A fundamental strength of the area is its unique 
blue and green infrastructure (the River Irwell, 
Meadow and Peel Park). These assets collectively 
represent a significant recreational and leisure 
asset within the study area with potential to serve 
the wider City Centre. As development reaches out 
to envelope them, Peel Park and the Meadow will 
become THE “City Centre Park” - a focus for leisure 
activities, wellbeing, community gatherings and 
events for urban residents and city visitors alike.  
The way in which the parkland connects with and is 
visible from the Crescent and Adelphi areas will be 
fundamental to the re-positioning and profile of the 
parkland and to the connectivity of the entire area.

Embracing the Area’s 
History and Heritage 
Heritage is an extremely valuable and unique 
selling point across the Framework area; however, 
it is acknowledged that the Crescent Conservation 
Area is included on Historic England's Heritage at 
Risk register (2020) and the area is not without its 
issues at present. 

Cultural programming and events will be supported 
that seek to reframe the areas rich heritage by 
interacting with historic buildings, monuments 
and public spaces in a modern way whilst 
respecting the need for their ongoing conservation, 
restoration, enhancement and protection.

Any future proposals within the Framework area 
should be based upon a clear understanding of 
the character and significance of the surrounding 
heritage assets, and if required, a Heritage 
Assessment should be undertaken proportionate to 
the significance of the asset in line with statutory 
requirements.

Events and Experiences  
The area has a small, but highly authentic 
programme of events running throughout the 
year, however given the quality of artists, creators 
and producers within this part of Salford, there 
are significant opportunities to work with existing 
event organisers to help them improve their 
current programmes – in terms of profile, scale 
and impact. Support will be provided to event 
promotors in order develop a more comprehensive 
programme of events, to help raise the profile of 
the area and attract new audiences. 

Encouraging ‘Meanwhile uses’  
A meanwhile use is used to describe a diverse 
range of pop-up cafés, shops and temporary 
uses of empty property and land. These types 
of uses represent a key opportunity to better 
utilise vacant or underused spaces and animate 
the Framework area with activity in the short-
term. They also provide an opportunity to 
raise the profile of the area through a more 
comprehensive events programme. The 
promotion of suitable meanwhile uses will be 
encouraged subject to landowner agreement. 

Arts and Cultural Offer   
The area has the potential to become “the City 
Centre’s Arts Playground”, a unique district where 
the established grass roots art ecology blends with 
incoming names and energy to take advantage of 
the myriad of flexible spaces available, producing 
world-class interventions and engagement with the 
support of the Partners.

PRIORITY 3, CULTURE AND CREATIVITY

Development Principles

Final Crescent Development Framework

P
age 70



Final Crescent Development Framework January 2021

Strong and Diverse 
Economy

PRIORITY 4

Final Crescent Development Framework

05. Development Framework Area
Development Principles

101100

January 2021

P
age 71



January 2021

103

05. Development Framework Area
Development Principles

Within the Framework area, the 
University is a major employer. There 
are well over 50,000 jobs currently 
located within the Salford Innovation 
Triangle area, concentrated primarily at 
MediaCityUK & the Quays, City Centre 
Salford, at the Salford Royal campus 
and in the various existing industrial 
employment areas in their vicinity. 

The area contains many competitive advantages:

Strategic location
Close proximity to the GM regional centre 
and access to markets in Manchester, 
across GM and the wider north.

Strong foundations
The existing assets and opportunities 
already located in the area in the anchors 
(MediaCityUK, University and Hospital) 
and existing business base.

Talent
The availability of skills and talent on the 
doorstep in a rapidly growing residential 
area, but also with access to a wider travel 
to work area via strong transport links.

Land
Availability of underutilised land for future 
development.

Culture
Access to urban green space and waterside settings 
alongside an established and growing cultural offer.

Investor confidence
High levels of commercial investment in recent 
years and an exceptionally strong future 
development pipeline including MediaCityUK plans 
to double in size over the next decade which will 
generate 7,000 jobs as part of the overall +15,000 
jobs that can be created in the area (including the 
wider Quays area) as a whole.

Maintaining a wide range of uses  
Proposals within the Framework area will seek 
to maintain a wide a range of uses, reflecting its 
importance within the City Centre, supporting 
its roles as a business location, tourism, cultural 
and leisure destination and centre of learning 
and knowledge. The Framework will look 
to capitalise on the broader economic and 
innovation potential of the area. Promotion of 
suitable meanwhile uses will be encouraged 
subject to landowner agreement. 

Enhancing Digital Infrastructure    
The significance of digital technology goes 
beyond the specialised sector itself and ranges 
across all sectors increasingly and so in this 
sense is best understood as a cross-cutting 
enabling opportunity. It is also closely related 
to other developing technologies such as 
robotics where the innovation potential will 
stem from knowledge transfer between and 
across sectors, firms and workers. The continued 
enhancement of digital infrastructure (i.e. 
broadband, 5G mobile networks, the internet of 
things) to create an affordable, high speed and 
high capacity network across the Framework 
area will be supported. Furthermore, 
opportunities to design in Building 
Information Modelling to new development to 
accommodate existing and future smart cities 
applications, including data collection and 
communications facilities, will be encouraged 
line with emerging Local Plan policy DG1. 

Opportunities for all    
It is essential that everyone gets the opportunity 
to benefit from the areas strong and diverse 
economy. Skills training, both online and physical, 
will be incorporated into the proposals to enable 
local residents to learn new skills, especially those 
related to the growth sectors identified. 

Supporting Growth Sectors 
with Innovation Potential   
Building on the strengths of the University’s 
research capabilities, critical mass of notable 
businesses and opportunities to trial close-to-
market goods and services, the following 
growth sectors will be supported across the 
Framework area:

Digital and Creative Industries

Financial and Professional Services

Robotics and Automation 

Health and Social Care

Built Environment/ Construction 

Manufacturing and the Low Carbon Economy

Development Principles

PRIORITY 4, STRONG AND DIVERSE ECONOMY

Final Crescent Development Framework

102

P
age 72



Final Crescent Development Framework January 2021

Connectivity, Movement 
and Sustainable Transport 

PRIORITY 5

Final Crescent Development Framework

05. Development Framework Area
Development Principles

104 105

January 2021

P
age 73



107

December 2020

05. Development Framework Area
Development Principles

The Crescent area is a major transport gateway to 
the City and this part of Salford. The Development 
Framework will provide a genuine choice of sustainable 
transport options including improved pedestrian and 
cycle routes and infrastructure, bus and rail connectivity 
and in future years, Metrolink. In turn, through 
improved infrastructure, the Development Framework 
will promote activity and social interaction, contributing 
to health, wellbeing, accessibility and inclusion. 

The Development Framework seeks to achieve 
the right mix of sustainable travel choices for the 
area by limiting the impacts of car use through 
de-engineering the A6 and by prioritising 
and encouraging walking, cycling and public 
transport, mitigating impacts and identifying 
opportunities to improve air quality.

It will also incorporate green infrastructure 
and sustainable drainage, including street 
trees to soften the impact of hard transport 
infrastructure i.e. surface car parking, particularly 
around the Crescent, to help improve air quality 
and contribute to biodiversity.

Re-Thinking Road Structures 
and Car Parking and Servicing 
Despite recent traffic calming measures the 
Framework area continues to be a car dominated 
environment that doesn’t maximise the potential 
of its sustainable location within the City Centre. 
The following development principles seek to 
address these challenges:

De-engineering of the A6 
The aspiration is for a stepped de-engineering of 
the A6 to reduce and eventually remove general 
traffic from this route. This will enable the A6 
to be de-engineered creating opportunities for 
wide pedestrian footways and fully segregated 
cycle lanes. This will also allow for enhanced bus 

Public Transport  
The Framework area is well served by public 
transport; however, more can be done to make the 
existing provision more accessible and to facilitate 
a modal shift away from private motor car. 

Greater Role for Bus Services 
The de-engineering of the A6 to reduce vehicular 
traffic provides opportunities to enhance existing 
bus services that operate within the Framework 
area and expand the role and attractiveness of 
buses as part of the wider modal mix. 

Provision of a new Metrolink Line 
Working closely with TfGM, the potential to provide 
a new Metrolink line connecting Salford Quays and 
Salford Crescent Station, supporting the enhanced 
connectivity between the City Centre, Salford 
Crescent and Salford Quays. A key aim is to provide 
additional network resilience and capacity. 

Creation of a Transport Hub 
Working collaboratively with TfGM and Network 
Rail, the aspiration is for Salford Crescent Station 
to be transformed into a major public transport 
interchange for rail, Metrolink and bus services. The 
station will be subject to significant improvements 
to create a high-quality mixed-use gateway 
including the potential for a ‘build-over’ to create 
a new area of public realm around the rail facility 
linking into the University and Crescent areas.

PRIORITY 5, CONNECTIVITY, MOVEMENT AND SUSTAINABLE TRANSPORT 

Development Principles

services along the A6 Crescent and safeguard a 
corridor for the expansion of the Metrolink network 
to Salford Crescent. These elements would be 
separated by new planting in order to establish 
a safe and efficient route into the City Centre. 
Discussions are ongoing with relevant stakeholders 
including TfGM and Manchester City Council in this 
regard.

Rationalising the Car Parking Strategy 
and Creation of Mobility Hubs 
Existing surface car parks represent an inefficient 
use of land and do not align with the Vision and 
Objectives for area moving forward. The provision 
and operation of car parking is a key tool in 
supporting and promoting sustainable travel 
modes, therefore provision of spaces should be 
minimised where feasible operationally for the 
University and controlled via reduced maximum 
parking standards. Parking provision across the 
Framework area will be rationalised in a phased 
manner in order that overall parking levels are 
controlled and that their location is appropriate 
to serve key uses such as exhibition/event space. 
Connections between parking and key sites across 
the areas should be legible, comfortable, direct 
and of a high quality.

Creation of new Mobility Hubs 
Salford Crescent will continue to grow as a resident, 
worker and visitor destination over the next 10+ 
years. In order to provide sufficient car parking on 
site for existing and future demand, a series of 
adaptable mobility hubs, will be created within the 
Framework area with the first to be delivered on 
Frederick Road, known as the Movement Hub, and 
integrated with the proposed Podium. These hubs 
could potentially incorporate not only car parking 
spaces, but also car club provision, electric vehicle 
charging points, cycle parking/ hire and potentially 
other emerging modes of transport such as 
e-scooters. It is the intention that these hubs 
become focal points for sustainable transport.  

Servicing and Deliveries 
Consolidation of servicing and deliveries will be 
encouraged with access to be via key access routes 
with efficient movement through the development 
zones and minimum/ no lay-over. There is an 
aspiration to trial such arrangements and act as 
an exemplar site.

The following development principles seek 
to make a virtue of the Crescent’s strategic 
location within the City Centre and its excellent 
connectivity. The principles have been ordered 
around the following key aspects:

Public Transport and Creation 
of a new Transport Hub

Walking and Cycle Connectivity 

Re-thinking Road Structures and 
Car Parking and Servicing

Final Crescent Development Framework

106

P
age 74



Final Crescent Development Framework

108

Connectivity & Legibility

De-Engineering Highways 

Watercourse Activiation

Primary Gateway

Secondary Gateway

Former Line of the Manchester 
Bolton & Bury Canal

05. Development Framework Area
Development Principles

Walking and Cycle Connectivity  
The existing pedestrian and cycle network within 
the Framework area is fragmented, severed by 
heavily trafficked major arterial routes or the 
natural barriers such as the River Irwell, which limits 
connectivity with surrounding communities and 
also internally. Furthermore, certain areas within 
the existing public realm are not well maintained, 
having poor street lighting and lack natural 
surveillance all of which can make people feel 
unsafe and thus unlikely to use regularly, especially 
in winter. The following key principles are proposed 
to address these issues and encourage increased 
walking and cycling. 

Enhance pedestrian and cycle network 
Existing pedestrian and cycle infrastructure will be 
enhanced through the removal of existing barriers 
to movement; improved route continuity and 
accessibility through and within the Framework 
area; stronger key linkages to surrounding areas 
and pedestrian/ cycle network (i.e. Bee Network) 
and better legibility. The aspiration is to create 
an environment which encourages people to 
walk and cycle more regularly and that improves 
the permeability of the area. Delivery will be 
accelerated where feasible and in the interests of 
the development.

Movement and Legibility
High quality primary cycling and walking routes 
will be developed through and between all of the 
Framework area's green spaces and parks, creating 
a network that will link them together, making 
them as accessible as possible to their users. 
Secondary routes will allow access and exploration 
of each corner of the park areas.

Make Best Use of Natural Assets 
Aspiration to make best use of the areas natural 
assets, including opening up the River frontage 
along the A6, enhancing access to the Parks and 
referencing the disused canal alignment.

Creation of a Podium across Frederick Road 
Currently Frederick Road creates a significant 
barrier to movement from the surrounding 
residential communities through to the University 
Campus, Parks and the Crescent. It also divides the 
Innovation Zone creating an island site around 
Winders Way. To remove this barrier and enhance 
this important north-south link a new iconic 
pedestrian/ cycle podium is proposed that will 
connect the areas and act as a catalyst for the 
Innovation Zone. The podium will incorporate high 
quality public realm that will extend towards the 
University Campus and Peel Park, providing safe 
and inclusive access for all. 

Enhancing Access to the Meadow from the East 
Existing east-west connectivity between the 
Adelphi Village/ the Crescent and the Meadow is 
poor due to severance created by the River Irwell 
which limits the accessibility of this important 
green space to many people. In order to address 
this, new bridge links are proposed that will enable 
pedestrians and cyclists to access and enjoy the 
Meadow more easily. 

Cycle Parking  
Enhancement of appropriate cycle facilities within 
the Framework area will be supported. These 
should be adaptable and embrace emerging 
technologies relating to digital infrastructure, user 
information systems and emerging sustainable 
modes such as e-scooters.

PRIORITY 5, CONNECTIVITY, MOVEMENT AND SUSTAINABLE TRANSPORT 

Figure 5.4 / Connectivity, 
Movement and Sustainable 
Transport Plan

KEY

109

January 2021

P
age 75



Final Crescent Development Framework January 2021

Environment and 
Blue-Green Infrastructure 

PRIORITY 6

Final Crescent Development Framework

110 111

05. Development Framework Area
Development Principles

January 2021

P
age 76



January 2021

112 113

Heritage

Flood Risk and Drainage

Residential AmenityBiodiversity

05. Development Framework Area
Development Principles

In realising ambitions for the Framework area 
consideration should be given to positively responding 
to existing context and improving the built and natural 
environment wherever possible. The following key 
development principles should be read in conjunction 
with Salford's planning policies set out within the 
adopted UDP and emerging Publication Local Plan.

Protecting and Conserving Heritage Assets 
Within the Framework area, designated heritage 
assets (such as scheduled monuments, listed 
buildings, registered parks and gardens and 
Conservation Areas) and non-designated 
assets (such as locally listed buildings) will be 
conserved and their enhancement encouraged 
ensuring that they continue to make a positive 
contribution to the character and identity of the 
Crescent area.  Proposals for works that affect 
heritage assets will be assessed in line with 
the provisions of relevant legislation and the 
National Planning Policy Framework.

Managing Change in Historic Locations 
New development proposals in historic locations 
within in the Framework area, such as the 
Crescent, will be required to protect, conserve 
and enhance the historic character of places and 
positively respond to the history of the area, 
enabling people to understand how places have 
changed over time. New development will need 
to be carefully designed to ensure it does not 
detract from the large number of heritage assets, 
and where appropriate, opportunities to secure 
enhancements of existing assets will be sought.

Flood Risk and Drainage 
Given that areas towards the north of the 
Framework boundary and around the River 
Irwell are designated as being within Flood 
Zones 2 and 3 careful consideration will need 
to be given to addressing any potential flood 
risk issues and developing an appropriate 
drainage strategy, potentially including 
Sustainable Urban Drainage Systems. A 
site-specific flood risk assessment and a 
Sequential Assessment in line with national 
policy and guidance for any development in 
areas at risk of flooding would need to be 
submitted with any planning application for 
new development within Flood Zones 2 or 3 
or an area at risk from other forms of flooding 
(such as surface water, sewer or groundwater 
flooding). New development should seek to 
reduce flood risk wherever practicable.

‘Agent of Change’ Principle 
Within and surrounding the Framework area there 
are diverse range of uses including residential, 
cultural, educational and industrial, in close 
proximity. There are a number of established 
industrial operations (for example CEMEX located 
to the south of the Crescent) and cultural assets 
which represent noisier activities that could 
potentially impact on more sensitive uses such 
as residential. In the interest of ensuring that the 
area remains vibrant and business can continue to 
operate effectively whilst protecting the amenity 
of residents, the ‘agent of change’ principle will 
be adopted in assessing new developments. This 
means that where existing business or community 
facilities could have a significant adverse effect 
on new development (for example noise) in its 
vicinity, those proposing it (or ‘agent of change’) 
will be required to provide suitable mitigation 
before the development has been completed.

Tall Buildings 
Any future proposals for taller buildings within 
the Framework area will need to provide sufficient 
information to justify the scale of development 
taking into account guidance set out within 
‘saved’ UDP policy DS5 ‘Tall Buildings’ and draft 
Local Plan Policy D5 ‘Amenity’.

Open Space

Sport Facilities
Improvements to sports facilities should be 
informed by future feasibilty studies to determine 
the right mix and size of sports facilities required 
to meet current and future demand.  As a 
statutory consultee, Sport England should be 
consulted where appropriate.

Protection and Enhancement
Existing biodiversity assets within the Framework 
area, including the River Irwell Site of Biological 
Importance (SBI), the Meadow and Peel Park, will 
be protected and where practicable enhanced. 
The following proposals to further improve local 
biodiversity will be supported:

Re-greening the streets, encouraging greater 
biodiversity and improving connectivity 
between habitats;

New planting of native tree and flower 
species along the bankside of the river and 
pedestrian/ cycle paths;

Management of invasive species; and

Incorporating SUDS as part of future 
drainage strategies.

Re-use of vacant and underutilised historic buildings 
The positive re-use of vacant or underutilised heritage 
assets will be supported and encouraged where 
it helps to ensure that building are appropriately 
maintained. Proposed uses should be consistent 
with the protection and enhancement of the asset’s 
heritage significance and its sustainable long-term use.

Former line of the Manchester, Bolton & Bury Canal 
The line of the former Manchester, Bolton and Bury 
Canal will be protected as an important heritage asset. 
In order that people can appreciate the history of the 
canal, reference will be made to its former line by way 
of a new pedestrian/ cycle route that signposts the 
route and provides heritage interpretation along the 
way whilst protecting it for potential future restoration. 
Where historic areas of the canal can potentially be 
incorporated into the landscaping proposals, then 
further investigation will be undertaken as to the 
feasibility of doing so. In places, the original line of the 
canal has been severed by significant infrastructure 
(including the A6 and railway lines) and therefore 
at these pinch points there may need to be some 
deviation from it in order to deliver a route that could 
potentially be fully navigable in the future.

PRIORITY 6, ENVIRONMENT AND BLUE-GREEN INFRASTRUCTURE 

Development Principles

Final Crescent Development Framework

P
age 77



Final Crescent Development Framework January 2021

114 115

05. Development Framework Area
Development Principles

The Framework area is serviced by a strong 
hierarchy of streets and spaces. It builds on the 
existing road network and paths, as well as 
envisioning new roads and linkages to improve 
the permeability of the whole of the Crescent area. 
These include:

A New Linear Park
Key sequential north-south and east-west 
pedestrian streets connecting  the neighbourhoods, 
and key destinations while linking to the wider 
network of routes, each having a distinctive 
character and function.

Enhanced River Corridor
Focused around the River Irwell. Enhancement 
and extension of the existing route with improved 
access for cyclists and pedestrians. Strengthening of 
the wildife corridor and river edge habitats.

Pedestrian-focused Streets
Pedestrian streets with minimal vehicular access 
which allow safe movement will be promoted. 
Their design will seek to creating a comfortable 
environment of human scale for all users moving 
through the spaces in different ways, and a sense of 
place and orientation.

Green Transport Corridors
Key primary vehicular routes used for Metrolink, 
train, bus and private cars. These will be enhanced 
with new tree planting, and where possible, rain 
gardens to improve environmental performance.

Enhanced Green Spaces
The site contains a large area of green space. 
Enhancement of these existing green spaces will 
be vital to create a mix of recreational, social and 
commercial spaces and pocket parks that reference 
the history of the site, particularly Peel Park. 

Squares and Public Open Spaces
Mainly hard spaces, though in appropriate 
locations this will be balanced with tree planting 
and soft landscape areas.

Hierarchy of Streets Spaces

Green Transport Corridors

Linear Park

Greenways

Key Streets

River Corridor

Green Spaces

Squares

KEY

Development Principles for each 
of these elements are provided 
on the following pages.

Public Realm
Create a High Quality Public Realm
A high-quality public realm will create a more 
coherent sense of place with a diverse range of 
street typologies and character of spaces. This 
will be achieved through the provision of high 
quality routes, civic spaces and green spaces. 
Other measures will include the improved 
permeability for pedestrians and cyclists, 
ensuring that all new and upgraded parts of the 
public realm achieve the highest quality design.  

Sustainable Landscape Strategy
Development of an overarching sustainable 
landscape strategy will also be incorporated 
which will include sustainable stormwater 
management as an essential element.

A Network of Public Spaces
The public realm will be designed to be 
attractive, diverse and create a network of public 
spaces that relate to the wider urban context and 
are driven by public life and people first design.

Proposed Linear Park along the line 
of the Former Canal
A new linear park is proposed along the former 
line of the former canal. This will designed to be 
of a high quality, incorporating new public realm 
as appropriate, and will reference the former 
line of the canal, embracing this non-designated 
heritage asset.

PRIORITY 6, ENVIRONMENT AND BLUE-GREEN INFRASTRUCTURE 

Ri
ve

r M
er

se
y

Ri
ve

r M
er

se
y

The MeadowsThe Meadows

Peel ParkPeel Park

Figure 5.5 / Hierarchy of Street and Spaces

P
age 78



Final Crescent Development Framework January 2021

New tree planting along The Crescent 
and Frederick Road to create a softer 
environment, whilst also improving 
air quality.

Introduce sustainable urban drainage 
(SUDs) and planting where possible.

Create vegetated surface on 
Metrolink routes.

Improved pedestrian permeability 
by upgrading existing crossings and 
adding new crossings.

Improved environment for walking 
and cycling to encourage these 
sustainable modes of movement.

Create an active movement corridor 
that is  car-free and which connects 
a number of zones within the 
Framework area and links to the 
wider area.

Promote generous planting to create 
a verdant character - there is an 
opportunity for the whole stretch 
to incorporate a sustainable urban 
drainage system (SUDS)

Provide opportunities for seating and 
increasing dwell time.

05. Development Framework Area
Development Principles

Green Transport Corridors Linear Parks

PRIORITY 6, ENVIRONMENT AND BLUE-GREEN INFRASTRUCTURE 

Figure 5.6 / Green Transport Corridors Figure 5.7 / Linear Parks

117116

P
age 79



Final Crescent Development Framework January 2021

Promote activation of the watercourse

Improve visual connection with 
the water

Enhance access and new connections 
to the existing path adjacent to the 
River Irwell

Create small spaces for dwell or 
opportunity for temporary fod and 
beverage vans/stalls

Improve connectivity to the river, with 
a new path at lower levels adjacent to 
the Crescent.

Enhance biodiversity and wildlife with 
new tree planting and habitat creation. 
Selective removal of invasive species.

Create arrival spaces and signage to 
improve access and navigation.

Deliver a network of high-quality 
pedestrian streets that have a 
comfortable human scale

Ensure that spaces for spill out 
activities are provided

Deliver street trees and planting 
wherever possible

Ensure vehicular traffic is incorporated 
within a balanced street environment 
where required for access

05. Development Framework Area
Development Principles

River Corridor Pedestrian Streets

PRIORITY 6, ENVIRONMENT AND BLUE-GREEN INFRASTRUCTURE 

Figure 5.8 / River Corridor Figure 5.9 / Pedestrian Streets

119118

P
age 80



Final Crescent Development Framework January 2021

Enhance the aesthetic, 
biodiversity and recreational 
value of the existing parks

Encourage the use of the parks by 
the public through development 
of a strong events programme.

Create a central linear park that 
integrates the University campus 
with each of the surrounding 
character areas.

Create a large area of green space 
around the transport hub that 
will provide a tranquil retreat for 
dwell and recreational uses while 
creating a  transitional movement 
space to service the transport hub.

Ensure that newly created squares 
and spaces are of a high quality and 
robust design in order to become 
destinations for students, residents, 
workers and visitors.

Create gateway spaces that 
announce the Crescent  with a 
selected choice of street furniture 
and surfacing, trees and gateway 
features.

Accommodate spill-out activities from 
active ground floors on the edges of 
squares and streets.

Design squares to be flexible, 
allowing for a range of events and 
activities.

05. Development Framework Area
Development Principles

Green Spaces Squares and Public Open Spaces

PRIORITY 6, ENVIRONMENT AND BLUE-GREEN INFRASTRUCTURE 

Figure 5.10 / Green Spaces Figure 5.11 / Squares and Public Open Spaces

121120

P
age 81



Final Crescent Development Framework January 2021

122 123

Ecology and Planting  

Existing trees should be retained wherever 
possible and new planting established 
to enhance the ‘green’ character of the 
Framework area.

The layout and specification of trees should 
reflect the character and scale of the 
adjacent development and should include 
both native and non-native species.

Take advantage of habitat creation within 
the development, as well as its role within 
the whole.

Roads should where possible be tree lined 
and/or with rain gardens.

Planting should be allowed for in the 
semi-private spaces and used as elements 
distinguishing the public and private sphere.

Within open spaces and streets ease of 
maintenance should be a key consideration 
in selecting species; more flexibility can be 
allowed within semi-private and private 
spaces.

Green façades will be encouraged.

A clear maintenance strategy will be 
developed to ensure the legacy of the site 
and maximise the opportunity for improved 
ecology and habitats.

Street Furniture, Signage and Materiality

An integrated approach to street furniture 
will be taken to minimise clutter and facilitate 
easy pedestrian and cycle movement.

Street furniture should be of flexible design 
and inviting for everyday uses and add to the 
sense of place; consideration should also be 
given to any maintenance required. 

High-quality play equipment of modern 
design should be provided.

Secure high-quality cycle storage should be 
accommodated at key gateway spaces and 
centrally within each neighbourhood; each 
new development should secure quality 
cycle parking.

Lighting design should be integral and 
appropriate to create a safe environment 
throughout; this includes buildings, gateways, 
open spaces and landscape features.

The signage and wayfinding strategy should 
acknowledge all user groups and be accessible 
to all.  It should expand that already in place 
around the University Campus and be designed 
around the following principles:

• Consider spatial layout, materiality, clear 
routes and sensory clues to assist all people 
to move through spaces intuitively.

• Ensure clear signage throughout the site 
utilising appropriate fonts, colour contrasts 
and universally recognised symbols. 

• Information on signage to be provided at 
varying heights from the ground

• Signage will be well lit

• A range of signage from larger totems 
down to directional signage to provide 
clear direction.

Choice of materials should be carefully 
considered and where possible recycled, reused 
and sustainably sourced materials should be 
used.

To support the sustainable drainage strategy, 
permeable and flexibly laid paving should be 
used wherever possible.

The materials will take inspiration from the 
existing palette of materials and colours set 
as part of the University campus.

05. Development Framework Area
Development Principles
PRIORITY 6, ENVIRONMENT AND BLUE-GREEN INFRASTRUCTURE 

P
age 82



Final Crescent Development Framework

124

Green Infrastructure
The Framework area will bring green infrastructure and water 
management together using adaptive and resilient measures 
within the landscape that will provide environmental, 
ecological, social, cultural and economic benefits.

The benefits of green space on health and wellbeing have 
been widely documented and there is a substantial evidence 
base linking improved physical and mental health with 
access to green spaces. 

Trees, Planting &
Green Connections
The site will use trees and planting in an intelligent 
way, both for the area’s beautification, as well as 
in the form of Sustainable Urban Drainage Systems 
(SUDs) and other stormwater mitigation measures. 
Trees as a key element of design will line main streets 
to form urban boulevards and announce destinations, 
with anchor trees accentuating corners.

The extent of the proposed green infrastructure 
throughout the site is considerable and ties in 
well with the existing green assets of the locality.  
Enhancing the existing green areas and linking new 
proposals to them will have a huge benefit to all site 
users and local wildlife.

Parks and playingfields

Urban Green

River Corridor

Primary Green Corridors

Green Streets links

05. Development Framework Area
Development Principles
PRIORITY 6, ENVIRONMENT AND BLUE-GREEN INFRASTRUCTURE 

Figure 5.12 / Green Infrastructure

KEY

125

Ri
ve

r M
er

se
y

Ri
ve

r M
er

se
y

The MeadowsThe Meadows

Peel ParkPeel Park

January 2021

P
age 83



Final Crescent Development Framework

126

Blue Infrastructure
Blue Infrastructure refers to water elements such as rivers, canals, 
ponds and Sustinable Urban Drainage Systems (SUDs) which can 
be used to manage flood risk across the Framework area. 

Blue infrastructure will be integrated into the 
landscape to create a network that manages water 
and works with nature.

An overarching sustainable stormwater management 
strategy will be developed for the Framework area 
which each Zone can contribute to.

The use of SuDS will be encouraged; however, it should 
be established via appropriate and comprehensive 
ground investigation that any infiltration measures 
proposed are feasible and that drainage features can 
be adopted, effectively maintained and would not 
result in environmental detriment.

To deliver the most sustainable drainage solution, 
design of development should plan new green and 
blue features around existing topography where 
practicable.  

Opportunities to incorporate the sustainable disposal 
of surface water as part of new public realm features 
will be encouraged. For example, rain gardens 
could be used on main corridors - along residential 
streets they are encouraged in order to maximise the 
neighbourhood’s ‘sustainability’ contribution and 
positively contribute to its character. 

In line with national guidance, stormwater should 
be sustainably dealt with within each development; 
developments should demonstrate how they 
contribute to discharging stormwater by sustainable 
means.

The River Irwell is a key blue asset for the area, and 
there are real opportunities to improve connectivity 
to the river with new pedestrian routes.  

Retention ponds

Infiltration park

Street swales and infiltration

Roadside swales

Water Movement

05. Development Framework Area
Development Principles
PRIORITY 6, ENVIRONMENT AND BLUE-GREEN INFRASTRUCTURE 

Figure 5.13 / Blue Infrastructure

KEY

Ri
ve

r I
rw

el
l

Ri
ve

r I
rw

el
l

127

January 2021

P
age 84



Final Crescent Development Framework January 2021

Climate Change and 
Sustainability 

PRIORITY 7

Final Crescent Development Framework

05. Development Framework Area
Development Principles

129128

January 2021

P
age 85



January 2021

131

Final Crescent Development Framework

In July 2019, Salford City Council declared a climate 
emergency. This included setting a date of 2038 for 
carbon neutrality in Salford, which matches the target 
for the whole of the sub-region established in the 
5-Year Environment Plan for Greater Manchester. 
To help achieve carbon neutrality by 2038, a target 
has been set in the emerging Local Plan that all new 
development should be zero carbon from 2028.

05. Development Framework Area
Development Principles

Net Zero Carbon; To be net zero carbon on construction and in operation

Sustainable Transport; To transition to active and sustainable transport 
with greater local and regional connections

Climate Resilience; To be is resilient against the impacts of climate 
change, adapting to our changing world

Sustainable Water Management; To conserve and reuse water onsite 
and strive towards water positive 

Zero Waste/ Circular Economy; Eliminating waste and improving 
resource efficiency through  circularity

Biodiversity Net Gain; Delivering a net gain in biodiversity, whilst 
providing high quality green spaces

Quality Places; Creating communities that have a strong sense of place 
and identity, maximise shared value, and that delight

Health and Wellbeing;  Enhancing health and wellbeing through 
sustainable placemaking

Social Value; To have a positive impact on the local community and 
significantly increasing social value

Promoting Safe and Attractive 
Opportunities for Active Travel   
In order to encourage more people to chose to 
walk and cycle when making local journeys, 
pedestrian connectivity will be enhanced 
throughout the Framework area together with 
improvements to the public realm. Special 
attention will be paid to ensuring that routes 
are safe and secure through the incorporation of 
additional lighting and better legibility.

Reducing reliance on 
private motor vehicles   
A key aspiration is to reduce reliance on private 
motor vehicles and to encourage a model shift 
toward active travel (walking and cycling) or 
sustainable modes of transport including bus, 
metrolink and train. As detailed in the Connectivity, 
Movement and Sustainable Transport section 
measures including the de-engineering of the A6, 
rationalisation of car parking and creation of a 
new transport gateway will be pursued to secure a 
lower carbon future in the area. 

Minimising the Need to Travel   
In order to minimise the need to the travel and 
maximise the ability to make trips by sustainable 
modes of transport, higher density development 
will be directed to the most accessible and 
sustainable locations within the Framework area, 
subject to other policy considerations.

Maximising the use of 
renewable technologies    
Building on the University’s reputation for 
innovation in the built environment, the use of 
renewable zero carbon technologies, such solar PV 
and heat pumps will be embraced. Developments 
should look to incorporate appropriate zero/ low 
carbon measures to offset energy requirements. 

Flexibility as Standard     
Efforts should be made to futureproof new 
buildings through design, ensuring that spaces 
are flexible and adaptable. 

Energy Efficient, Low 
Carbon Design of New Buildings    
Developers will be encouraged to ensure that 
new buildings are designed to incorporate a 
high-performance envelope to minimise heat 
loss / gain, maximise the use of natural and 
use low energy lighting systems, and use low 
temperature heating and cooling systems 
based on heat pumps where practicable.

In order to contribute to achieving this aim within the Framework 
area, the following sustainability objectives have been identified:

Development Principles

PRIORITY 7, CLIMATE CHANGE AND SUSTAINABILITY 

130

P
age 86



Final Crescent Development Framework January 2021

132 133

Energy Management      
Innovative solutions to energy management 
that utilises new and emerging technologies will 
be supported. These may include opportunities 
for peer-to-peer energy generation and storage 
underpinned by emerging blockchain and novel 
energy storage technologies. 

Electric Vehicle Charging Points      
Opportunities to enhance the electric vehicle 
charging infrastructure in suitable locations 
throughout the Framework area will be 
supported, having regard to existing provision 
in the local area.

Refurbishment and Re-use 
of Existing Buildings    
Proposals to refurbish or re-use existing buildings 
will be encouraged to reduce energy consumption 
including through improving the building fabric, 
lighting and heating and ventilation systems and 
to ensure that technology is used effectively to 
analyse and manage the operational performance 
of the buildings, subject to other policy 
considerations including heritage interests.

Energy Networks   
Energy networks will have an important role to 
play in enhancing energy efficiency, particularly 
around the University campus or denser 
residential communities. They are especially 
effective at providing heat for developments 
with high demand (e.g. leisure facilities, student 
accommodation and high density residential) 
together with existing buildings that may 
not be suitable for retrofit with heat pump 
systems. Opportunities to deploy phased energy 
networks in clusters to address specific needs 
should be fully investigated and implemented 
subject to further feasibility and viability. 

Whole Life Carbon Assessments  
In developing new buildings and infrastructure 
elements the commissioning whole life carbon 
assessments will be encouraged 

Climate Change Risk and 
Adaptation Appraisal
In bringing forward development across the 
Framework area, developers will be encouraged 
to provide Climate Change Risk and Adaptation 
Appraisals to support proposals

Nature-Based Solutions
Nature-based solutions should be prioritised 
as a means of reducing flood risk and reducing 
urban heat island within the Framework area.

Sustainable Urban Drainage 
Systems (SUDs)
An overarching SuDS Masterplan will be developed 
for the Framework area in order to better utilise 
raingardens and swales to maximise retention 
of water on-site for re-use and to avoid flooding 
downstream. This is developed further under 
Priority 6 - Blue Infrastructure.

Delivering Net Gain
New development within the Framework area 
should deliver net gains in natural capital, 
biodiversity and social return on investment.

05. Development Framework Area
Development Principles
PRIORITY 7, CLIMATE CHANGE AND SUSTAINABILITY 

Urban Heat Islands
"Urban heat islands" occur in areas with dense 
concentrations of pavement and buildings that 
absorb and retain heat. This effect increases heat-
related illness and mortality. Climate change will 
likely lead to more frequent, more severe, and 
longer heat waves during summer months. Extreme 
heat events often affect our most vulnerable 
populations most seriously. Trees, green roofs and 
green walls can help reduce urban heat island 
effects by shading building surfaces, deflecting solar 
radiation, and releasing moisture into the air and as 
such opportunities to introduce such features will be 
considered across the Framework area.

P
age 87



Final Crescent Development Framework January 2021Draft Development Framework 

06. Character Areas
Development Principles

Final Crescent Development Framework

135134

January 2021

P
age 88



Final Crescent Development Framework January 2021

06. Character Areas 
Development Principles

The Development Principles presented 
in Section 5 provide the overarching 
framework for future development within 
the area informed by the vision, objectives 
and design principles. The Development 
Framework area is defined by six ‘zones’ 
or ‘character areas’.

A series of options were developed for each 
zone or character area in order to define how 
development could potentially come forward 
in the future. These options were tested by the 
technical team with a ‘preferred option’ for each 
zone identified. This 'preferred option' formed the 
basis for the draft Development Framework.

Following the 6-week public consultation on the 
draft Development Framework and engagement 
with key stakeholders, the preferred options for 
each zone were refined and updated, taking into 
account all comments received to date. Appendix 
C provides a summary of the draft Development 
Framework proposals and the key changes 
which have been made in developing the 'final' 
Development Framework.  

The development principles and proposals for each 
zone, which, together, now form the basis of the 
final Development Framework, have therefore been 
informed by high-level technical assessments, the 
professional expertise of the partners and project 
team and through local knowledge, established 
through the 6-week public consultation and 
engagement with key stakeholders. 

Any future planning applications within each of 
the zones will need to be supported by robust 
technical assessments as required by the Council. 
Key planning considerations may include, but 
are not limited to, heritage, highways, flood risk, 
townscape, ecology, sustainability, sunlight and 
daylight, and design. 

Figure 6.1 / Character Areas

Final Crescent Development Framework

136 137

ZONE 1 
HEALTH & INNOVATION 

ZONE 2  
PARKS & RIVER

ZONE 3 
PEEL PARK CAMPUS

ZONE 4 
TRANSPORT HUB

ZONE 5 
ADELPHI VILLAGE

ZONE 6 
THE CRESCENT

Zone 1

Zone 2

Zone 3

Zone 4

Zone 5

Zone 6

January 2021

P
age 89



January 2021

138 139

ZONE 1

Health & 
Innovation 
Zone

The Framework area sits in a 
strategic location within Salford’s 
‘Innovation Triangle’ which 
comprises an internationally 
significant clustering of innovative 
activity across a range of sectors, 
incorporating Salford Quays and 
MediaCityUK, the University of 
Salford and Salford Royal Hospital 
(see Policy AP4 of the emerging 
Salford Local Plan).  

Section 5 of this Framework provides the context for the development 
of the Health & Innovation Zone under the ‘Learning and Innovation’ 
theme. This set out the overarching vision and key themes for the 
development of this Zone within the context of the wider Innovation 
Triangle across Salford. A ‘Healthier Living’ mission was identified for 
this Zone which encompasses the themes of Robotics & Autonomous 
Systems, Built Environment, Acoustics and Health which in turn reflect 
some of the University's research specialisms.

The Development Principles set out within this section provide 
guidance for the future development across the Health & Innovation 
Zone in order to ensure a successful and unified zone where a distinct 
identity can be developed, and which facilitates both research and 
industry to co-locate, and provides dedicated space for collaboration 
and partnerships to be developed. 

06. Character Areas 
Development Principles

Figure 6.2 / Innovation Zone Boundary

Final Crescent Development Framework

HEALTH & 
INNOVATION ZONE

P
age 90



Final Crescent Development Framework

140 141

Key Components
The following committed projects/existing 
assets will be retained and embraced:

Centre for Prosthetics and Orthotics

North of England Robotics Innovation Centre

Centre of Sound & Vision

Innovation Forum

Energy House 2.0 

New Health and Society + Clinic

Multi-storey car park 

Mary Seacole building to remain

ZONE 1, HEALTH & INNOVATION

In addition, the Zone will include the 
following new components:

A new 40,000+ sq ft Innovation Centre 

Incubator Space

Post-Incubator Space (grow-on)

Catapult/Catalyst Centres

Faculty Space

Commercial Space for inward investment (spin-in)

Residential/ Commercial concept buildings 
(showcase)

Residential including live/ work 

Amenity space/ public realm within 
the Active Heart

Frederick Road Podium 

Movement Hub

INNOVATION 
CENTRE

INDUSTRY

INDUSTRY

INDUSTRY

INDUSTRY

INDUSTRY

PROSTHETICS

PEEL PARK CAMPUS
Arrival: Transport Hub

TRANSPORT 
HUB

HEALTH & INNOVATION 
ZONE WEST

Arrival: Transport Hub

ROBOTICS

ACOUSTICS

FREDERICK ROAD CORRIDOR

06. Character Areas 
Development Principles

The Innovation Centre will act as the catalyst for curating 
collision between the people that work and live here. It will be 
where people from different university faculties and industry 
meet and interact. It will be a destination and anchor for the 
Zone. Extending to approximately 40,000+ sq ft, it will include 
a mix of uses including office, wet/ dry lab space, workshops 
and amenity space such as cafes and breakout space to 
facilitate collaboration.  Incubation space will also provide 
opportunities for University students starting out. 

It is centrally located on the linear park which is the main spine 
route that connects this Zone into the wider area and the 
primary transport infrastructure hubs. The building, or series of 
buildings, will be transparent and outward looking with active 
ground floor uses to draw people in, which would seamlessly 
extend out and interact with the surrounding streets, routes, 
spaces and buidings to define the heart of the place.

Innovation Centre 
The Anchor for 
the Health & 
Innovation Zone

12

Innovation Centre
Curating collision

Vision:
• The heart of the Innovation Zone
• The magnet drawing people together
• Distinctiveness/ Identity

Scale:
• 40k sq.ft +
• A range of spaces including a mix of amenity

Ground and first floor:
• Active frontages bleeding out in to the surrounding 

landscape. Permeable edges drawing people in.
• Cafe/ bar/ bistro offerings
• Flexible event space
• Co-working areas
• Meeting space.
• Outdoor space/ courtyard

Upper floors :
• Flexible spaces including offices
• Wet and dry labs
• Upgradeable workshops
• Incubator spaces
• Maker spaces.

HEALTH & INNOVATION 
ZONE NORTH

Innovation Centre 
Precedent Images

Further detail on some of the key components is set out on the following pages.

12

Innovation Centre
Curating collision

Vision:
• The heart of the Innovation Zone
• The magnet drawing people together
• Distinctiveness/ Identity

Scale:
• 40k sq.ft +
• A range of spaces including a mix of amenity

Ground and first floor:
• Active frontages bleeding out in to the surrounding 

landscape. Permeable edges drawing people in.
• Cafe/ bar/ bistro offerings
• Flexible event space
• Co-working areas
• Meeting space.
• Outdoor space/ courtyard

Upper floors :
• Flexible spaces including offices
• Wet and dry labs
• Upgradeable workshops
• Incubator spaces
• Maker spaces.

12

Innovation Centre
Curating collision

Vision:
• The heart of the Innovation Zone
• The magnet drawing people together
• Distinctiveness/ Identity

Scale:
• 40k sq.ft +
• A range of spaces including a mix of amenity

Ground and first floor:
• Active frontages bleeding out in to the surrounding 

landscape. Permeable edges drawing people in.
• Cafe/ bar/ bistro offerings
• Flexible event space
• Co-working areas
• Meeting space.
• Outdoor space/ courtyard

Upper floors :
• Flexible spaces including offices
• Wet and dry labs
• Upgradeable workshops
• Incubator spaces
• Maker spaces.

Figure 6.3 / Innovation Centre

January 2021

P
age 91



Final Crescent Development Framework January 2021

Frederick Road Podium 
The Connector
Currently the Health & Innovation Zone is divided 
in two sections by Frederick Road which forms 
a barrier running in an East-to–West direction.  
Therefore, a key objective for the development 
of this Zone is to remove this barrier through 
development of a major piece of infrastructure 
which will be, in essence, a podium over Frederick 
Road. A conceptual vision for the podium is 
provided below.

A number of options were considered for the 
creation of a central area, which acts as the active 
heart of the Health & Innovation Zone adjacent to 
the Innovation Centre, maximising the opportunity 
presented by the linear spine which is the primary 
route through the Framework area. This space 
will be at the confluence of several pedestrian 
desire lines and will have blue/green infrastructure 
running through it, being accessed from both 
the Frederick Road corridor to the north and the 
Transport Hub to the south. This will provide a 
further space for industry and the University to 
come together and feed off one another.

Central Public Realm
The Active Heart of the Zone

There has long been an aspiration to include a 
car park within Health & Innovation Zone North. 
The Development Framework proposes the 
creation of a ‘Movement Hub’ which will be not 
just a car park but a multi-modal sustainable 
transport hub. This is the arrival point into the 
Zone. The key design principles for this option are: 

A multi-model hub and not just a car park 

Located on the primary spine route through 
the Framework area  with easy access to 
Frederick Road 

Movement Hub
The Arrival Point

06. Character Areas 
Development Principles

The Movement Hub may include:

• Car and motorbike parking 
including electric charging

• Cycle hub with secure bike parking, bike hire 
scheme, changing facilities, lockers, drying 
facilities, e-bike charging and repairs 

• Gym and wellness facility Café, 
amenity to anchor use

Figure 6.4 / Frederick Road Podium - Visual

ZONE 1, HEALTH & INNOVATION

143142

P
age 92



Final Crescent Development Framework January 2021

144 145

Development Principles 

Sustainable Transport, 
Movement and Connectivity
Improved pedestrian and cycle connectivity 
Facilitated through revised urban grain with all 
routes leading to the Transport Hub at the heart 
of the Framework area.

Removal of east-west barrier (Frederick Road) 
Pedestrian and cycle connectivity within the area 
will be enhanced which allows greater movement 
in a north to south direction, opening up 
Innovation Zone North and driving further footfall.

Creation of a safe pedestrian zone  
The Frederick Road podium will create a safe and 
accessible zone for pedestrians and cyclists using 
a shared space surface over the road connecting 
into city-wide cycling and walking infrastructure.

Existing traffic flows not significantly impacted 
Frederick Road will continue to operate as existing 
without traffic flows being significantly impacted.

Movement Hub 
Creation of a multi-modal sustainable transport 
hub at the arrival point into the Zone. 

Connecting Innovation Zone North 
Use of the podium to link Health & Innovation 
Zone North (and the existing communities 
beyond) to Peel Park and main University Campus.

Former line of the Manchester, 
Bolton & Bury Canal
The former line of the canal which runs through 
this Zone will be referenced. Consideration should 
be given to design, layout and orientation of 
buildings as it relates to the former canal. It will 
also encourage sustainable modes of transport to 
be utilised, connecting into other zones, including 
Zone 4 and 6.

Greenspaces 
and Public Realm
Arranged around high-quality Public Realm 
The design of the public realm and the positioning 
of the buildings has been purposely designed in 
such a way to encourage collaboration in research 
and development and acts as a magnet to draw 
people in and deliver this key objective. 

A new public space 
The podium will attract visitors in its own right as 
a key piece of infrastructure and public realm. This 
will provide a significant community resource which 
will not only provide enhanced connectivity but will 
also contribute to improved health and wellbeing.

Podium 
The podium will create a new boulevard in the 
sky with views, seating areas and new planting – 
this will be a key piece of raised landscape which 
crosses the road using extensive planting to  blur 
the lines between built and natural environments. 

Biodiversity Enhancements 
New planting of native tree and flower species 
will be encouraged alongside the riverbank and 
pedestrian/ cycle path to encourage greater 
biodiversity and improve connectivity between 
habitats.  

Greening the urban environment  
There is an overarching aspiration to ‘green’ the 
Crescent area. This will be achieved through the 
incorporation of new street planting and dwell 
spaces, sustainable urban drainage, informal 
nature planting, tree lined boulevards and green 
infrastructure including on the new podium.  

Land Uses

Anchor research and industry projects 
A number of individual projects have been 
identified within the industrial/research/testing 
sphere as set out below: 

• North of England Robotics Innovation Centre 
The catalyst project which will form the landmark 
building within the Innovation Zone. Predominately 
a research facility, the new building will house 
robotics, health, manufacturing and automotive 
laboratories as well as industry space. This new 
facility will allow researchers to experiment, test 
and pilot innovative ideas using digital innovation. 

• A New Centre for Sound and Vision 
Creation of a new centre for Sound and Vision 
to house specialist University facilities currently 
housed within the Newton Building.

• Centre of Orthotics and Prosthetics 
To house the relocated facilities from the former 
Brian Blatchford building.

• Energy House 2.0 
A state-of-the-art climate-controlled testing 
environment for the building industry.

• Health and Clinic building 
An onsite clinic offering a key service to students 
and local people.

Catapult Centre for research 
and specialist activities 
Locations for research and specialist 
activities such as testing of prototypes.

The Innovation Centre
The Innovation Centre will extend to 40,000+ sq ft 
and will include a mix of uses, including office, wet 
and dry lab space, workshop space and amenity 
space such as cafes and break out space to facilitate 
collaboration. Incubation space will also provide 
opportunities for university students starting out. 

Live and Innovate 
Ground floor active uses and amenity, innovation 
on lower levels above and then residential on top. 
Vibrant truly mixed use buildings to maximise 
activity. These would be located at either end of the 
land bridge/podium anchoring activity to Winders 
Way and also the heart of the Zone.

Student Accommodation 
Given this Zone's location immediately adjacent 
to the University, a further phase of student 
accommodation will be provided comprising high 
quality purpose-built units for existing and future 
students.

Future Residential Development 
A small area of new residential development is also 
proposed adjacent to the David Lewis Playing Fields. 
A broad range of house types, sizes and tenures 
will be provided in order to create a vibrant new 
community that meets the needs of a large cross-
section of society. This would be located to the east 
of the Zone making use of the views adjacent to the 
sports ground and to the River.

The Health & Innovation Zone will incorporate a number of land uses to create a 
vibrant and diverse place. This will include a mix of land use typologies including 
incubator space, office floorspace, residential, educational and industrial. 

06. Character Areas 
Development Principles

ZONE 1, HEALTH & INNOVATION

P
age 93



Final Crescent Development Framework

146 147

Development Principles 

Scale, Massing and Density
Opportunities for Iconic Design  
There is significant opportunity to incorporate 
iconic and innovative design, displaying some of 
the innovation thinking in building and modern 
systems of construction, reflecting the ongoing 
research and development which is taking place in 
this Zone. The podium proposed bridging Frederick 
Road and Innovation Centre have potential to be 
iconic projects within this Zone.

Opportunities for Scale 
Informed by the surrounding context, opportunities 
for high density development of scale exist across 
the Zone. The scale will vary across the Zone to 
add character and identity to the buildings and the 
spaces and places between them.

Townscape 
Any future proposals for taller buildings in the 
Crescent area will need to provide sufficient 
information to justify the scale of development 
taking into account guidance set out within ‘saved’ 
UDP policy DS5 ‘Tall Buildings’ and draft Local Plan 
Policy D5 ‘Amenity’. 

Signature Arrival Point/ Destination  
The podium will be an iconic structure of scale 
which will put the Health & Innovation Zone ‘on 
the map’.

Design Quality 
Innovation Identity 
The Health & Innovation Zone is separate to the 
University campus (although well-connected) 
therefore, there is an opportunity to create an identity 
which does not have to have a campus education 
look and feel, but a more industry-focused approach 
in its design. The Innovation Zone will be a place that 
interacts with its surroundings, is integrative, and 
encourages people from different communities to 
interact. 

High-quality Public Realm 
Public realm in this Zone should be of the highest 
quality and encourage people studying, living and 
working in the area to dwell in the central plaza 
adjacent to the Innovation Centre to encourage 
collaboration. 

Futureproofed Design
Buildings will be designed for climate change 
and future adaptability/flexibility. The Net Zero 
Carbon aspiration will affect the form of buildings 
to maximize passive design measures reducing 
operational energy, and also light weight 
construction methodology to reduce embodied 
carbon.  Buildings will be fundamentally designed 
with flexible use/ adaptability considered so that they 
are able to adapt to suit over time as needs change.  

Amenity 
New proposals should respect the amenity of existing 
uses and seek to undertake necessary assessments as 
part of any future planning application including, but 
not limited to, privacy/overlooking, sunlight/daylight 
and wind microclimate. 

Orientation 
The orientation of future residential developments 
should have consideration to the green assets 
located to the east. The layout and orientation of 
development adjacent to the former line of the canal 
shall be carefulyl considered and proposals should 
seek to reference it where practicable. 

06. Character Areas 
Development Principles

ZONE 1, HEALTH & INNOVATION

ILLUSTRATIVE 
MASTERPLAN

147

KEY

Zone Boundary

University of Salford

Residential

Student Residential

Figure 6.5 / Innovation Zone, 
Illustrative Masterplan

Innovation 

Live and Innovate

Retail

Car Park

P
age 94



January 2021

ZONE 2

Parks 
and River 

The Development Framework 
contains a large area of green 
space focused around Peel Park, the 
Meadow, the David Lewis Playing 
Fields and the River Irwell. 

These spaces act as an important 
‘green lung’ for the surrounding area, 
providing valuable recreation space 
and ecological habitats. 

All of the existing green space 
will be retained and improved 
and connections into and out of 
this Zone will be enhanced for 
the benefit of existing and future 
residents and users.

06. Character Areas 
Development Principles

Figure 6.6 / Parks and River Boundary

Final Crescent Development Framework

149148

PARKS AND 
RIVER

P
age 95



Final Crescent Development Framework

A recreational space which must enhance 
the experience of transient users whilst 
offering varied and numerous options to 
dwell especially in waterside setting. 

Set within a conservation area any 
enhancements must be sympathetic and 
work in harmony with the heritage setting.

Create pedestrian and cycle access 
along the length of the Irwell which 
links into existing network of cycle and 
pedestrian routes to serve local and 
city wide transient users effectively. 

Enhance riverside route with 
opportunity for dwell particularly 
along river banks offering a variety of 
permanent and temporary uses. 

Open up key gateways and improve 
access. Provision of new links across 
the River Irwell.

The following principles will guide the enhancements and improvements 
made within this zone, noting that no development is proposed.

Landscape Design Principles 

Routes 

Management and retention of the existing 
trees to ensure the longevity. 

Where appropriate Introduce trees of similar species 
to allow succession. Sensitive clearance of certain 
areas of dense vegetation on the banks of the 
Irwell to open up views as well as access to water. 

Remove invasive species and re-plant native trees 
and vegetation to enhance biodiversity.

Robust but sensitive materials palette suitable 
for cycling and pedestrian movement which fits 
within a more natural setting. 

Sustainable drainage incorporated with paving 
where possible. 

Enhance existing paths surface and introduce 
wayfinding elements and street furniture to create 
a unified sense of place across the area. 

Encourage the use of the green spaces by 
the students and staff of the University and 
the wider public. 

Trees and Planting 

Materiality  

Spaces 

ILLUSTRATIVE 
MASTERPLAN

ZONE 2, PARKS AND RIVER

06. Character Areas 
Development Principles

Development Principles 

Figure 6.7 / Parks and River, Illustrative 
Masterplan

151150

P
age 96



January 2021

ZONE 3

Peel Park 
Campus 

The University’s Peel Campus sits 
at the heart of the Development 
Framework area. In 1960, the 
University had a visionary masterplan 
drawn up which saw the development 
of the University adjacent to Peel 
Park. With a modest population of 
just 5,000, the vision saw the campus 
develop northwards towards Frederick 
Road rather than an expansion along 
the A6 as it exists today.  

The Masterplan of the 1960s 
incorporated the library, lecture 
theatre block – both completed in 
1970-71, the student’s union building, 
staff house, sports hall and additional 
refectories.  

Today’s Vision for the Campus, as 
expressed within the University's 2020 
Refresh, is focused around 20,000 
students.

Peel Campus Vision
The University’s existing 5-year (2016-21) 
strategy has responded to the Government's 
Industrial Strategy White Paper. Powered 
by new technologies, the way we live our 
lives as workers, citizens and consumers are 
being transformed across the globe; the 
University’s vision takes this into account 
and intends to bring enormous benefits to 
students, colleagues and industry partners.

To deliver these benefits, the University’s 
current strategy is focused on developing 
Industry Collaboration Zones as their single 
institution-wide strategic priority.

06. Character Areas 
Development Principles

The Industry Collaboration Strategy focuses 
on three key areas: 

Smart living;

Robotics; and

Digital.

These areas will boost productivity by backing 
businesses to create jobs and increase the earning 
power of individuals. The University is investing 
in skills, industries and infrastructure to prepare 
students and colleagues to be fit for the future.

There are a number of other key components 
identified within the 2020 Masterplan Refresh 
which fall within the Health & Innovation Zone 
and the Parks and River Zone. As such, these have 
not been included in this sub-section.

Figure 6.8 / Peel Park Campus Boundary

Final Crescent Development Framework

153152

PEEL PARK 
CAMPUS

P
age 97



Final Crescent Development Framework January 2021

ZONE 3, PEEL PARK CAMPUS 

Existing Assets
There are a number of existing assets within the 
Peel Park Campus Zone which will be retained and 
enhanced in the Development Framework.

The University comprises four academic Schools, 
occupying a range of buildings across different 
sites and campuses. Some Schools have multiple 
buildings and facilities, whilst others have limited 
visible campus presence. The four schools are:

School of Arts & Media

School of Science, Engineering 
and Environment (SEE)

School of Health & Society

Salford Business School

Each School is supported by a range of other 
campus buildings providing facilities including 
sports facilities, libraries and lecture theatres 
amongst others.

In addition, there are a number of buildings across 
campus, including those which are surplus to future 
requirements and those which are potentially 
earmarked for demolition such as Maxwell Main 
which provide a range of professional services 
and staff accommodation. Overall the University 
community comprises approximately 20,000 
students and circa 2,000 staff. 

A major challenge for the 2020 Masterplan 
Refresh was to address the fragmented nature of 
School activity and to consolidate, where possible, 
academic activity by School and by Building and 
begin to establish new identities for instance for 
Salford Business School which currently is co-
located along with other uses in Maxwell Main.  
This has been maintained within the Development 
Framework.

A number of proposals have been put forward 
to address this - for example the proposed SEE 
Building will be the first project to begin to establish 
this new academic campus identity.

The location, size and overall quantum of general 
and pooled teaching space was also reviewed 
through the 2020 Masterplan refresh. The teaching 
and learning model moving forward will be to 
ensure that the academic buildings for each school 
contain largely specialist and general teaching, 
workshops, laboratories and staff offices, whilst 
there is a clustering of ‘pooled’ teaching space 
located centrally on campus and accessible by all.

A new central Hub building is proposed which will 
provide a range of cross-campus resources such 
as a Library, bookable pooled teaching rooms 
and Student Services. This will involve removing 
pooled teaching and library facilities out from each 
academic building, with the exception of the lecture 
theatre spaces and will facilitate the creation of 
'adademic neighbourhoods'.

As part of the desire to improve campus life and to 
establish itself as a local cultural and arts venue, 
Maxwell Hall will be redeveloped as a new state-of-
the-art concert and conference venue which could 
also serve as a venue for student open days, visiting 
speakers, concerts and degree-award ceremonies. 
Aligned to this is the proposed establishment of a 
new destination for food and beverage, Arts and 
Culture in and around Albert Bentley Place.  

Key Components
Key assets identified within the Masterplan Refresh 
2020 are to be retained within the Development 
Framework, including:

Maxwell Hall + public realm

Science, Engineering and Environment (SEE) Building

Hub Building + University Gateway public realm

Salford Business School + public realm

Professional Services 

06. Character Areas 
Development Principles

Figure 6.9 / Fire Station Square and Crescent Cross-Section Visual

155154

P
age 98



Final Crescent Development Framework January 2021

Development Principles 

Sustainable Transport, 
Movement and Connectivity
De-engineering the A6 and highway 
improvements works 
To establish a proper sense of arrival for 
students, staff and visitors of the University, 
calming and slowing traffic and prioritising 
pedestrians as part of the proposals to de-
engineer the A6 will be central to realising the 
University’s vision, which, coupled with iconic 
architectural design will fundamentally change 
the initial impressions of the Peel Park Campus. 

A Connected Campus 
Improving the arrival experience at Salford 
Crescent station and bringing Metrolink will 
ensure that the Peel Park Campus can continue 
to attract talent. It is key that staff and students 
can access the campus in a safe and secure way 
and with a welcoming atmosphere.  

Creation of a ‘Single Campus’ 
Through one single vision and approach to 
public realm and landscaping, plus increased 
connectivity, the ambition is to establish a united 
placemaking experience across both campuses.

Improved pedestrian and cycle connectivity 
This will be facilitated through revised urban 
grain with all routes leading to the Transport 
Hub at the heart of the Framework area.  

A safe, diverse & inclusive campus 
Using all modes of transport and allowing 
access for all.

Consolidated car parking 
This is critical to improving the existing public 
realm. It will also be critical that the University 
enact a sustainable transport plan making use 
of the new infrastructure planned in other Zones.

Greenspaces and Public Realm
Improved Access to Peel Park
Following consultation on the draft Framework, the design 
around the new Maxwell Hall has been revised, to remove 
built form to the north east and provide additional public 
realm and landscaping in this location adjacant to the 
River and providing an improved route for pedestrians 
and cyclists to access Peel Park from the A6 Crescent.

A vibrant public plaza within the main campus 
The main campus is characterised by old and new 
academic buildings (such as the Adelphi building) 
which generally address the main public space. This will 
be enhanced in line with the overarching placemaking 
principles for the Development Framework in order 
to create an enhanced experience for students, staff 
and visitors. 

A Campus in the Park 
The release of land from surface car parks not only 
reduces on campus car movements, but also significantly 
allows for a transformation in the greening of the 
campus with the concept of extending Peel Park into 
the University estate.

Biodiversity Enhancements 
New planting of native tree and flower species will 
be encouraged alongside pedestrian/cycle paths to 
encourage greater biodiversity and improve connectivity 
between habitats, particularly linking into and out of 
Peel Park.  

Greening the Urban Environment 
'Greening’ the Crescent, which frames the Campus, will be 
achieved through new street planting and dwell spaces, 
sustainable urban drainage, informal nature planting 
and green infrastructure.

Water Reduction 
Proposals to diversify the public realm, to improve 
biodiversity and use the landscape as an opportunity 
to address the University’s requirement to reduce water 
consumption and increase green-water recycling and flood 
risk mitigation will be incoporated where practicable.

Land Uses

The Peel Campus will largely focus on educational and academic uses but will also 
incorporate a number of land uses to create a vibrant and interesting place. This will 
include a mix of land use typologies including teaching and research space, student 
accommodation and some commercial uses.

Development of high quality 
education floorspace
A number of the existing schools will be upgraded 
and developed in terms of their teaching and 
research space which remains the key function 
of this Zone.

A New Multifunction Centralised Student Hub
This will enable the co-location of several student-
centred support services including the library, 
study spaces, food hall and student services in one 
centralised service and will provide somewhere 
for students to socialise, and study between 
core teaching hours in a modern and flexible 
environment which currently isn’t provided.  

Technology & Digital Teaching & Learning
With a significant shift in focus towards a Virtual 
Learning Environment and a wider use of online 
delivery modes, the University anticipate a need 
to shift the focus of traditional school-based 
seminar, tutorial and lecture space towards spaces 
more suited for group-based, student-centred 
personalised learning.  The new Hub and Digital 
Teaching Building will be used to explore this 
concept further. The facility is considered a digitally 
rich learning environment where students will have 
the ability to access live and pre-recorded seminar 
and content and well as use traditional seminar 
space for ‘flipped learning’ and group-based 
enquiry.

Diversifying the Commercial / Retail offer
New commercial uses including food and beverage 
offerings will create a ‘sticky campus’ which will 
encourage students to stay on campus longer rather 
than going elsewhere for food and drink or going 
home.  This will improve the student experience 
overall, through providing additional services 
for students such as gyms, restaurants, bars, 

galleries and other cultural venues. Furthermore, 
this will help to integrate the University with the 
surrounding local Salford community and could also 
provide opportunities for local businesses.  

A Cultural Hub
The University sits at an important location and has 
an opportunity to make a significant contribution 
towards the growing cultural and arts community 
in this location. This will be in part facilitated by the 
deengineering of the A6 to create an urban square 
that unifies the Salford Museum/ Maxwall Hall and 
Albert Bentley Place, making the cultural district 
an extension of the campus. Diversifying existing 
land uses such as the new Maxwell Hall venue 
for cultural, concert and conference events will 
contribute towards this.  

Revitalised Sports Centre
As part of the Health and Wellbeing agenda, the 
Tom Husband Sports Centre will be redeveloped 
and extended to provide a modern fit-for-purpose 
centre for use by the School of Health and Society 
as well as for students sports and recreation.  

Student Accommodation
Additional student accommodation will be provided 
in this zone providing high quality purpose-built 
units (c. 2,000) for existing and future students and 
adding to the existing offer.

Links to Industry and the Innovation Zone
Research and innovation is not exclusive to the 
Health & Innovation Zone; the existing Energy 
House is located on this site, along with the Clinic, 
located in the new School of Health and Society 
building. The on-site clinic is a good example of how 
the University encourage industry collaboration 
between students and the NHS by offering a key 
service to students and local people.

ZONE 3, PEEL PARK CAMPUS 

06. Character Areas 
Development Principles

157156

P
age 99



Final Crescent Development Framework January 2021

159

Development Principles 

Scale, Massing and Density Design Quality 
Opportunities for Scale 
Informed by the surrounding context, 
opportunities for high density development 
of scale exist across the Peel Park Campus 
Zone. This would take into account the setting 
of any listed buildings as set out below.  The 
Illustrative Masterplan for thie Zone seeks to 
create an optimum campus volume that reduces 
university sprawl.

Heritage 
The zone is partially covered by the Crescent 
Conservation Area and contains a number of 
Listed Buildings and non-designated heritage 
assets. Any future proposals would need to 
be informed by an assessment of heritage 
impacts in line with ‘saved’ UDP policy ST15 and 
emerging heritage policies contained in Chapter 
20 of the Publication Local Plan (2020).

Townscape 
Any future proposals for taller buildings in the 
Peel Park Campus will need to provide sufficient 
information to justify the scale of development 
taking into account guidance set out within 
‘saved’ UDP policy DS5 ‘Tall Buildings’, draft Local 
Plan Policy D5 ‘Amenity’.

Creating an inviting campus 
To meet its objectives, the University of Salford 
needs a high-quality, modern, attractive campus 
with outstanding facilities to attract both 
industry collaborators and students. 

Creation of a world-class gateway along the A6 
The Development Framework will facilitate 
significant transformation of the existing 
townscape (demolition of Maxwell Main and the 
new Maxwell Hall), landscape, public realm and 
highway which will create an important ‘front 
door’ to the University.

Opportunities for iconic design 
Given the key gateway location of this zone, 
there are opportunities for iconic architectural 
design of the highest quality to create interest 
and cement the location as a Campus of 
Excellence.  One example could be the new Hub 
building which is highly visible from the A6 and 
the new transport hub. Another example is the 
new Maxwell hall building which is proposed to 
be a state-of-the-art concert and events venue.

ZONE 3, PEEL PARK CAMPUS 

06. Character Areas 
Development Principles

ILLUSTRATIVE 
MASTERPLAN

159

Figure 6.10 / Peel Park Campus, 
Illustrative Masterplan

KEY

Zone Boundary

University of Salford

Student Residential

Cultural

158

P
age 100



Final Crescent Development Framework January 2021

ZONE 4

Transport 
Hub

The Transport Hub is centred around 
the existing Salford Crescent Station 
which sits at the heart of the 
Development Framework area. The 
Station is currently only served by 
mainline trains. Improvements to the 
station and the surrounding area 
are key to the success of the Crescent 
area. The proposed improvements 
will create a new Transport Hub 
which will become the focus of 
movement in and out of the area. 

The Transport Hub will be a 
landmark infrastructure project which 
reduces car dominance, connects 
communities and provides a hub for 
sustainable mass transit in Salford.

Transport Hub Vision
The vision is for the Transport Hub to be an 
integrated transport interchange providing 
public transport services across the city region 
and beyond. The improvements to the station 
will create a destination in its own right where 
people are encouraged to spend time. The hub 
will become a place to meet at and travel to. 

To achieve this Vision, the Hub will provide:

Mainline train station 
and interchange

Metrolink Stop

Cycle hub 

End of trip facilities

06. Character Areas 
Development Principles

Figure 6.11 / Transport Hub Boundary

Final Crescent Development Framework

The Hub will address the existing issues around 
the Station, including the significant level changes, 
severance caused by the A6 and lack of legibility.  
This will be realised by building over the existing 
station and rail lines to create a new high-quality 
area of public realm for enjoyment by all users of 
the new Transport Hub. .

Following consultation on the draft Development 
Framework, and engagement with Transport for 
Greater Manchester (TfGM) the proposed location 
of the Hub and the main station building has been 
moved to the south of the A6 bridge, with the new 
station entrance being located facing north towards 
the Peel Park Campus and the new University Hub 
building. The proposed Metrolink platform has 
also been relocated further to the east along the 
Crescent.

Detailed design will now be further developed 
in conjunction with TfGM and other relevant 
stakeholders.

160 161

TRANSPORT 
HUB

P
age 101



Final Crescent Development Framework January 2021

162

ZONE 4, TRANSPORT HUB

06. Character Areas 
Development Principles

Figure 6.12 / Transport Hub - Visual

Development Principles

Sustainable Transport, 
Movement and Connectivity
Build over the Railway Lines 
The proposed build over will Improve 
pedestrian connectivity through the site, 
creating clear sightlines to increase safety. 

Seamless Connectivity
The build-over provides seamless connectivity 
across the railway lines, linking the Health 
& Innovation Zone South with the Peel Park 
Campus Zone - including Energy House 2.0 
with SEE.  The railway is currently a barrier 
splitting the existing campus into two sites.

Connectivity to Pendleton
Following the consultation on the draft 
Development Framework, the design has 
been developed to improve connections to 
Pendleton from the Transport Hub, as shown 
on the illustrative masterplan extract on 
subsequent pages.

Improved access to Public Transport 
Facilitated through the development of 
a Metrolink connection between Salford 
Crescent and Salford Quays as well as bus 
connections and mainline rail services. 

Metrolink Integration
Following further engagement with TfGM, 
the proposed location of the Metrolink stop is 
now located at the 'front door' the University 
within the heart of the Transport Hub, 
providing multi-modal connections.

Cycle Facilities 
Sustainable modes of transport including 
cycling will be encouraged through creating 
end-to-end facilities at the station. This in 
turn also encourage healthy living. 

Greenspaces and 
Public Realm

New green space 
The build-over will create new green space 
which will encourage dwell time and contribute 
to general health and wellbeing, through tree 
planting and landscaping.

New public realm 
The improvements will create a space which is 
inviting and safe, encouraging people to use 
the station to access the Crescent area and 
surrounding communities beyond.

Land Uses

Transport led residential community 
Increased connectivity will make the area 
an attractive place to live, therefore the 
area immediately adjacent to the station is 
proposed for residential use. 

Leisure, Food and Beverage 
The Hub will attract a high level of footfall 
therefore providing an opportunity for ground 
floor leisure uses, café and bars. These will be 
dual level linking to the station below ground. 
Whilst the draft Development Framework 
contained proposals for three retail blocks 
within this zone, following further design input 
this has now been removed and this area 
forms part of the public realm in this zone.

Redevelopment Opportunities 
The realignment and de-engineering of the A6 and 
the station build-over may provide redevelopment 
opportunities in the vicinity of the Transport Hub to 
link the site to the surrounding area. 

Metrolink Stop 
The extension of the Metrolink will provide 
increased connectivity to and from the wider 
city region, including linkages to Salford Quays, 
addressing a current deficiency in Metrolink 
provision.

Re-alignment of the A6 
Public transport and pedestrians are prioritised 
and a safe crossing over the A6 is created. New 
Metrolink station and platforms are integrated.

Former line of the Manchester, 
Bolton and Bury Canal
The former line of the canal will be referenced and 
consideration should be given to design, layout and 
orientation of buildings as it relates to the former 
canal. It will also encourage sustainable mode of 
transport such as walking and cycling to be utilised, 
connecting into other zones, including 1 and 6.

163

P
age 102



Final Crescent Development Framework January 2021

165

Development Principles

Scale, Massing and Density
Tall building cluster 
Both local and national planning policy 
encourages increased density within sustainable 
locations close to public transport. Clusters of 
tall buildings are found adjacent to transport 
hubs across Greater Manchester and major cities 
throughout the UK. The improvements to the 
Crescent Station, including the build-over, present 
a unique opportunity to explore the development 
of a tall building cluster in this location. 

Following consultation on the draft Development 
Framework, and taking into account comments 
received, the massing and positioning of the 
proposed towers to the west of the Hub has 
been revised and a terrace of six units is also 
now proposed adjacent to existing development 
beyond the red line boundary to break up the 
massing in this location. 

Similarly, the massing and layout of the proposed 
residential development to the east of the Hub, 
and to the south of the Metrolink platforms, has 
been reviewed to maximise potential for dual 
aspect apartments as shown on the illustrative 
masterplan extract adjacent.

Any future development in this area will be 
further assessed through the planning application 
process as and when proposals come forward. 

Navigable and Human Scale
Care has been taken to ensure the station design 
provides an arrival point into a public and inviting 
plaza representative of the historic stations which 
are navigable and human in scale.

Design Quality
Station design 
Enhancing Salford Crescent Station provides an 
opportunity to create an iconic station building 
which will become a key gateway into City Centre 
Salford. The majority of the station infrastructure 
and terminal are enclosed below the build-over at 
platform level, reducing the footprint of the station 
at grade. The station entrance is identified through 
an iconic lantern which brings people and light down 
to station level. Additional rooflights integrated into 
the landscape are proposed to provide a visual sky 
connection to the platform level.

University of Salford Hub Building
The University Hub building located directly to the 
north-west of the Transport Hub should be of a 
high-quality, iconic design, given that this will be 
one of the first buildings which can be appreciated 
by visitors upon arrival at the Transport Hub.

Active Frontages 
Active frontages which face onto the new public 
realm provided in conjunction with the build over 
will be encouraged to increase dwell time and make 
the Hub a destination in its own right.

ZONE 4, TRANSPORT HUB

06. Character Areas 
Development Principles

ILLUSTRATIVE 
MASTERPLAN

165

KEY

Zone Boundary

Staion over-build 

University of Salford

Residential

Mixed Use

Figure 6.13 / Transport Hub, 
Illustrative Masterplan

164

P
age 103



Final Crescent Development Framework January 2021

ZONE 5

Adelphi 
Village 

The Adelphi Village is situated to 
the east of the River Irwell and 
comprises a mix of uses including the 
vacant Centenary Building, vacant 
Old Adelphi building and surface car 
parking at Farmer Norton. The area 
is surrounded by medium to low rise 
residential communities including 
new developments at Valette 
Square and Timekeepers Square and 
Adelphi Wharf together with more 
established properties around North 
George Street and Cannon Street. 

The Adelphi Village is distinctly separate from the higher 
density Crescent area and educational and research grain of 
the Innovation zone. Adelphi is representative of the old civic 
district in Salford, laid on a grid system, where a few main 
roads give way to smaller residential streets. The proposals 
for the area seek to retain the domestic scale and road grid 
structure of the neighbouring streets  with the Centenary 
Building and Old Adelphi forming the community anchor at 
the heart of the local community.

Development Principles 

Pedestrian and Cycle Connectivity 
A strong emphasis will be placed on pedestrian 
and cycle accessibility within the Adelphi Village 
with sustainable transport choices being actively 
promoted through public realm treatments. 
It is vital that residential neighbourhoods are 
connected by an urban grain of streets which 
can be safely inhabited, navigated, and liveable 
throughout the day and night. The Adelphi zone is 
connected to the wider Framework area through 
a primary walking route along the Crescent and 
around the River.

06. Character Areas 
Development Principles

Vehicular Access  
The use of sustainable transport modes will be 
championed however it is acknowledged that 
access by private transport will still be required 
by some residents. Adelphi Village will allow for 
car access but will seek to keep vehicles on the 
periphery of the area to allow community blocks 
to flourish off pedestrian only routes at its heart. 

Vehicular Movement 
The residential focus within the Adelphi Village 
means that tertiary routes (i.e. lanes) and their 
associated scale will be the primary road types 
within the area. The routes will be scaled to 
reflect the lower density housing and to create 
liveable streets which form an extension of the 
public realm. This network of lanes helps define 
the character of the neighbourhood.

Sustainable Transport, 
Movement and Connectivity

Figure 6.14 / Adelphi Village Boundary

Final Crescent Development Framework

167166

ADELPHI 
VILLAGE

P
age 104



Final Crescent Development Framework January 2021

169168

Development Principles 

Land Uses
New Residential-Led Community 
Adelphi Village will become a high quality residential 
community anchored by new creative/ community uses 
and a unified public realm. 

Redevelopment of the Farmer Norton Car Park 
The existing car park will be redeveloped to create a 
new residential community comprising a mix of low-
medium density apartments and townhouses set 
around high quality public realm. 

Redevelopment of the Centenary Building Car Park 
The development of new medium to high density 
residential apartments on the existing car park to the 
rear of the Centenary Building is proposed. Design 
consideration would need to be given to how the new 
development relates to the Centenary Building and 
surrounding residential community. 

Repurposing the Centenary Building  
The Centenary Building, winner of the inaugural Stirling 
Prize, was lauded for its architectural design; however, 
the building is currently vacant as, functionally, it does 
not meet academic requirements. Alternative uses for 
the building will be supported. Given the emerging 
residential community around the Adelphi Village and 
the Crescent, re-purposing the building to create a new 
community/ social facility would generate a number 
of benefits - the facility could include uses including a 
GP, dentist practice, library, creche, and/or community 
space.  Any proposal for alternative uses would need to 
retain key architectural features, spatial configuration 
and contemporary use of steel, glass and concrete. 

Re-use of Old Adelphi 
The re-use, redeveloopment, extension and adaptation 
of the vacant Old Adelphi building will be supported 
subject to other policy considerations. It is considered 
that the building may be suitable for a number of uses 
including cultural/ creative or residential. 

Scale, Massing and Density
Low to Medium Density Development 
The indicative proposals for the Adelphi Village 
have been designed to reflect the existing 
massing, street scale and character of the local 
neighbourhood providing terraced housing and 
small apartment blocks in the centre of the 
development which do not exceed 4 storeys. 
These blocks reflect the existing terrace streets 
and builds in the success of local developments 
such as Timekeepers Square.

Greenspaces and Public Realm
The Meadow  
The relationship with the Meadow to the west 
provides an abundance of green space for 
residents to use and enjoy.  Opportunities to 
provide enhanced connectivity by way of new 
bridges across the River Irwell will be explored. 

Pocket Parks  
The domestic scale of the Adelphi Village allows 
for public and private garden spaces which 
weave between the streets. Pocket parks will be 
promoted in this zone, providing an extension of 
the wider green infrastructure.

Street Hierarchy   
The hierarchy of street profile both in terms of 
access and materiality is key to the success of 
the neighbourhood and the ability to create 
liveable streets which connect and integrate the 
community and surrounding areas.

Materiality   
The surfaces of the streets and its furniture 
at the heart of the development must reflect 
the desire for pedestrian activation enabling 
residents to dwell, using the space as an 
extension of their homes.

Permeability with the River 
The existing residential developments along the 
River Irwell currently restrict the permeability 
of the community with the River edge. The 
aspiration is to address this by inviting the public 
realm between the blocks to the River enabling 
tangible pedestrian connections between the 
heart of the Adelphi Village and the River Irwell.

Medium to Higher Density 
As the Adelphi Village extends West across Adelphi 
Street, the existing blocks on the edge of the River 
Irwell provide scope for an increase in scale to 
maximise the views provided by the River. 

ZONE 5, ADELPHI VILLAGE 

06. Character Areas 
Development Principles

P
age 105



Final Crescent Development Framework January 2021

171

Development Principles 

Design Quality
Active Frontages  
Whilst active ground floors are traditionally 
associated with commercial uses such as cafes, 
proposals should look to incorporate active 
residential frontages which provide an outward 
looking design allowing for connectivity between 
the private residence and the neighbourhood 
where desired. This ground floor activation 
helps to connect the community and assists in 
promoting the liveable streets which are enabled 
through managed connectivity routes.

High Quality Design
To reflect the successful new residential 
developments surrounding Adelphi Village, high 
quality design and materiality will need to be 
demonstrated as part of any future proposals. 

Heritage
Adelphi Village is partially covered by the 
Adelphi Bexley Square Conservation Area and 
sits adjacent to a number of Listed Buildings 
and non-designated heritage assets. Any future 
proposals will need to include an assessment of 
heritage impacts in line with ‘saved’ UDP policy 
ST15 and emerging heritage policies contained in 
Chapter 20 of the Publication Local Plan (2020).

Passive Design Features
The integration of passive environmental design 
principles and high aspiration energy performance 
targets will be encouraged where possible to 
provide highly efficiency homes targeting Net Zero 
Carbon in-use energy.

Riverside Activation
Following consultation on the draft Development 
Framework, the design has been updated to include 
riverside activation along the River Irwell as part of 
the proposed residential schemes in this location, 
continuing the riverside walk which has been begun 
by developments to the north. This will create a 
pleasant and walkable route for pedestrians and 
cyclists. 

ZONE 5, ADELPHI VILLAGE 

06. Character Areas 
Development Principles

171

ILLUSTRATIVE 
MASTERPLAN

KEY

Zone Boundary

Residential

Mixed Use

Existing Buildings

Retail

Figure 6.15 / Adelphi Village, 
Illustrative Masterplan

170

P
age 106



Final Crescent Development Framework January 2021

ZONE 6

The 
Crescent

The Crescent Zone is situated in a 
highly sustainable location along 
the A6 and contains a wealth of 
unique historic and cultural assets 
including Fire Station Square, Working 
Class Movement Library and the 
Former Police HQ. It also contains a 
number of underutilised University 
Buildings, surface car parks and 
vacant plots which present substantial 
opportunities for development, 
aligning with the regeneration that 
has taken place in Salford Central over 
the past 10 years. 

It is proposed that the Crescent will become a vibrant 
residential-led mixed use community  comprising a varied 
range of medium to high density housing together with 
other community and leisure uses. To further enhance the 
areas connectivity and access to sustainable transport, the 
de-engineering of the A6 and improved access to the River 
coupled with enhanced green spaces and public realm is 
proposed.

Development Principles 

Sustainable Transport, 
Movement and Connectivity
Currently the A6 is characterised by heavy 
infrastructure with very limited greening. There 
is poor visibility across the street looking towards 
the river and The Meadow. By de-engineering 
the road and removing car traffic from the A6 
this will provide significant opportunities as 
discussed below.

De-engineering of the A6  
The aspiration is for the A6 to be de-engineered, 
removing cars from the Crescent, integrating 
Metrolink and a bus route, creating an enhanced 
sustainable route into the City Centre. 

Creation of Shared Space on the Crescent 
The aspiration is to create opportunities for wide 
pedestrian footways and fully segregated cycle 
lanes.  This will also allow for enhanced bus 
services along the A6 Crescent and safeguard a 
corridor for the expansion of the Metrolink network 
to Salford Crescent. These elements would be 
separated by new planting in order to establish a 
safe and efficient route into the City Centre. 

Combination of Bus and Metrolink route 
The central area of the A6 Crescent will be re-
modelled to combine bus and Metrolink routes.

Riverside Shared Space 
Opportunities will be explored to create 
a riverside boulevard by removing the 
cantilevered sections of the existing road to 
create a new shared space with River views, 
seating areas and new planting. 

Pedestrian and Cycle Connectivity 
Permeability will be enhanced with improved 
links created from north to south and a new 
green link provided within a linear park to 
the southern boundary (along the line of the 
former Manchester, Bury & Bolton canal). 

06. Character Areas 
Development Principles

Figure 6.16 / The Crescent Boundary

Final Crescent Development Framework

173172

THE CRESCENT

P
age 107



Final Crescent Development Framework January 2021

ZONE 6, THE CRESCENT

Development Principles 

Enhancing visual connectivity with the River 
An enhanced visual connection with the River 
from the Crescent will be achieved through the 
de-engineering of the A6 and through selective 
clearance of vegetation alongside the bankside, 
subject to appropriate surveys. This will create 
clear lines of sight from the Crescent through to 
the Meadow beyond. 

Removal of Invasive Species 
In improving watercourse activation, current 
invasive species (Japanese Knotweed and Giant 
Hogweed) will need to be removed from the bank 
of the River. 

Biodiversity Enhancements 
New planting of native tree and flower species 
will be encouraged alongside the riverbank and 
pedestrian/ cycle path to encourage greater 
biodiversity and improve connectivity between 
habitats.  

Greening the A6 
Greening of the A6 will be achieved through the 
incorporation of new street tree planting and 
dwell spaces, sustainable urban drainage (SuDS), 
informal nature planting and associated green 
infrastructure.  

Land Uses

The Crescent is a mixed-use area comprising a range of land use typologies 
including residential, cultural, educational and industrial.

Greenspaces and Public Realm
Linear Park 
A new linear park containing pedestrian and 
cycle routes will be created along the southern 
boundary of the area adjacent to the railway line 
(along the link of the former Manchester, Bolton & 
Bury canal). 

The proposed linear park should be of a high 
quality and embed secure by design principles to 
prevent opportunities for antisocial behavior and/
or crime. 

As proposals come forward in this area, 
consideration needs to be given to the design and 
layout of adjoining development, particularly with 
regards to scale, massing and layout to ensure 
appropriate high quality development with active 
frontages.

Pedestrian and Cycle Access to the River 
A new pedestrian and cycle path at a lower 
level alongside the River Irwell will be created 
to facilitate access to the watercourse. This will 
provide a significant community resource which will 
not only provide enhanced connectivity but will 
also contribute to improved health and wellbeing. 

06. Character Areas 
Development Principles

New Residential-Led Community 
Given the areas excellent connectivity, employment 
opportunities and proximity to extensive green 
space, the Crescent is proposed to be the focus for 
new housing within the Framework area. A broad 
range of house types, sizes and tenures, including 
affordable housing, will be provided in order to 
create a vibrant new community that meets the 
needs of a large cross section of society.

Humphrey Booth House, Crescent House 
and Faraday Building 
In line with the University’s aspirations, it is 
proposed that Humphrey Booth House, Crescent 
House and the Faraday Building will be demolished 
once vacant and replaced with residential 
development. 

Leisure & Retail 
In order to take advantage of the area's unique 
location close to the University and local cultural/ 
creative assets together with the potential future 
growth in residential, there are opportunities for 
small scale ground floor leisure uses and retail uses 
within the area, including cafes and bars.

Car Parking/ Mobility Hub 
The level of surface car parking in the area 
represents an inefficient use of land in a prime 
gateway location. In light of the proposals to 
de-engineer the A6 and the aspiration to achieve 

the sustainability objectives presented in Section 
5, there is an opportunity to rationalise and 
consolidate existing car parking spaces. Whilst 
sustainable modes will be encouraged and are 
expected to used by the majority, a provision of 
controlled car parking will be required to support 
the University, Police HQ hotel, Maxwell Hall and 
the cultural Quarter visitors. 

Former Police HQ 
The vacant former Police HQ is ideally located on 
the Crescent road frontage within walking distance 
to the University campus and a range of existing 
cultural assets including Salford Museum and 
Art Gallery, Hemsley House and once, complete, 
the new Maxwell Hall venue. The re-purposing 
of the building and extension to the rear for use 
as a hotel to cater for visitors will be supported, 
subject to being supported by approriate technical 
information. Following the draft Development 
Framework consultation, the design has now been 
revised to include a clear servicing and access 
strategy to the rear.

The Old Fire Station 
The Old Fire Station is a unique and underutilised 
asset - alternative uses such as the creation of a 
multi-use community space or leisure uses will be 
encouraged, in conjunction with the development 
of the Cultural Quarter. Significant placemaking 
opportunities exist here to reinvigorate the space 
and encourage activity. 

 Figure 6.17 / The Crescent - Visual

174 175

P
age 108



Final Crescent Development Framework January 2021

177

Development Principles 

Scale, Massing and Density
Existing Crescent Building Line 
The existing building line along the Crescent, 
typified by lower scale terraces should be retained 
as part of any future redevelopment where 
practicable. 

Opportunities for Scale 
Informed by the surrounding context, opportunities 
for high density development of scale exist to 
the south of the Crescent taking in Irwell Place 
Car Park and Hulme Street. Looking North to 
South there is the potential for the traditional 
low-scale development on the Crescent frontage 
to sequentially step up towards the centre of the 
area before scaling back down towards the linear 
park. Looking East to West, development should 
transition from high density apartments around 
Outwood Wharf to low density townhouses around 
the historic core. 

Heritage 
The Crescent Zone is covered by the Crescent 
Conservation Area and contains a number of Listed 
Buildings and non-designated heritage assets. 
Future proposals would need to be include an 
assessment of heritage impacts in line with ‘saved’ 
UDP policy ST15 and emerging heritage policies 
contained in Chapter 20 of the Publication Local 
Plan (2020) and national policy.

Townscape 
Future proposals for taller buildings in the Crescent 
will need to provide sufficient information to justify 
the scale of development taking into account 
guidance set out within ‘saved’ UDP policy DS5 
‘Tall Buildings’, draft Local Plan Policy D5 ‘Amenity’ 
and Historic England’s Guidance on Tall Buildings 
(December 2015).

Design Quality

Active Frontage to the A6 
Active frontages along the A6 Crescent will be 
encouraged at ground floor level to encourage 
interaction with the street and natural surveillance. 
It is acknowledged that active frontages will not be 
possible throughout the whole zone; however, new 
buildings should incorporate overlooking of public 
spaces where possible. 

Amenity 
New proposals should respect the amenity of existing 
uses and seek to undertake necessary assessments as 
part of any future planning application including, but 
not limited to, privacy/overlooking, sunlight/daylight 
and wind microclimate. 

Noise  
Due to surrounding industrial uses along the southern 
boundary beyond the railway line, any proposals 
within this location would need to suitably assess and 
mitigate any potential noise impacts associated with 
current operations to protect existing business and the 
amenity of new residents/ occupiers. 

Orientation 
The orientation of future residential development 
should seek to minimise single aspect north facing 
apartments utilizing passive design principles to 
maximise daylight availability and and natural 
ventilation potential. This orientation would 
simultaneously maximise the physical and visual 
connections with the Crescent, River Irwell and the 
Meadow beyond to the north and to the former line of 
the canal and proposed linear park to the south.

Climate Change and Embracing Low Carbon
The Net Zero Carbon aspiration will affect the form 
of buildings to maximize passive design measures 
reducing operational energy, and also light weight 
construction methodology to reduce embodied carbon.

ZONE 6, THE CRESCENT

06. Character Areas 
Development Principles

ILLUSTRATIVE 
MASTERPLAN

KEY

Zone Boundary

Residential

Hotel/Retail

177

Cultural

Car Park

Existing Buildings

Figure 6.18 / The Crescent, 
Illustrative Masterplan

176

P
age 109



Final Crescent Development Framework January 2021Draft Development Framework 

178

07. Illustrative 
Masterplan

Final Crescent Development Framework

178 179

January 2021

P
age 110



Final Crescent Development Framework January 2021

180

07. Illustrative Masterplan 
This Development Framework establishes a clear 
vision for the Crescent, from which a series of key 
objectives have flowed. These objectives coupled 
with a detailed understanding of challenges and 
opportunities across the Framework area have 
informed a series of overarching development 
principles to guide future development. At finer grain 
level, these objectives have been further distilled 
to establish a set of character area development 
principles for each of the six zones which, together, 
make up Salford Crescent. 

The Illustrative Masterplan adjacent demonstrates 
how proposals for the Crescent could potentially 
be accommodated over the next 10+ years.  This 
Masterplan has been refined following feedback 
received during the public consultation period 
undertaken between October - December 2020, 
and following engagement with key stakeholders. 
Moving forwards, the Framework will be responsive 
to changing circumstances and retains an element 
of flexibility to adapt as conditions change. 

Figure 7.1 / Illustrative Masterplan

181

P
age 111



Final Crescent Development Framework January 2021Draft Development Framework 

182

08.
Delivering the 
Development 

Framework
Implementation and Phasing 

Final Crescent Development Framework

182 183

January 2021

P
age 112



Final Crescent Development Framework January 2021

185

The Salford Crescent 
Development Framework 
covers an area of 102 hectares 
and comprises six separate 
zones each with their own 
unique identity as well as 
specific challenges and 
opportunities.

A number of significant infrastructure interventions 
are proposed as part of the Development Framework 
that will dramatically transform the area and catalyse 
regeneration over the longer term. Given the scale 
and ambition of the proposals and the level of 
investment required to realise the vision, a phased 
approach to delivery is proposed. This Section sets out 
an indication of when new development will come 
forward and how new infrastructure will be funded.

08. Delivering the Development Framework 
Implementation and Phasing  

Indicative implementation and phasing 

PHASE 1

This section provides an indication of when certain development 
projects will come forward across the Development Framework area 
over the next 20 years based on current understanding.

Years 2021-2024

Development of Buildings

University Buildings

Infrastructure/Public Realm

Demolition

Figure 8.1 / Phase 1

Final Crescent Development Framework

184

P
age 113



Final Crescent Development Framework January 2021

186 187

08. Delivering the Development Framework 
Implementation and Phasing  

PHASE 3PHASE 2

Years 2029-2033Years 2025-2029

Development of BuildingsDevelopment of Buildings

University BuildingsUniversity Buildings

Infrastructure/Public RealmInfrastructure/Public Realm

DemolitionDemolition

Figure 8.3 / Phase 3Figure 8.2 / Phase 2

P
age 114



Final Crescent Development Framework January 2021

188 189

Infrastructure Investment 
In order to realise the ambitions for the Crescent, 
it is critical that major infrastructure interventions 
are financed and delivered as early as possible 
including, but not limited to:

Creation of a new public podium 
across Frederick Road; 

De-engineering and greening of the A6;

Creation of pedestrian links down to 
and along the River Irwell;

Developing a new transport hub 
including Metrolink stop; and

Significant public realm works throughout 
the Development Framework area.

These interventions will require significant levels 
of investment. This is proposed to be funded 
by both the English Cities Fund (ECF) equity 
and through the rigorous assessment of public 
sources of funding available. This approach has 
been successfully demonstrated by the English 
Cities Fund (ECF) and Salford City Council (SCC) at 
Chapel Street and Salford Central where significant 
improvements to infrastructure were secured 
utilising a range of funding streams including local 
growth funding and DTA Pinchpoint funding. 

The availability of this type of funding acts as 
an accelerant to the delivery of regeneration 
schemes ensuring that infrastructure is in place 
ahead of subsequent development. This in turn 
provides a catalytic effect for potential investors 
considering the development as they can see that 
transformation has begun and it is committed.

08. Delivering the Development Framework 
Implementation and Phasing  

Years 2033-2040

PHASE 4

Development of Buildings

University Buildings

Infrastructure/Public Realm

Demolition

Developer Contributions 
In addition to the above, Salford City Council may 
require developer contributions agreements to be 
secured in respect of future proposals in accordance 
with saved UDP policy DEV5, the Planning 
Obligations Supplementary Planning Document 
(December 2019) and emerging Local Plan policy 
PC1 (once adopted). 

Developer contributions would be subject to the 
requirements of Regulations 122 and 123 of the 
Community Infrastructure Levy Regulations 2010 or 
any relevant subsequent legislation. 

Figure 8.4 / Phase 4

P
age 115



Final Crescent Development Framework January 2021

190 191

The Crescent - Development Zone

P
age 116



192 193

Private & Confidential (Draft v.2.0) The Crescent

The Crescent Development Framework

Final Crescent Development Framework

Appendices

193192

January 2021

P
age 117



Final Crescent Development Framework January 2021

194 195

Final Crescent Development Framework

Planning Policy 

195194

APPENDIX A

January 2021

P
age 118



Final Crescent Development Framework January 2021

196 197

Appendix A, Planning Policy Review

National Planning Policy

Planning for the Future 
August 2020 
On 6 August 2020, the Ministry of Housing, Communities 
and Local Government (MHCLG)  launched the ‘Planning 
for the Future’ White Paper which proposes reforms 
of the planning system to streamline and modernise 
the planning process, bring a new focus to design 
and sustainability, improve the system of developer 
contributions to infrastructure, and ensure more land is 
available for development where it is needed. The White 
Paper is being consulted on until 29 October 2020.

In the new system local areas will develop plans for land 
to be designated into three categories:

• Growth areas will back development, with 
development approved at the same time plans are 
prepared, meaning new homes, schools, shops and 
business space can be built quickly and efficiently, as 
long as local design standards are met.

• Renewal areas will be suitable for some 
development - where it is high-quality in a way 
which meets design and other prior approval 
requirements the process will be quicker. If not, 
development will need planning approval in the 
usual way.

• Protected areas where development will be restricted 
to carry on protecting our treasured heritage like 
Areas of Outstanding Natural Beauty and National 
Parks.

Communities will be consulted from the beginning of the 
planning process – and help shape the design codes to 
guide what development can happen in their local area.

Budget 2020 – Delivering on our 
Promises to The British People 
March 2020
It is acknowledged that the Budget took place 
against the backdrop of the global outbreak of 
COVID-19. It sets out the following key points:

• Funding excellent public services; 
• Levelling up and getting Britain building; 
• Supporting people and families; 
• Backing businesses; 
• Investing in innovation; and
• Growing a greener economy. 

Planning for the Future 
March 2020 
This document, prepared by the Ministry of Housing, 
Communities and Local Government (MHCLG), 
outlines the Government’s aim’s for increased 
number of people to be able to own their own 
homes and to protect those who are living in rented 
accommodation. The report was a precursor to the 
Planning White Paper published in August 2020.

The key vision is to support communities to deliver more 
homes for local people. The Government will introduce a 
Building Safety Bill to bring about the biggest change in 
building safety for a generation and a Renters’ Reform 
Bill to provide greater stability for those who rent their 
homes. To ensure that residents in social housing are 
treating fairly a Social Housing White Paper will be 
published. 

The Government will back brownfield land development 
and encourage greater building in urban area. New tools 
will be introduced to support communities to densify 
and make the best of their underutilised brownfield land. 
These will include; 

• Investing £400m to use brownfield land productively 
– the Government will work with ambitious mayors 
and local leaders to regenerate local brownfield land 
and deliver the homes their communities need on 
land which is already developed. 

• Launching a national brownfield map and a call 
for proposals for building above stations – the 
government will launch a national brownfield 
sites map in April 2020 and will conduct a call 
for proposals to seek evidence on the barriers to, 
and opportunities in, building above stations in 
urban areas. It is vital that we make the most of 
existing transport hubs, encouraging modern, green 
communities where people live close to public 
transport. 

• Reviewing the formula for calculating Local Housing 
Need (LHN) – we will introduce a new approach 
which encourages greater building within and 
near to urban areas and makes sure the country is 
planning for the delivery of 300,000 new homes a 
year. 

• Introducing new rules to encourage building 
upwards, increasing density in line with local 
character and make the most of local infrastructure 
– we will introduce new permitted development 
rights for building upwards on existing buildings 
by summer 2020, including to extend residential 

blocks by up to two storeys and to deliver new and 
bigger homes. We will also consult on the detail of 
a new permitted development right to allow vacant 
commercial buildings, industrial buildings and 
residential blocks to be demolished and replaced 
with well-designed new residential units which meet 
natural light standards. 

• Supporting community and self-build housing – we 
will support those who want to build their own 
homes to find plots of land and provide help to 
parish councils and neighbourhood forums who 
wish to build a small number of homes to allow 
their communities to grow organically, providing 
homes for the next generation and those wishing to 
downsize. 

• Backing the Oxford-Cambridge Arc, including a new 
spatial framework and up to 4 new development 
corporations – the Arc has the potential to be a 
world-leading green growth corridor, with high-
productivity jobs and environmentally-friendly 
developments. The Spatial Framework will give 
certainty to businesses and developers about where 
new housing and employment will be delivered 
until 2050 and support planning for the right 
infrastructure to meet social, environmental and 
economic needs. The government is also going 
to examine and develop the case for up to four 
new Development Corporations in the Ox-Cam 
Arc, subject to necessary public consultation, in or 
around Bedford, St Neots/Sandy, Cambourne and 
Cambridge, which includes plans to explore the case 
for a New Town at Cambridge, to accelerate new 
housing and infrastructure development. 

Community infrastructure will be delivered first with 
local authorities to be provided with greater funding 
for infrastructure to ensure that sufficient resources are 
available. This includes:

• Investing another £1.1 billion in local infrastructure 
to unlock almost 70,000 new homes – our 
infrastructure-first approach to building new homes 
means putting in the transport, utilities, digital 
connectivity and community services like schools 
and hospitals early, so that new developments do 
not put strain on local services. The Budget set out 
that over £1.1 billion will be provided to fund key 
infrastructure schemes from Surrey to Sunderland, 
including new roads, transport links, flood defences, 
leisure and healthcare facilities, digital and power 
networks and schools. To date we have allocated 
over £4 billion through the Housing Infrastructure 
Fund (HIF) to unlock up to 340,000 new homes. 

• A new £10 billion Single Housing Infrastructure Fund – 
as set out in the Conservative manifesto, we will also 
build on this infrastructure investment with a new 
long-term, flexible fund which will give confidence 
to communities, developers and local authorities. 
Details of the funding will be announced alongside 
the Spending Review. Homes England will engage 
with local authorities and the wider market to build 
a pipeline of opportunities up and down the country. 

The Government will take action to encourage more 
beautiful design and ensure local authorities have the 
support the need to demand higher standards. They will:

• Revise the National Planning Policy Framework 
(NPPF) to embed the principles of good design and 
placemaking – this will make clear that high-quality 
buildings and places must be considered throughout 
the planning process. The framework will expand on 
the fundamental principles of good design to define 
what is expected of local authorities and developers 
to support the creation of beautiful places. 

• Respond to the Building Better, Building Beautiful 
Commission’s report – we will look to take forward 
many of the Commission’s recommendations, which 
include calling for urban tree planting and giving 
communities a greater opportunity to influence 
design standards in their area. This will put tree lined 
streets at the centre of future plans, so that they 
become the norm not the exception. 

• Give local authorities the ability to ensure that new 
homes conform to local residents’ ideas of beauty 
through the planning system – using the National 
Model Design Code we will set out clear parameters 
for promoting the design and style of homes and 
neighbourhoods local people want to see. We will 
ask local places to produce their own design guides 
and codes, informed by listening to local people and 
considering local context. This will embed standards 
in planning policy and give local communities the 
confidence to demand that they are met. 

National Planning 
Policy Framework (NPPF) 
February 2019
The NPPF provides the overarching planning 
framework that underpins decision making and the 
plan making process in England. 

The NPPF provides the Government’s planning policies 
for England and sets out how these are expected to 
be applied. The NPPF expects the planning system 
to embrace positive development and to deliver the 
types of sustainable development that will create 
inclusive, mixed and vibrant communities. 

The Framework sets out the three dimensions of 
sustainable development: economic, social and 
environmental, including contributing to building 
a strong, responsive and competitive economy, by 
ensuring that sufficient land of the right type is 
available in the right places and at the right time 
to support growth and innovation. It places the 
presumption in favour of sustainable development at 
the heart of the Framework to ensure that sustainable 
development is pursued in a positive way through 
both plan-making and decision-taking.  

P
age 119



Final Crescent Development Framework January 2021

198 199

Policy ST1: Sustainable Urban Neighbourhoods 
Development shall contribute towards the creation and 
maintenance of sustainable urban neighbourhoods.

Policy ST 3: Employment Supply 
A good range of local employment opportunities will 
be secured by:

• Maintaining an adequate supply and variety of 
land and buildings for employment purposes;

• Protecting, and increasing the attractiveness of, 
existing employment areas;

• Enabling the diversification of the local economy; 
and

• Using planning obligations to secure local labour 
contracts and training. 

Policy ST 5:  Transport Networks 
Transport networks will be maintained and improved 
through a combination of the following measures:

• The protection and extension of the network of 
pedestrian and cycling routes;

• The expansion and improvement of the public 
transport system and the enhancement of support 
facilities;

• The maintenance and improvement of the 
highway network;

• The provision of new road infrastructure where this 
will support the city’s economic regeneration;

• Requiring development proposals, highway 
improvement schemes and traffic management 
measures to make adequate provision for the 
needs of the disabled, pedestrians and cyclists, 
and, wherever appropriate, maximise the use of 
public transport; and

• The protection and enhancement of rail and 
water-based infrastructure to support the 
movement of freight and passengers.

Policy ST 7: Mixed-use Development 
Mixed-use development that minimises the need to 
travel will be focused in the Chapel Street regeneration 
area, Salford Quays, the Ordsall Lane riverside corridor, 
Lower Broughton, the town centres, neighbourhood 
centres, and other locations well served by public 
transport.

Appendix A, Planning Policy Review

Policy ST 12: Development Density 
Development within the regional centre, town centres, and 
close to key public transport routes and interchanges shall 
seek to achieve a high density appropriate to the location 
and context.

Policy ST 15: Historic Environment 
Historic and cultural assets that contribute to the character 
of the city will be preserved and, wherever possible and 
appropriate, enhanced.

Policy DES 1: Respecting Context 
Development will be required to respond to its physical 
context, respect the positive character of the local area in 
which it is situated, and contribute towards local identity 
and distinctiveness.

In assessing the extent to which any development complies 
with this policy, regard will be had to the following factors:

• The impact on, and relationship to, the existing 
landscape and any notable landscape or 
environmental feature or species;

• The character, scale and pattern of streets and 
building plots, including plot size;

• The relationship to existing buildings and other 
features that contribute to townscape quality;

• The impact on, and quality of, views and vistas;

• The scale of the proposed development in relationship 
to its surroundings;

• The potential impact of the proposed development on 
the redevelopment of an adjacent site;

• The desirability of protecting an existing building line, 
or allowing discontinuities that would improve or 
enrich the existing townscape and public space;

• The street’s vertical and horizontal rhythms;

• The quality and durability of proposed materials and 
their appropriateness to both the location and the 
type of development; and

• The functional compatibility with adjoining land uses.

Where there is no discernible or well-developed local 
character or distinctiveness, developments will be required 
to adopt high design standards that support the creation 
of a distinctive place, ensuring that this is appropriate to 
the nature, setting, culture and community of the local 
area.

Policy DES 3: Design of Public Space  
Where development includes the provision of, or works 
to, public space, that public space must be designed to:

• Have a clear role and purpose, responding to 
established or proposed local economic, social, 
cultural and environmental needs;

• Reflect and enhance the character and identity of 
the area;

• Form an integral part of, and provide an appropriate 
setting for, surrounding developments;

• Be attractive, safe, uncluttered and appropriately lit;

• Be of an appropriate scale;

• Connect to established pedestrian routes and other 
public spaces; and

• Minimise, and make provision for, maintenance 
requirements.

Policy DES 5: Tall Buildings  
Tall buildings will be permitted where:

• The scale of the development is appropriate to its 
context and location;

• The location is highly accessible by public transport, 
walking and cycling;

• The building would positively relate to and interact 
with the adjacent public realm;

• The building would be of the highest quality design 
and construction;

• The building would make a positive addition to the 
skyline;

• The building would not detract from important 
views;

• There would be no unacceptable overshadowing or 
overlooking;

• There would be no unacceptable impact on the 
setting of a listed building, or the character or 
appearance of a conservation area;

• There would be no unacceptable impact on 
microclimate, telecommunications activity and 
aviation safety; and

• The development would be consistent with other 
policies and proposals of the UDP.

Policy DES 7: Amenity of Users and Neighbours 
All new development will be required to provide potential 
users with a satisfactory level of amenity, in terms of 
space, sunlight, daylight, privacy, aspect, and layout and 
will have an unacceptable impact on the amenity of other 
developments.

Policy H 1: Provision of New Housing Development 
All new housing development will be required to:

• Contribute towards the provision of a balanced mix of 
dwellings in terms of size, type, tenure and affordability;

• Be built at an appropriate density, which will be no less 
than 30 dwellings per hectare (net) throughout the city, 
and no less than 50 dwellings per hectare (net) on sites 
within or adjoining the mixed-use areas listed in Policy 
MX1;

• Provide a high-quality residential environment and 
adequate level of amenity, in accordance with the 
design policies of the UDP;

• Make adequate provision for open space in accordance 
with Policy and Policy R2;

• Where necessary, make an adequate contribution to 
local infrastructure to support the development; and

• Be consistent with other policies and proposals of the 
UDP.

In determining whether the proposed mix and density of 
dwellings on a site is appropriate and acceptable, regard 
will be had to the following factors:

• The size of the development;

• The physical characteristics of the site;

• The mix of dwellings in the surrounding area;

• Any special character of the surrounding area that is 
worthy of protection;

• The accessibility of the site, and its location in relation 
to jobs and facilities;

• Any specific need for, or oversupply of, residential 
accommodation that has been identified;

• The strategy and proposals of the Housing Market 
Renewal Initiative; and

• Any other relevant housing, planning or regeneration 
strategies approved by the city council.

Appendix A, Planning Policy Review

Local Planning Policy

Saved Policies of Salford Unitary Development Plan (UDP) 
June 2006

P
age 120



Final Crescent Development Framework January 2021

200 201

Policy A 2: Cyclists, Pedestrians and the Disabled
Development proposals, road improvement schemes and 
traffic management measures will be required to make 
adequate provision for safe and convenient access by the 
disabled, other people with limited or impaired mobility, 
pedestrians and cyclists.

The needs of these groups will also be catered for by:

• Promoting specific highway improvement and traffic 
management measures that increase safety for and 
afford greater priority to the disabled, other people 
with limited or impaired mobility, pedestrians and 
cyclists; and

• Identifying, protecting and improving networks of 
key disabled, pedestrian and cycling routes. 

Development that would result in the diversion or 
extinguishment of an existing public right of way will 
only be permitted where:

• It can be demonstrated that adequate levels of 
access for the disabled, pedestrians and cyclists will 
be maintained to, around, and where appropriate, 
through the site; and

• In the case of a public right of way that forms part of 
the city’s Countryside Access Network, the proposal 
fully accords with Policy R5 ‘Countryside Access 
Network’ of this UDP.

Policy A 4: Railways 
Improvements to the city’s railway stations, rail 
infrastructure and rail services will be secured through:

• The continued development and improvement of 
Salford Central Station as a major public transport 
facility serving Manchester city centre, and Salford 
Crescent Station as an interchange;

• The refurbishment of the city’s other existing railway 
stations; 

• The improvement of access arrangements for 
pedestrians, cyclists and the disabled; secure cycle 
parking facilities; waiting areas; park and ride 
facilities; and measures to improve safety and 
security for all rail users;

• The provision of new railway stations that will serve 
major new development that would be likely to 
generate significant levels of traffic; and

• Measures that would improve the safety, speed and 
capacity of the rail network or relieve congestion 
upon it, whilst maintaining local services.

Where appropriate to the needs and potential impact 
of a development, planning obligations will be used to 
secure any or all of the above measures.

Policy A 5: Buses 
The provision of Quality Bus Corridors and bus 
lanes will be permitted, where they are consistent 
with regeneration objectives and other policies and 
proposals of the UDP.

Bus priority measures will be introduced along the 
A6/A580 Leigh to Manchester (the Leigh, Salford, 
Manchester Guided Busway).

In addition, the introduction of bus priority measures 
along the A576 Pendleton to Cheetham.

Other improvements to the quality of bus services, 
facilities and associated highway infrastructure will also 
be secured through:

• The provision of new interchange facilities;

• The improvement of existing bus stations and bus 
stops, including improved standards of security, 
pedestrian and disabled access and improvements 
in the waiting environment; and

• New forms of bus provision, such as flexible and 
demand responsive services, minibuses, and school 
buses.

Development proposals will be required to make 
adequate provision for access to and the use of buses. 
In particular, developments should:

• Facilitate safe, direct and convenient access to 
existing bus stops and services, in accordance with 
Policy DES2; 

• Make good any deficiencies in bus services, facilities 
or associated highway infrastructure required to 
service the development, in accordance with Policy 
A1; and

• In the case of larger developments, make 
specific provision for new bus stops and other 
associated infrastructure as an integral part of 
the development, and, where appropriate, make 
financial contributions towards new or improved 
bus services.

Where appropriate to the needs and potential impact 
of a development, planning obligations will be used to 
secure any or all of the above measures.

Appendix A, Planning Policy Review

Local Planning Policy

Policy CH 1 - Works to, and Demolition 
of, Listed Buildings
A. Proposals for the alteration, extension, change of 
use or demolition, whether partial or total, of a listed 
building will be considered in relation to the effect on:

• The importance of the building;

• The particular physical features of the building;

• The building’s setting and contribution to the local 
scene; and

• The extent to which the proposed works would bring 
substantial benefits for the community.

B. Proposals involving the alteration, extension, change 
of use or partial demolition of a listed building will be 
permitted only where they would preserve or enhance 
the character and features of special architectural 
interest that contribute to the reasons for its listing.

C. Total or partial demolition of a listed building, or its 
change of use, will be permitted only where:

• It is not practicable or economically feasible to 
continue to use the building for its existing or 
previous purpose;

• It can be clearly demonstrated that there is no 
other viable use and no alternative viable means of 
securing its preservation; and

• That in relation to total demolition, any proposed 
redevelopment or the creation of a cleared site 
would not cause unacceptable harm to the setting of 
any remaining listed buildings.

D. Where consent for demolition is granted, it will be 
subject to conditions requiring:

• The prior approval of detailed plans for the 
replacement development, together with the letting 
contract for the development; and

• The recording of details of the listed building.

Policy CH 3: Works Within Conservation Areas 
Development in conservation areas will only be 
permitted where it would preserve or enhance the 
character or appearance of the conservation area. In 
determining this, regard will be had to the extent to 
which the proposal:

• Retains or improves features that contribute to the 
character or appearance of the conservation area;

• Is of a high standard of design, consistent with the 
design policies of the plan; 

• Retains existing mature trees;

• Secures environmental improvements and 
enhancements; and

• Protects and improves important views within, into 
and out of the conservation area.

Policy CH 7: Manchester, Bolton and Bury Canal 
Planning permission will be granted for the restoration 
of the Manchester, Bolton and Bury Canal. The line of 
the canal will be protected. Development that would 
prejudice the reinstatement of the canal and its towpath 
will not be permitted.

In circumstances where the restoration or improvement 
of the canal or towpath is necessary to enable 
development to proceed satisfactorily, or where the 
development would benefit directly from the restoration 
or improvement, contributions will be sought with a view 
to securing such restoration or improvement.

Figure 2.1 / Unitary Development Plan - Proposals Map Extract

https://map.salford.gov.uk/
proposalsmap/

P
age 121

https://map.salford.gov.uk/proposalsmap/
https://map.salford.gov.uk/proposalsmap/


Final Crescent Development Framework January 2021

202 203

Policy F2: Social value and inclusion 
All development shall be located, designed, constructed 
and operated to maximise its social value and contribute 
to making Salford a more socially inclusive city.

All major developments shall submit a Social Value 
Strategy at the planning application stage for the 
approval of the city council.

The Social Value Strategy shall identify how the 
development will support social inclusion and deliver 
social value throughout its lifecycle. This shall include 
demonstrating how the development will maximise its 
positive contribution to:

• Reducing inequalities in Salford and their adverse 
impacts on residents;

• The ability of local residents and vulnerable groups 
to fully participate in society;

• Inclusive places, in accordance with Policy F3;

• Economic inclusion, with positive consideration 
given to:

 » Ensuring that access arrangements cater for all 
needs, maximising opportunities for walking and 
cycling;

 » Promoting on-site employment opportunities to 
Salford residents;

 » Providing training opportunities for Salford 
residents;

 » Utilising local supply chains; and

 » Signing up to the City Mayor’s Employment 
Charter; and

• Good mental and physical health, in accordance with 
Policy HH1.

For the purposes of this policy, social value is defined 
as the range of potential social, economic and 
environmental benefits to communities in Salford, 
including existing residents, businesses and other 
stakeholders in the local area.

Appendix A, Planning Policy Review

Local Planning Policy

Policy F3: Inclusive places 
All places and developments shall be as inclusive 
as possible, capable of adapting to a broad range 
of changing needs and delivering a high quality of 
life, where no one is potentially excluded because of 
disability, age, gender, sexuality, ethnicity or social class. 
Achieving this will involve:

• Developing and sustaining a distinctive local 
character;

• Providing an attractive, safe and inviting 
environment and public spaces, free from excessive 
air and noise pollution;

• Integrating a high level of green infrastructure that 
contributes important environmental functions;

• Making it easy and attractive to walk, cycle and 
use public transport, with motor vehicles not being 
allowed to dominate;

• Offering excellent external connections, both 
through sustainable transport links and digital 
connectivity;

• Delivering a diverse mix of decent and adaptable 
homes, including affordable housing;

• Providing a varied choice of business 
accommodation, including for start-ups and small 
and medium enterprises (SMEs) and spaces for 
innovation; and

• Incorporating a range of amenities and facilities to 
meet different local needs.

Policy CC1: Climate change 
Development shall support Salford becoming carbon 
neutral by 2038, through where relevant:

Minimising carbon emissions by:

• Being located so as to minimise the need to travel 
and maximise trips by sustainable modes of 
transport;

• Delivering a density of development that makes the 
most of accessible sites;

• Contributing to more walkable and cyclable 
neighbourhoods that reduce demand for car use;

• Incorporating electric vehicle charging points;

• Protecting and taking opportunities for the more 
sustainable movement of freight;

• Adopting the principles of the energy hierarchy, with 
new build residential development exceeding the 
fabric energy efficiency required under Part L of the 
Building Regulations 2013 by 19%, and new build 
non-residential development of 1,000m2 or more 
achieving at least BREEAM very good or an accepted 
equivalent, and meet the standard required by any 
subsequent revision to building regulations, working 
towards a target that all new development shall be 
zero net carbon from 2028;

• Taking opportunities to incorporate and connect to 
renewable and low carbon energy infrastructure;

• In the case of existing buildings, retrofitting them 
with measures to reduce energy consumption, in a 
manner consistent with their heritage interest.

Maximising carbon storage and sequestration, 
including by:

• Protect and support the provision or restoration of 
habitats that provide a carbon storage function;

• Incorporating green infrastructure, such as trees and 
woodland, that helps to sequester carbon from the 
atmosphere; and

• Minimising degradation and erosion of soil.

Mitigating and adapting to the impacts of climate 
change, including by:

• Managing flood risk associated with higher peak 
river flows and more extreme weather events, and 
relocating vulnerable uses;

• Providing shade and green infrastructure to reduce 
overheating of urban areas during warmer summers;

• Creating a place that promotes social interaction;

• Delivering a net gain in biodiversity value;

• Incorporating appropriate water efficiency and 
water recycling measures, to help minimise the 
potential for drought;

• Minimising and mitigating air pollution so as to 
reduce the potential for higher temperatures which 
in turn leads to poorer air quality.

Responding to the economic and policy changes that 
are likely to accompany climate change, including by 
reducing the reliance on the private car.

Policy EF1: Efficient use of land 
Developments shall use land efficiently. All parts of a site 
shall have a clear and positive purpose.

Support will be given to the use of suitable previously 
developed land and appropriate opportunities to 
remediate despoiled, degraded, derelict, contaminated or 
unstable land.

The density of a development shall:

• Respond to the local context, character and 
distinctiveness; and

• Reflect the accessibility of the site:

 » By public transport, cycling and walking; and

 » To public services, community facilities, amenity 
and recreation provision.

The highest density development shall be in the most 
accessible locations. 

Residential densities shall meet the requirements in 
Policy H3.

Where low-rise non-residential development is 
proposed, the applicant shall demonstrate that positive 
consideration has been given to incorporating residential 
uses above, provided that residents would have a good 
level of amenity.

Policy EF2: Co-ordinated development  
Development will not be permitted if it would 
unacceptably hamper or reduce the development options 
for adjacent sites or the wider area. Development must 
make provision for, and be phased with, supporting 
infrastructure, facilities, and appropriate environmental 
mitigation.

Development on individual sites will only be required to 
be guided by a masterplan or framework for the wider 
area where there is a need to:

• Demonstrate that development options on other 
sites would not be unacceptably reduced;

• Secure consistency in layout and/or design across 
more than one site;

Publication Salford Local Plan: 
Development Management Policies and Designations 
January 2020

P
age 122



Final Crescent Development Framework January 2021

204 205

• Accommodate and/or fund infrastructure when this 
would not be possible by viewing individual sites in 
isolation; or

• Ensure that the cumulative impacts of development 
in the area are properly assessed;

Where a masterplan/framework is produced by someone 
other than the city council:

• The boundaries and scope of the masterplan/
framework area shall be agreed with the city council 
at an early stage in the production process; and

• The final version of the masterplan/framework shall 
be endorsed by the city council.

The production process for the masterplan 
/framework shall:

• Ensure the proper consultation of the local 
community and other stakeholders within and 
adjoining the masterplan/framework area;

• Seek to maximise social value and inclusion in any 
resulting development; and

• Identify early in the process whether the scale and 
nature of the development proposed within the 
masterplan/framework area is likely to need to be 
subject to an Environmental Impact Assessment 
(EIA) and, if so and as far as practicable, use the EIA 
process to guide the development of the masterplan 
and identify opportunities to improve it.

No development will be permitted on sites allocated for 
development through the Greater Manchester Spatial 
Framework until a masterplan or Supplementary 
Planning Document (SPD) has been developed with the 
local community and other stakeholders, and endorsed, 
or in the case of an SPD adopted, by the city council.

Policy AP1: City Centre Salford 

Neighbourhoods 
Development in City Centre Salford shall be fully 
integrated into, and contribute to the success and strong 
sense of place of, both the neighbourhood within which 
it is located and the City Centre as a whole, in accordance 
with the following:

• Adelphi – This residential-led mixed-use area will 
take maximum advantage of the attractive riverside 
location overlooking The Meadow, providing a 

high-quality setting for the area’s open spaces 
and riverside walkway and cycleway in accordance 
with policy D9.

• Crescent, University of Salford and Innovation 
Park – The area will provide a distinctive western 
entrance to the City Centre. Its historic buildings, 
coupled with enhanced views and connections to 
surrounding open spaces, will offer an attractive 
context for any further development. The green 
character of Peel Park will be extended across the 
A6 around Fire Station Square, and high-quality 
public realm will unify the important cluster of 
heritage, cultural and university assets, providing 
a strong, active focus for the area. The university 
campus will continue to be improved (see Policy 
ED3), and the adjacent Innovation Park enhanced 
for knowledge-based uses. Residential uses will be 
focused in the area to the south of The Crescent. 
The line of the former Manchester Bolton and Bury 
Canal provides an opportunity to open up new 
green infrastructure through this area.

• The Meadow and Peel Park – The Meadow and 
Peel Park will provide the largest integrated area 
of greenspace in the City Centre, with improved 
connections to surrounding areas.

Uses 
Development shall maintain the wide range of uses 
in City Centre Salford, reflecting its importance within 
the wider City Centre, supporting its roles as a business 
location, tourism, cultural and leisure destination, 
centre of learning and knowledge, and home to a 
series of residential neighbourhoods:

1. Business, tourism, cultural and leisure 
development will be appropriate across the area.

2. The continued enhancement of the facilities 
at the University of Salford campus will be 
supported, with student housing focused within 
and immediately around the campus. The western 
end of the University of Salford area will remain 
predominantly in use for university-related 
activities and other knowledge-based uses.

3. Residential-led mixed-use development will be 
appropriate across the rest of City Centre Salford. 
This will be primarily in the form of apartments, 
reflecting the area’s locational advantages, but 
may also include houses built at high densities.

4. Retail and leisure uses, community and social 
facilities and other amenities to support the 
residential, business and visitor populations will 
be permitted. These facilities shall be focused on 
prominent frontages, busy intersections with high 
footfall, and where they can add vibrancy and best 
meet the needs of the neighbourhood.

Transport and movement 
In order to support the successful functioning of the City 
Centre, particularly in terms of facilitating people to 
travel by sustainable modes of transport, the following 
initiatives will be promoted:

• The development of further public transport 
links into the City Centre’s existing rail stations, 
employment, cultural and leisure opportunities;

• The continued improvement of Salford Central 
Station as the main western rail gateway to the 
central business district of the City Centre, including 
through works which enable more services and 
longer trains to stop at the station;

• The transformation of Salford Crescent Station into a 
major public transport interchange for rail, Metrolink 
and bus services, with the continued improvement 
of the station itself as a key rail facility serving the 
Crescent / Chapel Street and the University of Salford 
and the investigation into the potential to increase 
the number of platforms;

• A new Metrolink line connecting Salford Quays and 
Salford Crescent Station, supporting the integration 
of the City Centre with Salford Quays, potentially 
with a quality bus transit scheme being developed 
initially; and

• A new footbridge from the Crescent across the River 
Irwell, enabling The Meadow and Peel Park to act as 
a key green space in the City Centre and forming part 
of the wider Irwell River Park. 

Policy AP4: Salford Innovation Triangle  
Development within the Salford Innovation 
Triangle shall:

• Support its role as the key focus for innovation-led 
economic growth within the city;

• Maximise the benefits of its three primary anchors:

 » MediaCityUK (see Policy AP2);

 » University of Salford (see Policy ED3);

 » Salford Royal Hospital (see Policy HH3).

• Enable enhancements in the area’s infrastructure, 
including:

 » Delivering the latest digital infrastructure 
throughout the area;

 » Providing a new Metrolink line between Salford 
Quays and Salford Crescent Station, potentially 
with a bus transit scheme being developed 
initially, better connecting the two anchors 
of MediaCityUK and the University of Salford; 
and

 » Expanding the use of low-carbon energy 
systems.

• Contribute to the provision of vibrant places with 
distinctive identities across the Triangle.

Policy CT2: Art and culture  
Development shall:

• Maintain and, where appropriate, enhance the 
provision of cultural activities and facilities across 
the city, including workspaces and studios; and

• In the case of major developments, where 
practicable and appropriate to the location, 
incorporate cultural activities (which may include the 
provision of public realm capable of hosting events 
and performances, as well as cultural space within 
buildings).

The temporary use of sites and premises for cultural 
activities, particularly in locations where they can help to 
animate the public realm, and the provision of public art 
will be supported.

If a development would potentially result in conflict 
between a cultural activity and another use, especially in 
terms of noise, then the development responsible for the 
change must secure the implementation of appropriate 
mitigation before it is completed (known as the ‘agent of 
change’ principle).

Appendix A, Planning Policy Review
Local Planning Policy

P
age 123



Final Crescent Development Framework January 2021

206 207

Policy H1: Type of housing  
Individual new residential developments shall contribute 
to the provision of a broad mix of housing options across 
Salford and within the local area, ensuring that identified 
housing needs can be met. This includes:

• Within City Centre Salford, Ordsall Waterfront, Salford 
Quays and the other town centres, incorporating 
ground floor duplexes and other larger dwellings 
where practicable that enable a wider range of 
households to live in these locations; and

• Within the rest of the city, providing at least 80% of 
the net increase in dwellings in the form of houses, 
with a lower proportion of houses only being 
acceptable where:

 » The proportion of houses, and other dwelling 
types with at least three bedrooms and private 
amenity space, is still being maximised as far as 
possible; and

 » At least one of the following apply:

 » It can be clearly demonstrated that the site 
has distinct characteristics that make a 
higher proportion of houses inappropriate 

Policy H3: Housing density 
New residential development shall achieve the 
minimum densities in the table below:

Lower densities will only be acceptable where they can 
be clearly justified by:

• Local housing market issues, such as a 
demonstrable need for a particular type of housing 
that cannot be delivered at a higher density and 
would otherwise not be met; or

• Site-specific issues, such as the design context 
and any potential impact on the wider landscape 
or townscape including heritage assets and their 
setting.

Policy ED3: University of Salford  
The continued enhancement of the facilities and 
campuses of the University of Salford will be supported.

Development proposals for the university shall:

• Form part of a comprehensive development 
strategy that will ensure that the continued 
evolution of the university estate is properly 
coordinated and managed;

• Support an increase in the proportion of staff, 
students and visitors who access the university, 
and move between its campuses, by public 
transport, cycling and walking;

• Take advantage of opportunities for greening the 
campus environment; and

• Seek to promote links between business sectors 
and the university’s skills and research strengths in 
support of the university’s Industrial Collaboration 
Zone aspirations, with the further enhancement of 
the Salford Innovation Park providing a particular 
opportunity in this regard. 

Development proposals for the Peel Park and Frederick 
Road campus shall:

• Significantly enhance the overall attractiveness 
of the campus to students, residents and visitors 
in terms of the quality of new built development, 
public realm and the overall vibrancy of the area;

• Improve the physical and functional integration of 
the campus with its surroundings, through working 
with partners to improve connectivity with the 
wider City Centre and enhancing key shared access 
points into the campus and other facilities such as 
Peel Park;

• Enhance pedestrian and cycling routes through the 
campus and onwards to surrounding areas. The line 
of the Manchester Bolton and Bury canal provides 
an opportunity to open up new green infrastructure 
through the campus;

• Minimise the negative impacts of traffic and parking 
within the campus and on the surrounding area, and 
significantly reduce the amount of land used for car 
parking; and

• Contribute towards the development of a Cultural 
Gateway, focused around Salford Museum and Art 
Gallery and Fire Station Square, with the latter being 
animated by new cultural and food and drink uses.

Policy HH2: Development and health 
All development shall support an improvement in 
public health and a reduction in health inequalities, 
including by:

1) Minimising adverse impacts on health;

2) Providing a healthy living and working environment;

3) Supporting healthy lifestyles;

4) Promoting social and economic inclusion; and

5) Ensuring good access to a full range of health facilities.

Health impact assessments will be required for 
development proposals that the city council considers 
would have the potential to have a significant adverse 
impact on health and wellbeing. Health impact 
assessments shall:

I) Appraise the potential positive and negative impacts 
on health and wellbeing, both on end users and the local 
population;

II) Consider the impacts on different groups, taking into 
account that some groups will be more vulnerable to 
negative impacts; and

III) Set out actions to maximise positive impacts, and 
minimise and mitigate adverse impacts, on health and 
wellbeing, having regard to the most affected groups.

Development that would have an unacceptable impact 
on health or wellbeing will not be permitted.

or impracticable to provide, such as financial 
viability, flood risk or design context;

 » The development provides specialist 
accommodation, such as for older people, or 
there is a demonstrable need for different types 
of dwellings; or

 » The minimum density requirements in Policy H3 
can only be met through a higher proportion of 
apartments.

Appendix A, Planning Policy Review
Local Planning Policy

P
age 124



Final Crescent Development Framework January 2021

208 209

In particular, the location and concentration of the 
following types of development will be carefully 
controlled to avoid possible adverse impacts on health 
and wellbeing:

A) Hot food takeaways;

B) Off-licences;

C) Facilities that encourage smoking, for example 
smoking shelters and shisha lounges; and

D) Payday lenders, betting shops and amusement 
arcades. 

Where uses identified in points A-D above can be 
justified, these shall be located away from places 
that are regularly frequented by younger people. The 
proximity to other community uses where the residents 
can be vulnerable will also be considered.

Policy A1: Supporting sustainable transport 
Development shall:

• Help to reduce the overall need to travel through its 
location, density and mix of uses;

• Enable a modal shift towards more sustainable 
forms of transport such as walking, cycling and 
public transport;

• Minimise any adverse impacts on transport 
networks; and

• Be phased with the provision of sufficient transport 
infrastructure and services.

Policy A2: Transport hierarchy and sustainable streets 
Development and transport infrastructure schemes shall:

1) Be located and designed to promote the following 
hierarchy (highest priority listed first), helping to 
maximise the use of those modes towards the top of 
the hierarchy, whilst ensuring appropriate access for 
emergency vehicles at all times and taking account of 
the needs of all users (including those with impaired 
mobility and their carers) and the function of the street:

• Pedestrians;

• Cyclists;

• Public transport users;

• Commercial deliveries and specialist service vehicles 
(e.g. waste collection, taxis/private hire vehicles);

• Other motor traffic.

2) Support the delivery of more sustainable streets, 
taking into account the wider function of the street, 
including by:

• Making it easier and more attractive to walk, 
cycle and use public transport, which may involve 
the reallocation of existing road space and the 
introduction of additional wayfinding signage and 
crossing points;

• Providing varied spaces for people to meet, linger 
and rest, and for children to play, enabling greater 
social interaction;

• Incorporating high levels of green infrastructure 
designed to bring people closer to nature, enhance 
biodiversity, enable the movement of wildlife, soak 
up pollutants, reduce flood risk, and improve quality 
of life; and

• Supporting local distinctiveness and identity through 
features and uses that provide visual interest and 
activity.

Policy A4: Public transport  
In order to manage the travel demand from 
development, the following public transport schemes will 
be supported, and new development shall be consistent 
with and, where appropriate, facilitate them:

1) The expansion of the Metrolink system in Salford, 
including:

• The extension of the Trafford Park line to the AJ Bell 
Stadium and Port Salford;

• A new Metrolink line connecting Salford Quays and 
Salford Crescent Station, improving sustainable 
transport access to Salford Quays and its integration 
with the City Centre and the rail network. Initially, it 
is expected that a quality bus transit scheme will be 
delivered in this location, to be transformed into a 
Metrolink line in the longer term;

• Investigating the potential to convert rail lines to 
tram-train use and considering how accessibility can 
be maximised having regard to heavy and light rail 
solutions.

2) Investigating the potential to convert rail lines to 
tram-train use and considering how accessibility can 
be maximised having regard to heavy and light rail 
solutions

3) The significant enhancement of public transport 
facilities within City Centre Salford and improved 
connections with the wider City Centre, including:

• The development of further public transport 
links into the City Centre’s existing rail stations, 
employment, cultural and leisure opportunities;

• The continued improvement of Salford Central 
Station as the main western rail gateway to the 
central business district of the City Centre, including 
through works which enable more services and 
longer trains to stop at the station;

• The transformation of Salford Crescent Station into a 
major public transport interchange for rail, Metrolink 
and bus services, with the continued improvement of 
the station itself as a key rail facility serving Chapel 
Street, The Crescent, the University of Salford and 
Pendleton, and the investigation into the potential 
to increase the number of platforms. 

4) The development of new and improved public 
transport interchanges, focusing particularly on the town 
centres and rail stations. 

5) The enhancement of the city’s rail stations, particularly 
in terms of passenger facilities and disabled access. 

6) The electrification of the city’s rail lines.

7) The further expansion of rapid transit routes along the 
A580 East Lancashire Road and elsewhere within the city, 
particularly where this improves the accessibility of key 
employment and leisure locations. 

8) The development of an improved local bus network, 
including the investigation of opportunities for bus 
priority where appropriate.

Policy EG1: Sustainable energy  
All developments shall accord with the following energy 
hierarchy (in order of preference):

1) Minimise energy demand;

2) Maximise energy efficiency;

3) Utilise renewable energy;

4) Utilise low carbon energy; and

5) Utilise other energy sources.

The retrofitting of existing buildings with measures to 
reduce energy consumption will be encouraged.

Working towards the target that all new development 
shall be zero net carbon from 2028, the principles of 
the energy hierarchy shall be adopted to achieve the 
following standards:

• All new build residential development: Exceed the 
fabric energy efficiency required under Part L of 
the Building Regulations 2013 by 19% and meet the 
standard required by any subsequent revision to Part 
L; and

• New build non-residential development of 1,000 sqm 
or more: At least BREEAM very good and meet the 
standard required by any subsequent revision to Part 
L of the Building Regulations.

District heating network development areas

Within district heat network development areas shown 
on the Policies map, development (including new build, 
conversions and changes of use) involving ten or more 
dwellings and/or over 1,000 sqm of non-residential 
floorspace shall connect into the heat network, or be 
designed to do so, unless it can be demonstrated that 
there are more effective alternatives for minimising 
carbon emissions, or such connection is impracticable or 
financially unviable.

Development and energy proposals that would generate 
significant surplus or waste heat shall take all practicable 
measures to utilise that heat to meet local energy needs, 
including as part of an existing or proposed district 
heating network.

Policy D1: Design principles  
All development shall achieve a high design quality, 
consistent with the ten characteristics set out in the 
National Design Guide (or any subsequent amendments):

• Context: enhances the surroundings

• Identity: attractive and distinctive

• Built form: a coherent pattern of development

• Movement: accessible and easy to move around

• Nature: enhanced and optimised

• Public spaces: safe, social and inclusive

• Uses: mixed and integrated

• Homes and Buildings: functional, health and 
sustainable

Appendix A, Planning Policy Review
Local Planning Policy

P
age 125



Final Crescent Development Framework January 2021

210 211

• Resources: efficient and resilient

• Lifespan: made to last

Consistency must also be achieved with the following 
two additional principles in the interests of achieving the 
objectives of this plan as set out in Chapter 3:

• Active design: buildings and spaces that promote 
physical activity as part of everyday life

• Socially inclusive: a place for everyone, that 
promotes social interaction.

All Design and Access statements shall clearly explain 
how development delivers all of the above principles, 
and the other design-related policies of this plan.

Developments that raise significant design issues will be 
expected, where appropriate, to undergo a local design 
review before any planning application is determined.

Policy D2: Local character and distinctiveness 
Development shall protect, enhance and respond to 
any positive character and distinctiveness of the local 
area, and contribute towards local identity. It shall 
be a positive addition to the surrounding area, being 
integrated within the townscape and landscape.

In particular, development shall have regard to the 
following characteristics of the local area:

• Topography and landscape features;

• Historic assets and features, including views of and 
from them;

• Pattern, size and arrangement of street blocks, plots 
and buildings, including building lines;

• Scale and shape of buildings, including height, 
massing, silhouettes and roofscapes;

• Vertical and horizontal rhythms, for example 
created by window arrangements and architectural 
composition;

• Materials, boundary treatments and landscaping;

• Vistas, panoramas and views of natural and built 
landmarks; and

• Memories and associations including an area’s main 
(or former) uses, local traditions, social history and 
cultural expression.

New buildings shall use a consistent architectural 
style, individual elements adding up to a coherent 
whole, designed to relate to the positive context of 
its surroundings. Buildings shall have a sufficient 
texture, depth and detailing to provide visual interest, 
particularly at street level where buildings will need to 
relate to a human scale.

Where it is deemed that a deliberate contrast to certain 
characteristics would benefit the design, or to create a 
development that is highly sustainable, the development 
shall still relate to the points above and justify any non-
compliant areas.

Where there is no discernible or well-developed local 
character, developments shall contribute to the creation 
of a distinctive, integrated and coherent place.

Policy D4: Spaces  
All spaces shall be accessible, where appropriate, to 
everyone who wants to use them and be designed to 
have a clear purpose and role, which is apparent to all 
potential users.

Developments and other proposals shall:

• Take opportunities to incorporate new spaces and 
respond positively to existing spaces;

• Provide appropriate levels of activity, particularly at 
ground floor level, that encourage a variety of uses 
in spaces and offer the natural surveillance required 
to make those spaces useable and safe;

• Carefully place street furniture, signage and other 
objects within public spaces, to avoid clutter and 
unnecessary physical or visual obstacles, responding 
to the nature and use of the space in question and in 
particular the needs of visually impaired persons;

• Make appropriate use of public and private spaces 
at all times, including the creation of sensitive 
lighting schemes that enable evening use without an 
unacceptable impact on residential amenity and the 
visually impaired;

• Provide shelter where people are likely to gather, 
for example through the location and design of 
buildings and landscaping;

• Minimise surface car parking and ensure that it does 
not dominate, or detract from, the streetscene or 
waterside locations;

Appendix A, Planning Policy Review
Local Planning Policy

• Include provision for the long-term maintenance 
and management of any public spaces that form 
part of, or are needed by, the overall development, in 
accordance with Policies GI1 and BG2; and

• Incorporate public and private spaces that are 
integral to the proposed development.

he design of public spaces shall be consistent with efforts 
to maximise green infrastructure, in accordance with 
Policy GI1.

Public spaces shall connect to walking and cycling 
networks and be designed to respond to desire lines.

Boundary treatments may be required where private 
spaces adjoin public spaces and shall be carefully 
designed to respond to local character, utilising green 
infrastructure and providing visual permeability where 
compatible with the functions of the adjoining public and 
private spaces.

Policy HE1: Heritage protection  
Salford’s heritage assets and their setting will be 
conserved, and their enhancement encouraged, ensuring 
that they continue to make a positive contribution to the 
character and identity of the city’s neighbourhoods.

The level of protection afforded to any individual 
heritage asset will reflect:

• Whether it is a designated or non-designated 
heritage asset;

• The nature, extent and level of its significance, 
having regard to its architectural, historic, artistic 
and/or archaeological interest;

• The degree to which the setting and significance 
of other heritage assets is reliant on it and their 
relationship to each other and the individual 
heritage asset; and

• The contribution that it makes to the character and 
identity of the local area and Salford more generally 
including the following key elements:

 » The earliest evidence of human activity, such as 
the Iron Age promontory fort in Cadishead;

 » The city’s Medieval beginnings, found 
particularly in City Centre Salford;

 » The city’s industrial origins, such as Islington Mill 
where textiles were manufactured;

 » Infrastructure of national and international 
significance, such as the Bridgewater Canal, the 
Manchester Ship Canal, the Manchester, Bolton 
and Bury Canal, the Manchester-Liverpool rail 
line, the former Salford Docks (now Salford 
Quays) and Barton Aerodrome;

 » The city’s mid-19th Century development, such as 
the high-status villa housing and parkland found 
in Broughton, along the Crescent, in Ellesmere 
Park and at Buile Hill Park;

 » The nineteenth century institutional and civic 
buildings, such as former town halls, educational 
buildings, public baths and theatres;

 » The city’s social history, such as Bexley Square 
and Kersal Moor where major public gatherings 
of historic significance took place 

 » Harm to heritage assets shall be minimised as 
far as practicable. The acceptability of any such 
harm will be determined in accordance with the 
requirements of the National Planning Policy 
Framework.

Where harm to heritage assets is unavoidable, 
appropriate compensation shall be provided by better 
revealing the significance of the heritage assets, securing 
repairs to them, improving public access to them, and 
providing publicly accessible information about them. 
Where a heritage asset will be, or has been, lost or 
covered up, then the development design should make 
an appropriate reference to it.

Policy HE3: A positive future for heritage assets  
The positive use of heritage assets will be encouraged, 
helping to ensure that they are appropriately 
maintained. The use secured should be consistent with 
the protection and enhancement of the asset’s heritage 
significance and its sustainable long-term use. 

The original or a historically significant use will typically 
be the most appropriate long-term use for a heritage 
asset, and where a proposal departs from this then the 
applicant will need to demonstrate why it is not feasible 
to retain or restore that use original/historic use.

Uses that provide opportunities for heritage learning 
and public access to and appreciation of heritage will be 
looked on more favourably.

P
age 126



Final Crescent Development Framework January 2021

212 213

Policy HE6: Canals  
The canals in Salford will be protected as important 
heritage assets, including:

• The Bridgewater Canal;

• Worsley Navigable Levels;

• The Manchester, Bolton and Bury Canal and its 
former line;

• Fletcher’s Canal and its former line;

• The Manchester Ship Canal.

In the case of the Manchester, Bolton and Bury Canal and 
Fletcher’s Canal:

• Development alongside the line of the canal 
shall facilitate its restoration or, where this is not 
practicable, provide open space incorporating 
walking and cycling routes and heritage 
interpretation features along its line so that the 
potential for future restoration is retained and 
people can appreciate the history of the canal; and

• Development that would prevent or significantly 
hinder the future restoration of the canal or its 
towpath will not be permitted.

Policy GI1: Development and green infrastructure  
Development shall protect and enhance the green 
infrastructure network in Salford by helping to maximise 
its:

• Extent, whilst having regard to the development 
needs of the city;

• Interconnectedness, enabling individual pieces 
of green infrastructure to deliver greater benefits 
through links to the wider network;

• Multi-functionality, whilst not detracting from the 
important primary functions of individual pieces of 
green infrastructure; and

• Quality, ensuring that it can meet its various 
functions as effectively as possible.

In complying with the above points, developments shall:

• Respond to the specific location, characteristics 
and surroundings of the site to take opportunities 
to incorporate green infrastructure that can most 
effectively benefit the wider area, for example 
providing sustainable urban drainage systems that 
address identified problems such as flood risk and 
water quality, and deliver environmental and quality 
of life benefits;

• Ensure that green infrastructure is central to the 
design, rather than being relegated to ‘left-over’ 
land;

• Use land and building surfaces creatively to 
maximise on-site green infrastructure provision, 
particularly within areas where there are currently 
major green infrastructure deficits such as City Centre 
Salford and Salford Quays;

• Seek to maximise the benefits, and where 
appropriate public use, of the green infrastructure, 
with an emphasis on promoting healthier 
communities; and

• Ensure that appropriate long-term management 
and maintenance measures are in place for any 
green infrastructure.

Green infrastructure functions 
Appropriate functions of green infrastructure may 
include:

• Providing habitats for plants and animals, 
particularly native species, and corridors and 
stepping stones for their movement;

• Providing opportunities for food production, both 
commercial and non-commercial;

• Mitigating the risks and impacts of flooding;

• Mitigating air, water and noise pollution;

• Providing carbon storage and sequestration;

• Offering relief from high temperatures;

• Providing sport and recreation opportunities;

• Providing space for public events, meeting places 
and quiet contemplation;

• Providing attractive walking, cycling and horse-
riding routes;

• Contributing to the quality of townscapes and 
landscapes, and providing a high-quality setting for 
development;

• Supporting heritage and local identity;

• Separating individual developments and 
settlements;

• Providing an educational resource.

Within the following parts of the city, some of which 
overlap, the provision and improvement of green 
infrastructure shall support and enhance the identified 
priority functions as far as practicable:

• Within flood zones 2 and 3 as identified by the 
Environment Agency, the provision of capacity for 
water storage in the event of a flood;

• Within City Centre Salford, Salford Quays and other 
areas of high-density development, the provision 
of relief from high temperatures, and the efficient 
use of surfaces to maximise the provision of green 
infrastructure including through green roofs, green 
walls and street trees;

Appendix A, Planning Policy Review
Local Planning Policy
Appendix A, Planning Policy Review
Local Planning Policy

• Within areas of poor average resident health, the 
provision of opportunities for physical activity;

• Within Chat Moss, the storage of carbon;

• Within the Biodiversity Heartland, the wider Great 
Manchester Wetlands Nature Improvement Area, 
and areas that do not meet the standards relating 
to access to strategic and local natural greenspace 
(see Policy R1), the provision of habitats, movement 
corridors and stepping stones for plants and 
animals; and

• Within and around the waterway network and other 
water bodies, measures to achieve ‘good’ status of 
the water body in accordance with Policy WA1 and 
encourage movement of species.

P
age 127



Final Crescent Development Framework January 2021

214 215

Crescent Development 
Framework 
May 2014
Prepared by Salford City Council to set out a new vision 
and objectives for the area and provide guidance for its 
future. It outlines that the process of change in the area 
will continue over time and the framework is intended 
to inspire and guide development of The Crescent while 
allowing the necessary flexibility to meet changing 
circumstances. 

It sets out the following objectives; 

• Increase the number of residents living in the area; 

• Encourage a range of housing types and tenures to 
be developed in the area; 

• Provide new opportunities for employment taking 
advantage of the proximity to the University; 

• Improve accessibility to public transport; 

• Maximise the benefit of traffic calming The 
Crescent to improve connectivity with surrounding 
areas and improve permeability within the area; 

• Make The Crescent itself the city high street and 
focus for development; 

• Create new urban spaces and retain and enhance 
existing green space; 

• Enhance the role of the area as a visitor destination 
based around Salford Museum and Art Gallery; 

• Deliver projects to improve the quality of recreation 
assets including Irwell River Park, The Meadows 
and Peel Park; 

• Support the vision and objectives of the University 
of Salford to achieve a transformational change in 
the Peel Park and Frederick Road campuses which 
will be a key driver of regeneration in the area. 

The Framework divides the area into four ‘Area 
Development Zones’, namelt Frederick Road ‘Innovation 
Park’; The University of Salford Campus; The Parks;  New 
Windsor. 

Shaping Central Salford’s 
Spaces and Places – Public 
Realm Handbook 
February 2009
This document is supported by CABE Space and prepared 
by Salford City Council. The handbook builds on the 
principles set out in the Salford City Council urban design 
guide, Shaping Salford and defines the standard for 
those working with the built environment. The Council 
has adopted this handbook and it will be used to set a 
benchmark for public realm improvements across the 
city. 

By adopting the standard the guide contributes 
to creating public spaces that are appealing and 
become well loved and used spaces at the heart of the 
community. 

Salford City Council – 
Supplementary Planning 
Document – Design and Crime 
July 2006
The SPD has been prepared to give guidance on the 
design and layout of the physical environment so as to 
reduce crime, the fear of crime and anti-social behaviour 
for the whole of Salford. 

Appendix A, Planning Policy Review
Local Planning Policy
Appendix A, Planning Policy Review
Local Planning Policy
Appendix A, Planning Policy Review
Local Planning Policy

The document sets out how planning obligations will 
be secured by the Council. A key principle underpinning 
the approach to securing planning obligations set out 
within this document is the need to have regard to 
development viability. 

The Council’s approach to securing planning obligations 
is therefore based around the following priorities; 

• Affordable housing;

• Open space; 

• Education; 

• Transport; 

• Public Realm; 

• Other contributions – these are considered on a site 
by site basis.

Planning obligations associated with affordable housing 
differ depending on the spatial area a site lies within. The 
residential value area has been assign by the Council to 
reflect the different land values throughout the borough. 

The document provides detail on how the different 
obligations will be calculated and applied to different 
application types. 

Salford City – Supplementary Planning 
Document – Planning Obligations 
December 2019

P
age 128



Final Crescent Development Framework January 2021

216 217

Salford City Council – 
Supplementary Planning 
Document – Salford 
Greenspace Strategy 
January 2019
Salford City Council has undertaken a comprehensive 
review of the greenspace strategy supplementary 
planning document within the framework established 
via the relevant saved policies of the Salford Unitary 
Development Plan and the Salford Draft Local Plan 
relating to the issues of open space and recreation. 

The document outlines the importance of greenspaces 
to the borough and outlines the current issues with the 
existing space. 

The objectives of the SPD are to ensure that; 

• All households are within an appropriate distance 
based on the walking distances of the individual 
local recreation standards; 

• Greenspaces are interlinked and accessible by 
attractive walking and cycling routes; 

• Publicly accessible greenspaces are multi-functional, 
of a high quality, desirable and well-maintained; 

• Greenspaces meet the diverse needs of potential 
users, including those with mobility difficulties; 

• Greenspaces are safe and well-used; 

• Greenspaces do not detract from the amenity of the 
surrounding area. 

The SPD will be used to help assess and determine 
planning application and is intended to guide architects, 
developers, landscape architects and urban designers 
in designing out crime. It is important that community 
safety considerations should be an inherent part of the 
design process and should inform development at an 
early stage. 

Salford City Council - 
Supplementary Planning 
Document – Natural 
Conservation and Biodiversity 
adopted 19th July 2006
The SPD expands on the policies of the Unitary 
Development Plan relating to issues of nature 
conservation and biodiversity and seeks to ensure that 
all stakeholders have a clear understanding of how 
those policies should be implemented and their desired 
outcome. 

The overarching goal of the SPD is to ensure that there 
is no net loss of nature conservation assets and where 
appropriate there is an improvement in them. 

Salford City Council - 
Supplementary Planning 
Document – Design – 
Shaping Salford  
March 2008
The document is intended to be used with other local 
and national policy documents to guide the design of 
Salford’s buildings and spaces. 

Shaping Salford reflects the need to design in a way that 
allows the city to support its population socially and 
economically, working with and inviting those affected 
into an inclusive decision making process. Equally, 
development must contribute to the creation of an 
environmentally sustainable city supporting the natural 
environment minimising the effects of, and being more 
adaptable to, the potential impact of climate change.

Sets out a series of expectations for the city; 

• Buildings of exemplary design quality;

• Stimulating places to live work and play;

• Inspiring places to study and worship;

• Inviting, sustainable and environmentally friendly 
places;

• To be the best and for other towns and cities to 
follow our lead.

Greengate, Salford – 
Regeneration Strategy 
February 2018
Document sets out the growth which the Greengate 
area has seen in recent years and outlines the strong 
development pipeline which is expected to be delivered 
in the next ten years across a number of high density 
schemes. 

The regeneration strategy for the area has been updated 
to reflect what has already been delivered and to 
highlight the opportunities offered by underutilised land 
such as the surface car parks, old industrial premises and 
vacant railway arches. 

Greengate sits in the heart of City Centre Salford where 
the vision to 2040 is; for it to become a distinctive place 
to live, work and visit, proud to be more Brooklyn than 
Manhattan, where people and businesses, from near and 
far, can find the space they need to thrive, prosper, create 
and connect.

Appendix A, Planning Policy Review
Local Planning Policy

P
age 129



Final Crescent Development Framework January 2021

218 219

Appendix A, Planning Policy Review
Local Planning Policy

Manchester City Council, 
Salford City Council, Trafford 
Metropolitan Borough Council 
– Planning Guidance, 
Irwell City Park 
March 2008
This Planning Guidance relates to the intention to 
establish the Irwell City Park as an exciting and unique 
waterfront location within the Regional Centre. 

The transformation will create dramatic public spaces, 
new waterside environments and new connections 
between the riverside and local neighbourhoods and 
businesses. There will be new high quality commercial 
and residential properties and leisure uses along 
the riverside to provide attractions and activity. The 
biodiversity and environmental quality of the river will be 
significantly improved. 

The River Irwell was once one of the most important 
commercial and recreational waterways in the North 
West. Following its steady decline in the early twentieth 
century as the industrialisation and transport progress 
of Manchester and Salford changed the face of the 
river banks, the strategic importance of the Irwell as a 
valuable asset has again become apparent in recent 
years. The benefits in terms of its historical legacy as well 
as its huge potential to act as the physical manifestation 
of the economic and social resurgence of the Greater 
Manchester Regional Centre are enormous.

The three Local Authorities of Manchester City Council, 
Salford City Council and Trafford Metropolitan Borough 
Council together with the Central Salford Urban 
Regeneration Company have recognised this potential 
and are now looking to turn the tide on years of neglect 
and embrace the River Irwell as a fundamental part of 
the Regional Centre’s heritage and a key component to 
its future economic and social growth. 

Salford City Council – Planning 
Guidance – Pendleton 
March 2009
The purpose of the guidance is to review Pendleton under 
a comprehensive process of transformational change 
to make it a place of choice for people seeking to live or 
invest in Salford. 

Present communities will be retained and expanded and 
other forms of development attracted.

New and different forms of housing will act as key drivers 
in delivering the area’s regeneration.

Guidance seeks to provide a clear framework for the 
development and regeneration of the Pendleton and 
Langworthy areas until 2025 to enable this revival 
process to take place. It aims to support and complement 
the Private Finance Initiative programme for improving 
council housing in the area as well as being the catalyst 
for restructuring the housing market.

Salford City Council 
– Salford Central Development 
Framework 
May 2009
This Development Framework promotes a comprehensive 
approach to regenerating Salford Central to ensure 
that the vision is delivered and that Salford is indeed 
transformed from the ‘World’s first industrial city to city 
beautiful’.

The Development Framework builds on the policy 
guidelines outlined in the Planning Guidance to provide 
a spatial configuration for new development within 
Salford Central. The Planning Guidance identifies five 
character areas within the Salford Central area. The 
Development Framework indicates how these character 
areas may be better connected and integrated, one with 
another, and with the surrounding area. It also sets out 
a new urban structure of routes and spaces through 
Salford Central and identifies appropriate uses to 
animate them. The scale and form of new development 
has a major influence on the character of an area and 
the Development Framework sets the parameters for 
building height, massing and their relationship to the 
routes and spaces within the area.

Salford City Council – Planning 
Guidance – Salford Central – 
March 2008
This guidance has been prepared to ensure that the 
whole of the Salford Central area benefits from the 
investment and expansion of Manchester City Centre. 

The vision for Salford Central is to comprehensively 
regenerate this important area of the City of Salford and 
the Regional Centre to help diversify its economic base 
and bring in new activity. The transformation will create 
a distinctive new part of the city centre, with new high 
quality commercial and residential properties and leisure 
uses, new urban environments, dramatic public spaces 
and new connections to the heart of the city centre.

The challenge is to create the conditions to enable 
successful regeneration to occur over the next few 
years and to make sure that all the area benefits from 
the current expansion of the Regional Centre – this 
expansion is a significant opportunity which the city 
council needs to maximise. The city council and the 
Central Salford Urban Regeneration Company (URC) will 
be driving this future transformational change of the 
Chapel Street area to create a vibrant and modern part 
of the Regional Centre – Salford Central.

P
age 130



Final Crescent Development Framework January 2021

220 221

Appendix A, Planning Policy Review
Local Planning Policy

This document sets out the results of a study of the 
Crescent Conservation Area. The Crescent Conservation 
Area, which was first designated in 1981, and extended 
in 2008, covers an area of 11.42 ha (28.26 acres), includes 
30 listed buildings and monuments and lies on the A6 
corridor adjacent to the River Irwell, approximately 
2 kilometres west of Manchester city centre. The 
Development Framework area encompasses a large part 
of the Conservation Area.

The area derives its name from the crescent of 14 
Grade II listed Georgian town houses, now converted to 
mostly office and commercial uses, that were built by 
entrepreneurs and businessmen who wished to reside 
relatively close to their town centre businesses at the 
beginnings of the industrial revolution.

The area still contains some fine 19th and early 20th 
century town houses and civic buildings of local 
significance. In recent years, the University of Salford has 
become a major landowner of some of the finest period 
buildings - such as the Peel Building - and has carried 
out a steady redevelopment of sites and rejuvenation of 
existing buildings since the late 1960’s. The expansion of 
the A6 corridor in 1964 has also had a significant impact 
on the cohesion of the conservation area. 

SUMMARY OF SPECIAL INTEREST
Civic, Educational and Cultural Character
The Crescent Conservation Area derives its underlying 
character from four key phases of development. The 
early 19th Century origins of the area are expressed in 
the remaining terraces of houses along the shallow 
riverside curve of the Crescent and around Acton Square. 
These were built when the Crescent was a fashionable 
suburb for the wealthy, attracted by extensive views 
across the meandering River Irwell. Later, in the mid-
19th Century, the Crescent was the location for landmark 
social and cultural reforms. One of the earliest public 
local museums in the country was established here 
along with the very first free public library in 1850. In 
1846, Peel Park was opened as one of a pioneering 
Manchester/Salford initiative of three public parks. These 
were the first to be established in a major industrial city. 
As municipal powers and responsibilities increased in 
the late 19th and early 20th Centuries, the development 
of the area as a civic enclave intensified. 

The Salford Royal Technical School (present Peel 
Building) opened in 1896, and the development of the 
Fire Station (1903) and Salford Police Headquarters (1957) 
on sites on the opposite side of the Crescent further 
cemented the civic character of the space. Each period 
built new structures to meet new social and functional 
needs according to its ideals of architectural style and 
embellishment, contributing to the stylistic variety and 
range of high quality building materials that characterise 
the conservation area.

Through various name and status changes the Technical 
School became a college of advanced technology in 
1956, and the cornerstone of the University of Salford in 
1967. These educational developments at the Crescent 
had a profound effect on the character of the area. 
Older buildings were taken into college use, and a series 
of steel frame and glass teaching and administrative 
blocks – notably the Maxwell Building of 1959-60 - were 
constructed on part of Peel Park and on redeveloped 
terraced villa sites along the Crescent.

Pedestrian Routes and Public Spaces
Permeability is part of the character of the conservation 
area. The Crescent is part of the A6 main arterial route to 
the north and west linking Salford and Manchester with 
the national motorway network and adjacent towns. 
This road provides a spine at the centre of a pedestrian 
walkway network allowing free access throughout the 
conservation area. To the north of the main road there 
are a number of walkways between the educational 
and civic establishments, with links into and through 
Peel Park to the northern University campus, Frederick 
Road in the north, and Meadow Road across the Irwell in 
the east. To the south of the A6, there is free pedestrian 
access between the squares of Albion Place and Acton 
Square that offer quiet resting areas. To the rear of the 
former Fire Station access can be gained to the attractive 
Fire Station Square, although this is a private residential 
area. It is anticipated that the proposed reinstatement 
of the Manchester, Bolton and Bury Canal will offer an 
opportunity to provide additional pedestrian links within 
the area. Work on the Irwell City Park initiative may 
improve links between Peel Park, the adjacent riverside 
walkway and the areas to the east of the river.

Retention of Original Character
Strong continuity of civic and educational use is a 
characteristic of the area. Where houses and civic 
buildings have been reused, their former uses are still 
apparent, as their exteriors have been altered little. 
The Crescent retains its mix of residential, civic and 
educational character despite changes in the function 
of buildings such as the Fire Station and former police 
headquarters, and commercial conversions of former 
houses. The continued presence of the Salford Museum 
and Art Gallery (SMAG) and Local History Library in 
the building that was purpose-built to accommodate 
these cultural uses is a key element in the retention of 
this character and the historical continuity of the site. 
A strong sense of place is created by the architectural 
vigour and substantial scale of the buildings, their 
relationship with the river, and the sense of civic pride 
signifi ed by the qualities of the spaces between them. 
Together these elements create a readily identifiable 
gateway to the city centre from the west.

Definition of the Special Character 
of the Conservation Area
The Crescent Conservation Area has a civic, educational 
and cultural character arising from its development 
over the early 19th to mid 20th Centuries for high status 
housing and pioneering artistic, cultural and educational 
initiatives. In the vicinity of the A6 the buildings have 
strong urban, even monumental, qualities, being set on a 
consistent back of pavement building line and arranged 
formally in squares linked by the central spine of The 
Crescent. A distinctive urban grain of linear plots aligned 
perpendicular to both street and squares defi nes the 
area, with buildings typically addressing the street. With 
certain exceptions, there is a general harmony of heights, 
scale and massing within and between the spaces of the
conservation area.

Buildings display a variety of architectural styles, 
reflecting the long period over which the area was 
developed. There is a strong red brick-built character to 
the conservation area, which promotes visual consistency 
and colour harmony, unifying the range of building 
types and architectural styles. Local sandstone is used 
in a restrained way for dressings and carved decoration, 
while ornamental terracotta is employed extensively 
in lettering and sculpture on the Edwardian buildings. 
Windows and doors display traditional materials and 

joinery patterns. This limited palette of traditional 
materials and high level of craftsmanship contrasts 
with system-built modern structures in steel, brick and 
glass, while the symbolic sculptural elements of the Peel 
Building display scenes of activities originally taught 
there and allegories of the arts and sciences, linking the 
old and new buildings of the University in their continued 
common purpose of promoting learning and culture.

Green spaces are important in expressing the civic 
qualities of the urban layout. Formal spaces are 
enlivened with tree planting and the former houses of 
the early 19th Century are set behind small front gardens 
with railings. Both tree foliage and the generous lawn 
to University Square offer a softer foil to the buildings of 
the conservation area, and contrast with its formal urban 
qualities. The riverside setting of the conservation area is 
enhanced by the green spaces of the Meadows and Peel 
Park and views over these open areas from the elevated 
crest of the river valley are a key feature of the character 
of the area. Other important views are those along the 
Crescent itself, views into squares from the Crescent 
and panoramic views across the River Irwell towards 
Manchester from Peel Park. These feature the iconic 
arrangement of St. John’s Cathedral spire and the
domed bell tower of St. Philip’s Church in an historic 
Salford skyline.

Issues to be Tackled through Regeneration
The CAA identifies a number of issues to be tackled in 
the area through regeneration and planning control, 
including:

• Quality of new developments
• Vacant land
• Building condition and use
• Traffic Impact
• Public Realm, Green Space And Environmental 

Maintenance
• Access
• Highway Clutter
• Pedestrian Experience of the Crescent

‘At Risk’ Register
Historic England has recently advised that the Crescent 
Conservation Area is on the ‘at risk’ register (Heritage at 
Risk register, last updated October 2020).

Salford City Council – Crescent Conservation Area Appraisal 
May 2008

P
age 131



Final Crescent Development Framework January 2021

222 223

This document sets out the results of a study of the 
Adelphi Bexley Square Conservation Area. The Adelphi 
Bexley Square Conservation Area was designated in 1978 
and covers an area of 6.70 ha (16.58 acres). It lies on the 
Chapel Street (A6) corridor close to the City of Manchester 
and contains 12 listed buildings and structures.

Historically, the area lies immediately to the west of 
the original settlement of Salford and is significant in 
its representation of the rapid urban expansion that 
occurred as a result of the industrial revolution.

The area still contains fine period examples of town 
houses built by entrepreneurs and businessmen and 
civic buildings, which catered for an increased demand 
for public building and for better administration. 
The industry that once dominated this area has now 
ceased to exist, although the former Islington Mill still 
remains. In recent years the conservation area has been 
improved considerably through a combined programme 
comprising demolition of redundant buildings, on-going 
redevelopment and creation of new open spaces and 
walkways.

SUMMARY OF SPECIAL INTEREST

Civic Quality
The Adelphi Bexley Square Conservation Area derives 
its underlying character from the planned grid layout 
format, which occurred during the 19th Century. This 
is centred around two main areas, St Philip’s Church 
and Bexley Square. In addition the civic quality of the 
buildings including classically designed buildings fronting 
Chapel Street (A6) give the area its character. 

The sense of place created by these buildings and the 
spaces between them signify the civic pride of the area. 
Most former residents of the area and outlying districts 
would have needed to visit such buildings as Salford 
Royal Hospital, the Town Hall, one of the churches or 
the Education Offices as part of their daily life. These 
buildings were, and remain, on the main bus routes on 
the A6 linking Salford and Manchester with the outlying 
districts of Swinton, Worsley, Leigh and beyond.

Pedestrian Walkways And Squares
The character of the area is now enhanced by pedestrian 
walkways with small resting areas between the major 
buildings. Historically, rows of terraced houses were 
located in these spaces, encroaching right up to the rear 
walls of St John’s Cathedral and Salford Town Hall. This 
would have concentrated the atmosphere, with so many 
people living and working in such close proximity. The 
revitalized spaces and tree cover between the buildings 
has improved this aspect of the area. Artwork such as St 
John’s Obelisk to the rear of the Cathedral and the seed 
sculpture to the east of St Philip’s Church give additional 
interest to the area.

Retention Of Original Character
The former uses of the original buildings is still quite 
apparent as their exteriors have been altered little. 
Salford Royal Hospital and the County Court House, 
although now converted to apartments, retain their 
character and still have their royal coats of arms above 
their main doorways. Both St John’s Cathedral
and St Philip’s Church are used regularly by their 
respective congregations. The two remaining public 
houses, the Church Inn and The Oxford, are used 
regularly. The two and three storey offices in and 
adjacent to Bexley Square are also the centre of regular 
pedestrian activity.

Definition of the Special Interest 
of the Conservation Area
The special interest of the conservation area relates to 
its historic interest as a record of Salford’s westward 
expansion along the key eastwest route of Chapel 
Street in the late 18th and early 19th Centuries, and to 
its architectural and townscape qualities. Adelphi has 
a strong civic character resulting from the development 
of civic and ecclesiastical buildings in the early years of 
the 19th Century, and contains buildings of architectural 
merit dating from the 19th and 20th Centuries. These 
refl ect the civic beginnings of the area and the later 
commercial development of Chapel Street. The historic 
route of Chapel Street connects squares and important 
building groups focused around St. Philip’s Church, St. 
John’s Cathedral and the former Town Hall. To the north 

of Chapel Street the formal qualities of the townscape 
are reflected in a grid of pedestrian walkways which 
treats key buildings and public works of art as focal 
points in a composition. 

Views along Chapel Street, views into squares from 
the main route and views along walkways between 
the major building groups link the key spaces of the 
conservation area. Varied and prominent skyline 
features on both the north and south frontages of 
Chapel Street are signifi cant components of these 
views, which connect the conservation area with both 
its immediate and wider setting. The visual dominance 
of the landmark spire of St. John’s Cathedral and the 
bell tower of St. Philip’s Church creates a distinctive 
sense of place.

The formal arrangement of routes and spaces in the 
conservation area is complemented by consistent 
building lines and by formal and decorative boundary 
treatments in the form of walls and railings. Setts and 
fl ags of local stone are high quality traditional paving 
materials which emphasise local distictiveness, and 
which contribute to the qualities of craftsmanship 
embodied in original building materials and 
architectural features within the area. Visual harmony 
results from the use of a limited palette of largely 
natural building materials and this serves to unify 
the multiplicity of building styles from different 
architectural periods. There is also an harmonious 
relationship of scale, height and massing in the 
streetscape. Green spaces and trees are effective foils 
to the urban qualities of the built layout, as well as 
contributing to the formal arrangement of spaces 
themselves in the form of greens and avenues. The 
riverside setting of the conservation area to the west 
forms a soft edge in contrast to the hard-edged 
environs of Chapel Street, and affords views which link 
the historic cityscape with the natural environment of 
the Meadows and banks of the River Irwell.

Chapel Street dominates the conservation area as 
a busy and noisy major traffic route. In contrast, the 
pedestrian-dominated walkways and squares to the 
north are quieter and more tranquil spaces in which 
the quality of both architecture and townscape can be 
savoured. The area is characterised by a mix
of civic, commercial, ecclesiastical and community uses.

Issues to be Tackled through Regeneration
The CAA identifies a number of issues to be tackled in 
the area through regeneration and planning control, 
including:

• Quality of new developments

• Derelict and neglected buildings

• Building condition

• Poor Quality Buildings and Uses

• Vacant Sites

• Traffic Impact

• Unsightly Surface level car parks

Appendix A, Planning Policy Review
Local Planning Policy

Salford City Council – Adelphi Bexley Square 
Conservation Area Appraisal 
July 2007

P
age 132



Final Crescent Development Framework January 2021

224 225

Regeneration 
Context

225224

APPENDIX B

Final Crescent Development Framework January 2021

P
age 133



Final Crescent Development Framework January 2021

226 227

Appendix B, Regeneration Context
Greater Manchester Sub-Regional

Greater Manchester 
Transport Strategy 2040
The Greater Manchester Transport 2040 is a strategy 
prepared by Transport for Greater Manchester (TFGM). 
The vision of the document is to provide ‘World class 
connections that support long-term, sustainable 
economic growth and access to opportunity for all’. 

The strategy proposes a series of interventions which 
range from transformational investment in HS2 and 
new, fast east-west rail connections across the North; 
to establishing Greater Manchester as a modern, 
pedestrian and cycle friendly city-region. The local road 
system to be much more reliable and safer for all users, 
including freight and commercial traffic. And, build on the 
success of the commuter revolution, which Metrolink and 
improved local rail services have brought over the past 
20 years, with the delivery of new and enhanced rapid 
transit links and a transformed local bus network.

The strategy focuses on public transport with the 
interventions seeks to create a truly integrated Greater 
Manchester Transport Network. 

The relevant ambitions of the strategy are as follows; 

• To develop a fully inclusive and affordable sustainable 
transport system for all; 

• To develop a transport system that supports people in 
leading active, healthy lives;

• For Greater Manchester to be known for the quality of 
its urban areas, natural environments with transport 
emissions reduced to near zero, and new transport 
schemes delivering environmental enhancements 
whenever possible;

• To create a comprehensive network of on and off-
road walking and cycling routes that make it easier 
and safer for people to walk and cycle to key local 
destinations, such as local centres, jobs, healthcare 
and education, for leisure purposes and for local public 
transport access; 

• To develop a fully integrated, customer-focused, 
low-emission public transport network, with simple, 
integrated ticketing, that provides an attractive 
and accessible alternative to travelling by car to key 
Greater Manchester destinations;

• To extend the benefits of rapid transit to more areas 
of Greater Manchester and provide the capacity and 
reliability needed to support growth in the economy.

Draft Delivery Plan 
2020-2025
The Draft Delivery Plan is the second in a series 
of delivery plans which ensure that the long-term 
challenges outlines in the 2040 Transport Strategy can 
adapt and respond to emerging trends and priorities. 

It sets out the following aims to achieve by 2025; 

• To end the decline of bus use and stabilise patronage 
at approx. 190m journeys per year.

• To continue the growth in Metrolink through the new 
Trafford Park line and additional tram capacity, and 
reach more than 50m passengers travelling on the 
network per year.

• To support the continued growth in rail use at about 
3% per year so that annual local trips will grow from 
about 40m to about 50m.

• To move significantly towards the Cycling and Walking 
Commissioner’s 10-year goal to double and then 
double again cycling in Greater Manchester.

• Traffic levels (in terms of total vehicle kilometres) 
remaining constant on the local road network, as has 
been the trend in Greater Manchester since the mid-
1990s.

In the next five years (subject to funding) the plan aims 
to complete businesses cases for the early delivery of 
‘Quality Bus Transit (MediaCityUK – Salford Crescent)’ and 
develop options for the Metrolink connection between 
MediaCity and Salford Crescent. 

Five Year Environment 
Plan for Greater Manchester 
2019-2024
The plan is about meeting the environmental 
responsibilities set out in the Greater Manchester 
Strategy alongside securing our economic future and 
wellbeing. The plan is part of a series of bold plans for 
the city region. 

The plan sets out a series of challenges which threaten 
the future health and prosperity of the city region 
including contributions to climate change, air quality, 
production and consumption of resources, natural 
environment and resilience and adaption to the 
impacts of climate change. 

The plan sets out the following long-term vision for 
the city regions environment; 

• Infrastructure will be smart and fit for the future. 
There will be an integrated, clean and affordable 
public transport system, resource efficient buildings, 
greater local community renewable energy, cleaner 
air, water and greenspace for all. 

• All citizens will have access to green space in every 
community, more trees including in urban areas, 
active travel networks, environmental education 
and healthy and locally-produced food. 

• Citizens and businesses will adopt sustainable 
living and businesses practices focusing on local 
solutions to deliver a prosperous economy. 

The plan provides details of tangible targets which 
have been set out in order to achieve the vision above. 
These targets are then broken down into a series of 
actions. 

Beelines – Greater Manchester’s 
Cycling and Walking 
Infrastructure Proposal
The proposal sets out the scale of ambition that Greater 
Manchester has to deliver what will be the UK’s most 
comprehensive cycling and walking network. 

The Beelines are routes on quieter road which require 
little intervention to be made attractive to pedestrian 
and cyclists. They will provide a network of attractive 
routes between communities across greater Manchester. 
In order to cater for people who want to walk or cycle 
along main arteries further intervention is required. 
The ambition is to undertake intervention on a main 
route within each district which will feed to a network of 
quieter roads. 

A series of maps have been provided and route 
identified for signage and intervention. Ensuring that 
neighbourhood are linked to each other as well as town 
centres is a key part o the proposal. 

In Salford 194 new or upgraded crossing are proposed 
enabling 94% of the population to use Beelines. Nine 
miles of Beelines o busy roads are proposed, 

Evidence Base 2018 Update 
The updated Evidence Base document sets out the recent 
trends in travel in Greater Manchester and includes new 
evidence and analysis undertaken by TfGM. 

The report provides a proposed pathway to achieving 
the right mix of transport modes in order to achieve 
the target of 50% of trips by sustainable modes. It is 
anticipated that this pathway will change is response to 
the ongoing monitoring. 

The evidence base will be updated throughout the 
lifetime of the strategy. 

P
age 134



Final Crescent Development Framework January 2021

228 229

Appendix B, Regeneration Context
Greater Manchester Sub-Regional

Climate Change and Low 
Emission Strategies – Whole 
Implementation Plan for 
Greater Manchester 
2016-2020
The document was prepared by the Greater Manchester 
Low Carbon Hub. The headline goals are as follows; 

• Cutting carbon emissions by 48% between 
1990 and 2020; 

• Growing a low carbon economy; 

• Rapidly adapting to a changing climate; 

• Embedding low carbon behaviours; and 

• Achieving air quality thresholds. 

The plan outlines ten critical actions to achieve the 
2020 targets and lay strong foundations for the journey 
to a future low carbon economy. 

and accessible alternative to travelling by car to key 
Greater Manchester destinations;

To extend the benefits of rapid transit to more areas 
of Greater Manchester and provide the capacity and 
reliability needed to support growth in the economy.

Greater Manchester Spatial 
Framework Publication Plan
Draft for Approval October 
2020
The GMSF sets out a clear vision for Greater 
Manchester. The vision for the document is to bring 
forward brownfield land for development, reduce the 
net loss of Green Belt and provide stronger protection 
for important environmental assets. It will enable 
Greater Manchester to meet its local housing need, 
promote a new approach to town centres, support 
wider strategies around clean air, walking and cycling 
and under pins the ambition for the city to be carbon 
neutral by 2038. 

The ambition is for Greater Manchester to become a 
top global city with higher levels of international trade, 
investment, visitors, academic research and students. 

Greater Manchester Work and 
Skills – Strategy and Priorities 
2016-2019
The strategy has been prepared by the GMCA and aims 
to deliver a work and skills system which meets the 
needs of our employers and residents. It acknowledges 
that the Greater Manchester context it highly complex 
and there are dual challenges of both supporting 
economic growth and reforming public services. 

The vision for the document is; 

By 2035, the Greater Manchester city 
region will be one of the world’s leading 
regions, driving sustainable growth 
across a thriving North of England. It 
will be ever more productive, innovative, 
creative, known for the excellent quality 
of life enjoyed by our residents who are 
able to contribute to and benefit from the 
prosperity that growth brings.

The following broad objectives have been agreed; 

• Employers will be at the heart of our skills and work 
system and be incentivised to invest in, and utilise, 
the skills of their workforce;

• Residents will be given support, whenever they 
need it, to make informed choices about their 
employment and career progression options;

• Young people will leave compulsory education well 
prepared for the world of work and further study;

• Further education and training providers will 
progress more people in to intermediate and 
advanced level skills in areas linked to Greater 
Manchester’s growth sectors;

• Locally commissioned work and skills initiatives 
will provide integrated support targeted at the 
unemployed and those furthest from the labour 
market;

• Health commissioning will be integrated with skills 
and work support to capitalise on the fact that 
‘good work is good for your health’.

The document set out a series of priorities to achieve 
the above objectives.

The Greater Manchester 
Digital Blueprint 
April 2020
The document has been prepared by the GMCA it sets 
out the next chapter in the ambition to be recognised 
as a world-leading digital city region with an ongoing 
commitment to taking an open, innovative and 
connective approach to delivering that ambition. 

The ambition is for Greater Manchester to be a top five 
European digital city-region and recognised globally 
for its digital innovation. 

The three year headline aims are as follows; 

• Ambition is to increase the number of adults who 
have all 5 basic digital skills to 80% from 78% over 
the next three years; 

• By 2023 the average download speed across fibre, 
cable, mobile and wireless will exceed 100MPS 
compared to a Q4 2017 baseline of 32MPS; 

• 86,000 people employed in digital and creative 
industries in 2019 growing to 96,000 in 2023; 

• Creative digital and tech economy rowing to £5.5 
billion by 2025 and £7 billion by 2029. 

It will continue to development research and development 
capabilities which are under pinned by the existing academic 
institutions as well as investing in strengthening existing and 
creating new employment locations so that all part of the 
city region become part of the thriving northern powerhouse. 

The Framework will; 

• Set out how Greater Manchester should develop over the 
next two decades up to the year 2037;

• Identify the amount of new development that will come 
forward across the 10 districts, in terms of housing, offices, 
and industry and warehousing, and the main areas in 
which this will be focused;

• Protect the important environmental assets across the 
conurbation;

• Allocate sites for employment and housing outside of the 
urban area;

• Support the delivery of key infrastructure, such as 
transport and utilities;

• Define a new Green Belt boundary for Greater Manchester.

The Draft Publication Plan 2020 was presented to AGMA 
Executive Committee on 30 October 2020, where the leaders 
of all 10 Greater Manchester councils supported in principal 
the latest draft of the Framework, intended to map areas 
for future development and support post-Covid economic 
recovery in the period to 2037.

The updated document sets out a clear vision for Salford 
Crescent as part of the City Centre Core Growth Area which 
straddles the boundary between Manchester and Salford and 
includes Chapel Street and the Crescent to the west, which 
will deliver a significant number of new jobs and new homes. 

There is a clear commitment to improved connectivity and 
provision of infrastructure between the City Centre and 
adjacent areas, such as between The Quays and Salford 
Crescent, which will support growth across the City Centre, 
as well as in edge-of-centre locations that benefit from this 
improved connectivity and become increasingly suitable for 
higher density and the expansion of further knowledge based 
clusters of development.  A potential Metrolink extension 
is identified within the GMSF Publication Plan from Salford 
Quays to Salford Crescent.

Throughout November 2020, the Publication Plan was taken 
to each of the ten Greater Manchester councils for approval. 
At its Cabinet meeting on 4 December 2020, Stockport Council 
resolved not to publish GMSF 2020 for consultation. As a 
result, talks are ongoing with regards to progressing the 
GMSF as a plan of the remaining 9 districts that make up 
Greater Manchester.

P
age 135



January 2021

231

Appendix B, Regeneration Context
Greater Manchester Sub-Regional

This document has been prepared by the GMCA. It sets 
out a vision to make Greater Manchester on of the best 
places in the world to grown up, get on and grow old. The 
strategy is for everyone in Greater Manchester including 
residents, community and social enterprises, businesses 
and civic leaders. The strategy builds on the progress 
made by the first two strategies published in 2009 and 
updated in 2013. This strategy focuses on ensuring that 
the people of Greater Manchester can all benefit from 
economic growth and the opportunities that brings. 

This document provides the framework for the local 
Industrial Strategy and sets out how it will build on the 
existing core strengths including; 

• Our concentration of science, research and 
innovation assets. Our universities give us the 
largest concentration of excellence in health research 
nationally outside South East England and, in 
advanced materials, a unique opportunity to develop 
‘Graphene City’, bringing together world-leading 
science with business to create jobs and growth.

• Our globally-competitive manufacturing sector, 
with niche strengths in advanced materials; textiles; 
chemicals; and food & drink. Greater Manchester’s 
small-medium sized manufacturers also play critical 
roles in national and global supply chains.

• Our vibrant digital sector, which through assets such 
as MediaCityUK, the Farr Institute, CityVerve, Jodrell 
Bank, Hartree Centre, and the associated tech cluster, 
make Greater Manchester the UK’s second digital hub.

• Our cultural and sporting economy, underpinned 
by national assets such as theatre at the Lowry 
and The Royal Exchange, galleries at Manchester 
Art Gallery and the Whitworth, our world renowned 
music scene, new, original works at the Manchester 
International Festival and Factory, the Halle orchestra, 
globally leading football and rugby league clubs, and 
world-class sporting facilities for cycling, cricket, and 
swimming.

• Our well-developed local and strategic transport 
networks, The region has excellent air, road, rail 
and water connectivity, with Metrolink being the UK’s 
most successful light rail network. Manchester Airport 
now serves over 200 destinations, more than any 
other UK airport.

• Our dynamic regional centre, which has fuelled jobs 
growth in public and private sector service industries 
in recent years, and our town and district centres which 
are increasingly important for jobs and homes across 
the conurbation.

• Our highly trained workforce which includes one 
of the largest graduate pools in Europe, a strong 
concentration of STEM graduates and postgraduates, 
and a long and successful history of entrepreneurship 
and enterprise.

Our People Our Place 
– The Greater Manchester Strategy

Greater Manchester 
Infrastructure Framework 2040
The document has been prepared by the GMCA. 
It recognises the importance of the city regions 
infrastructure and the multiple parties which are 
involved in its management and delivery. The GMCA 
have taken steps towards the delivery of a holistic 
cross sector Greater Manchester infrastructure Strategy 
(GMIS). The aim of this is to focus on developing 
infrastructure which ultimately improves the loves of all 
those living and working within Greater Manchester. 

The Greater Manchester Infrastructure Framework is the 
precursor to the GMIS and will frame the key issues and 
priorities which the GMIS should address and sets out; 

• The key trends affecting infrastructure up to 2040

• How those trends will affect each infrastructure 
network (i.e. the impacts)

• The response needed to achieve the Greater 
Manchester infrastructure vision – the Framework

The following key infrastructures sectors covered within 
the framework are as follows; 

• Energy; 

• Transport; 

• Digital; 

• Flooding, surface and waste water management; 

• Green and blue infrastructure; and 

• Potable (drinking) water. 

The key trends to 2040 will be to improve the efficiencies 
of building and appliances and increasing awareness 
and changing behaviour of consumers to reduce per 
capita demands. The framework outlines the key points 
which will help to achieve the vision including transport 
and investment into district heat network. 

The vision is structured around 10 priorities 
reflecting the life journey of the city’s residents; 

Priority 1 
Children starting school ready to learn;

Priority 2 
Young people equipped for life;

Priority 3 
Good jobs, with opportunities for people to 
progress and develop;

Priority 4 
A thriving and productive economy in all 
parts of Greater Manchester;

Priority 5 
World-class connectivity that keeps Greater 
Manchester moving;

Priority 6 
Safe, decent and affordable housing;

Priority 7 
A green city-region and a high quality 
culture and leisure offer for all;

Priority 8 
Safer and stronger communities;

Priority 9 
Healthy lives, with quality care available 
for those that need it;

Priority 10 
An age-friendly city-region. 

The document then provides a series of 
enablers which will facilitate the above 
priorities.

Draft Crescent Development Framework

230

P
age 136



Final Crescent Development Framework January 2021

233

Appendix B, Regeneration Context
Greater Manchester Sub-Regional

Greater Manchester 
Local Industrial Strategy 
June 2019
This document has been prepared by the GMCA. The 
strategy sets out how the UK will respond to these 
economic and technological changes as well as other 
global forces such as an aging society and the needs to 
transition to clean growth, while raising productivity and 
earnings. 

The Local Industrial Strategy will inform how local 
leaders will capitalise on the city-regions unique assets 
and opportunities over the long-term by aiming to; 

• Set Greater Manchester up to be a global leader on 
health and care innovation - creating new industries 
and jobs, improving population health and extending 
healthy life expectancy;

• Position Greater Manchester as a world-leading city-
region for innovative firms to experiment with, develop 
and adopt advanced materials in manufacturing;

• Build on Greater Manchester’s position as a leading 
European digital city region; enable the digitalisation 
of all sectors; and capitalise on the links between 
digital and creative industries that feed internationally 
significant clusters in broadcasting, content creation 
and media, and maximise growing assets in cyber 
security;

• Achieve carbon neutral living in Greater Manchester 
by 2038, by launching the UK’s first city-region Clean 
Growth mission.

The Greater Manchester 
Internationalisation Strategy 
2017–2020
This document has been prepared by the GMCA. It sets 
out that Internationalisation is embedded within the 
DNA of Greater Manchester and it fundamental to our 
continued economic success. The Greater Manchester 
Strategy confirms that the city will ‘compete on the 
international stage for talent, investment, trade and 
ideas’. 

The long term vision is to become a top 20 Global City 
by 2035, measured by the following; 

• Attractiveness to international investors, visitors, 
business and academic talent and students;

• International cultural and place offer and 
the propensity of our business base to trade 
internationally;

• Success as a key international gateway to the UK – 
and a gateway to the world for our UK businesses 
and communities; and

• Quality and ease of access and interconnectivity 
to all places across the city region to maximise the 
local benefits of Internationalisation across Greater 
Manchester’s communities.

The strategy outlines that key to the success of the Local 
Industrial Strategy will be strengthening the city-region’s 
foundations of productivity and ensuring that growth 
benefits all people and places. 

Health innovation is highlighted as an opportunity 
for the future. It recognises that the city-region has 
recognised research capabilities in health innovation and 
one of the largest life sciences clusters outside south east 
England. Social care devolution has given the city-region 
greater control over £6 billion of health and care budgets. 
This gives the ability for Greater Manchester to drive 
innovation in the health and care system to improve 
population health which also creating new industries 
and new jobs. 

The Strategy aims for Greater Manchester to be a leading 
regional for innovative firms to experiment with, develop 
and adopt advanced materials and made smarter 
technologies in manufacturing, facilitating the design of 
new products and processes. 

It sets out the Clean Growth Challenge to drive rapid 
decarbonisation this links directly to the city regions 
goals to be carbon neutral by 2038. 

Final Crescent Development Framework

232

P
age 137



Final Crescent Development Framework January 2021

234 235

January 2021

Design Evolution

235234

APPENDIX C

Final Crescent Development Framework January 2021January 2021

P
age 138



Final Crescent Development Framework January 2021

The Final Development Framework represents the 
culmination of a number of workstreams and has 
taken into consideration:

• Existing and emerging planning policy, a 
summary of which is provided at Appendix A;

• The regeneration context, a summary of which 
is provided at Appendix B;

• Up to date commercial input and market 
analysis; and

• Previous masterplanning efforts which have 
been undertaken in recent years. 

A series of options were developed for each character 
area, taking previous masterplanning efforts as 
the starting point and ratifying this against future 
projections and market analysis, in order to assess 
and define how development could potentially come 
forward in the future. These options were tested 
by the technical team with a ‘preferred option’ for 
each zone being identified. Together, the preferred 
options for each zone, formed the basis for the draft 
Development Framework.

Following the 6-week public consultation on the draft 
Development Framework and engagement with key 
stakeholders, the preferred options for each zone 
were refined and updated, taking into account all 
comments received to date. 

Some of the zones - such as the Peel Park Campus 
Zone and Adelphi Village - remain relatively 
unchanged from the ‘draft’ proposals. The Transport 
Hub, the Crescent and Health & Innovation Zones have 
been refined and updated in response to comments 
received, and now reflect the latest thinking.

December 2020Final Crescent Development Framework

Design Development 
From Draft to Final Proposals

Appendix C, Design Evolution

January 2021

ZONE 1 
HEALTH & INNOVATION 

ZONE 2  
PARKS & RIVER

ZONE 3 
PEEL PARK CAMPUS

ZONE 4 
TRANSPORT HUB

ZONE 5 
ADELPHI VILLAGE

ZONE 6 
THE CRESCENT

Zone 1

Zone 2

Zone 3

Zone 4

Zone 5

Zone 6

This Appendix is structured around each of the 
key character areas or zones as shown in the plan 
below, in the same format as Section 6 of the main 
report, for ease of reference. 

It provides a summary of the draft propoasls, 
which together made up the draft Development 
Framework, and the key changes which have been 
made in formulating the ‘final’ proposals. 

236 237

P
age 139



Final Crescent Development Framework

239

Zone 1 - Health & Innovation Zone

Starting Point for the development 
of the Health & Innovation Zone

Development in the Health & Innovation Zone has, 
to some extent, been dictated by the University 
of Salford’s existing masterplan.  Therefore 
the following committed projects have been 
incorporated within the Illustrative Masterplan:

1. Centre for Prosthetics & Orthotics
2. North of England Robotics Innovation Centre
3. Centre of Sound & Vision
4. Energy House 2.0
5. Multi-storey car park

The Innovation Forum (6) is also an existing 
building and has been retained and embraced 
within the Masterplan.

Appendix C, Design Evolution

ILLUSTRATIVE 
MASTERPLAN

239

KEY

Zone Boundary

University of Salford

Residential

Student Residential

Draft Development Framework 
Illustrative Masterplan

Innovation 

Live and Innovate

Retail

Car Park

1

2

4

5

6Draft Development Framework

The remaining area was designed with the following 
objectives in mind:

• To enhance north-south connectivity
• To incoporate a further car park
• To enhance primary route widths
• To align secondary routes
• To use building block/ footprints circa 10,000 sq ft

These principles were used to develop the proposals 
for the draft Development Framework.

238

P
age 140



Final Crescent Development Framework January 2021

240 241

ILLUSTRATIVE 
MASTERPLAN

KEY

Zone Boundary

University of Salford

Residential

Student Residential

Final Development Framework 
Illustrative Masterplan

Innovation 

Live and Innovate

Retail

Car Park

Zone 1 - Innovation Zone

In updating and refining the 
proposals, only minor changes 
have been made to the Health & 
Innovation Zone. 

The existing buildings including the Innovation Forum 
and the committed projects have been retained, as 
well as the key features within the Zone including the 
Innovation Centre and the new Innovation floorspace 
contained within the new blocks which are proposed.

The connection between Peel Park Campus and the 
Health & Innovation Zone to the north has been 
improved in respect of existing biodiversity, retaining 
the natural ridge line and wildlife routes.

The perimeter road has been reviewed and upgraded 
to better serve both the Peel Park Campus and the 
Health & Innovation Zone.

One of the student accommodation blocks to the 
south of the Zone has been removed to provide more 
breathing space in this location.

Final Development Framework

ILLUSTRATIVE 
MASTERPLAN

241

Connection between Peel Park 
Campus and Health & Innovation 
Zone improved in respect of existing 
biodiversity, retaining natural ridge 
line and wildlife routes

Perimeter road upgraded for serving 
of Peel Park Campus and Health & 
Innovation Zone.

Proposed student 
accommodation block removed

Building footprints adjusted to account 
maximise the quality and visibility both 
to and from the public square

Building footprints along A6 act as sign 
post for Salford Crescent as you drive 
towards Manchester. Buildings plots 
are flexible to offer as large buildings or 
broken down into individual blocks

Dedicated walkable route from 
UoS MSCP to Peel Park campus

Minimal car access of A6 to Health & 
Innovation Zone (Clinic traffic only)

Appendix C, Design Evolution

P
age 141



Final Crescent Development Framework January 2021

242

The Framework area contains a large area of green space focused 
around Peel Park, the Meadow, the David Lewis Playing Fields and 
the River Irwell. 

These spaces act as an important ‘green lung’ for the surrounding 
area, providing valuable recreation space and ecological habitats. 

All of the existing green space will be retained and improved and 
connections into and out of this Zone will be enhanced for the 
benefit of existing and future residents and users. This includes 
through the provision of two new footbridges into the Meadows 
from the A6 Crescent.

This has remained consistent in both the draft Development 
Framework and the final Development Framework.

Fundamentals of the Parks & River 
Zone development

Zone 2 - Parks and River

Draft and Final Development 
Framework Proposals 

Appendix C, Design Evolution

243

ILLUSTRATIVE 
MASTERPLAN

P
age 142



Final Crescent Development Framework January 2021

244

Development of the Peel Park Campus has, from the 
outset, been based upon the following key components 
identified within the Masterplan Refresh
2020 which have been retained within the Development 
Framework, including:

• Hub Building + University Gateway public realm 
• New Maxwell Hall + public realm
• Science, Engineering and Environment (SEE) Building
• Salford Business School + public realm
• Professional Services

These key elements were integrated and the draft 
Masterplan for this Zone was worked up and presented 
within the Draft Development Framework.

Starting Point for the development 
of the Peel Park Campus

Zone 3 - Peel Park Campus

Draft Development Framework

Appendix C, Design Evolution

ILLUSTRATIVE 
MASTERPLAN

Draft Development Framework 
Illustrative Masterplan

KEY

Zone Boundary

University of Salford

Student Residential

Cultural

245

P
age 143



Final Crescent Development Framework January 2021

246

ILLUSTRATIVE 
MASTERPLAN

Final Development Framework 
Illustrative Masterplan

KEY

Zone Boundary

University of Salford

Student Residential

Cultural

Proposed development in this 
location has been removed and in 
its place, improved public realm and 
landscaping is now proposed.

Zone 3 - Peel Park Campus

Final Development Framework

Appendix C, Design Evolution

In updating and refining the 
proposals, only minor changes 
have been made to the Peel Park 
Campus Zone.

The proposed development to the north east of the 
new Maxwell Hall venue - as shown in the draft 
Development Framework - has now been removed, and 
an area of high quality public realm is now proposed in 
its place, opening up views to the River and providing a 
visual connection with the Meadows beyond.

The connection between Peel Park Campus and the 
Health & Innovation Zone to the north has been 
improved in respect of existing biodiversity, retaining 
the natural ridge line and wildlife routes.

The perimeter road has been reviewed and upgraded 
to better serve both the Peel Park Campus and the 
Health & Innovation Zone.

Connection between Peel Park 
Campus and Health & Innovation 
Zone improved in respect of existing 
biodiversity, retaining natural ridge 
line and wildlife routes.

Perimeter road upgraded for serving 
of Peel Park Campus and Health & 
Innovation Zone.

247

P
age 144



Final Crescent Development Framework January 2021

248

Development of the Transport Hub has, from the outset, been based 
upon the following key principles:

• To incorporate a traditional station terminal, with potential for 
an iconic design to put the Crescent ‘on the map’

• To integrate Metrolink terminal zone
• To take into consideration level changes across this Zone
• Provision of a cycle hub/ cycling parking 
• Maintain current service acess
• Remove the underpass
• Incoprporate retail, food and beverage provision
• Potential for residential development in a highly sustainable 

location on adjacent development land

The initial design proposals identified that there was potential to 
include a ‘lid’ or station build-over which would take into account 
the level changes across the site and provide a new public square 
opportunity.

This was worked up and presented within the Draft Development 
Framework.

Starting Point for the development of the Transport Hub

Zone 4 - Transport Hub

Draft Development Framework

Appendix C, Design Evolution

ILLUSTRATIVE 
MASTERPLAN

KEY

Zone Boundary

Staion over-build 

University of Salford

Residential

Mixed Use

Draft Development Framework 
Illustrative Masterplan

249

P
age 145



Final Crescent Development Framework January 2021

250

Zone 4 - Transport Hub
Appendix C, Design Evolution

ILLUSTRATIVE 
MASTERPLAN

KEY

Zone Boundary

Staion over-build 

University of Salford

Residential

Mixed Use

Retail

Final Development Framework 
Illustrative Masterplan

Station moves to the south and new 
station entrance 

Reduced Towers (height as per existing)

Keep station build over or ‘lid’

Reduced Towers (15+ storeys)

6 unit terrace scheme (3 storeys)

Apartment block (4 storeys)

Proposed retail blocks removed and 
replaced with improved landscaping and 
public realmIn updating and refining the proposals, a number of changes 

have been made to the Transport Hub Zone, following 
engagement with key stakeholders including TfGM.  In 
summary these comprise:

• The station has been moved to the south of the A6 
Crescent, with the Metrolink platform located to the 
north-east; 

• The main station entrance has been revised and now 
faces north, providing a key gateway to the Crescent 
area, including the University;

• The proposed massing of the residential towers to 
the west of the station has been revised, with a 6 unit 
terraced residential scheme now being incorporated;

• Similarly, the massing of the proposed residential towers 
to the east of the station has been revised, and the 
orientation has been reconsidered; and

• The proposed retail blocks to the north have been 
removed and additional landscaping and public realm is 
now proposed in this location.

Final Development Framework

251

P
age 146



Final Crescent Development Framework January 2021

252

ILLUSTRATIVE 
MASTERPLAN

KEY

Zone Boundary

Residential

Mixed Use

Existing Buildings

Retail

Draft Development Framework 
Illustrative Masterplan

The Adelphi Village is situated to the east of the River Irwell and 
comprises a mix of uses including the vacant Centenary Building, 
vacant Old Adelphi building and surface car parking at Farmer Norton. 
The area is surrounded by medium to low rise residential communities 
including new developments at Valette Square and Timekeepers 
Square and Adelphi Wharf together with more established properties 
around North George Street and Cannon Street.

The Adelphi Village is distinctly separate from the higher density 
Crescent area and educational and research theme for the Health & 
Innovation zone. It is representative of the old civic district in Salford, 
laid on a grid system, where a few main roads give way to smaller 
residential streets. 

With this in mind, the proposals for the area, from the outset 
sought to retain the domestic scale and road grid structure of the 
neighbouring streets with the Centenary Building and Old Adelphi 
forming the community anchor at the heart of the local community. 
This formed the basis for the draft Development Framework.

A series of options were explored for the redevelopment of the Farmer 
Norton Car Park with a focus on the arrangement of the housing and 
ratio of sizes. The ‘preferred option’ was taken forward into the draft 
Development Framework.

Zone 5 - Adelphi Village
Appendix C, Design Evolution

Starting Point for the development 
of the Adelphi Village Zone

Draft Development Framework

253

P
age 147



Final Crescent Development Framework January 2021

254

Zone 5 - Adelphi Village
Appendix C, Design Evolution

ILLUSTRATIVE 
MASTERPLAN

KEY

Zone Boundary

Residential

Mixed Use

Existing Buildings

Retail

Final Development Framework 
Illustrative Masterplan

River side activation enhancing 
rivers edge as part of any future 
residential scheme

In updating and refining the proposals for the purposes of 
the ‘final’ Development Framework, only minor changes 
have been made to the Adelphi Village Zone.

In response to comments received during the Consultation 
period, the Framework has been updated to include riverside 
activation enhancing the rivers edge, as part of any future 
residential scheme. This will continue the riverside pedestrian 
walk which has been begun by developments to the north 
and will improve connectivity for pedestrians and cyclists.

Final Development Framework

255

P
age 148



Final Crescent Development Framework January 2021

256

The Crescent Zone is situated in a highly sustainable 
location along the A6 and contains a wealth of 
unique historic and cultural assets including Fire 
Station Square, Working Class Movement Library and 
the Former Police HQ. It also contains a number of 
underutilised University Buildings, surface car parks and 
vacant plots which present substantial opportunities for 
development, aligning with the regeneration that has 
taken place in Salford Central over the past 10 years.

In this context, the draft Development Framework 
proposed that the Crescent will become a vibrant 
residential-led mixed use community comprising 
a varied range of medium to high density housing 
together with other community and leisure uses. 

To further enhance the areas connectivity and access to 
sustainable transport, the de-engineering of the A6 and 
improved access to the River coupled with enhanced 
green spaces and public realm was proposed. 

Zone 6 - Crescent
Appendix C, Design Evolution

Starting Point for the 
development of the Crescent Zone

Draft Development Framework

ILLUSTRATIVE 
MASTERPLAN

KEY

Zone Boundary

Residential

Hotel/Retail

Cultural

Car Park

Existing Buildings

Draft Development Framework 
Illustrative Masterplan

257

P
age 149



Final Crescent Development Framework January 2021

258

ILLUSTRATIVE 
MASTERPLAN

KEY

Zone Boundary

Residential

Hotel/Retail

Cultural

Car Park

Existing Buildings

Final Development Framework 
Illustrative Masterplan

Appendix C, Design Evolution
Zone 6 - Crescent

In response to feedback and comments submitted during the 
consultation period, a series of amendments were made to 
the Crescent Zone.

The former line of the Manchester, Bolton & Bury Canal 
runs along the southern boundary of the Zone. In response 
to comments received, the proposed linear park which 
proposes to reference this non-designated heritage asset, 
has been updated to better reflect the line of the canal and 
consideration of how this connects into adjacent zones has 
also been considered. 

Massing to the rear of the former Police Station HQ has also 
been reviewed and revised to provide a deliverable servicing 
and access strategy.

Finally, the massing of the proposed residential blocks 
to the south of the A6 Crescent have been revised and 
rationalised to increase building separation in this part of 
the Masterplan.

Final Development Framework

Deliverable serving and 
access strategy connection 

Updated linear park route updated to better 
reflect the line of the former canal

Larger masses rationalised to give better 
building separation

259

P
age 150



Final Crescent Development Framework

260
Page 151



This page is intentionally left blank



 

 

 

 

Crescent Development Framework 
 

Consultation 
Statement 

Page 153



 

Page 2 

CONTENTS 
1 Introduction .................................................................................................................... 3 

2 Background to the Crescent Development Framework ............................................. 5 

3 Legislative and Planning Policy Context ..................................................................... 7 

4 Consultation Methodology .......................................................................................... 10 

5 Scoping Consultation .................................................................................................. 11 

6 Draft Development Framework Consultation ............................................................ 16 

7 Social Value Consultation ........................................................................................... 24 

APPENDICES 

A Scoping Consultation Letter ........................................................................................... 29 

B Consultation Distribution Boundary ................................................................................ 30 

C Scoping Consultation – Schedule of Representations ................................................... 31 

D Draft Development Framework Consultation Letter ....................................................... 32 

E Virtual Consultation Feedback Form .............................................................................. 33 

F Draft Development Framework – Representations ........................................................ 34 

G Draft Development Framework – Schedule of Amendments ......................................... 35 

H PLACED Social Value Workshops Poster ..................................................................... 36 

I PLACED Social Value Key Findings .............................................................................. 37 

 
 

 

 

Page 154



 
  

Page 3 

1.1 The City Council, working with its Partners, the University of Salford (UoS) and the English Cities Fund 
(ECF), have prepared a new Development Framework. Once endorsed, this will help guide development 
across the Crescent area, superseding the current Crescent Development Framework adopted in May 
2014. The overarching purpose of this Development Framework is to establish a clear vision, objectives 
and set of development principles that will catalyse the delivery of transformational change over the next 
10+ years, securing a range of long-lasting economic, social and environmental benefits across the 
Framework area and adjoining communities.  

1.2 As shown in Figure 1.1 below, the Development Framework covers a significant area of approximately 
102 hectares and will have wide-reaching impacts, aiming to transform the area into a globally 
recognised destination for people to live, learn, work, visit and play, and creating an inspiring, attractive 
and sustainable place which generates jobs and knowledge for the benefit of the wider community.  

Figure 1.1 – Aerial Image of Salford Crescent  

 
1.3 This Consultation Statement set out the comprehensive consultation that has been undertaken by the 

Council to inform the preparation of the final Development Framework.  

Legislative and Planning Policy Context  

1.4 National planning policy and guidance contained within the National Planning Policy Framework (NPPF) 
(February 2019) and the National Planning Practice Guidance (NPPG) provides the framework for the 
preparation of local and neighbourhood plans and recognises that early and meaningful engagement 
and collaboration with neighbourhoods, local organisations and businesses is essential.  

1.5 Regulation 18 of the Planning and Compulsory Purchase Act 2004 (as amended) requires all Local 
Planning Authorities (LPAs) to prepare a Statement of Community Involvement (‘SCI’) which sets out 
how it will consult upon Local Development Documents. Furthermore, the Town and Country Planning 
(Local Planning) (England) Regulations 2012 (‘the Local Plan Regulations’) sets out the requirements 
for consultation on local plans (Regulation 18) and supplementary planning documents (Regulation 
12(a)), having regard to a LPA’s commitments in their SCI.  

1.6 Whilst the Development Framework does not constitute a local development document, nor a 
Supplementary Planning Document (SPD), once adopted by the Council it will form a material 
consideration for the determination of planning applications in the area, and will align with policies 

1 Introduction 

Page 155



 
  

Page 4 

contained in the emerging Salford Local Plan: Development Management Policies and Designations 
Document (‘SLP:DMP’) which is due to be submitted for Examination in 2021.   

Purpose of the Consultation Statement  

1.7 In this context, the Development Framework has been subject to comprehensive public consultation, and 
therefore, this Statement has been prepared to describe who has been consulted, the main issues raised, 
and how those issues have been addressed within the Development Framework.  

1.8 The purpose of taking such a comprehensive approach to consultation has been to ensure that a wide 
range of stakeholders were involved in developing plans for the future of the area and to give appropriate 
weight to the Development Framework as a material planning consideration in the determination of 
planning applications within the area. 

1.9 This Statement has been prepared in accordance with the Council’s adopted SCI. 

Structure of the Statement 

1.10 This Consultation Statement follows the requirements set out in Regulation 12(a) of the Local Plan 
Regulations relating to SPD’s and sets out: 

i) The persons consulted when preparing the Development Framework; 

ii) A summary of the main issues raised by those persons; and  

iii) How those issues have been addressed in the final Development Framework.   

1.11 The Statement is structured as follows: 

• Section 2 – Background to the Crescent Development Framework;  

• Section 3 – Legislative and Planning Policy Context;  

• Section 4 – Consultation Methodology; 

• Section 5 – Scoping Consultation;  

• Section 6 – Formal Consultation on Development Framework; and   

• Section 7 – Social Value Consultation  

 

Page 156



 
  

Page 5 

   THE CRESCENT: A UNIQUE REGENERATION OPPORTUNITY  
2.1 The next 20 years are going to be very important for Salford. Substantial progress has been made in 

securing the city’s regeneration, but there are significant challenges ahead in meeting Salford’s future 
development needs whilst tackling inequality and protecting its valued and attractive environment. It will 
be essential that new development is carefully integrated into the City in such a way that it maximises 
benefits for all Salford residents and responds to future challenges so that the city can prosper. The 
Development Framework looks to ensure this by providing updated guidance to inform development 
proposals. 

2.2 The Crescent represents one of the country’s most exciting regeneration opportunities and builds upon 
the successful renaissance of Salford over recent years. The area has the potential to be a world class, 
globally recognised destination for people to live, learn, work, visit and play.  

   DELIVERY PARTNERS  
2.3 The Development Framework is being brought forward by three partners: 

• Salford City Council (SCC) has overseen the preparation of the Development Framework in 
collaboration with the Partners. The Council has a strong track record in delivering large-scale mixed-
use regeneration schemes across the City, working in partnership with the private sector and other 
key stakeholders. 

• The University of Salford (UoS) is one of the area’s biggest employers and makes a significant 
contribution to the local economy. UoS has been undergoing a transformation over recent years, 
much like the City of Salford itself. The University sits at the heart of the Development Framework 
area and is committed to building sustainable growth which includes striving to continuously innovate 
the curriculum through partnership with industry to give students future-proofed, real-world skills and 
mind-sets. 

• The English Cities Fund (ECF) was selected as the Private Sector Partner (PSP) in March 2020 
for the regeneration of the Crescent area. ECF is a partnership formed in 2001 between Muse 
Developments, Legal and General and Homes England. Since its creation, ECF has been working 
with councils, landowners and communities to create exceptional places across the UK, bringing 
together investment, regeneration expertise and long-term commitment to shape our towns and cities 
for the better. ECF has delivered some of the country’s most complex and successful urban 
regeneration projects, including award winning schemes in Salford such as Chapel Street, New 
Bailey, Valette Square, Vimto Gardens, Timekeepers Square and Carpino Place (these schemes 
form part of the wider Salford Central regeneration project). 

   THE FRAMEWORK AREA 
2.4 The area covered by the Development Framework sits within City Centre Salford and extends to 

approximately 102 hectares. It currently falls within the wards of Broughton, Irwell Riverside and Ordsall. 
However, following changes to ward boundaries which will take place in May 2021, the area will fall within 
the new wards of Blackfriars and Trinity, Broughton, Ordsall and Pendleton and Charlestown.  

2.5 The Framework area contains the Peel Park and Frederick Road Campuses of the University of Salford, 
the Council-owned Salford Innovation Park and civic amenities such as Salford Museum and Art Gallery 
(SMAG) and Peel Park. Surrounding the Crescent area are established communities including 
Pendleton, Lower Broughton and Chapel Street.   

2 Background to the Crescent Development Framework 

Page 157



 
  

Page 6 

   PROGRESS TO-DATE  
2.6 The process of change across Salford Crescent has already started, and the Development Framework 

builds on the significant progress made by SCC and the UoS over recent years. A summary of 
masterplanning work undertaken to date is provided below: 

• The Crescent Development Framework (2014) - In May 2014, SCC adopted the current 
Crescent Development Framework. This was subject to public consultation and was endorsed 
by SCC and therefore forms a material consideration in the determination of planning 
applications in the area. Due to the changing regeneration and policy context, this guidance is 
now out-of-date and will be superseded by the new Development Framework.  

• University of Salford & Salford Crescent Masterplan (2018) - In May 2017, 5plus architects 
were appointed by SCC and UoS to prepare an indicative Masterplan for the Salford Crescent 
and University District area.  The Masterplan established an initial vision and set of key objectives 
for the area and identified a comprehensive pipeline of development and investment 
opportunities. Public consultation was undertaken with local residents, businesses and 
interested investors/ partners on initial proposals, including the vision and objectives, during 
August - September 2018. However, the indicative Masterplan has no statutory weight in 
planning terms as it was never formally adopted by SCC.  

• University of Salford Masterplan Refresh (2020) - In early 2020, the University of Salford 
prepared a ‘Masterplan Refresh’ setting out updated proposals for its Peel Park Campus over 
the next 15 years. As part of this work, they consulted internally on the vision and objectives for 
the Masterplan. The proposals were not made public or consulted on formally. The outcomes of 
the Masterplan Refresh for the University campus have been incorporated into the Crescent 
Development Framework.  

2.7 Following the appointment of the Private Sector Partner (PSP), ECF, in March 2020, the Partners have 
now reviewed, tested and updated the initial 2018 Masterplan proposals, taking into consideration the 
responses to the formal consultation exercise. The updated development proposals for the area are set 
out in the Final Development Framework.  

2.8 Building on the extensive work undertaken to date, the Development Framework seeks to formalise the 
development proposals for character area or zone and will be used to guide future development over the 
next 10+ years.  

 

Page 158



 
  

Page 7 

5.1 The Planning and Compulsory Purchase Act 2004 introduced a change to the planning system in 
England in September 2004 including a requirement for Local Planning Authorities (LPAs) to produce a 
Statement of Community Involvement (SCI) which informs communities and stakeholders how they will 
be consulted. This section sets out the legislative and planning policy context as it relates to the 
preparation of the Crescent Development Framework.  

   LEGISLATIVE FRAMEWORK  
5.2 Considerable updated legislation and guidance has been published on community engagement, 

particularly in light of the ongoing COVID-19 pandemic, and full regard has been had to this in the 
production of this Statement.  

5.3 This document follows the processes and recommendations set out in:  

• The Town and Country Planning (Local Planning) (England) (Coronavirus) (Amendment) 
Regulations 2020;  

• The Town and Country Planning (Development Management Procedures, Listed Buildings 
and Environmental Impact Assessments) (England) (Coronavirus)(Amendment) 
Regulations 2020; and 

• The Local Authority and Police and Crime Panels (Coronavirus) (Flexibility of Local 
Authorities and Police Crime Panel Meetings) (England and Wales) Regulations 2020. 

   NATIONAL PLANNING GUIDANCE  

National Planning Policy Framework  

5.4 The National Planning Policy Framework (NPPF) (February 2019) provides the framework for local 
communities and LPAs to prepare local and neighbourhood plans that reflect their visions and aspirations 
through the Local Plan process. The NPPF recognises that early and meaningful engagement and 
collaboration with neighbourhoods, local organisations and businesses is essential. 

Planning Practice Guidance  

5.5 The National Planning Practice Guidance (NPPG) sets out the requirements for keeping communities 
informed of evidence gathering and plan-making through the SCI: 

“Local planning authorities must set out in their Statement of Community Involvement how they will 
engage communities on the preliminary stages of plan-making, specifically survey stage and Local 
Development Scheme.”  

5.6 The NPPG states that authorities are encouraged to use social media tools and other platforms to 
communicate with communities, where appropriate. Furthermore, authorities are expected to be mindful 
of the need to produce concise, visual evidence, written in plain English to help ensure that it is easily 
accessible to local communities, to avoid them becoming disengaged with the process.   

   LOCAL PLANNING POLICY  
Salford Statement of Community Involvement (October 2020) 

5.7 The Council’s SCI was formally adopted in October 2020.  In light of the Government’s current guidance 
to help combat the spread of coronavirus (COVID19) the City Council undertook a partial review of the 
previous SCI (adopted 2010) and as a result, it was considered necessary to make temporary 
amendments to the consultation methods contained in the document to allow plan making to progress in 
line with guidance including requirements for social distancing and to stay at home and away from others. 

5.8 Amendments proposed through the partial review were subject to a three-week period of public 
consultation between August to September 2020. The newly adopted SCI sets out the City Council’s 
approach to engaging with the public in the production of formal planning documents and in the 

3 Legislative and Planning Policy Context 

Page 159



 
  

Page 8 

determination of planning applications at all times, including during the Covid-19 pandemic (or similar). 
The Statement notes that the SCI will be subject to a more detailed full update in time. This will take into 
account the following: 

• Legislative requirements extending the scope of the SCI to include the survey of area stage of 
plan making, the local development scheme and the approach to neighbourhood planning 

• Revisions to regulations governing the plan making and development management processes 

• Updates to national planning policy and guidance 

• Increased use of digital technology and social media 

5.9 The SCI aims to increase public involvement in planning processes. It sets out who will be involved, by 
what method and at what point in the process of document production or in the determination of planning 
applications. It gives more certainty to those wishing to get involved in the planning process. 

5.10 The SCI sets out the Council’s policy for community engagement in the production of formal statutory 
planning documents (Development Plan Documents) and non-statutory documents such as SPD’s.   

5.11 Below is a summary of the SCI guidance in respect of consultation at the different stages of SPD 
production, which the Development Framework has broadly followed: 

• Stage 1 – Pre-production - This stage is based around the gathering of evidence and asking people 
to identify issues and make suggestions in order to inform the preparation of the draft document.   

• Stage 2 – Production – A draft document is produced following the evidence gathering pre-
production stage. Whilst the regulations simply require that draft SPDs are subject to a consultation 
period of at least 4 weeks, the SCI commits SCC to always consulting on the draft SPD (in this case, 
the draft Development Framework) for 6 weeks in order to maximise potential involvement. The SCI 
states that SCC will carefully consider any representations received during the consultation period 
and will update the document where it is considered necessary and appropriate.  

• Stage 3 – Adoption - The SPD (in this case, the Final Development Framework) will then be 
adopted. A summary of representations received and how they have been taken into account will be 
published at this stage. 

5.12 Table 3.2 ‘Proposed Methods of Community Engagement’ sets out the approach to community 
engagement, including during the covid-19 pandemic. The suggested changes to specific methods 
during the COVID-19 pandemic are summarised as follows: 

• Newspaper Notices – removed as a proposed method of community engagement. 

• Leaflets and flyers - leaflets and flyers may not be able to be used as they may be inconsistent 
with COVID-19 government guidance at the time. 

• One-to-one discussions - one-to-one discussions may only be able to be held online via a virtual 
meeting or over the telephone. 

• Public/stakeholder meetings - public/stakeholder meetings may not be able to be held due to 
COVID-19 guidance at the time restricting the gathering of groups of people, nonessential travel 
etc. 

• Posters in Public places - the placement of posters may not be appropriate if considered 
inconsistent with COVID-19 government guidance at the time. 

• Consultation Games - these may not be able to be held if considered inconsistent with COVID-
19 government guidance at the time or may have to be held virtually (i.e. online). 

• Planning for Real Exercises - these may not be able to take place if considered inconsistent with 
COVID-19 government guidance at the time, or may have to be held virtually, (i.e. online). 

Page 160



 
  

Page 9 

• Public Exhibitions/ Displays - a virtual online exhibition may be considered. 

• Documents Available for Inspection - there is no requirement for documents to be made available 
for inspection. 

5.13 All other proposed methods of community engagement remain the same, with the addition of one new 
method which has been added to the SCI as follows: 

• Social media e.g. Facebook, Twitter - To post general and specific information about the 
consultation and to signpost specific details during the consultation period. 

5.14 In terms of how the Council deals with representations and provides feedback, paragraph 3.49 states 
that “following each formal stage of consultation a schedule of responses will be produced and this will 
be published at the next stage of the document's production. This schedule of responses will outline the 
council's response to the key issues raised in the representations received. It will set out how the 
document has been changed to reflect the comments received, or where no change has been made, the 
reasons for this. The schedule of responses will be reported to the elected member(s) for approval prior 
to its publication”. 

   

 

Page 161



 
  

Page 10 

6.1 The amendments to the Council’s SCI as defined in Section 3 do not fundamentally change the 
overarching process which should be followed for SPDs and therefore other non-statutory documents, 
such as the Crescent Development Framework.  A summary of the key stages and the approach followed 
for the consultation on the Development Framework is set out below: 

STAGE 1 – PRE-PRODUCTION  

6.2 The gathering of evidence stage commenced in May 2020. A Scoping Consultation (detailed in Section 
3) was undertaken between 6 July – 3 August 2020.  This Consultation asked residents, businesses and 
stakeholders to comment on the Vision and Objectives for the Crescent, and to identify issues and make 
suggestions in order to inform the preparation of a ‘draft’ document.  Full details are provided in Section 
5.  

STAGE 2 – PRODUCTION  
6.3 A draft document was subsequently produced following the evidence gathering pre-production stage.  All 

representations received during the Scoping Consultation were taken into consideration in the production 
of this document.  

6.4 The Draft Development Framework was consulted on for a period of 6 weeks between 20 October – 1 
December 2020 in order to maximise potential engagement. This was undertaken primarily using virtual 
methods including a dedicated online consultation page, taking into account the recent amendments to 
national guidance and the Council’s SCI.   

6.5 In addition to the above, individual meetings and workshops were also undertaken with key stakeholders, 
including community groups and the Manchester, Bolton and Bury Canal Society, during this period.   

6.6 All representations received during the consultation period were carefully considered following the close 
of consultation, and the draft document was subsequently updated where necessary and appropriate. 
Full details are provided in Section 6.  

STAGE 3 – ADOPTION  
6.7 This Consultation Statement, including a summary of representations received and how they have been 

taken into account, will be published alongside the Final Development Framework for consideration by 
Elected Members.   

4 Consultation Methodology  

Page 162



 
  

Page 11 

7.1 An initial Scoping Consultation was undertaken by SCC between 6 July - 3 August 2020 on the Council’s 
intention to refresh the Crescent Development Framework.  A scoping consultation letter setting out the 
proposed vision and objectives, the accompanying red line boundary for the Development Framework 
area and next steps in terms of the review of the guidance was mailed/ emailed to statutory consultees, 
key stakeholders, local businesses and residents. A copy of this letter is provided at Appendix A.  

7.2 The Council consulted approximately 6,000 residents and local businesses falling within the framework 
red line boundary, and the area immediately adjacent to that area (approximately 150m beyond the red 
line boundary).  A copy of the distribution boundary is provided at Appendix B. 

7.3 Details of the scoping consultation were also published on the Council’s website and an electronic 
version of the letter was available to download. Finally, details of the scoping consultation were also 
published on the dedicated website for the project (https://www.salfordcrescent.com/) and the Council 
website, where an electronic version of the letter was also available to view.  

7.4 Comments were invited from 6 July 2020 upon the issue of the Scoping Consultation Letter, to the end 
of the consultation period on 3 August 2020.  A schedule of all representations received together with 
the Council’s response and how this informed the next stage in the production of the Development 
Framework (i.e. in producing the draft version – or Stage 2) is provided at Appendix C. For ease of 
reference, a summary of key comments is provided below.   

   RESPONSES RECEIVED 
7.5 A total of 42 no. responses were received to the scoping consultation as set out below: 

• Statutory consultees: 
 Environment Agency;  
 Natural England; 
 Historic England; 
 Highways England;  
 Sport England; 
 Coal Authority; 
 National Grid; 
 GMP – Design for Security; 
 GMAAS; and  
 United Utilities 

• Key stakeholders: 
 CEMEX; and 
 Salford City College. 

• Residents: 
 30 local residents.  

7.6 The Coal Authority and National Grid responded to confirm that they had no comments to make to the 
Scoping Consultation. 

7.7 A summary of the representations submitted to the Scoping Consultation is provided at Table 4.1 and 
Table 4.2 below.   

5 Scoping Consultation  

Page 163

https://www.salfordcrescent.com/


 
  

Page 12 

   Table 4.1 – Summary of Statutory Consultees and Key Stakeholders Responses (Scoping Consultation) 
 

Theme Comments  

Healthy 
Lifestyles 
 

• Sport England would welcome the inclusion of "be active" within the sentence ending “visit 
and play” in the vision. 

• Sport England requested more emphasis in the objectives around opportunities to be 
physically active within the "Radically change and enhance existing infrastructure and public 
realm" and "Support healthy lifestyles and improved wellbeing" objectives.   

Green space/ 
Open space  

• Sport England identified that the increased amount of student accommodation and housing is 
likely to put pressure on existing sports facilities.  Using Salford’s Playing Pitch Strategy (PPS) 
and Indoor Sport and Leisure Facility Strategy (ISFS) as a starting point, an assessment of 
what the additional demand is likely to be and impact on existing facilities is required to help 
inform the Framework. 

• Natural England identified that the Framework needs to account for the following;  
− Green Infrastructure; and 
− Landscape enhancement. 

The 
Environment, 
Biodiversity and 
Ecology 
 

• The Environment Agency suggested the following wording for the vision:  
− The Salford Crescent and University District Development Framework aims to 

transform the Salford Crescent and University District into a globally recognised 
destination for people to live, learn, work, visit and play. It will create an inspiring, 
attractive and sustainable place which generates professional and educational 
opportunities for the benefit of the wider community whilst also protecting and 
enhancing the natural environment 

• The Environment Agency suggested the inclusion of an individual additional objective to: 
− Enhance the wealth of existing green assets and significantly increase biodiversity. 

• Natural England identified that the Framework needs to account for the following;  
− Biodiversity enhancement;  
− Protected species; and 
− Strategic Environmental Assessment/Habitats Regulations Assessment 

Flooding and 
Drainage  

• The Environment Agency (EA) noted that the Framework area contains constraints including 
the presence of the River Irwell (designated ‘Main River’) and Flood Zone 2/3 designations. 
Further to an appropriate flood risk assessment, any works within the vicinity of this 
watercourse may require a Flood Risk Activity Permit (FRAP), to be granted.  

• The Framework area contains constraints including presence of superficial and underlying 
bedrock aquifers (which includes Secondary A, Secondary B and Principal designations). 
These are considered controlled water resources and will need to be protected and carefully 
considered by any development proposal with the Framework area, especially where historic 
sources of contamination may be present. 

Transport 
 

• A transport hub at Salford Crescent Station, including a new Metrolink connection, is 
welcomed, though given the proximity to the terminal roundabout of the M602 motorway, 
Highways England request to be involved in any consultation which may take place. This is to 
ensure that any impact to the Strategic Road Network is minimised.  

Heritage  • Historic England made reference to building on existing positive characteristics of Salford, 
such as the historic environment around the Crescent Conservation Area, to create a 
distinctive place within the vision. 

• GMAAS noted that the previous masterplanning efforts were not informed by a study of the 
historic environment, including archaeology. GMAAS therefore recommends that this is now 
undertaken to ensure that there is a good evidence base which formally identifies heritage 
assets with an archaeological, architectural and historic interest; these will include below-
ground archaeological remains, built and landscape heritage.  

Page 164



 
  

Page 13 

Utilities  • United Utilities advised that all of its assets must be given due regard as part of future 
development. 

 

7.8 In addition, all of the Statutory Consultees requested to be kept informed throughout the process and, at 
the appropriate juncture, be involved in any pre-application discussions.  

7.9 The individual responses are summarised in Table 4.2 below. 

 Table 4.2 – Summary of individual responses (Scoping Consultation) 
 

Theme Comments  

Type of 
Development 
 

• High rise development should be avoided; 
• Additional bars and restaurants should be included as part of the proposals; and 
• Need for affordable homes for local people.  

Green space/ 
Open space 

• Parks and green space must be protected from development. 

Red line 
boundary 
 

• Should be extended west to Broad Street roundabout;  
• Should be extended further down Adelphi Street towards Blackfriars Road; 
• Should be extended to the south-east to include the warehouses bound by Oldfield Road; 

and 
• Should be extended to include the land immediately north-east of Adelphi House at the 

University.  
Personal 
Concerns 
 

• Requests for more detailed maps for certain areas;  
• Specific concerns regarding certain sites; and 
• Queries about resident’s own homes and CPO.  

Transport 
 

• Metrolink needed to connect to Manchester City Centre;  
• Traffic to be slowed down between the Crescent Station and Frederick Road; 
• Disappointed to see lanes removed on the A6 and the right turn from Chapel Street to 

Adelphi Street causing more congestion; and 
• Concerns over parking.  

   REVISIONS MADE RESULTING FROM THESE RESPONSES 
7.10 Once the scoping consultation period had closed, all representations received were reviewed in detail.  

A full copy of the comments received, and the respective responses is provided at Appendix C.  

7.11 This review of responses received informed the next stage in the production of the Development 
Framework i.e. in producing the ‘draft’ version – or Stage 2. 

7.12 The revisions and updates made in response to the comments received are set out in Table 4.3. 

             Table 4.3 – Revision made in response to comments 
 

Theme Revisions made to the Development Framework 

Type of Development 
 

Improving the food and beverage offer across the area is a key aim of the Development 
Framework and proposals have focused on the creation of a 'cultural hub' taking in the area 
around Salford Museum and Art Gallery (SMAG), the Working Class Movement Library and 
the former Fire Station. This takes into account to comments relating to the current poor 
provision of such uses.  Buildings surrounding the former Fire Station provide an opportunity 
for ground floor food and beverage related uses to help improve the local offer.  
 

Page 165



 
  

Page 14 

Placemaking initiatives will also be included as part of the delivery of the Framework which 
will enliven the area, which responds to many of the comments submitted. 
 
With regards to comments relating to housing, and housing need, a key objective of the 
Development Framework is to 'provide high quality homes and a mix of tenures' and future 
development as set out within the Illustrative Masterplan seeks to provide a varied mix of 
high quality, adaptable, low energy homes. 

Green space/ Open 
space 

Within the Draft Development Framework, the Meadow and Peel Park will all be protected 
from development.  This has been made explicit within the document to ensure that this is 
clear. Furthermore, the Development Framework seeks to enhance access to existing green 
spaces across the area.  
 
Regarding green infrastructure and biodiversity, the Development Framework includes the 
following objectives which address some of the points raised: 
• Radically change and enhance existing infrastructure and public realm - The 

development will provide new green infrastructure and public realm that will allow for 
sustainable travel and connectivity throughout the area and into adjacent communities. 
Opportunities will be explored to create a new high-quality transport hub centred around 
Salford Crescent Station, including potential new Metrolink connections to Salford 
Quays and the City Centre, creating a destination that is accessible to all and that 
facilitates enhanced sustainable travel choices.  

• Lead the way to carbon neutrality - The development will have sustainability at its core; 
creating sustainable transport and infrastructure, ensuring climate reliance, increasing 
bio-diversity, creating healthy streets and public realm and developing highly sustainable 
and environmentally friendly buildings. 

• Enhance the wealth of existing green assets and significantly increase biodiversity - The 
development will capitalise on the fantastic green spaces that already exist in the area 
and create new infrastructure and public realm full of rich greenery that will encourage 
walking, cycling and recreation. 

Red line boundary 
 

Whilst the red line boundary has not been revised in response to comments requesting this, 
it has been ensured that connectivity between the Development Framework area and 
surrounding communities will be enhanced within the Illustrative Masterplan which 
accompanies the Development Framework.  

Personal Concerns 
 

In response to comments relating to individual circumstances and personal concerns, in 
advance of the public consultation on the Draft Development Framework taking place in 
October/November 2020, the Partners wrote directly to residents of Scarsdale Street, Peel 
Mount, Strawberry Hill and Wallness Lane to give advance notice of the draft development 
framework consultation and to encourage those residents to review the draft framework and 
submit comments.  

Transport 
 

In response to comments around the need for sustainable transport options, a range of 
proposals are included within the Draft Development Framework related to enhancing 
walking and cycling infrastructure across the area, including proposals for making the A6 
more cycle/pedestrian friendly. Opportunities are being explored to create a new high-
quality transport hub centred around Salford Crescent Station, including potential new 
Metrolink connections to Salford Quays and the City Centre in future years. 

The Environment, 
Biodiversity and Ecology 
 

The Development Framework includes a number of objectives related to the environment, 
including radically changing and enhancing existing infrastructure and public realm and 
providing new green and blue infrastructure and public realm that will allow for sustainable 
travel and connectivity throughout the area and into adjacent communities.  
Another key objective is to 'lead the way in carbon neutrality' and future development will 
have sustainability at its core. Proposals will include increasing biodiversity across the area, 
creating healthy streets and developing highly sustainable and environmentally friendly 
buildings.   

Page 166



 
  

Page 15 

Flooding & Drainage In response to comments relating to flood risk and drainage, the Draft Development 
Framework has been updated to include coverage of matters such as provision and 
enhancement of blue-green infrastructure, the impact of climate change and association to 
flooding, utilisation of brownfield spaces, and opportunities for environmental betterment.  

Heritage  A key objective of the Development Framework is ‘conserving and enhancing the area's 
unique historic environment’ and this has been further strengthened in response to these 
comments in the document specifically within the Development Principles sections.    

Utilities The following changes/ updates have been made to the Draft Development Framework in 
respect of utilities: 
• The Draft Development Framework includes references to Draft Local Plan policies EF1 

and EF2. 
• The requirements for sustainable drainage have been referenced within the 

Development Framework. The Development Framework will incorporate the suggesting 
wording provided by United Utilities regarding sustainable drainage.  

 

 

 

Page 167



 
  

Page 16 

   FORMAL CONSULTATION ON THE DRAFT DEVELOPMENT FRAMEWORK  
Virtual Public Consultation Event  

8.1 Following the initial Scoping Consultation, the ‘draft’ Development Framework document was prepared, 
and a 6 week period of consultation was undertaken between 20 October 2020 – 1 December 2020.  

8.2 The Council issued a letter to the same distribution area as the Scoping Consultation (e.g. residents and 
local businesses falling within the red line area, and the area immediately adjacent to that area 
(approximately 150m beyond the red line boundary – see Appendix B), and to all statutory consultation 
bodies.  This letter explained that the draft Development Framework was being consulted on for a 6 week 
period and set out the mechanisms by which comments were being invited. A copy of this letter is 
provided at Appendix D.  

8.3 Due to the ongoing restrictions relating to COVID-19 and the need to social distance, the consultation 
took the form of a virtual consultation available at: https://salfordcrescent.consultation.ai/ 

8.4 The virtual consultation ‘room’ contained a number of boards providing an overview of the proposals, 
and a PDF copy of the Draft Development Framework was also available to view and download. A 
screenshot of the virtual consultation room is shown at Figure 6.1 below: 

Figure 6.1 – Virtual Consultation Room Screenshot 

 
8.5 A feedback form generated through Google Forms was available for completion and immediate 

electronic submission, or a word document version was available for download and return via email. A 
copy of the google form is attached at Appendix E. 

8.6 It was important the ensure that all residents and businesses with an interest in the proposals would be 
able to review the material and provide their views, regardless of whether they could access the virtual 
consultation. To this end, a freephone phone number was set up where consultees could phone and 
leave a message and request a call back.  Queries by email were also welcomed whereby the project 

6 Draft Development Framework Consultation  

Page 168

https://urldefense.proofpoint.com/v2/url?u=https-3A__salfordcrescent.consultation.ai_&d=DwMFAw&c=jozbAXBGpZCeJmn-Q9SThA&r=s9ZiXClaSksYLLQne5bK7VoaEIBfiqPwU7iYWs7USnc&m=xTbCrUdiHWaTL1YVYpvNkhzT8JMTPi61aE-GQqTMb2M&s=rG4fzx_mAevi_H_hXVSU7DstBRaxZkEUSrfUk9FOlFI&e=


 
  

Page 17 

team could then prepare alternative arrangements to enable review of the Draft Development Framework 
and provision of comments. 

8.7 Comments on the draft proposals could be submitted by any of the following means:  

• Through the feedback form within the virtual consultation website (available to fill in and submit 
through the virtual consultation, and available for download in Word for return via email) 

• By email to plans.consultation@salford.gov.uk   

• By phone 0161 958 6296 

• By post to:  
Draft Crescent Development Framework Consultation  
Spatial Planning  
Salford Civic Centre  
Chorley Road  
Swinton  
M27 5BY  

8.8 Details of the consultation were also published on the dedicated website for the project 
(https://www.salfordcrescent.com/) and the Council website, where an electronic version of the letter was 
available to download.  

8.9 Comments on the Draft Framework were invited from 20 October until 5pm on 1 December 2020.   

Additional Consultation Activities   

8.10 In addition to the above, and to ensure that the approach to consultation on the Draft Development 
Framework was comprehensive, maximising engagement, the following additional consultation activities 
were undertaken: 

Ordsall and Langworthy Community Committee (10 November 2020) 

8.11 Council Regeneration Officers and representatives from ECF attended a virtual Ordsall and Langworthy 
Community Committee Meeting on 10 November 2020. The Draft Crescent Development Framework 
was presented to the Committee and interested members of the public encouraged to submit comments. 
The Draft Development Framework was generally well received during the community committee 
meeting. No specific comments were received in respect of the proposals. Residents were encouraged 
to view the consultation room and to provide comments using the available channels. 

East Salford Community Committee (19 November 2020) 

8.12 Council Regeneration Officers and representatives from ECF attended a virtual East Salford Community 
Committee Meeting on 19 November 2020. The Draft Crescent Development Framework was presented 
to the Committee and interested members of the public with comments sought. Following the 
presentation to the committee, one respondent sought assurances that the proposals would be delivered, 
as it was felt that previous iterations of the plans hadn’t been, and that the benefits derived from the 
regeneration would positively impact the local community. Specific mention was made of the need to 
bring the community along and require local employment to be mandatory as part of any future 
construction works. Residents were encouraged to view the consultation room and to provide comments 
using the available channels. 

Social Media  

8.13 A series of social media posts were made on twitter via the handle @CrescentEngage to primarily to 
encourage people to engage with the social value exercise (see Section 7 below) but also to direct the 
public to the public consultation on the Draft Development Framework.  

Page 169

mailto:plans.consultation@salford.gov.uk
https://www.salfordcrescent.com/


 
  

Page 18 

   REPRESENTATIONS ON THE DRAFT DEVELOPMENT FRAMEWORK  
8.14 A schedule of all representations received is provided at Appendix F. Furthermore, a summary is 

provided below.  A schedule of how this informed the next stage in the production of the Development 
Framework (i.e. in producing the final version – or Stage 3) is also provided below. 

8.15 In total over the consultation period the virtual room received 1,007 visitors, the majority being from 
Salford and Manchester. 60 no. responses were received in total from statutory consultees, key 
stakeholders and residents including: 

• Statutory consultees: 
 Natural England; 
 Historic England; 
 Environment Agency; 
 Highways England;  
 Canal & River Trust; 
 Manchester City Council – planning policy; 
 Sport England; 
 Trafford Council; 
 United Utilities; 
 National Grid; and  
 Coal Authority. 

• Key stakeholders: 
o Manchester, Bolton & Bury Canal Society; 

• Residents: 
o 48 local residents and businesses.  

8.16 Natural England, the Coal Authority and National Grid responded to confirm that they had no comments 
to make in respect of the draft Development Framework. 

8.17 A summary of the main representations submitted to the draft Development Framework Consultation is 
provided at Table 5.1 and Table 5.2 below.   

 Table 5.1 – Summary of Statutory Consultees and Key Stakeholders Responses (draft Development 
 Framework) 
 

Theme Concerns 

Healthy Lifestyles 
 

• Sport England recommended that any improvement of the sports facilities at Peel Park 
Campus is informed by a Feasibility Study which will help identify the right mix and size of 
sport facilities to meet current/ future demand. Sport England should be consulted on any 
future proposals. Sport England again set out that the proposed increase in student 
accommodation (2,000 units) in this zone is likely to put pressure on existing indoor/outdoor 
sports facilities and improvements may be required.   

• Sport England identified that the new residential development in Zone 5 and 6 will generate 
additional demand for sports facilities. Sport England strategic planning tools should be 
referred to in calculating any additional demand and whether new or improved facilities are 
required.  

• Sport England recommend reference to ‘Active Design’ in future design processes is added to 
the Framework.  

Green space/ 
Open space  

• Sport England identified that features such as sustainable stormwater management strategies 
or green infrastructure such as tree planting on or adjacent to playing fields must be 
considered fully and would like to ensure that development retains the flexibility of the David 
Lewis Playing Fields site to accommodate pitches. Sport England should be consulted on any 
such future proposals.  

Page 170



 
  

Page 19 

• The Environment Agency welcome the proposal to retain open green space in Zone 2 – the 
majority of which is flood plain associated with the River Irwell.  

Economy and 
Investment 

• Manchester City Council (planning policy) agreed that the Framework supports the region’s 
key growth sectors and complement MCC’s investment in these areas. 

• Trafford Council recommended that linkages to Trafford Wharfside are included with respect 
to the Innovation Triangle. 

The Environment, 
Biodiversity and 
Ecology 
 

• Manchester City Council (planning policy) recommended that opportunities for sustainable 
development should be maximised and play a fundamental role in future development, in light 
of the fact that Manchester has declared a climate emergency and has ambitious and 
challenging targets to meet to ensure it realising its carbon neutral targets. Given the proximity 
of the framework area, development in the Crescent should therefore support the City’s work 
in this area. 

• The Environment Agency recommended that sub-objective 10 be re-worded to state that a 
‘measurable net gain’ should be ensured.  

Flooding and 
Drainage  

• Some of the development proposals in Zone 1 and 3 (student accommodation and residential) 
are located in or adjacent to Flood Zone 2/ at risk from fluvial flooding. The Environment 
Agency set out that future development proposals will therefore need to satisfy the Sequential 
Assessment. If the current siting can be justified, mitigation measures will be required, and it 
will need to be demonstrated that the risk of flooding will not be increased elsewhere.  

• Large areas of green space are identified as part of an ‘infiltration park’ in Zone 2. The EA 
confirmed that areas of this parkland, in particular in the vicinity of the current David Lewis 
Recreation Ground (overlying historic landfill), have been subject to former uses which could 
have introduced contaminants to the underlying ground. Whilst the Environment Agency 
welcomes the use of Sustainable Urban Drainage Systems (SuDs) it should be established 
via appropriate and comprehensive ground investigation that any infiltration measures 
proposed are feasible and that drainage features can be adopted, effectively maintained and 
would not result in environmental detriment. 

• The EA highlighted that using soakaways or other infiltration methods on contaminated land 
carries groundwater pollution risks and may not work in areas where a high water table is 
identified. Where the intention is to dispose to soakaway, these should be shown to work 
through an appropriate assessment carried out under Building Research Establishment (BRE) 
Digest 365.  

• The EA recommended that new crossings over the River Irwell (Zone 2) should preferably be 
single span with deck levels situated above modelled flood levels. New footbridges and any 
other new structures over, adjoining or within the River Irwell are likely to require a Flood Risk 
Activity Permit (FRAP) granted by the EA. 

• With regard to the river itself, the EA identified the River is currently failing its statutory 
ecological objectives under the Water Framework Directive (WFD). Therefore, future riparian 
development should seek to explore all opportunities to help address and meet the Irwell’s 
ecological objectives under the WFD. A new fish pass is proposed at Adelphi Weir which 
could be integrated into the proposals which would help address and improve ecological 
connectivity mitigating the impact of the in-channel weir structure and play an important role in 
aiding the recovery of existing coarse and salmonid fish stocks. Indeed, all opportunities to 
preserve and where possible enhance the ecological value of existing local wildlife site(s) and 
associated interest features, marginal aquatic habitats within the riparian zone should be 
explored and highlighted. 

• The EA recommended that the development plots alongside the River within Zone 5 should 
include riverside access to continue the walkway started by the riverside developments to the 
south.  

Page 171



 
  

Page 20 

• United Utilities (UU) welcomed the co-ordinated approach to ensure sustainable development 
is delivered between sites and landowners in the area. It set out that the expectation will be for 
only foul flows to communicate with the public sewer, and there is a desire that the area 
achieve a multi-functional and connected green/ blue water environment, planned around 
existing topography, which has the management of surface water as one of its main features.  
UU recommend further discussions between themselves, the LLFA and Council on this.  

Transport 
 

• Early discussions with Highways England would be welcomed where any of the proposals are 
likely to impact the Strategic Road Network (SRN), including changes to the layout of streets 
and the traffic being generated by the proposals. As development proposals come forward, 
Highways England will need to gain an understanding of the current transport provision, 
alongside individual and cumulative transport impacts of the proposals within each Zone. 

• In principle, Highways England is supportive of any plans which seek to reduce the need for 
private vehicle use and welcome the Framework’s focus on sustainable travel and the creation 
of a Transport Hub in order to facilitate easier passenger movement. However, given that the 
proposed Transport Hub is within a short distance of the SRN, consideration as to whether 
this location may become attractive to road users who would seek to use it as a start and end 
point to their journeys, and potentially increase car usage along the M602 motorway, would 
need to be considered. Highways England therefore request that the necessary transport 
evidence is provided through the development of a Transport Assessment for the site as it 
comes forward.   

• Manchester City Council (planning policy) highlighted that a number of aspects of the 
framework relate to transport infrastructure; all of these elements should be consistent with 
the emergent City Centre Transport Strategy which should also be referenced in the Final 
Development Framework. It was noted that Manchester City Council is working with Salford 
City Council and TfGM on the development of this strategy to ensure a cohesive, holistic 
approach to transport into and around the region’s economic hub. 

• Manchester City Council (planning policy) also set out that the proposals for “de-engineering” 
A6 could have significant implications for the function of the city centre, in addition to its 
businesses and residents, and recommended further discussions between the City Centre 
Growth & Infrastructure service in addition to Manchester City Council’s Highways team to 
fully understand the implications on the strategic highways network prior to any proposals 
coming forward. 

• Trafford Council required that the aim of the Development Framework to explore connecting 
Salford Crescent and Salford Quays by Metrolink should take account of making adjacent 
Wharfside more accessible through public transport connections. 

Heritage  • The Canal & River Trust submitted detailed comments around the treatment of the line of the 
former Manchester Bolton & Bury Canal (MB&BC) within the Development Framework, setting 
out their aspirations for its future restoration and requesting minor amendments to ensure that 
the Framework does not adversely impact upon or prejudice the potential for the future 
restoration of the MB&BC, and maximises opportunities for wider community benefit. A 
number of minor modifications to the Development Framework were suggested.  

• Historic England submitted detailed comments, primarily relating to the Crescent Conservation 
Area (which is on the Heritage at Risk register) and the proposals which relate to it. The 
embedding of heritage in the vision and objectives for the project was commended as well as 
the comprehensive, joined-up approach proposed for the development of the Crescent. It was 
requested that the Framework was amended in some places to help better inform a positive 
strategy for the historic environment and more detailed analysis.  Detailed comments were 
provided in respect of Zone 6: The Crescent, Zone 4: Transport Hub and Zone 2: Parks and 
River and Zone 3: Peel Park Campus which recommended further analysis, reference to the 
Conservation Area Appraisal and refinement of the proposals to reflect this.  

Planning Policy • The Environment Agency recommended that all references to GMSF are updated to reflect 
the latest draft (30 October 2020).  

Page 172



 
  

Page 21 

• Trafford Council required that Figure 2.2 ‘Strategic Location’ shows Cornbrook, Pomona 
Island and Trafford Wharfside shaded in pink, which gives the impressions that these areas 
fall within Salford - it should be made clear that these areas fall within the Trafford area. 

Utilities  • UU advised that all its assets must be given due regard as part of future development. 

8.18 The individual responses are summarised in Table 5.2 below. 

 Table 5.2 – Summary of individual responses (draft Development Framework) 
 

Theme Concerns 
Scale, massing, 
density and 
design 
 

• Concerned that development to the West (Transport Hub zone) would overshadow the area 
and detract from the present harmonious architecture of the cultural heart of the city. 

• Well thought out masterplan  
• Support for the covered railway to bring the two halves of the University campus together 
• The former police station has been in a dilapidated state since 2004 resulting in a terrible 

building in a prime position located across the road from Salford University. A fast track 
approach should be implemented to get the building developed. 

• The development of the Police Station need to ensure that the height does not have a 
negative impact with regards to closeness of the building overlook and privacy and light, in 
respect of Fire Station square houses and other houses. 

• Important to keep Salford apart from Manchester, not just become a continuation of large 
high rise characterless buildings 

Housing • All new properties should be fully affordable ones that meets the needs of the residents of 
the city. 

• More social rent housing. 
• Increased student accommodation to reduce students in private rent.  
• Student accommodation should be good quality and fit for purpose - integral to a good 

university experience. Would like to see the development of this in line with any expansion 
of the University. 

Heritage  • Hoping that there are plans for the Manchester Bolton Bury canal. The canal and its towpath 
should be restored and made an important heritage, health, environmental recreational and 
leisure feature linking three of the zones. 

• The Fire Station sq conservation area roads and pavements are in very poor condition – 
they require to be surfaced. It would benefit the area and could be completed as a priority. 

• The vision protects the history of the area including green space while allowing for forecast 
growth in residential demand. 

• Pleased to see the Police HQ is retained.  
• Must be done in a way that is sympathetic to the historic buildings and maintain the 

Conservation Area. 
Links to 
Surrounding 
Communities  

• The vision for transport, retail and other facilities appear to have been developed in isolation 
from other developments on Chapel Street and Salford Central. Proposals for rail need to 
reference Salford Central Station as well as Salford Crescent. Just as plans for traffic, 
pedestrians and metro link need to take account of the plans for Chapel Street and access 
too Manchester City Centre.  

• More information is needed on the impact on local communities.  
Climate Change/ 
sustainability 

• Proposals could be more 'visionary'; no mention of all-electric vehicles or self-driving cars.  
• The site has huge potential being located close to the City Centre and increased provision 

of dwellings will enable more people to use sustainable transport, taking advantage of the 
high number of buses and trains which travel through the area. 

Green space/ 
Open space 

• Priority should be given to cleaning, provision of trees and planting adjacent to chapel 
street, this would have an immediate effect on the quality of life of the local residents; this 
would include the new construction of two bridges giving access to the open space at the 
Meadows. 

Page 173



 
  

Page 22 

• Opportunities to create a destination by improving access to existing greenspaces in the 
area. 

• Some residents oppose the extension of the student accommodation adjacent to Peel Park / 
David Lewis Sports Ground. The proposals truncate the green space.  

Amenities  
 

• Query whether there will there be a nursery anywhere, play areas etc. for young families. 
• Lack of primary and secondary school provision that will impact on the already stretched 

availability in this area  
• Pleased that the station will be served by somewhere to obtain a drink when waiting for a 

train or somewhere warm to sit because the current platform is a cold and open wind tunnel.  
Dreadful in the winter months and no place to purchase a snack or warm drink. 

• Would like to see more cultural amenities and independent venues. 
• Further GP/Dentist facilities will be required to support the scale of the development 

Economy/ 
Opportunities  

• Support for inclusion of research spaces with labs. Hope that this will deliver prosperity to 
the area and people who live here. 

Opportunity to create job prospects/apprenticeships/internships for young people from the area and 
not only Salford Uni students. 

Transport, 
Highways and 
Parking 
 

• Concerns that the A6 - a major thoroughfare from the East Lancashire Road into 
Manchester and other roads in the surrounding area - will be virtually pedestrianised and 
therefore will not be able to accommodate additional traffic. Transportation options 
suggested will not accommodate this traffic with alternatives. 

• Proposals take away current car parking. Parking is of vital importance to ongoing business, 
therefore seek replacement spaces in the new multi-storey car park proposed for the site off 
Christchurch Avenue. 

• Support for public transport proposals including Metrolink.  
• Needs to be co-ordinated with other development programmes including those for Metrolink 

(TFGM) and Network Rail 
• Public transport link improvements such as Metrolink should be created first as this will drive 

the rest of the development.  
• The transport route (only one way in and out via the A6) is a real barrier to any development 

taking place. 
• The area should be filtered or completely closed off to motor traffic and be car free, where 

cyclists and pedestrians can co-exist. 
• Proposals relating to the A6 and other routes should not be at the detriment to buses which 

provide vital connections between Manchester City Centre and Salford, Bolton and Wigan. 
• Cyclops junctions should also be used. 

Safety/ security • Must make sure that it is safe to walk through the park, appropriate lighting, CCTV, policing. 
• The Meadows needs extra infrastructure and lighting. New pedestrian lines, brand new 

benches and most importantly lights (lamps) for safety. 
• Existing bridges in poor condition, look abandoned, dirty and no illumination - this leads to 

anti-social behaviour and robberies. 
• Concerns regarding the proposed ‘linear park’ behind numbers 12-20 of Fire Station Square 

– this creates negative security implications for the houses of Fire Station Square. 
Neighbours have in the past experienced break-ins, a path there would only provide even 
easier access to the rear of these houses.  

• Furthermore, the land behind the Fire Station Square, and part of this proposed linear park / 
footpath is currently being used as a community garden. Neighbours are growing fruit and 
veg and keeping chickens.. Indeed, perhaps a more suitable option would be to extend this 
community garden idea. IF the plan were to encourage people to grow and create as 
opposed to just pass through, this could be supported, assuming the right security 
measures are in place. An alternative use would be allotments. Preferably this would be 
restricted access - not a public right of way. 

Page 174



 
  

Page 23 

Personal 
Concerns  

• Premises located within the proposed Innovation Zone; Phase 1 of the plan proposes 
demolition for this zone in the period 2020-2024. Recognise the importance for continued 
development of the local area and note that the plans are highly ambitious in this regard; 
however, the plans must not penalise existing employers. Request for information 
concerning the support that will be made available to businesses that would be being forced 
to relocate under the plans and welcoming the opportunity to be involved in further 
discussions concerning the proposal. 

   REVISIONS MADE RESULTING FROM THESE RESPONSES 
8.19 Once the draft Development Framework consultation period had closed, all representations received 

were reviewed in detail.  This informed the next stage in the production of the Development Framework 
i.e. in producing the ‘final’ version – or Stage 3. The amendments made to the final version of the 
Development Framework are set out at Appendix G.  

Page 175



 
  

Page 24 

9.1 It is recognised by the Partners that existing businesses, social enterprises and residential communities 
contribute to the vitality and viability of the area as a place to live and work. The Partners are committed 
to engaging with the local community to understand the issues that are important locally and to generate 
significant social value over the next 10+ years. 

9.2 A sub-objective under Objective 5 “Create opportunity for all and ensure nobody is left behind”, relates 
to social value and seeks to:  

• Deliver social value for the local area by promoting social, economic and environmental sustainability 
through the project’s life cycle employing a Social Value Strategy for the design, construction, 
occupation and estate management of the site.  

9.3 To this end, a Social Value Strategy is being developed in parallel with the Development Framework 
which will ensure that social value is generated as individual proposals are brought forward.  Preparing 
a Social Value Strategy for the area is the best way to ensure that the Partners maximise the social, 
economic and environmental value generated throughout the lifecycle of the development programme. 
A robust Social Value Strategy will ensure that any social or local economic value delivered is tangible, 
needs-based and developed in collaboration with communities. 

9.4 As part of this work, consultation has been undertaken with the local community relating specifically to 
Social Value. Details of this consultation was also included within the letter which went out to businesses 
and residents in respect of the draft Development Framework (Appendix D).   

9.5 Whilst this does not form part of the planning consultation, it is important to report back on the work that 
has been undertaken in respect of social value as there are a number of relevant and cross-cutting 
themes. 

  SCOPE OF SOCIAL VALUE CONSULTATION 
9.6 Social Value Portal (SVP) and PLACED worked to involve local residents and organisations in the 

emerging Social Value Strategy for the Crescent. As a result of COVID-19 and the restrictions/ limitations 
placed on face-to-face engagement, all engagement took place online. 

9.7 Three main engagement mechanisms were identified: 

• An interactive website was set up, where people were invited to share their ideas. The details are:      
https://salfordcrescent.mysocialpinpoint.co.uk/home  

• A series of online workshops; and  

• Joining the discussion on Twitter and Facebook 

   Workshops and Social Media 
9.8 PLACED led on the development and delivery of a series of online workshops; these were open 

conversations that encouraged the sharing of ideas and views in a positive, productive way. In addition, 
a survey was developed for local young people to try and capture the views of this demographic. 

9.9 PLACED also managed the social media activity for the Crescent, establishing a project Twitter and 
Facebook account. These were initially solely for the promotion of engagement of the Social Value 
Strategy. However once the draft Development Framework went live on 20 October 2020, PLACED also 
expanded their social media content to include promotion of the draft Development Framework. 

9.10 In total, seven workshops were scheduled and planned between 1 September 2020 and 17 November 
2020.  A poster advertising these events and providing the key dates and details is provided at Appendix 
H.  

7 Social Value Consultation 

Page 176

https://salfordcrescent.mysocialpinpoint.co.uk/home


 
  

Page 25 

9.11 All workshops were hosted on Zoom and were 90-120 minutes in length. Sessions were facilitated by 
PLACED and incorporated an interactive presentation tool to capture people’s comments. Sessions were 
designed to inform the Social Value Strategy by:  

• Promoting dialogue and discussion between individuals; 

• Sharing information from previous conversations to enable participants to indicate support or 
otherwise;  

• Inviting participants to identify what they feel are the priorities for Salford; 

• Agreeing, as a group, key themes to discuss in more detail based on the most frequent words / 
phrases used when identifying priorities’ and 

• Being open and positive, seeking to propose solutions. 

9.12 Table 6.1 shows the number of people who attended each session. 

   Table 6.1 – Workshop attendees  
 

Session Number Audience  Number of 
participants 

Session 1 Existing Community Representatives: Introductory 
session 

18 

Session 2 Open session. Participants invited to explore their 
priorities together. 

6 

Session 3 Open session. Participants invited to explore their 
priorities together. 

2 

Session 4 Young people’s session 0 

Session 5 Open session. Participants invited to explore their 
priorities together. 

5 

Session 6 Student session 0 

Session 7 Open session. Participants invited to explore their 
priorities together. 

5 

Skills Session Team meeting 12 

Young People’s Survey Young people 12 

  59 

9.13 Unfortunately, whilst there were a number of bookings made, no one attended the young person’s or 
student sessions. 

9.14 Appendix I combines the data gathered from all workshops and provides an analysis of the feedback. 
This information was gathered through an interactive presentation tool, enabling participants to directly 
populate slides with their comments, as well as the PLACED team recording their views on their behalf. 
By using this approach and openly recording comments, the process has been transparent and 
accurately reflects the discussion in sessions. 

9.15 The section on young people also incorporates findings from an online survey. The survey was produced 
in response to challenges in directly engaging young people. 10 of the 12 responses were received, from 
respondents aged 15-18. Those who competed the survey were predominately those with whom the 
Skills Team at Salford Council’s network engage; including young people who are NEET or at risk of 
becoming NEET and those on apprentice programmes. 

Page 177



 
  

Page 26 

   Social Pin Point Website 
9.16 In parallel with the work described above, SVP managed a dedicated Social Value engagement platform 

for the project called ‘Social Pin Point’ which can be found at 
https://salfordcrescent.mysocialpinpoint.co.uk/home  

9.17 This engagement platform enables people to comment on a range of themes including economy and 
employment, poverty and inequality, health and social care, climate change and culture and creativity. 
These themes are aligned to Salford City Council’s own approach to measuring social value which has 
been developed recently in partnership with Social Value Portal. The platform also contained a mapping 
function to enable the community to ‘pin point’ or highlight issues related to particular sites/ buildings 
across the area. 

9.18 The Social Pin Point site was live until the end of November 2020 and comments were invited from the 
community to feed into the Social Value Strategy for the area.  

9.19 Table 6.2 provides a summary of the initial findings from the website engagement. 

    Table 6.2 – Summary Social Pin Point findings 
 

Theme No. of 
comments 

Priorities Quote  Other 

Climate 
Emergency 

44 • Need to create green 
space 

• Prioritisation of 
pedestrians, cyclists and 
public transport 

• Low carbon transport 
provision 

• Improved access to 
meadow 

“The crescent should 
be a pedestrian first 
road with traffic calming 
measures introduced 
and lots more trees!” 

Most up voted 
comment (4) 
“Improved access to 
meadow…”  

Community 
Assets 

73 • The bridge over the 
Irwell needs lighting 

• Opening up the 
university assets to the 
wider community 

• Peel Park is a key green 
space serving the local 
community 

“Poor lighting - resulting 
in drive-by theft. High 
concern for a large 
number of walkers in 
this part of Salford.” 

Most upvoted 
comment (6) “Peel park 
is a key green space 
serving the local 
community…” 

Culture and 
Creativity 

11 • Maintaining and 
supporting a sense of 
place for local residents 

• The cultural diversity and 
history of Salford should 
be embedded in new 
development 

“Sometimes you need 
‘permission’ to go into 
an area, a purpose” 

Community partners 
listed in this theme –  
Salford culture and place 
partnership 
Salford Museum 
Islington Mill 
Walk the Plank 
Start in Salford 

Economy 
and 
Employment 

11 • Development of local 
small businesses, 
especially social 
enterprises and mutual 

• Improved opportunities 
for local people furthest 
from the job market 
(NEETs, ‘unemployable’) 

• Varied training pathways 
for young people 

“Young people in 
Salford need to feel that 
developments in 
Salford are FOR them 
and INCLUDE them” 

 

Page 178

https://salfordcrescent.mysocialpinpoint.co.uk/home


 
  

Page 27 

Health and 
Social Care 

18 • Provision of safe public 
outdoors space for 
physical activities 

• Better mental health 
provision for local 
community 

“There needs to be a 
place for children, 
teenagers and young 
adults to engage in 
sport activities for free 
so that all children can 
participate” 

 

Poverty and 
Inequality 

20  • Opportunities for young 
people and ex-military 

• Listen to lots of voices 
and bring communities 
together (in a meaningful 
way – not just tick box)  

 

“So when a wave 
meets the land it 
washes up the beach 
for a while rather than 
suddenly stops, getting 
less strong as it is 
soaked up (and the 
language of the term 
red line feels very final 
... maybe green line, to 
represent you can go in 
/ open space?)” 

Idea - Could the red line 
be described / thought of 
as a red ripple, like a 
wave, rather than a line 
in the sand / on a plan 
which is 'fixed'? 
 

   NEXT STEPS 
9.20 This consultation and the key findings will now be used to help shape the Social Value Strategy for the 

Crescent. 

Page 179



 

 

 

  

  

 

 

APPENDICES 

 

Page 180



A  Scoping Consultation Letter 
 

 

Page 29 

 

 

A Scoping Consultation Letter 

Page 181



 
 
 
 
 
 

 

 

6 July 2020 
 
 

 
Salford Crescent and University District Development Framework Document 
 
Dear Sir / Madam,   
 
The Salford Crescent and University District area, encompassing Adelphi Street, The Crescent, the 
University of Salford, Salford Innovation Park, Peel Park and the Meadow, is a priority regeneration 
area for the Council.  It covers approximately 100 hectares and will see significant regeneration and 
development activity over the next 10-15 years.   
 
In May 2014, the Council endorsed a Development Framework covering the Crescent area which can 
be viewed on our website at: https://www.salford.gov.uk/planning-building-and-
regeneration/planning-policies/local-planning-policy/other-local-planning-policies/the-crescent-
development-framework/.   
 
Since this time, further work has been undertaken by the City Council and the University of Salford to 
review and refine the proposals for the Crescent, set out within a new City Council and University 
Masterplan for the area – ‘the Salford Crescent and University District masterplan’. The Masterplan 
vision and objectives were subject to public consultation during August-September 2018.   
 
In this context, the City Council is now looking to prepare a new Development Framework, building 
on the work undertaken as part of the initial Masterplan process, to ensure that it reflects the latest 
evidence and priorities and aligns with the emerging Salford Local Plan: Development Management 
Policies and Designations document in order to create an inviting, attractive and unified place which 
provides new homes and generates jobs and knowledge, enhancing the City of Salford’s economy.  
Once adopted by the City Council the new Development Framework will replace the current 2014 
Crescent Development Framework and will guide development in the area for the next 10+ years.  
 
Vision and Objectives  
 
The City Council has now commenced work on the new Development Framework, taking into account 
the proposals set out within the Masterplan, in order to establish the key development principles and 
a delivery strategy across the area.  
 
 
 
 
 
 

 Planning 
 Salford City Council, Civic Centre 
 Chorley Road, Swinton, M27 5BY 
 

 email plans.consultation@salford.gov.uk 

 Web www.salford.gov.uk 

  
 
 
 

  

  

 

 

 

Page 182

https://www.salford.gov.uk/planning-building-and-regeneration/planning-policies/local-planning-policy/other-local-planning-policies/the-crescent-development-framework/
https://www.salford.gov.uk/planning-building-and-regeneration/planning-policies/local-planning-policy/other-local-planning-policies/the-crescent-development-framework/
https://www.salford.gov.uk/planning-building-and-regeneration/planning-policies/local-planning-policy/other-local-planning-policies/the-crescent-development-framework/
mailto:???@salford.gov.uk
mailto:???@salford.gov.uk
http://www.salford.gov.uk/
http://www.salford.gov.uk/


 
 
Vision  
 
The Salford Crescent and University District Development Framework aims to transform the Salford 
Crescent and University District into a globally recognised destination for people to live, learn, work, 
visit and play. It will create an inspiring, attractive and sustainable place which generates jobs and 
knowledge for the benefit of the wider community. 
 
Objectives 
 
The proposed Development Framework objectives are as follows: 
 

• Support and enhance the future development of the University - The development will 
transform the University’s Campus and the surrounding area to make it an outstanding place 
to study, work, live and visit and will raise the profile of the University regionally, nationally and 
internationally. It will enhance the campus, bridge barriers between the various University 
zones and enhance existing assets. The creation of a new innovation district will forge stronger 
links between University teaching and research and business and employers, bringing 
economic growth and added value to the economy. Planned development will bring new 
opportunities to better connect the University with industry. New infrastructure and public realm 
will better connect the campus to cultural facilities and fantastic green recreational spaces 
across the area.  

• Enhance the local experience for students and University staff- The development seeks 
to enhance the local experience for students and University staff and ensure that the University 
campus and wider Crescent area provides an attractive and safe long-term home-from-home 
base to improve academic performance and graduate retention rates within the City. 

• Create opportunity for all and ensure nobody is left behind - The development must create 
opportunities for everyone.  Future development will take advantage of all opportunities to 
maximise wider social value and contribute to social inclusion, with the aim of leaving a positive 
lasting legacy for communities within and surrounding the area.  

• Create a place with culture at its heart - The development will build on the fantastic existing 
assets across the area to create a place rich in culture. A new cultural hub will be created, 
centred around the landmark Salford Museum and Art Gallery and former Fire Station. The 
redevelopment of Maxwell Hall will create a modern conferencing and event centre. 
Connectivity between assets across the cultural hub will be significantly enhanced by high 
quality public realm enhancements. 

• Generate high quality employment and create a truly unique and compelling innovation 
district - The development will seek to generate high-quality employment opportunities across 
the area. The innovation district will be an attraction to both skilled and creative workers, 
innovative firms, researchers and investors. The innovation zone will be interconnected with 
the University, MediaCityUK and Salford Royal NHS Foundation Trust to help realise the 
ambition of the Salford innovation triangle. The University Industrial Collaboration Strategy 
(ICS) will be used as a fundamental principle to encourage industry partnership schemes.  

• Radically change and enhance existing infrastructure and public realm - The 
development will provide new green infrastructure and public realm that will allow for 
sustainable travel and connectivity throughout the area and into adjacent communities. 
Opportunities will be explored to create a new high-quality transport hub centred around 
Salford Crescent Station, including potential new Metrolink connections to Salford Quays and 
the City Centre, creating a destination that is accessible to all and that facilitates enhanced 
sustainable travel choices.  

• Provide high quality homes and a mix of tenures - The development will contain a varied 
mix of high-quality, adaptable, low energy homes for everyone. 

• Lead the way to carbon neutrality - The development will have sustainability at its core; 
creating sustainable transport and infrastructure, ensuring climate reliance, increasing bio-

Page 183



 
 

diversity, creating healthy streets and public realm and developing highly sustainable and 
environmentally friendly buildings. 

• Enhance the wealth of existing green assets and significantly increase biodiversity - 
The development will capitalise on the fantastic green spaces that already exist in the area 
and create new infrastructure and public realm full of rich greenery that will encourage walking, 
cycling and recreation.  

• Respond to and integrate with the local communities - The development will respond to, 
and fully integrate with the surrounding community. The development will create new links to 
surrounding communities to ensure that the new buildings, places and infrastructure that are 
created benefit everyone. 

• Conserving and enhancing the area’s unique historic environment - The development will 
establish a positive strategy for the conservation and enjoyment of the area’s unique historic 
environment and character, celebrating the Crescent’s many listed buildings and structures, 
historic parks and archaeological sites.  

• Support healthy lifestyles and improved wellbeing - The development will support healthy 
lifestyles and the improved wellbeing of students and University staff and of current and new 
residents and employees through the provision of safe and accessible green infrastructure, 
sustainable transport, enhanced public realm, quality new homes and employment 
opportunities. Opportunities will exist to develop and enhance physical health infrastructure 
and facilities in the locality.  

 
Revisions to the Development Framework 
 
Since the existing Development Framework for the area was adopted in 2014, there have been a 
number of changes in terms of housing and employment need within the City of Salford and the 
requirements of the University have also evolved. The new Development Framework will be informed 
by an assessment of the latest evidence base documents. It will also review the boundary of the 
Development Framework area, having consideration of the adjoining landholdings and the need to 
incorporate key pieces of infrastructure to ensure there is sufficient connectivity across this new urban 
City District.   
 
We would welcome any comments which will assist us in informing the review of the Development 
Framework. We would welcome responses to the following questions: 
 
1) Do you agree with the proposed red line boundary, shown edged red on the enclosed plan, 

which establishes the extent of the regeneration area? 
2) Do you agree with the vision for the future of the area and what the Development Framework 

is aiming to create? 
3) Do you agree with the objectives proposed to achieve the vision for the area? 
4) What key themes do you think the Development Framework should cover (i.e. traffic, heritage, 

blue-green infrastructure) and what key issues should it seek to address?  
5) Do you have any other comments to make on the proposed Development Framework at this 

stage? 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 184



 
 
Submission of Comments 
 
All comments should be received by the City Council no later than 3 August 2020.  
 
Comments may be submitted by any of the following means:  
 

• By email to plans.consultation@salford.gov.uk   
• By post to:  

 
Salford Crescent and University District Development Framework Document 
consultation  
Spatial Planning  
Salford Civic Centre  
Chorley Road  
Swinton  
M27 5BY  

 
The City Council’s preferred communication method is via email and therefore if you have received 
this letter by post, we would be grateful if you could provide an email address for all future 
correspondence. 
 
Subject to the nature of comments received, we intend to prepare an updated Draft Development 
Framework Document, which will be subject to formal consultation later this year. 
 
If you have any queries regarding the proposed review of the Salford Crescent Development 
Framework Document please contact the spatial planning team via 
plans.consultation@salford.gov.uk   
 
Data protection 
 
Please note that all comments will be held by Salford City Council and will be available to view publicly. 
Comments cannot be treated as confidential. Your personal information, such as your postal and e-
mail address will not be published, but your name and organisation (if relevant) will. 
 
In responding to this consultation your contact details will automatically be added to the Council’s 
planning policy consultation database. If you do not want to be contacted about future stages of the 
Salford Crescent Development Framework Document, or other planning policy documents, please let 
us know in your response. 
 
Yours faithfully, 
 

 
 
James Shuttleworth  
Head of Planning 
 
Encs. Proposed Development Framework Boundary Plan   

Page 185

mailto:plans.consultation@salford.gov.uk
mailto:plans.consultation@salford.gov.uk


B  Consultation Distribution Boundary 
 

 

Page 30 

 
 

B Consultation Distribution Boundary 

Page 186



C  Scoping Consultation – Schedule of Representations 
 

 

Page 31 

 

C Scoping Consultation – Schedule of Representations  

Page 187



Responses from Statutory Consultees - Scoping consultation 

 Consultee Comment Response 

1 Highways 
England  

Highways England has been appointed by the 
Secretary of State for Transport as a strategic 
highway company under the provisions of the 
Infrastructure Act 2015. Highways England is 
responsible for operating, maintaining and 
improving the Strategic Road Network (SRN) in 
England, in accordance with the Licence issued by 
the Secretary of State for Transport (April 2015) 
and Government policies and objectives. 
 
Highways England’s approach to engaging with the 
planning system is governed by the advice and 
guidance set out in: The Strategic Road Network 
Planning for the Future - A guide to working with 
Highways England on planning matters (2015). 
 
Our response to the Salford Crescent and 
University District Development Framework 
Document consultation is written in the context of 
statutory responsibilities as set out in Highways 
England’s Licence, and in the light of Government 
policy and regulation, including the: 
 
• National Planning Policy Framework (NPPF); 
• Town and Country Planning Development 
Management (Procedure) Order (England) 2015 
(DMPO); and 
• DfT Circular 02/2013 The Strategic Road Network 
and the delivery of sustainable development (‘the 
Circular’). 
 
As a statutory consultee in the planning system, 
Highways England has a regulatory duty to co-
operate. Consequently, Highways England are 
obliged to give consideration to all proposals 
received and to provide appropriate, timely and 
substantive responses. 
 
Highways England’s desire to be a proactive 
planning partner goes beyond this statutory role, 
but follows the spirit of the Licence which stipulates 
that Highways England should: “Support local and 
national economic growth and regeneration” 
 

Extensive 
public 
consultation on 
a Draft 
Development 
Framework for 
the area will 
take place in 
October / 
November 
2020. The draft 
Development 
Framework will 
set out 
proposals for 
the Transport 
Hub, Metrolink 
connectivity 
and approach 
to the A6 
highway in 
greater detail. 
Highways 
England will be 
consulted on 
the Draft 
Development 
Framework in 
due course.  

Page 188



Highways England encourages all parties 
promoting and preparing Plans that may have an 
impact on the SRN to engage with it as early as 
possible, to enable collaborative working and to 
deliver positive outcomes as quickly as possible. 
Highways England are committed to working with 
local authorities and plan-making bodies prior to 
and between formal consultation periods to 
contribute to the thinking, and support the analysis 
of options and development of strong plans and 
proposals that take full account of highways issues. 
 
Whilst many of the objectives within the proposed 
Development Framework are outside the scope of 
Highways England’s remit, we are supportive of 
plans to promote sustainable travel and therefore 
by extension the desire to reduce travel by car. A 
transport hub at Salford Crescent Station, including 
a new Metrolink connection, would likely aid in 
achieving this aim, though given the proximity to the 
terminal roundabout of the M602 motorway, we 
would ask to be involved in any consolation which 
may take place. This is to ensure that any impact to 
the Strategic Road Network is minimised. 
 
Additional to the potential development of a rail / 
Metrolink hub, we would also reinstate the need to 
consult Highways England should any of the 
developments within the Salford Crescent and 
University District area lead to a likely change in 
travel demand which would negatively impact the 
M602 motorway. 

Page 189



2 Environme
nt Agency  

1. ‘Do you agree with the proposed red line 
boundary, shown edged red on the enclosed plan, 
which establishes the extent of the regeneration 
area?’ 
We have no comments on the extent of the area to 
be considered within the proposed Development 
Framework (DF). However, we would take this 
opportunity to highlight that there are a number of 
constraints present within the DF area. These 
should be considered within the forthcoming DF but 
also as part of any separate further planning 
proposals. These include but are not limited to: 
§ The presence of the River Irwell (designated 
‘Main River’) and Flood Zone 2/3 designations. 
Further to an appropriate flood risk assessment, 
any works within the vicinity of this watercourse 
may require a Flood Risk Activity Permit (FRAP) 
granted by the EA. We also have a hydrometric 
monitoring point situated at Adelphi Weir which will 
need to be considered for any works/proposals that 
could alter present hydrological conditions. 
§ The presence of superficial and underlying 
bedrock aquifers (which includes Secondary A , 
Secondary B and Principal designations). These 
are considered controlled water resources and will 
need to be protected and carefully considered by 
any development proposal with the DF area, 
especially where historic sources of contamination 
may be present. 
 
2. ‘Do you agree with the vision for the future of the 
area and what the Development Framework is 
aiming to create?’ 
We broadly agree with the vision presented and we 
are encouraged that the draft vision wording 
includes reference to the importance of creating a 
sustainable environment which will benefit the area 
and community. It is our belief that the vision could 
be further enhanced by including direct reference to 
the environment, we suggested the following vision 
wording:- 
“The Salford Crescent and University District 
Development Framework aims to transform the 
Salford Crescent and University District into a 
globally recognised destination for people to live, 
learn, work, visit and play. It will create an inspiring, 
attractive and sustainable place which generates 

1) The 
constraints set 
out in your 
response will 
be considered 
at both 
Development 
Framework 
level and as 
part of any 
future planning 
applications for 
developments 
within the 
vicinity of these 
constraints. 
 
2) The 
Development 
Framework 
vision will be 
updated to 
include a 
reference to 
protecting and 
enhancing the 
natural 
environment.   
 
3) The 
opportunities to 
deliver 
environmental 
betterment 
measures are 
noted. 
 
4) These 
matters will be 
covered within 
the Draft 
Development 
Framework.  
 
5) Extensive 
public 
consultation on 

Page 190



professional and educational opportunities for the 
benefit of the wider community whilst also 
protecting and enhancing the natural environment" 
In justification of the above, whilst benefitting the 
general public/community is a top priority for the 
DF, it is also important to ensure future 
development will directly benefit the natural 
environment. This includes instances where 
benefits to the general public are not immediately 
recognisable or direct, i.e. the creation of blue-
green spaces for enhancement and retention of 
biodiversity which are uninterrupted by human 
interference. This advice aligns with emerging 
policy with the Greater Manchester Spatial Frame 
and forthcoming Environment Bill. 

 
3. ‘Do you agree with the objectives proposed to 
achieve the vision for the area?’ 
We are in agreement with the DF objectives 
proposed and are encouraged to see the inclusion 
of an individual objective to “Enhance the wealth of 
existing green assets and significantly increase 
biodiversity”. 
As part of capitalising upon existing green spaces 
with the area, further development in alignment with 
the objective noted above might also offer 
opportunity to deliver some environmental 
betterment measures. These include but are not 
limited to: 
- improved floodplain connectivity; 
- preservation and where possible enhancement in 
the ecological value of marginal aquatic habitat, 
banks and the riparian zone; 
- removal of hard bank reinforcement/revetment, or 
replacement with soft engineered solutions; 
- implementation of appropriately considered 
Sustainable Urban Drainage (SuDs) with 
preference given to ‘green’ options where feasible 
in line with the Ciria SuDs Manual (C753); 
- preservation and, where possible, restoration of 
historic aquatic habitats; 
- bank rehabilitation and reprofiling; and 
- the creation of a new fish pass at the Adelphi 
Weir. 

 
4. ‘What key themes do you think the Development 

a Draft 
Development 
Framework for 
the area will 
take place in 
October / 
November 
2020. The 
Environment 
Agency will be 
consulted on 
the Draft 
Development 
Framework in 
due course.  

Page 191



Framework should cover (i.e. traffic, heritage, blue-
green infrastructure) and what key issues should it 
seek to address?’ 
In line with the vision and objective 
recommendations outlined above and previous EA 
input provided on the 2014 Development 
Framework, we would welcome comprehensive 
coverage of matters associated with: 
- the provision, enhancement and retainment of 
blue-green infrastructure which offers 
multifunctional benefits (e.g. surface water 
drainage, community wellbeing, habitat resilience 
and connectivity); 
- the impacts of climate change, in particular 
consideration to associated flood risk; and 
- removal of prior historic development which 
negatively impacts upon the area environment and 
the utilisation of brownfield spaces. 

 
5. Do you have any other comments to make on the 
proposed Development Framework at this stage? 
Given the opportunities the Development 
Framework will create to positively influence future 
development in the area, we offer our own 
knowledge and support to Salford City Council in 
the development of the new DF. 

3 Sport 
England 

Thank you for giving Sport England the opportunity 
to provide comments on the above Development 
Framework Document. 
 
Since the Framework was endorsed in 2014 there 
have been several changes to national planning 
policy and guidance/strategies that can help inform 
this Framework: 
 
• Amendments to the NPPF 
• GM Moving Strategy (2017) 
https://www.gmmoving.co.uk/ 
• Sport England Active Design Guidance (2015) 
https://www.sportengland.org/how-we-can-
help/facilities-and-planning/design-and-cost-
guidance/active-design 
• Salford Playing Pitch Strategy (2018) 
• Salford Indoor Sport and Leisure Facility Strategy 
(2015) 
• Updated Sport England strategic planning tools for 

1) Sport 
England will be 
consulted on 
any 
development 
proposals 
affecting David 
Lewis Paying 
Fields. 
 
2) Comments 
noted and the 
vision will be 
updated to 
include this 
reference. 
 
3) Comments 
noted and the 
objectives will 

Page 192



estimating additional demand for sport from new 
development – Sports Facility Calculator and 
Playing Pitch Calculator 
• Sport England Strategy ‘Towards an Active 
Nation’ 
• Draft Greater Manchester Spatial Framework 
 
With the above strategies in mind I have 
commented on the Framework questions: 
 
1. Do you agree with the proposed red line 
boundary, shown edged red on the enclosed plan, 
which establishes the extent of the regeneration 
area? 
No comment on the red line boundary but it is noted 
that David Lewis Playing Fields are included.  Sport 
England would be a statutory consultee on any 
development affecting the playing fields.  
Engagement on any proposals at an early stage in 
the design process would be welcomed. 
 
2. Do you agree with the vision for the future of the 
area and what the Development Framework is 
aiming to create? 
Broadly agree with the overall aim of the vision but 
would welcome the inclusion of "be active" the 
sentence ending “visit and play”.  The importance of 
access to greenspace for activity and good mental 
health has been highlighted during the Covid 
pandemic.  With indoor and outdoor sports facilities 
being closed, individuals and households have 
become reliant on access to greenspace nearby to 
carry out their daily exercise. 
 
3. Do you agree with the objectives proposed to 
achieve the vision for the area? 
Broadly yes - would like to see more emphasis 
around opportunities to be physically active within 
the "Radically change and enhance existing 
infrastructure and public realm" and "Support 
healthy lifestyles and improved wellbeing" 
objectives.  This would bring the objectives in line 
with the GM Moving Strategy and Sport England’s 
Strategy. 
 
4. What key themes do you think the Development 
Framework should cover (i.e. traffic, heritage, blue-

be updated to 
include these 
references.  
 
4) Comments 
noted. The 
Development 
Framework will 
include 
refences to 
Active Design 
principles.  
 
5) Further detail 
about proposed 
numbers of new 
residential units 
will be set out in 
the Draft 
Development 
Framework and 
Sport England 
will be 
consulted on 
the Draft 
Framework in 
due course. 
Your comments 
regarding the 
need to 
undertake an 
assessment to 
estimate 
additional 
demand for 
sports facilities 
are noted. 

Page 193



green infrastructure) and what key issues should it 
seek to address? 
Active design - it's clear there is an overarching 
objective to promote health and wellbeing 
throughout the objectives and adopting the 
principles of Active Design will help to achieve 
those objectives. Active Design is a key priority of 
the GM Moving Strategy and is contained within the 
emerging Greater Manchester Spatial Framework 
draft policy GM-E-5.  
https://www.sportengland.org/how-we-can-
help/facilities-and-planning/design-and-cost-
guidance/active-design 
 
Sport England and BRE Global have worked 
together to map the individual issues and criteria in 
each BREEAM Scheme with the Active Design 
principles outlined by Sport England. The built 
environment can have major impacts on people’s 
health and wellbeing, designing the Principles of 
Active Design into new, emerging and established 
areas of the built environment is becoming 
increasingly desirable at national and local planning 
levels. BREEAM, HQM and CEEQUAL are 
schemes which can be used to ensure that the high 
level principles of active design are met and 
implemented where possible during each stage of a 
projects lifecycle. 
https://www.breeam.com/engage/research-and-
development/consultation-engagement/active-
design-and-breeam/ 
 
5. Do you have any other comments to make on the 
proposed Development Framework at this stage? 
The increased amount of student accommodation 
and housing is likely to put pressure on existing 
sports facilities.  Using Salford’s Playing Pitch 
Strategy (PPS) and Indoor Sport and Leisure 
Facility Strategy (ISFS) as a starting point, an 
assessment of what the additional demand is likely 
to be and impact on existing facilities is required to 
help inform the Framework. Sport England has 
developed strategic planning tools (Sports Facility 
Calculator and Playing Pitch Calculator) to help 
estimate the additional demand.  Using the capacity 
analysis from the PPS and ISFS it will help inform 
whether existing sports facilities have sufficient 

Page 194



capacity to accommodate the additional growth; 
improvements are required to increase capacity; or 
new provision required. Sport England will be 
happy to assist with this assessment. 

4 Coal 
Authority  

Thank you for your notification received on the 7 
July 2020 in respect of the above consultation.   
 
The Coal Authority records do not indicate that 
there are any coal mining features at shallow depth 
or surface coal resource present in the area 
identified for the Development Framework.  On this 
basis the Coal Authority has no specific comments 
to make in respect of the consultation document.   

No response 
required. 

5 National 
Grid  

We have reviewed the above document and can 
confirm that National Grid has no comments to 
make in response to this consultation. 
Further Advice 
National Grid is happy to provide advice and 
guidance to the Council concerning their networks. 

No response 
required. 

Page 195



6 Natural 
England  

While we welcome this opportunity to give our 
views, the topic this Development Framework 
Document covers is unlikely to have major impacts 
on the natural environment. We therefore do not 
wish to provide specific comments, but advise you 
to consider the following issues: 
 

Green Infrastructure 
This Development Framework Document could 
consider making provision for Green Infrastructure 
(GI) within development. This should be in line with 
any GI strategy covering your area. 
The National Planning Policy Framework states that 
local planning authorities should ‘take a strategic 
approach to maintaining and enhancing networks of 
habitats and green infrastructure’. The Planning 
Practice Guidance on Green Infrastructure provides 
more detail on this. 
Urban green space provides multi-functional 
benefits. It contributes to coherent and resilient 
ecological networks, allowing species to move 
around within, and between, towns and the 
countryside with even small patches of habitat 
benefitting movement. Urban GI is also recognised 
as one of the most effective tools available to us in 
managing environmental risks such as flooding and 
heat waves. Greener neighbourhoods and 
improved access to nature can also improve public 
health and quality of life and reduce environmental 
inequalities. 
There may be significant opportunities to retrofit 
green infrastructure in urban environments. These 
can be realised through: 
· green roof systems and roof gardens; 
· green walls to provide insulation or shading and 
cooling; 
· new tree planting or altering the management of 
land (e.g. management of verges to enhance 
biodiversity). 
You could also consider issues relating to the 
protection of natural resources, including air quality, 
ground and surface water and soils within urban 
design plans. 
Further information on GI is include within The 
Town and Country Planning Association’s "Design 
Guide for Sustainable Communities" and their more 
recent "Good Practice Guidance for Green 

Regarding 
green 
infrastructure 
and 
biodiversity, the 
Development 
Framework 
includes the 
following 
objectives 
which address 
the points 
raised in your 
response: 
 
• Radically 
change and 
enhance 
existing 
infrastructure 
and public 
realm - The 
development 
will provide new 
green 
infrastructure 
and public 
realm that will 
allow for 
sustainable 
travel and 
connectivity 
throughout the 
area and into 
adjacent 
communities. 
Opportunities 
will be explored 
to create a new 
high-quality 
transport hub 
centred around 
Salford 
Crescent 
Station, 
including 
potential new 

Page 196



Infrastructure and Biodiversity". 
 
Biodiversity enhancement 
This Development Framework Document could 
consider incorporating features which are beneficial 
to wildlife within development, in line with 
paragraphs 8, 72, 102, 118, 170, 171, 174 and 175 
of the National Planning Policy Framework. You 
may wish to consider providing guidance on, for 
example, the level of bat roost or bird box provision 
within the built structure, or other measures to 
enhance biodiversity in the urban environment. An 
example of good practice includes the Exeter 
Residential Design Guide SPD, which advises 
(amongst other matters) a ratio of one nest/roost 
box per residential unit. 
 

Landscape enhancement 
The Development Framework Document may 
provide opportunities to enhance the character and 
local distinctiveness of the surrounding natural and 
built environment; use natural resources more 
sustainably; and bring benefits for the local 
community, for example through green 
infrastructure provision and access to and contact 
with nature. Landscape characterisation and 
townscape assessments, and associated sensitivity 
and capacity assessments provide tools for 
planners and developers to consider how new 
development might makes a positive contribution to 
the character and functions of the landscape 
through sensitive siting and good design and avoid 
unacceptable impacts. 
Protected species 
Natural England has produced Standing Advice to 
help local planning authorities assess the impact of 
particular developments on protected or priority 
species. 

 
Strategic Environmental Assessment/Habitats 
Regulations Assessment 
A Development Framework Document requires a 
Strategic Environmental Assessment only in 
exceptional circumstances as set out in the 
Planning Practice Guidance here. While 
Development Framework Document are unlikely to 

Metrolink 
connections to 
Salford Quays 
and the City 
Centre, creating 
a destination 
that is 
accessible to all 
and that 
facilitates 
enhanced 
sustainable 
travel choices.  
• Lead the way 
to carbon 
neutrality - The 
development 
will have 
sustainability at 
its core; 
creating 
sustainable 
transport and 
infrastructure, 
ensuring 
climate 
reliance, 
increasing bio-
diversity, 
creating healthy 
streets and 
public realm 
and developing 
highly 
sustainable and 
environmentally 
friendly 
buildings. 
• Enhance the 
wealth of 
existing green 
assets and 
significantly 
increase 
biodiversity - 
The 
development 

Page 197



give rise to likely significant effects on European 
Sites, they should be considered as a plan under 
the Habitats Regulations in the same way as any 
other plan or project. If your Development 
Framework Document requires a Strategic 
Environmental Assessment or Habitats Regulation 
Assessment, you are required to consult us at 
certain stages as set out in the Planning Practice 
Guidance. 

will capitalise 
on the fantastic 
green spaces 
that already 
exist in the area 
and create new 
infrastructure 
and public 
realm full of rich 
greenery that 
will encourage 
walking, cycling 
and recreation.  
 
Regarding the 
requirement for 
a Strategic 
Environmental 
Assessment, an 
SEA/SA 
screening 
assessment 
has been 
prepared and 
issued to 
statutory 
consultees, 
including 
Natural 
England who 
have confirmed 
that a SEA/SA 
is not required.  

7 Historic 
England 

Thank you for your email of the 7th July 2020 
inviting our views on the scoping of the Salford 
Crescent & University District Development 
Framework Document. We note the five specific 
questions stated in the cover letter and our answers 
are set out below:- 
1) Do you agree with the proposed red line 
boundary, shown edged red on the enclosed plan, 
which establishes the extent of the regeneration 
area? 
It is positive to see that the environs of The 
Crescent conservation area are included in the 
proposed red line boundary, but we have no further 
comments to make. 

1) No response 
required 
2) The vision 
will be updated 
to include this 
reference 
3) No response 
required 
4) The historic 
environment is 
a key 
consideration of 
the 
Development 

Page 198



2) Do you agree with the vision for the future of the 
area and what the Development Framework is 
aiming to create? 
The vision sets out a positive framework within 
which to work; however, we suggest that you could 
reference building on existing positive 
characteristics of Salford, such as the historic 
environment around the Crescent Conservation 
Area, to create a distinctive place. 
3) Do you agree with the objectives proposed to 
achieve the vision for the area? 
We welcome the inclusion of an objective relating to 
the historic environment. 
4) What key themes do you think the Development 
Framework should cover (i.e. traffic, heritage, blue-
green infrastructure) and what key issues should it 
seek to address? 
The positives of heritage led regeneration are well 
recognised and we would encourage you to 
continue to put the historic environment central to 
the Development Framework. 
5) Do you have any other comments to make on the 
proposed Development Framework at this stage? 
Not at present, but we would welcome continued 
involvement in the production 

Framework 
5) Historic 
England will be 
consulted on 
the Draft 
Development 
Framework in 
due course 

8 GMAAS GMAAS have previously provided comments as 
part of the University of Salford’s internal 
consultation on the master plan in 2018. We are 
pleased to note that archaeological interests and 
opportunities are referenced in the Framework: 
‘Conserving and enhancing the area’s unique 
historic environment - The development will 
establish a positive strategy for the conservation 
and enjoyment of the area’s unique historic 
environment and character, celebrating the 
Crescent’s many listed buildings and structures, 
historic parks and archaeological sites.’ 
The study area is split by The Crescent which is an 
ancient routeway continuing north west away from 
the historic centre of Salford (at the eastern end of 
Chapel Street). As well as the impressive range of 
highly significant listed buildings, park and 
conservation areas, the Framework site contains 
buried remains such as a large-scale early 19th 
century burial ground, the former Bolton, Bury and 
Manchester canal, the sites of late 18th and 19th 
century houses representing a range of social 

The preparation 
of an 
archaeological 
desk based 
assessment will 
be considered 
by the Partners. 
Historic 
England have 
been consulted 
on the 2018 
Masterplan and 
are a statutory 
consultee for 
the preparation 
of the 
Development 
Framework.  

Page 199



strata, and former manufacturing sites of industrial 
archaeological interest. There is also limited 
potential for prehistoric and medieval/post medieval 
remains. The initial Masterplan process was not 
informed by a study of the historic environment, 
including archaeology. GMAAS therefore 
recommends that this is now undertaken to ensure 
that there is a good evidence base which formally 
identifies heritage assets with an archaeological, 
architectural and historic interest; these will include 
below-ground archaeological remains, built and 
landscape heritage. This study would be best 
practice and in accordance with the principles of 
sustainable development as set out in the National 
Planning Policy Framework and referenced in the 
strategy statement above. The study should take 
the form of an archaeological desk based 
assessment (DBA), undertaken at an early stage, to 
identify opportunities to maximise heritage interests, 
including community engagement, enhancing key 
heritage assets, and embedding heritage in the 
public realm, as well as to flag up potential risks 
and costs to the development process such as 
archaeological investigation of buried remains. 
There will also be opportunities for students to 
engage in this process to gain real world knowledge 
of planning-led historic environment analysis and 
management. 
There have been a number of archaeological 
investigations within and adjacent to the Framework 
site in recent years. These include The Crescent 
(Domus) and Adelphi Wharf developments within 
the red line boundary, together with historic 
environment assessments for Salford Cathedral’s 
masterplan, The Crescent pub site, the former 
police station, Peel Park and other sites. Just 
outside the red line, extensive excavations and 
research have been undertaken on a range of 
recent development sites (such as Vimto Gardens) 
running down Chapel Street to the historic medieval 
core of Salford’s early settlement. Several of these 
sites have been 
published, including popular booklets in the Greater 
Manchester’s Past Revealed series which are given 
freely to the local community to provide a shared 
sense of history and place: 
https://diggreatermanchester.wordpress.com/public

Page 200



ations/ 
The DBA will reference and summarise these 
investigations which will help to provide historical 
and archaeological context for the Framework. The 
study will also draw on sources such as the Greater 
Manchester Historic Environment Record (held and 
maintained by GMAAS at Salford University, and a 
requirement under NPPF), historic aerial 
photographs, local history articles, census returns, 
trade directories, relevant unpublished and 
published articles, and University archives. The 
DBA will provide the foundation document for 
understanding the historical development of known 
and potential heritage assets within the red line 
boundary of the Framework. It will provide a wealth 
of information for use in public engagement 
activities and for heritage 
displays/trails/publications. It will inform the 
planning process as developments within the 
Framework area are taken forward. 
Salford Archaeology, who form part of the Centre 
for Applied Archaeology within the School of 
Science, Engineering and Environment are 
experienced practitioners in this sort of work and 
could be approached to undertake the assessment 
as internal experts. 
For the listed buildings, park and Conservation 
Areas it is advisable to seek specialist reports on 
the impact of proposals on built heritage and 
setting. These will sit alongside and complement 
the archaeological study. 
I would be happy to discuss the implementation of 
the desk based assessment and other aspects of 
the historic environment in more detail. 

Page 201



9 United 
Utilities  

Thank you for seeking the views of United Utilities 
as part of the consultation process. United Utilities 
wishes to build a strong partnership with all Local 
Planning Authorities (LPAs) to aid sustainable 
development and growth within its area of 
operation. We aim to proactively identify future 
development needs and share our information. This 
helps: 
 
- ensure a strong connection between development 
and infrastructure planning; 
- deliver sound planning strategies; and 
- inform our future infrastructure investment 
submissions for determination by our regulator.  
 
United Utilities wishes to highlight that we wish to 
continue the constructive communication with 
Salford Council to ensure a co-ordinated approach 
to the delivery of future allocations in both the Local 
Plan and GMSF process. We have attended a 
number of meetings since the initial draft of the 
GMSF to initially highlight relevant infrastructure 
issues and key principles to be considered in order 
to most appropriately manage the impact on our 
assets and are happy to extend this to development 
part of the above framework. We wish to continue 
dialogue with the Council to secure sustainable 
delivery of all future development and encourage 
contact as soon as information becomes available. 
 
We wish to highlight our free pre-application service 
for applicants to discuss and agree drainage 
strategies and water supply requirements. We 
cannot stress highly enough the importance of 
contacting us as early as possible. Pre-application 
discussions with Untied Utilities should be 
consistent with those with the LPA as they do not 
override the planning application process, and 
information submitted to United Utilities must be 
consistent with planning applications that are 
submitted. Should any circumstances change, we 
would recommend that a pre-application to United 
Utilities is resubmitted to highlight any changes.  
 
United Utilities has some significant water and 
wastewater infrastructure within framework 
boundary. All UU assets will need to be afforded 

The Partners 
will engage with 
United Utilities 
in due course to 
discuss asset 
protection, 
water supply 
and sustainable 
drainage and 
will make use of 
United Utilities 
pre-application 
service to 
ensure that all 
United Utilities 
assets across 
the area are 
given due 
regard.  
 
The Draft 
Development 
Framework will 
include 
references to 
Draft Local Plan 
policies EF1 
and EF2 
 
The Partners 
will work with 
United Utilities 
to deliver 
infrastructure 
across the 
area, including 
multi-functional 
SuDS and will 
consider the 
opportunities to 
connect this 
infrastructure to 
the wider green 
network across 
the area.  
 
The Partners 

Page 202



due regard in any masterplanning process as the 
location of such assets can impact on the 
deliverability of certain schemes. All our assets 
must be given due regard as part of future 
development. 
 
We therefore strongly recommend that the Council 
directs future developers to contact us at their 
earliest convenience, ideally before any contracts or 
land transactions, and certainly prior to planning 
application stage, to explore their options as early 
as possible. We cannot stress highly enough the 
role the Council can play in encouraging 
applicants/developers to contact us early in the 
development process to discuss asset protection, 
water supply and sustainable drainage. It is the 
applicant's responsibility to demonstrate the exact 
relationship between any United Utilities' assets 
and any proposed development. It should 
highlighted at this stage that during and post 
construction, there should be no additional load 
bearing capacity on the main without prior 
agreement from United Utilities. This would include 
any earth movement and the transport and position 
of construction equipment and vehicles. We will 
need to review any proposed designs (including 
any vibration or settlement calculations) and agree 
a method of work with you prior to any site works 
starting. It is therefore important that developers are 
aware of the location of our assets at the earliest 
opportunity, to avoid any unnecessary delays to 
development. Where United Utilities’ assets exist, 
the level of cover to the water mains and public 
sewers must not be compromised either during or 
after construction. A number of providers offer a 
paid for mapping service including United Utilities. 
To find out how to purchase a sewer and water plan 
from United Utilities, please visit the Property 
Searches website; 
https://www.unitedutilities.com/property-searches/. 
 
Framework Delivery - Surface Water Drainage 
and Potential Impact on Public Sewerage 
System  
United Utilities wishes to highlight there will be an 
expectation for future planning applications to 
demonstrate how the new development is drained 

fully recognise 
the 
requirements 
for sustainable 
drainage across 
the area and 
this will be 
referenced 
within the 
Development 
Framework. As 
planning 
applications are 
brought forward 
across the area 
the Council will 
ensure that all 
opportunities to 
make use of 
sustainable 
drainage 
systems are 
considered and 
any proposals 
to discharge 
surface water to 
the combined 
sewer network 
are 
accompanied 
by detailed 
evidence to 
demonstrate 
why more 
sustainable 
options within 
the surface 
water hierarchy 
are not 
possible.  
 
Sustainability is 
a key objective 
of the 
Development 
framework and 
the Partners will 

Page 203



in the most sustainable way, by the surface water 
hierarchy and providing evidence when a more 
preferable option is discounted. It is recommended 
that any future draft document acknowledges the 
requirements of Policies EF1 and EF2 from the 
draft Local Plan to ensure co-ordinated 
development across the multiple phases and 
parcels within the allocated area. We would look for 
the Council to encourage a pro-active approach to 
new infrastructure, working alongside United 
Utilities throughout the process, to deliver the 
proposed infrastructure, including multi-functional 
SuDS, ensuring there is communication between 
phases/neighbouring developments so there is 
sufficient capacity to serve all the development in 
the area and not just for one phase. As will be 
outlined further below, there are opportunities to 
link the SuDS infrastructure to a connected, green 
network in the site with multi-functional benefits. 
Considering the green infrastructure and SuDS 
requirements holistically will provide sustainable 
options for the discharge of surface water 
throughout the multiple parcels/phases within the 
allocation as they come forward. It is considered 
that sustainable drainage is a key element to truly 
achieving sustainable development across the 
framework area. As it is a requirement of national 
and local planning policy, it is felt there is an 
opportunity for Salford City Council to ensure the 
design of new development within the framework is 
truly achieves sustainable development by 
proposing a holistic approach that includes the 
sustainable management of surface water. 
Therefore, any underpinning strategy should 
include a holistic approach to the sustainable 
management of surface water that links with any 
network for green infrastructure. Sustainable 
drainage systems (SuDS) are a requirement of 
paragraph 165 of the NPPF. The sustainable 
management of surface water is also referenced 
throughout the draft Publication of the Local Plan, 
especially Policy WA5 and CC1. As planning 
applications within the framework boundary begin to 
come forward, there will be an expectation for the 
use of sustainable drainage systems and for only 
foul flows to communicate with the public sewer. 
Applicants wishing to discharge surface water to the 

consider 
opportunities to 
incorporate 
rainwater 
harvesting and 
green roofs in 
future 
developments 
across the 
area.  
 
The comments 
regarding the 
existing 
drainage 
system across 
the area being 
dominated by 
combined 
sewers are 
noted and the 
Partners will 
pursue a 
sustainable 
approach to 
managing 
surface water to 
help reduce 
surface water 
entering the 
network. The 
Partners will 
engage with 
United Utilities 
in due course to 
discuss this 
matter in more 
detail.  
 
The 
Development 
Framework will 
incorporate the 
suggesting 
wording 
provided by 
United Utilities 

Page 204



combined sewer network will need to submit clear 
evidence why more sustainable options in the 
surface water hierarchy are not available. This is 
especially supported by draft Policy WA5. Planning 
policy and frameworks like the one proposed help 
ensure new development is drained in the most 
sustainable way as development comes forward. 
We wish for the framework to be used as a tool to 
help deliver sustainable drainage in this area of 
Salford, as part of a green-blue infrastructure 
network that leaves a lasting legacy. 
 
Sustainable development can only be achieved if 
early thought is given to an overall strategy to 
sustainable surface water management. As 
referenced above, this should be incorporated into 
any underpinning strategy that is referred to in the 
document. As any new development will be 
predominantly on brownfield land, it should be 
noted that design and strategy can significantly 
contribute to achieving a significant volume 
reduction of surface water discharge to the existing 
public combined sewerage network. At this early 
stage, we feel there is a real opportunity for any 
underpinning strategy to be very ambitious and 
target a significant reduction in the surface water 
runoff rate for new development. The document 
sets out clear design expectations from new 
development. We would challenge Salford Council 
challenge developers to deliver new, sustainable 
buildings that promote techniques like rainwater 
harvesting and green roofs, which help slow the 
flow of resulting surface water. This challenge is 
ever more present in the context of climate change 
and addressing the requirement of draft Policy CC1. 
The extreme weather events are becoming much 
more frequent and it is important to note the role 
brownfield development can play in reducing 
surface water run-off and promoting sustainable 
drainage. It is felt that sustainable development can 
only be truly achieved if sustainable drainage 
practices are fully included as part of the design 
process and followed through to delivery. There are 
opportunities within as part of the proposed 
document to refer to a holistic approach to the 
management of surface water. Any linkage for 
surface water management should be linked to new 

regarding 
sustainable 
drainage.  
 
Land across the 
Development 
Framework 
area is largely 
in the 
ownership of 
the City Council 
and University, 
who have 
formed a formal 
Partnership 
with the English 
Cities Fund to 
deliver the 
ambition of the 
Development 
Framework 
over the coming 
years. A co-
ordinated 
approach to 
infrastructure 
improvements 
will be a key 
consideration of 
the partners 
and a site wide 
infrastructure 
strategy and 
implementation 
plan will be 
prepared over 
the coming 
months to 
consider the 
range of 
infrastructure 
interventions 
required aross 
the area to 
facilitate 
comprehensive 
development.  

Page 205



public realm/green infrastructure and this can be 
referenced throughout the SRF. There is an 
opportunity to use the improved connectivity and 
link sustainable drainage systems with 
multifunctional benefits as part of a high quality, 
connected green and blue water environment. 
There is opportunity to use the document to link 
surface water management as a requirement for 
new development as part of a new, connected 
urban landscape. In referring to the above, it is 
important to explain that the existing drainage 
system in the boundary is largely dominated by 
combined sewers. Combined sewers take both foul 
and surface water. These sewers include several 
combined sewer overflows that are permitted by the 
Environment Agency. These overflows will partly 
contain foul sewage. The purpose of such overflows 
is to prevent network flooding by discharging into a 
nearby watercourses at times of high flow. There 
are numerous overflow discharge points in the 
wider area, and if there is a consistent, sustainable 
approach to management of surface water as part 
of new development, the surface water entering the 
sewer network in the area will be significantly 
reduced, decreasing the discharges from such 
overflow points. This will result in the discharges 
occurring less frequently, as less surface water is 
entering the network, with additional environmental 
improvements for the water environment in the 
borough and the wider region. It should be 
mentioned that this can only be achieved if there is 
a consistent approach across all development 
across the borough, and is addressed through 
frameworks such as this one, so from an initial 
starting point it is integral that documents like this 
one are replicating national and planning policy and 
including sustainable drainage within the delivery 
principles. Referring to the points made above, it 
must be highlighted that we do not raise this point 
with a view to securing unreasonable contributions 
to improving our own infrastructure but rather to 
ensure a coordinated approach to achieving 
sustainable development that will the city centre 
and surrounding areas. We want to highlight our 
concerns at this stage so that Salford Council can 
consider them for inclusion in the document. We 
are happy to meet with the Council as part of the 

Page 206



process to discuss the above in greater detail. 
 
In connection to the above, we suggest the 
following text to be added to any future document 
under Sustainable Drainage’: 
 
‘New development will be expected to incorporate 
exemplary Sustainable Drainage methods and 
follow the surface water hierarchy. Applicants will 
have to submit clear evidence of why more 
sustainable options within the hierarchy have been 
discounted. The expectation will be for only foul 
flows to communicate with the public sewer. 
Development proposing new public realm should 
allocate provision for the management of surface 
water through the use of sustainable drainage 
systems with multi-functional benefits as part of a 
high quality, connected green and blue water 
environment. Any green and blue network must 
demonstrate a consideration for site topography to 
understand any naturally occurring flow paths and 
any low lying areas within the proposal where water 
will naturally accumulate. Resulting layouts should 
ensure the most sustainable drainage solution is 
achieved by mimicking existing circumstances such 
as topography, landscaping and ground conditions. 
Any development must have regards to an 
underpinning strategy that will promote the use of 
connecting sustainable drainage systems between 
multiple phases of development as part of a 
connected green and blue environment. New 
development should ensure unfettered access for 
new sustainable drainage infrastructure through a 
connected series of green and blue infrastructure. 
New green and blue features must consider the 
topography of the site to understand how 
development sites will link and account for any 
naturally occurring flow paths or low lying areas 
within the boundary where water will naturally 
accumulate.’ 
 
Land ownership and a holistic delivery strategy 
The experience of United Utilities is that where sites 
are large and in multiple ownership, the 
achievement of sustainable development can be 
compromised by developers/applicants working 
independently. This can lead to issues between 

Page 207



interconnecting phases of development. We would 
urge the Council to use their position to develop an 
underpinning strategy to secure a co-ordinated 
approach to infrastructure improvements alongside 
the delivery of development as part of this 
framework. It is appreciated that Salford Council 
may have already considered such an approach 
and we are willing to discuss this further to 
understand any delivery challenges in greater 
detail. We would therefore encourage the Council 
to make early contact with UU, landowners or 
development partners on how they intend to work 
together prior to any planning applications, and 
ideally before land transactions. Such agreements 
can be more effective if the Council has specific 
land interest. We’d recommend such agreements 
include a strategy for infrastructure requirements, 
for example meeting the requirements of any 
underpinning strategy, which is submitted with 
planning applications and updated as 
circumstances may changes during delivery. The 
key objective is developing a strategy to how the 
ambitions of any framework are delivered in a co-
ordinated and sustainable manner. The aim is to 
ensure the development principles of the framework 
are met through each development within the 
framework boundary.  

10 GMP -
Design for 
Security 

We thank you for the opportunity to review the 
above development framework proposals. The 
proposed framework has been assessed in its 
entirety. The site covers a vast area involving 
numerous ownerships and complexities. I 
understand that smaller Masterplans and individual 
plots within the framework will come forward for 
development following its adoption  
 
My recommendations below cover the wider remit 
of the site and neighbouring communities.  
 
In circumstances such as this we have historically 
provided an overarching crime impact statement for 
these large-scale masterplans. As and when 
individual development plots, within the masterplan 
come forward for planning we then insist they 
require a Crime Impact Statement (CIS). This 
allows for the principles of the masterplan design 
structure and our comments to be applied to 

As plots are 
brought forward 
for 
development 
across the 
area, planning 
applications will 
be 
accompanied 
by a Crime 
Impact 
Assessment.  
 
In response to 
your comments 
regarding 
natural 
surveillance, 
the Framework 
will propose 

Page 208



individual plots and the wider public realm. The 
quality of these shared spaces is therefore 
paramount; they must be attractive and safe and 
just as importantly maintained to a high standard. 
This can help to establish more stable communities.  
 
In common with most police forces in the UK, 
Greater Manchester police has staff whose role it is 
to assess proposed developments in the context of 
its potential to generate criminal and antisocial 
activity in order to support a safer built environment.   
 
However, we differ from most police forces in that 
our unit has recruited professionals from the built 
environment and urban planning industry. We have 
qualified planners,  chartered architects and a 
landscape architect within in the team which 
enables us to more closely align with the 
development industry so we better appreciate the 
challenges and aspirations in delivering 
masterplans and construction projects within and 
around the city. 
 
Given the time constraints and our current 
workloads we have not had the opportunity to 
undertake any specific crime analysis or a site visit 
on this occasion. That said I have previously 
undertaken an assessmrent for the then ‘Salford 
Crescent and University District Masterplan’ in 
February 2018. I know the area well and have now 
had the opportunity to review the information 
provided.  
 
Please find below my comments and 
recommendations for the development framework.  
 
Proposed development site  
The red-line master-plan covers a wide area along 
the Crescent (A6) corridor, University of Salford 
campus, Peel Park, The Meadow and Salford 
Crescent train station. The site is bounded by 
number of differing neighbourhoods of residential, 
industrial and commercial offerings. 
There is a variety key entry points across the site 
from Pendleton, Lower Broughton, Salford Crescent 
train station and via the A6 from the outer reaches 
of Salford to central Manchester.  

good levels of 
ground floor 
activity 
throughout the 
area and 
natural 
surveillance of 
public spaces. 
New movement 
routes will be 
clear and 
legible and 
integrate fully 
with existing 
circulation 
routes and 
principal 
entrances to 
spaces and 
buildings will be 
located in 
prominent 
positions.  
 
Development 
sites and public 
spaces will 
incorporate 
quality lighting 
schemes to 
create a safe 
and welcoming 
environment for 
all users. 
 
The provision of 
new cycling 
infrastructure is 
a key 
consideration of 
the Partners 
and new routes 
and storage 
facilities will be 
incorporated 
into the design 
of new spaces 

Page 209



The red line covers an approximate development 
area of 100 hectares of land providing a mix of 
uses.  
This framework is a long term proposal that 
provides a designed layout to guide future growth 
and development. The proposed plan seeks to 
make connections between buildings, social 
settings and their surrounding environments. In 
doing so the plan will identify new and emerging 
opportunities across the site for a whole new range 
of educational, residential and commercial 
developments with the new public realm at the 
centre of the growth.  
The site covers a wide area encompassing 
numerous use typologies and is located adjacent to 
neighbourhoods which have an associated crime 
risks. Within and around the site are a number of 
transport links, public routes and connections; these 
links provide the opportunity for investment which 
will embed and connect communities around the 
site.  
The proposal will seeks to create a connected 
community through enhancing existing routes and 
links across the public realm; in doing so this will 
allow economic growth for the area through the 
proposed developments and forged new links. New 
development will encourage emerging new 
businesses and communities to develop within and 
around the proposed site thus supporting the future 
development and growth of the site and 
surrounding area. 
The uses will provide a rich collection of building 
types ranging from commercial offices, education, 
residential, leisure & entertainment around the 
newly developed public realm alongside the River 
lrwell and road networks. 
 
Positive aspects of the proposal  
The proposed site will see the redevelopment of the 
area which, in places has been a generator of anti-
social behaviour and criminal activity.  
Masterplans and proposals should provide good 
levels of ground floor activity; in-turn the building 
uses will offer good levels of activity and natural 
surveillance of the adjacent community space and 
public realm.  
The main public realm circulation routes should be 

and buildings.  
 
Your comments 
regarding the 
use of 
appropriate 
materials which 
support the 
removal of 
graffiti are 
noted and will 
be considered 
in the detailed 
design of new 
development 
across the 
area.  
 
As 
development 
proposals are 
designed in 
more detail, the 
views of 
Counter 
Terrorism 
Security 
Advisors and 
the Design for 
Security team 
will be sought.   

Page 210



obvious, leading people directly to where they need 
to go. The proposals are intended to integrate with 
surrounding circulation routes.  
The redevelopment of the area will provide an 
interesting and diverse uses; offering opportunity for 
new communities alongside existing ones; also 
providing interesting and safer public realm with a 
chance to create an exciting destination.  
The public realm of the area is generally 
permeable, accommodating a variety of transport 
methods and pedestrian movement to be 
concentrated on the spaces between development 
zones. Building use activities should be strategically 
placed to animate new streetscapes and open 
public spaces. Communal residential and 
commercial facilities should be located to promote 
activity and surveillance across new vistas. 
 
Recommendations for the proposal  
Security measure carefully incorporated into the 
environment and building design can ensure that 
the environment is reasonably secure, without 
visibly announcing that the design was concerned 
about crime or safety. The proposed development 
provides the opportunity to include security features 
built into the design and construction of the building 
and avoid the need for obtrusive retro-fitted security 
measures that can increase the fear of crime.  
Future developments should exploit the public 
realm, ensuring that there are active edges to the 
streetscape. The greater the use of these spaces 
the less likely they will be populated by those acting 
anti-socially. 
The principal entrances to areas and buildings 
should be located in prominent positions, which are 
readily apparent from the street. Where ground floor 
amenity spaces have been located, consideration 
should be given to the use of external facing 
materials; glazing, providing good levels of activity.  
As the proposed public spaces and plots are 
developed consideration needs to be given towards 
external lighting. The proposals are to incorporate a 
lighting scheme that will distribute illumination 
evenly around the space without areas of 
shadowing or pooling and work coherently with the 
wider security requirements of the site such as 
CCTV. The lighting and landscaping should work in 

Page 211



harmony and extend to the site entry points and 
beyond, existing transport links (train station & bus 
stops), creating safe and welcoming gateways to 
this new community.  
Consideration for safe cycle routes and bicycle 
storage should be embedded within the landscape 
design. Short-stay cycle parking stands should be 
located where they can be readily observed. The 
location of cycle stores within proposed buildings 
should consider the position, inherent physical 
security and safety of cyclists using the facility.  
Given the high levels of graffiti within and around 
the site, it is important that external cladding 
materials at ground floor are sealed, protected and 
supports the removal of graffiti where required. 
Developments which contain unauthorised graffiti 
can be an indication that the buildings management 
regime in respect of graffiti is a low priority. If graffiti 
is left on buildings/surfaces it can lead to further 
acts of graffiti and/or damage and creates a lasting 
impression of a lack of care towards the local 
environment. Overtime neglected buildings / public 
realm can instil a sense of insecurity towards the 
area. In general a robust management & 
maintenance strategy should be submitted in 
respect to the wider masterplan.  
The development of the public realm space will 
encourage further significant pedestrian footfall in 
the area, with people spending longer in the area, 
rather than it simply passing through as part of a 
journey from A to B. The aspirations of the 
framework also seek to extend the use of this space 
beyond traditional retail business hours. It is 
therefore recommended that planners, developers, 
and architects concerned with this development 
consult with Counter Terrorism Security Advisors 
throughout the planning and implementation of this 
development with a view to ensure protection from 
VAW attacks is as comprehensive as realistically 
possible. This engagement will also afford the 
opportunity to consider other attack methodologies 
and potential mitigations against them. 
As and when building plots and sites within the 
framework come forward for development we 
recommend the engagement of Design for 
Security's involvement at the earliest opportunity 
during design development.  

Page 212



 
I hope the above has helped to raise your 
awareness of this unit and its area of expertise, and 
help you to appreciate the contribution we can 
make to support your vision for the 
neighbourhoods, streets and spaces of the City of 
Salford. 

 

Responses from residents and businesses - Scoping consultation 
 

Comment Response 

1 I disagree with any redevelopment of the meadow, 
John lewis, or any other green spaces in this area. 

The Meadow and Peel Park 
will all be protected from 
development as part of the 
Development Framework. 
The Development Framework 
will seek to enhance access 
existing green spaces across 
the area. David Lewis Playing 
Fields is now leased to the 
University of Salford who 
have secured planning 
permission to create an 
artificial grass pitch on part of 
the site.  

Page 213



2 1) Redline boundary: I think the boundary shown 
should be extended on the west to the broad street 
roundabout, incorporating the residential areas on 
the University side of the road. To the north it would 
be a shame to see Seaford Road and the old Castle 
Irwell site, with it’s access to the beautiful green 
space at Kersal Wetlands, not linked to the campus 
in some way. As a student a decade ago that area 
at times felt like a no mans land between the 
university and residences, I spent my 3 years of 
study in and around lower Broughton in halls and 
private rentals and I know a lot of students still rent 
and live in the area, if the objective is really to 
integrate with local communities, enhance the local 
experience for students and staff, provide high 
quality homes and radically change the existing 
infrastructure these areas are vital, they haven’t had 
the same investment or regeneration as Chapel 
Street, Liverpool Street, or areas close to the quays 
but they’re hugely important if Salford is to maintain 
its heritage and create a more cohesive sense of 
community. 
It does also seem strange that the boundary doesn’t 
include the university accomodation South of Broad 
street, John Lester & Eddie Colman Courts, I’m not 
sure if they’re still university owned / operated like 
they were when I studied but again they link to an 
area of vital importance in Salford Shopping city. 
 
2) I do agree with the vision set out in this 
development proposal, I’ve watched the area 
improve over the last 10 years but more investment, 
planning and integration is needed to truly 
regenerate the area. I think some of the points I’ve 
made could be developed to drastically improve the 
retention rate for Students moving to the area. 
 
3) I do largely agree with the objectives set out to 
achieve the vision for the area, but as detailed in 
point 1 I think the area needs to be expanded if it’s 
to truly achieve its goal. I also note that the 
redevelopment of Maxwell hall is set to be a 
conferencing and event centre, I would love to see 
this (or one of the many listed buildings in that area) 
as a modern venue for live music. The area has a 
rich history on the Greater Manchester music scene 
but is currently non existent in that respect, I think 

The red line boundary for the 
Development Framework 
takes in areas which are 
subject to future development 
and change. The Castle Irwell 
site and Seaford Road area 
are not included within the red 
line boundary, but the 
Development Framework will 
seek to enhance connectivity 
between the Development 
Framework area and 
surrounding communities.  
 
Proposals for Maxwell Hall 
are currently being developed 
by the University of Salford. 
Proposals seek to create a 
world-class entertainment and 
cultural hub for both students 
and the wider Salford and 
Greater Manchester 
communities. 
 
A key objective of the 
Development Framework is 
'conserving and enhancing 
the area's unique historic 
environment.    
 
The Development Framework 
will include a number of 
proposals aimed at improving 
sustainable transport 
connectivity across the area, 
including opportunities to 
introduce a Metrolink 
connection between Salford 
Quays and the Crescent area.   

Page 214



that could play a vital role in improving the 
reputation for the area, bringing more people out of 
Manchester City centre to an area they may barely 
know exists. 
 
4) I don’t fully understand this question but I think 
the area needs developments that steer away from 
high rise living, it goes against the objective of 
enhancing the area’s unique historic environment, 
there should be a focus on amplifying the history 
and heritage of the area and respecting that as part 
of any development. 
There are a traffic issues in the area that perhaps 
could be improved by a “park and ride scheme” to 
encourage car users to swap their car for a bus/bike 
I’m aware we have good bus infrastructure In this 
area but I would suggest it’s an area ignored by the 
Tram Network, I would wonder if it should be 
considered as the next development when the line 
to the Trafford Centre etc is completed. 
 
5) I think I’ve covered everything I can think of at the 
minute but I’d like to be kept up to date with the 
development plans and know a bit more about why 
they are set to be implemented. 

3 1. Red line boundary - I agree with the area, 
although you could extend this further down Adelphi 
Street, towards Silk Street and Blackfriars Road. 
2. Vision - Agreed. 
3. Objectives - Agreed. Perhaps add restaurants so 
Manchester residents come and visit. Something 
like "Escape to Freight Island" seems to be growing 
in popularity elsewhere. 
4. Key themes - Transport is most important. A 
metro link to connect with Manchester city centre 
and Salford Quays. Stops on both A6 Chapel Street 
and A6 Crescent as well as the Station. This would 
tie in well with restaurants.  
5. Any other comments? None. 

The red line boundary for the 
Development Framework 
takes in areas which are 
subject to future development 
and change. The full length of 
Adelphi Street is not included 
within the red line boundary, 
but the Development 
Framework will seek to 
enhance connectivity 
between the Development 
Framework area and 
surrounding communities.  
 
Improving the food and 
beverage offer across the 
area is a key aim of the 
Development Framework and 
proposals will focus on the 
creation of a 'cultural hub' 
taking in the area around 
Salford Museum and Art 

Page 215



Gallery, the Working Class 
Movement Library and the 
former Fire Station. Buildings 
surrounding the former Fire 
Station provide an opportunity 
for ground floor food and 
beverage related uses to help 
improve the local offer.  
 
The Development Framework 
includes a number of 
proposals aimed at improving 
sustainable transport 
connectivity across the area, 
including opportunities to 
introduce a Metrolink 
connection between Salford 
Quays and the Crescent area.   

4 My only comments on the proposal is that it should 
be as environmentally friendly as possible, keep as 
much public green space as viable and have a 
variety of housing types included in it - a good 
portion of which should be homes that are 
affordable to local people and not just international 
landlords looking for a good return on their 
investment!  

In terms of the proposals 
being 'as environmentally 
friendly as possible', the 
Development Framework 
includes a number of 
objectives related to this, 
including radically changing 
and enhancing existing 
infrastructure and public 
realm and providing new 
green infrastructure and 
public realm that will allow for 
sustainable travel and 
connectivity throughout the 
area and into adjacent 
communities. Opportunities 
are also being explored to 
create a new high-quality 
transport hub centred around 
Salford Crescent Station, 
including potential new 
Metrolink connections to 
Salford Quays and the City 
Centre. Another key objective 
is to 'lead the way in carbon 
neutrality' and future 
development will have 
sustainability at its core. 
Proposals will include 

Page 216



increasing biodiversity across 
the area, creating healthy 
streets and developing highly 
sustainable and 
environmentally friendly 
buildings.   
 
A key objective of the 
Development Framework is to 
'provide high quality homes 
and a mix of tenures' and 
future development will seek 
to provide a varied mix of high 
quality, adaptable, low energy 
homes. 

5 Please could you send me a photo of the New 
proposed plans for the crescent meadows lower 
broughton .thanks 

Informed by this scoping 
consultation, the Council will 
be preparing a draft 
Development Framework for 
the area. This document will 
include an Illustrative 
Masterplan which will set out 
future proposals for the area. 
The Draft Development 
Framework will be subject to 
a 6 week public consultation 
which will begin in October 
2020.  

6 Weve received Salford Cresent development letter, 
Im having difficulty working map out, can you put 
my mind at rest and tell me if Nichols Street M66PS 
off Fredrick Rd is going to be built upon, meaning 
losing our home.  

Nichols Street does not fall 
within the Development 
Framework area. 

7 After receiving the email on the development plans 
for Salford crescent development and unviversity 
expansion, I was looking to find out what the 
specific plans for the farmer norton street car Park 
are? As this is right outside my apartment  
 
Also are there plans to build on peel park/ the 
meadow? 

The proposals within the 
Development Framework 
area, including the Farmer 
Norton site are currently 
being developed. A formal 
public consultation is due to 
take place on a Draft 
Development Framework for 
the area in October 2020, 
which will set out 
development proposals for 
the  area. The Meadow and 

Page 217



Peel Park will be protected 
from development, but the 
Development Framework will 
consider opportunities to 
improve access to these 
spaces.  

8 You sent a plan to me, but I cannot tell where the 
borders are in red. I think they include McDonalds 
on Cross lane but not Thorn Court or Flemish 
weaver public house. Will the old police station be 
developed along with the crescent public house? Is 
Maxwell House part of the university? I am thrilled 
with the plans and hope I live long enough to see 
their fruition 

The Development Framework 
area includes the McDonald's 
site on Cross Lane, but does 
not include Torn Court or the 
Flemish Weaver public 
house. The former Police HQ 
falls within the Development 
Framework area and 
proposals for the future of this 
building will be set out in a 
Draft Development 
Framework, which will be 
subject to public consultation 
from October 2020. The 
Maxwell Building is owned by 
the University of Salford and 
also falls within the 
Development Framework 
area. The Draft Development 
Framework will set out the 
future proposals for the 
Maxwell Building and wider 
University Campus.  

9 • I very much much welcome the opportunities 
explored to create a high-quality transport hub 
around Salford Crescent Station including potential 
new Metrolink connections to Salford Quays and the 
City Centre.  And also a new cultural hub centred 
around Salford Museum & Art Gallery and former 
Fire Station 
 
• I'm especially concerned about the following 
statement "Provide high quality homes and a mix of 
tenures".   Are there long term plans for the 
demolition of the Riverside/Spike Island area of 
Lower Broughton for this to happen ?  Long term 
meaning  5-10 years+ 

The Development Framework 
does not include properties in 
the Riverside / Spike Island 
area and as such does not 
propose any demolitions in 
this area.   

Page 218



10 1) I agree that the red boundary is appropriate. 
2) I think the framework provides a positive vision 
for the future. 
3) I agree with the objectives proposed. 
4) I think it should definitely focus on the 
environment issues that are forever being 
worsened, especially as we ease out of lockdown 
and 'normal life' resumes! Anything we can do to 
help preserve wildlife, help with climate change and 
also the wellbeing of citizens and students should 
definitely be looked at as a necessity rather than a 
suggestion. 
5) As the economy has received a bit of a blow due 
to the pandemic that has just occurred, I think it 
should definitely be acknowledged that this is a 
largely student focused area, and that this should 
hopefully not have an impact on the price to pay for 
surrounding areas for any such improvements, as 
this would make it hard financially not just for 
students but also for the surrounding local 
businesses as students would be more likely to be 
uptight if they have to save more to spend on their 
housing/living costs due to renovation and 
improvements having an increase in living costs due 
to a higher profiled area. 

The Development Framework 
includes a number of 
objectives related to the 
environment, including 
radically changing and 
enhancing existing 
infrastructure and public 
realm and providing new 
green infrastructure and 
public realm that will allow for 
sustainable travel and 
connectivity throughout the 
area and into adjacent 
communities. Opportunities 
are also being explored to 
create a new high-quality 
transport hub centred around 
Salford Crescent Station, 
including potential new 
Metrolink connections to 
Salford Quays and the City 
Centre. Another key objective 
is to 'lead the way in carbon 
neutrality' and future 
development will have 
sustainability at its core. 
Proposals will include 
increasing biodiversity across 
the area, creating healthy 
streets and developing highly 
sustainable and 
environmentally friendly 
buildings.   
 
It is acknowledged that the 
University and its students 
have a large presence in the 
area. While the Development 
Framework will set out 
proposals for future 
development across the 
University Campus, it will also 
set out proposals for mixed-
use development across the 
wider area for the benefit and 
enjoyment of existing and 

Page 219



new residents, businesses 
and visitors to the area.  

11 I do not know if the planning authorities are aware 
of it, but all the windows of the lounges of the 20 
bungalows that comprise the close face either south 
or west. I would not think this was accidental, but 
that the planners at the time the close was 
conceived sought to maximize light and warmth in 
the lounges of those properties. 
 
I bought the bungalow in which I live in 2017, and 
would by now doubtless have had PV solar panels 
fitted on the due-south-facing slope of my roof, had I 
not, fortunately it has seemed for some time, come 
across a sketch plan on a document entitled 
"Salford City Council – Salford Central Development 
Framework – Adopted 19 May 2009". It is still 
available at: 
 
https://urldefense.proofpoint.com/v2/url?u=https-
3A__www.salford.gov.uk_media_386186_salford-
2Dcentral-2Ddev-2Dframework-2Dfinal-2Dadopted-
2Dweb.pdf&d=DwIGaQ&c=jozbAXBGpZCeJmn-
Q9SThA&r=iC-az-
Mqpc0Mkk70GjSAUEIBGrkPaNVBb0oIBpv4oxI&m
=ZsoWeosDhtjzeA2M0DuswKWZXMt-
X2Ui_p18fs48wrM&s=rTOgXLRjx5FLqNvBbqV2Ug
4j_EqaOQI-210LuBKaZqU&e=  
 
I attach a copy of page 59. It is rather clear, I 
believe, that the intention was to build apartments 
rising to four floors, and, in places, higher, next to 

Informed by this scoping 
consultation, the Council will 
be preparing a draft 
Development Framework for 
the area. This document will 
include an Illustrative 
Masterplan which will set out 
future proposals for the area - 
including the proposals for the 
Farmer Norton site. The Draft 
Development Framework will 
be subject to a 6 week public 
consultation which will begin 
in October 2020. Any future 
planning application for 
development of the Farmer 
Norton site will take into 
account the issues you have 
raised in your response.  

Page 220



and quite close to the western boundary of Devine 
Close. 
This would block the sun from the lounges (and 
roofs) of many of the bungalows from a little after 
midday onwards, at least for a lot of the year. Not 
only would a solar panel installation be considerably 
less viable, occupiers would inevitably be faced with 
considerably higher heating costs. The rather 
attractive gardens would also be impacted. 
 
I attach an image, 
Proposed_Development_July_2020.png that I found 
at: 
 
https://urldefense.proofpoint.com/v2/url?u=https-
3A__eur02.safelinks.protection.outlook.com_-3Furl-
3Dhttps-253A-252F-252Fconfidentials.com-
252Fmanchester-252Fthe-2Dcrescent-
2Dmasterplan-2Dmaking-2Dsense-2Dof-2Dsalford-
26amp-3Bdata-3D01-257C01-257C-
257Ce7ef822aadf548453c1208d82339886c-
257C68c00060d80e40a5b83f3b8a5bc570b5-
257C0-26amp-3Bsdata-
3DltKLAZAuJm7fn2DhWhCwCNnnclWyWzlySTb-
252BH-252FnqVHY-253D-26amp-3Breserved-
3D0&d=DwIGaQ&c=jozbAXBGpZCeJmn-
Q9SThA&r=iC-az-
Mqpc0Mkk70GjSAUEIBGrkPaNVBb0oIBpv4oxI&m
=ZsoWeosDhtjzeA2M0DuswKWZXMt-
X2Ui_p18fs48wrM&s=cSJ7O9aTgXa9mC3cjq9OBw
xNZU8oCKFN7yDsf3lfqsY&e=  
 
As far as I can see, it highlights the same area as is 
marked out on an aerial photograph enclosed with 
the letter I received this morning. It looks as if the 
plans for the Farmer Norton car park may have 
been changed. 
 
Could you please let me know as much as you can 
about what is intended for the site I refer to above, 
and if possible, the impact it might have on sunlight 
reaching properties and gardens in Devine Close? 

Page 221



12 I am interested in the development and preservation 
of the cultural and natural aspects of the area and 
welcome any sustainable improvement and more 
green spaces that will not impact on or remove the 
current eco-system of the area. 
The Meadow and the Irwell provide a rich tapestry 
of bird and plant/tree wildlife so close to a major 
urban area and I wouldn’t want any development to 
destroy or diminish this by extending houses, parts 
of the university or transport connections. 
I am all for a Metrolink extension to the area as at 
the moment the nearest Metrolink Station is city 
centre Manchester, and I hope that the council do 
consider the environmental issues for constructing 
and maintaining this. 

The Development Framework 
includes a number of 
objectives related to the 
environment, including 
radically changing and 
enhancing existing 
infrastructure and public 
realm and providing new 
green infrastructure and 
public realm that will allow for 
sustainable travel and 
connectivity throughout the 
area and into adjacent 
communities. Opportunities 
are also being explored to 
create a new high-quality 
transport hub centred around 
Salford Crescent Station, 
including potential new 
Metrolink connections to 
Salford Quays and the City 
Centre. Another key objective 
is to 'lead the way in carbon 
neutrality' and future 
development will have 
sustainability at its core. 
Proposals will include 
increasing biodiversity across 
the area, creating healthy 
streets and developing highly 
sustainable and 
environmentally friendly 
buildings.  While the 
Development Framework will 
seek to enhance access to 
the Meadow, the Meadow will 
be protected from 
development.  

Page 222



13 I want to reply to say that I would like to find out 
more about this as I live on the borders of this area 
and want to know how this would affect me as a 
local resident. I have seen a lot of work going in this 
area and use the Peel park regularly with my 
grandaughter, who by the way commented it is a 
long way to go to the park (shes almost 4 years 
old.) Can I please ask why more money is being 
spent in this area again, as to me it would be better 
to spend on developing the outer areas of the red 
line. 

The Development Framework 
is focusing on the Adelphi 
Street and Crescent areas 
alongside the University 
Campus and Salford 
Innovation Park to the north 
as the City Council and 
University are key landowners 
in this area. The University 
have already vacated the Old 
Adelphi and Centenary 
Building at Adelphi Street and 
these vacant buildings now 
present a future development 
opportunity. Similarly, the 
University will be vacating 
their buildings to the south of 
The Crescent / A6 and 
focusing future development 
on their Peel Park and 
Frederick Road Campuses, 
this will provide  opportunity 
for future redevelopment of 
these vacated sites and the 
new Development Framework 
will set out proposals for what 
this future development looks 
like.   

14  
I have recently received plans from the Salford 
Crescent development Framework as a local 
resident who has lived in this area all her life and 
uses Peel Park on a regular basis can you 
guarantee that it will still be accessible for local 
residents. I understand the need for development in 
the Crescent area as this is now an eyesore but 
what about the Cenotaph that is located there? 
Although you have sent plans they are very dark 
and quite unreadable I have also tried to look on the 
website with no success. Are we still going to have 
the green space at Peel park? Are the houses that 
are going to be built affordable to local families? 
You do say no one will be left behind but the same 
was said for Salford Quays and I’m sorry to say the 
majority of Salfordians have been left behind!!! 
As someone who is proud of being a Salfordian it’s 
a pity that Salford Precinct as been neglected by the 

Peel Park will remain publicly 
accessible and will be 
protected from future 
development. The 
Development framework for 
the area seeks to protect 
existing greenspaces across 
the area and will set out 
opportunities to enhance 
access to these spaces.  
 
A key objective of the 
Development Framework is to 
'provide high quality homes 
and a mix of tenures' and 
future development will seek 
to provide a varied mix of high 
quality, adaptable, low energy 
homes. 

Page 223



council for many years. No new shops, or diversity 
on there it is a bleak experience from someone who 
remembers vibrant market stalls. I feel like the few 
Salfordians that actually work and have lived here 
are often forgotten. 

 
Improving the food and 
beverage offer across the 
area is a key aim of the 
Development Framework and 
proposals will focus on the 
creation of a 'cultural hub' 
taking in the area around 
Salford Museum and Art 
Gallery, the Working Class 
Movement Library and the 
former Fire Station. Buildings 
surrounding the former Fire 
Station provide an opportunity 
for ground floor food and 
beverage related uses to help 
improve the local offer.  

15 I would like to see a new footbridge connecting the 
Crescent (near the Pint Pot) to the Meadow. 
 
This would make it significantly easier for 
pedestrians to access the amazing green space that 
the meadow offers. 

A draft Development 
Framework for the area is 
being prepared and will be 
subject to public consultation 
from October 2020. This will 
set out future development 
proposals for the area and will 
include proposals for 
improving access to the 
Meadow.  

16 Just received your letter relating to the Salford 
Crescent and University development. Firstly in your 
map you have peel park listed in your 
development.what are your intentions if any of 
development inside the park.?as you are aware this 
is the {peoples park.}..also in your map which is not 
very clear.is Cleminson st and North George st part 
of your development. on myself receving your letter 
i would think that they are part of your 
planning.could you please let know of your 
intentions. 

Peel Park falls within the area 
covered by the Development 
Framework, but is protected 
from development. 
 
While the wider Cleminson 
Street and North George 
Street corridors are not 
included within the area 
covered by the Development 
Framework, the Development 
Framework includes land 
bounded by both Clemison 
Street and North George 
Street - these sites are the 
Farmer Norton car park, the 
Old Adelphi Building and the 
Centenary Building.  
 

Page 224



A draft Development 
Framework for the area is 
being prepared and will be 
subject to public consultation 
from October 2020. The Draft 
Development Framework will 
set out the proposals for 
future development of these 
sites.  

17 In answer to the questions asked in a letter I 
recently received: 
 
1. Unsure 
2. Yes 
3. Yes 
4. Traffic / transport - the area should have good 
sustainable transport links (cycling and public 
transport) to the city and connect with Salford 
Quays to ensure that people are able to visit. 
Cycling provision should be prioritised including 
sheltered bike storage provision, protected and 
segregated cycle lanes and safe junctions for 
cyclists. Current cycling provision is good, but is still 
a bit dangerous and scary on the crescent. 
5. Please try to use easy language that all residents 
will understand in future planning communications. 
For example, I did not know what ‘blue-green 
infrastructure’ is - I imagine I’m not alone. 

The Development Framework 
includes a number of 
objectives related to 
transport, including radically 
changing and enhancing 
existing infrastructure and 
public realm and providing 
new green infrastructure and 
public realm that will allow for 
sustainable travel and 
connectivity throughout the 
area and into adjacent 
communities. Opportunities 
are also being explored to 
create a new high-quality 
transport hub centred around 
Salford Crescent Station, 
including potential new 
Metrolink connections to 
Salford Quays and the City 
Centre.  
 
The point about using easy 
language that all residents will 
understand in future planning 
communications is noted. 
Green and blue infrastructure 
refers to green spaces (such 
as Peel Park and The 
Meadow) and blue 
infrastructure relates to water, 
including the River Irwell.  

Page 225



18 I refer to the current invitation to make comments on 
the emerging review of the Development 
Framework. I respond below in the order of the 
questions as set out in your scoping letter.  
 
1. Yes I agree with the proposed red line boundary 
but the supporting text, policies and proposals to be 
included in the revised framework should also take 
into account the existing land uses lying in the 
interface beyond and should not compromise their 
viability or integrity.  
2. Yes I agree with the vision in the context 
particularly the recognition that ‘development will 
have sustainability at its core’. I can see what you 
are seeking to achieve as long as there is balance 
in the way which the objectives of the framework 
are realised so that existing sustainable land uses 
are protected.  
3. The objectives should also include recognition of 
historic existing land-uses that are sustainable and 
seek their protection. This should not be seen as a 
constraint but an opportunity to work with 
developers to improve environmental performance 
and seek local enhancements.  
4. From our perspective the framework should 
recognise that the framework is an holistic 
document balancing the objectives of differing land 
uses.  
5. None at this stage other than that I request to be 
included in further consultations as the plan 
evolves.   
 
Thank you for allowing CEMEX the opportunity to 
comment at this stage.  

The Development Framework 
will consider surrounding land 
uses and their implications for 
future development across 
the Crescent area. The draft 
objectives will be reviewed to 
take the comments from 
Cemex into account.  

19 Thank you for the opportunity to comment on the 
initial proposals for the Salford Crescent and 
University District Development Framework 
Document.  
  
I think these are fantastic and fully support the 
ongoing regeneration in the area. There have been 
some real high quality schemes delivered along the 
Chapel Street corridor and hope these continue 
through the Crescent and University.  
  
In response to the questions raised: 
  

Islington Mill and the adjacent 
industrial units at Regent 
Trading Estate are not 
included with the red line 
boundary of this Development 
Framework as these areas 
are already included in an 
existing Development 
Framework for the Salford 
Central area which can be 
viewed here: 
https://www.salford.gov.uk/pla
nning-building-and-

Page 226



1. Yes I agree with the boundary. Has there been 
any thought to include the industrial units located to 
the east of oldfield Road, and adjacent to Islington 
Mill and the railway?  
2. Yes.  
3. Yes.  
4. Retention of all Green and Blue Infrastructure. 
This should not be lost at the cost of development 
given the extensive brownfield land which can be 
regenerated. There should be provision of more 
green and blue infrastructure to provide links 
throughout the built and natural environment. You 
should tackle climate change and also the circular 
economy. This is an excellent opportunity to 
promote the Campus as a leading advanced 
development to minimise the climate related effects 
but also to shift away from the linear economy to a 
circular economy. This could see the reuse of 
buildings, materials and land where feasible, but 
also consider the lifespan of the development and 
futureproofing it against the challenges facing the 
built and natural environment.  
5. I would like to see a commitment to biodiversity 
net gain and also the mechanisms to deliver the 
social and community infrastructure to support the 
increase in population. Cycling and pedestrians 
should take precedent over vehicles and renewable 
energy should be a mandate across the 
development area. Have you thought about the 
benefits of a market / traders hall forming part of the 
strategic vision? The benefits of these in Europe 
and the UK have been phenomenal in recent years 
and this provides a great opportunity for Salford to 
capitalise on this momentum.  
  
Are you able to confirm who the selected delivery 
partner is for the strategic framework?  
  
Finally I think it is very positive and forward thinking, 
and I look forward to further opportunities for 
consultation in the future 

regeneration/regeneration/pro
jects/salford-central/  
 
The Development Framework 
includes a number of 
objectives related to the 
environment, including 
radically changing and 
enhancing existing 
infrastructure and public 
realm and providing new 
green infrastructure and 
public realm that will allow for 
sustainable travel and 
connectivity throughout the 
area and into adjacent 
communities. Opportunities 
are also being explored to 
create a new high-quality 
transport hub centred around 
Salford Crescent Station, 
including potential new 
Metrolink connections to 
Salford Quays and the City 
Centre. Another key objective 
is to 'lead the way in carbon 
neutrality' and future 
development will have 
sustainability at its core. 
Proposals will include 
increasing biodiversity across 
the area, creating healthy 
streets and developing highly 
sustainable and 
environmentally friendly 
buildings.   
 
Regarding the provision of a 
market / traders hall, the 
Development Framework will 
set out proposals for new 
food and beverage uses 
across the area and the 
Partners are also considering 
opportunities to deliver a 
range of activities and events 
across the area, which may 

Page 227



include street food markets. 
 
The English Cities Fund have 
been selected as developer 
partner to bring forward 
development across the area 
over the next 15-20 years.  

20 Please find below responses to the Salford 
Crescent and University District Development 
Framework Document consultation, in reply to a 
letter I received from the council. 
 
1. Do you agree with the proposed red line 
boundary, shown edged red on the enclosed plan, 
which establishes the extent of the regeneration 
area? 
Generally, yes. In particular, I agree that the land to 
the south of Salford Crescent near the railway 
tracks towards the lower section of the map is in 
dire need of attention especially now that the PRS 
development is completed. 
 
I also think that the south-east boundary should be 
extended slightly. At current, the boundary turns 
from eastwards to northwards where Oldfield Road 
cross the railway tracks. I think this should be 
extended further to include the warehouses bound 
by Oldfield Road and James Street.  
 
The boundary should also be extended to include 
the land immediately north-east of Adelphi House at 
the university. 
 
2. Do you agree with the vision for the future of the 
area what what the Development Framework is 
aiming to create? 
Yes. 
 
3. Do you agree with the objectives proposed to 
achieve the vision for the area? 
Yes. 
 
4. What key themes do you think the Development 
Framework should cover (i.e. traffic, heritage, blue-
green infrastructure) and what key issues should it 
seek to address? 
Infrastructure and education to move residents 

Islington Mill and the adjacent 
industrial units at Regent 
Trading Estate are not 
included with the red line 
boundary of this Development 
Framework as these areas 
are already included in an 
existing Development 
Framework for the Salford 
Central area which can be 
viewed here: 
https://www.salford.gov.uk/pla
nning-building-and-
regeneration/regeneration/pro
jects/salford-central/  
 
Regarding an extension of the 
proposed red line boundary to 
include the land immediately 
north-east of Adelphi House 
at the university, land to the 
north east of Adelphi House 
(including the Farmer Norton 
site, Old Adelphi Building and 
Centenary Building) are 
already included within the 
boundary.  
 
The Development Framework 
includes a number of 
objectives related to the 
sustainable transport, 
including radically changing 
and enhancing existing 
infrastructure and public 
realm and providing new 
green infrastructure and 
public realm that will allow for 
sustainable travel and 
connectivity throughout the 

Page 228



away from private car ownership and more towards 
public transport or shared mobility such as car 
clubs. Building more and larger roads will not 
resolve congestion. 
 
5. Do you have any other comments to make on the 
proposed Development Framework at this stage? 

area and into adjacent 
communities. Opportunities 
are also being explored to 
create a new high-quality 
transport hub centred around 
Salford Crescent Station, 
including potential new 
Metrolink connections to 
Salford Quays and the City 
Centre.   

21 My responses to your 5 questions are below: 
 
1.  I agree with the proposed red line boundary 
within the plan 
2.  I agree with your vision and what you are trying 
to create 
3.  I agree with the objectives proposed to achieve 
the vision for area. 
4.  I would like to see the traffic slowed down on 
Broad street and Albion Way (between Salford 
Crescent Railway station and the junction with 
Frederick Road.  Also, the existing crossing on 
Albion Way from Broad Street should be moved 
back a little bit as you cannot see oncoming traffic 
currently due to the position of Windsor Bridge.  I 
would also like to see better fencing on the 
Belvedere Road side of Broad Street going towards 
the roundabout that leads to Salford Shopping city. 
5.  I hope that we get more shops in the area as we 
do not have many establishments and choice close 
to my home address other than to use Salford 
Shopping City where the nearest bank is (instead 
we have to go into Manchester for cash or use debit 
cards). 

The Development Framework 
will set out proposals for 
future transport proposals 
along the A6. 
 
Improving the food and 
beverage offer across the 
area is a key aim of the 
Development Framework and 
proposals will focus on the 
creation of a 'cultural hub' 
taking in the area around 
Salford Museum and Art 
Gallery, the Working Class 
Movement Library and the 
former Fire Station. Buildings 
surrounding the former Fire 
Station provide an opportunity 
for ground floor food and 
beverage related uses to help 
improve the local offer.  

Page 229



22 It is very difficult to agree with any of the questions 
you asked about the redevelopment because the 
letter contained very little detail.  
 
I wouldn’t agree with anything without having an 
idea of the impact to the area such as the cost, who 
would pay for it and would there be further 
restrictions such as more road closures. 
 
I was very disappointed with the changes you made 
to the A6 by reducing the lanes on a major route 
into the city centre and causing much more 
congestion than there was before the changes.  
 
Preventing a right turn from Chapel Street into 
Adelphi Street is inconvenient - this forces me to 
use the back streets and now you’ve suddenly 
blocked some of those off. I don’t believe this 
improves the area, it just pushes traffic elsewhere 
and causes more congestion and pollution. 
 
The above examples are why I do not support your 
generalised proposals In your letter, because they 
don’t take into consideration how it will affect the 
day to day lives of people living in the area, who 
end up paying for it. 

Extensive public consultation 
on a Draft Development 
Framework for the area will 
take place in October / 
November 2020. The draft 
Development Framework will 
set out proposals for the area 
in detail. A developer partner 
has now been appointed to 
bring forward development 
across the area and funding 
for future development will 
come from a range of sources 
including the City Council, 
University of Salford, the 
private sector developer 
partner and a wide range of 
external public funds.  

23 Please see below our comments in relation to the 
vision and the  the objectives proposed: 
 
Adelphi/Bexley Square conservation area boundary 
- Consideration of the existing conservation area 
needs to be part of the vision to work alongside and 
enhance, are there more details on this?   
 
Enhancing the wealth of existing green assets 
detailed in objectives should be part of the vision 
increasing biodiversity etc.  The green spaces of 
Salford are unique and make us one of the greenest 
cities to live in in the UK, something to be proud of 
and protect and enhance. 
 
Respond to and integrate with the local 
communities is an important objective however this 
should be integral and part of the vision.   Not just 
integrating surrounding communities but bringing 
communities together.   
 

Conserving and enhancing 
the area’s unique historic 
environment will be a key 
objective of the Development 
Framework and the 
framework  will establish a 
positive strategy for the 
conservation and enjoyment 
of the area’s unique historic 
environment and character, 
celebrating the Crescent’s 
many listed buildings and 
structures, historic parks and 
archaeological sites. As 
development proposals for 
sites in close proximity to the 
Adelphi/Bexley Square 
conservation area are brought 
forward through planning, 
planning applications will be 
accompanied by a heritage 

Page 230



Conserving and enhancing the area's unique 
historical environment should consider the Crescent 
Pub which is of historical importance yet has been 
let fall into disrepair, a very negligent act by the 
developer and an eyesore left open for antisocial 
abuse.  This does not install confidence.  We need 
not to homogenise Chapel Street.  
 
Other comments to make on the proposed 
Development Framework: 
 
Islington mill needs to be taken into account as part 
of the master plan ensuring all parties are working  
together constructively. 
 
More detail is needed on access to the meadow 
from A6 

assessment which 
demonstrates how the 
proposals will respond to 
existing heritage assets 
across the area.  
 
The vision for the 
Development Framework will 
be reviewed in light of your 
comments relates to 
biodiversity and bringing 
communities together. 
 
The Crescent pub is in private 
ownership and the owner is 
currently developing 
proposals for the future of the 
building. 
 
Islington Mill and the adjacent 
industrial units at Regent 
Trading Estate are not 
included with the red line 
boundary of this Development 
Framework as these areas 
are already included in an 
existing Development 
Framework for the Salford 
Central area which can be 
viewed here: 
https://www.salford.gov.uk/pla
nning-building-and-
regeneration/regeneration/pro
jects/salford-central/  

24 My company head office lies within the boundary of 
the regeneration area. 
I have no problems or issues with the 
redevelopment of the area and feel it will boost the 
university and local economy. 
 
I would ask that further consideration is given to 
transport links and ensuring this is as 
environmentally friendly as possible. 
The pandemic crisis has proven that organisations 
working more flexibly and remotely is beneficial both 
in terms of work-life-balance, efficiency and 
reducing carbon footprint. 

In terms of the proposals 
being 'as environmentally 
friendly as possible', the 
Development Framework 
includes a number of 
objectives related to this, 
including radically changing 
and enhancing existing 
infrastructure and public 
realm and providing new 
green infrastructure and 
public realm that will allow for 
sustainable travel and 

Page 231



I cannot see my company ever going back to the full 
office 5 days per week working scenario and expect 
many companies will follow suit. 
 
Transport links for the future should therefore factor 
this in and become more cycle-friendly and green. 
 
I also would like to see adequate numbers of social 
housing included within the plans. 
 
Obviously I am interested in the timescales for 
development as it will directly affect my company 
and would appreciate regular updates on progress. 

connectivity throughout the 
area and into adjacent 
communities. Opportunities 
are also being explored to 
create a new high-quality 
transport hub centred around 
Salford Crescent Station, 
including potential new 
Metrolink connections to 
Salford Quays and the City 
Centre. Another key objective 
is to 'lead the way in carbon 
neutrality' and future 
development will have 
sustainability at its core. 
Proposals will include 
increasing biodiversity across 
the area, creating healthy 
streets and developing highly 
sustainable and 
environmentally friendly 
buildings.   
 
A key objective of the 
Development Framework is to 
'provide high quality homes 
and a mix of tenures' and 
future development will seek 
to provide a varied mix of high 
quality, adaptable, low energy 
homes. 
 
Consultation on a Draft 
Development Framework will 
take place in 
October/November 2020 and 
this will provide businesses in 
the area with an opportunity 
to review and comments on 
proposals for the Salford 
Innovation Park area and the 
phasing of the proposals. The 
public consultation will also 
provide an opportunity for 
businesses in the area to 
discuss the impacts of the 
proposals o with the City 

Page 232



Council, University and our 
developer partner.  

25 I would just to know if your development goes a 
head what will happen to the existing housing inside 
your planned development I live on strawberry hill 
will my house have to go ? If so I would be strongly 
opposed to your plans the university seems to do 
what they want in this area and Salford council 
seem to give them full backing I await your 
response  

Consultation on a Draft 
Development Framework will 
take place in 
October/November 2020. 
However, the Partners will be 
engaging with residents of 
Scarsdale Street, Peel Mount, 
Strawberry Hill and Walness 
Lane in advance of the public 
consultation to discuss the 
proposals for the area and 
their potential future impacts.  

26 I am writing to provide my comment on the 
proposed Salford Crescent & University District 
Development Framework revisions and evolutions. I 
am a resident of 40 Lockett Gardens, Trinity, 
Salford, Manchester, M3 6BJ. 
 
In principle, I am in support of the proposed 
evolution of the 2014 Framework and a much-
needed holistic vision and direction for the 
development of Salford's best assets and best hope 
to fulfil the city's potential as an extension and 
complement to the world-class Manchester city 
centre. However, I think the geographical scope of 
the project should be reconsidered. The 
Framework's revision seeks to only direct the future 
development of a very narrow slice of the potential 
central Salford area, one with little residential 
development in existence and as such little potential 
to improve the lives of existing residents already 
living in and contributing to the area at-large.  
 
In order to best benefit existing residents of the 
communities in the shadow of the Crescent and 
University district, their nuanced needs should be 
better considered by being included within the 
geographical scope of the Framework. Simply put, 
without this safeguard in place, the neighbouring 
communities risk being further left behind than they 
already have been by other such narrow-scoped 
planning frameworks, like the Chapel Street 
scheme.  
 

The Development Framework 
is focusing on the Adelphi 
Street and Crescent areas 
alongside the University 
Campus and Salford 
Innovation Park to the north 
as the City Council and 
University are key landowners 
in this area. The University 
have already vacated the Old 
Adelphi and Centenary 
Building at Adelphi Street and 
these vacant buildings now 
present a future development 
opportunity. Similarly, the 
University will be vacating 
their buildings to the south of 
The Crescent / A6 and 
focusing future development 
on their Peel Park and 
Frederick Road Campuses, 
this will provide  opportunity 
for future redevelopment of 
these vacated sites and the 
new Development Framework 
will set out proposals for what 
this future development looks 
like.   
 
In addition to the preparation 
of a new Development 
Framework for the area, the 

Page 233



Whilst desired enhancements to the area in its 
current scope, such as improved Manchester 
MetroLink connectivity and improvements to the 
assets of cultural significance, like the Salford 
Museum and Art Gallery will undoubtedly have a 
'knock-on' effect for neighbouring communities like 
mine; I think the potential negatives outweigh these 
supposed benefits. Better public realm protections 
around the Trinity area (such as Trinity park) are 
excluded from scope in the current Framework, 
similarly the emphasis on high-rise low-cost rented 
accomodation of the Trinity Way and Chapel Street 
areas puts the neighbouring communities of good-
sized family homes at risk of being left in the literal 
shadow of a concrete jungle on their fringes.  
 
Don't leave some of Salford's best-kept secrets (like 
my own Salford Council freeheld community of 
Lockett Gardens and Brotherton Drive) be left 
behind by being forgotten, left to decay and 
eventually wiped from Salford's list of huge potential 
communities not yet getting the attention they 
deserve from our council. 

Council and University's 
developer partner (the 
English Cities Fund) will be 
developing a number of other 
strategies to support the 
approach to development 
across the area over the next 
15-20 years, including a 
Social Value Strategy and 
Action Plan.  
 
The English Cities Fund have 
appointed Social Value Portal 
to assist with the preparation 
of the Social Value Strategy 
and Action Plan. Social Value 
Portal will be working with an 
organisation called ‘Placed’ to 
engage with local people and 
community organisations in 
the wider area surrounding 
the Development Framework 
area to understand local 
needs and issues to feed into 
the Social Value Strategy. An 
online engagement platform 
called ‘Social Pin Point’ is 
being used to engage with the 
local community and the 
website can be found here: 
https://salfordcrescent.mysoci
alpinpoint.co.uk/home  
 
The website enables people 
to comment on a range of 
themes including economy 
and employment, poverty and 
inequality, health and social 
care, climate change and 
culture and creativity. The 
platform also contains a 
mapping function to enable 
the community to highlight 
issues related to particular 
sites/buildings across the 
area.  
 

Page 234



We would welcome your 
thoughts about the challenges 
and opportunities across the 
area as part of the social 
value consultation and the 
website will be live until the 
end of November. 

27 The college is in receipt of the ‘Salford Crescent 
and University District Development Framework 
Document’. 
 
Salford City College (SSC) Group, following on from 
meeting with the University, namely Dr Jason 
Challender, are in full agreement with the proposed 
red line boundary, shown edged red on the attached 
enclosed plan, which establishes the extent of the 
regeneration area, we were promised inclusion in 
this exciting development and you have delivered, 
we look forward to working in partnership, in 
achieving all of future ‘visions, objectives and goals’ 
with in the ‘Framework’. 

The College will be consulted 
on the Draft Development 
Framework for the area in 
due course.  

28 In reference to your letter dated 6 July 2020,  I 
would like to make some comments. 
Firstly, you state you want to "Provide hight quality 
homes and a mix of tenures", but no mention is 
made of affordable and social housing, As most of 
the land in the neighbourhood is being, or has 
already, been, redeveloped with buildings that will 
not provide homes to nobody, but rather small 
temporary rented flats which are only a stopover on 
the way to better and more suitable homes, I cannot 
see how your new plan can take place after the 
council allowed such vandal developments to take 
place. 
Secondly, you wish to "Lead the way to carbon 
neutrality", but most buildings, including the one 
where I live, have no dedicated space to store 
bicycles, which would help immensely in providing a 
zero-carbon transport system. 
Furthermore, you aim to "Enhance the wealth of 
existing green assets". Considering that most 
potential green spaces have been already 
destroyed by various development I dread to think 
what further destruction your enhancement will 
cause to what little is left of the green spaces in the 
area. 

The approach to provision of 
affordable and social housing 
in the area will be set out in 
the Draft Development 
Framework, which will be 
subject to extensive public 
consultation in 
October/November 2020. 
Planning applications for 
residential schemes across 
the area will also set out the 
proposed approach to 
provision of affordable and 
social housing on a site by 
site basis.  
 
In terms of carbon neutrality, 
the Development Framework 
includes a number of 
objectives related to this, 
including radically changing 
and enhancing existing 
infrastructure and public 
realm and providing new 
green infrastructure and 

Page 235



In the same way you want to conserve and enhance 
"the unique and historic environment". It is a shame 
that such commitment comes after most of it has 
been destroyed, and what little is left is surrounded 
and suffocated by some horrendous enormous 
building speculation. 
To conclude my email, the all letter is a list of the 
most vague and flimsy objectives, obviously so that 
the council can change and destroy at will according 
to what best offers they receive, without fear of 
breaking any commitment as no commitment as 
actually been made. 

public realm that will allow for 
sustainable travel and 
connectivity throughout the 
area and into adjacent 
communities. Opportunities 
are also being explored to 
create a new high-quality 
transport hub centred around 
Salford Crescent Station, 
including potential new 
Metrolink connections to 
Salford Quays and the City 
Centre. Future development 
will have sustainability at its 
core. Proposals will include 
increasing biodiversity across 
the area, creating healthy 
streets and developing highly 
sustainable and 
environmentally friendly 
buildings.   
 
Key green spaces in the area 
(The Meadow and Peel Park) 
will all be protected from 
development as part of the 
Development Framework. 
The Development Framework 
will seek to enhance access 
existing green spaces across 
the area.  
 
Conserving and enhancing 
the area’s unique historic 
environment will be a key 
objective of the Development 
Framework and  the 
framework  will establish a 
positive strategy for the 
conservation and enjoyment 
of the area’s unique historic 
environment and character, 
celebrating the Crescent’s 
many listed buildings and 
structures, historic parks and 
archaeological sites.  
 

Page 236



Extensive public consultation 
on a Draft Development 
Framework for the area will 
take place in October / 
November 2020. The draft 
Development Framework will 
set out proposals for the area 
in detail. 

29 Let me start by saying I'm really excited by the 
proposed development. I think you're all doing a 
fantastic job and it's encouraging to read such well 
thought out initiatives.  
 
Attached I have drafted a document with some 
additional considerations. A lot of it is just trying to 
get across some of my reading into the subject at 
hand. Hopefully some of it is useful and apologies if 
it's a bit long, but I really see this as a once in a 
lifetime opportunity to share thoughts and to help 
build something better for everyone.  
 
TO GO FROM ‘STREETS FOR TRAFFIC’ TO 
‘STREETS FOR PEOPLE’ 
  
The Covid-19 pandemic has led many cities around 
the world to adapt their streets on the fly — mostly 
in ways that provide less space for cars and more 
for people. We’ve seen temporary bike lanes 
installed as a transit alternative for essential 
workers or an exercise option for populations on 
lockdown. Others have closed entire streets to car 
traffic so pedestrians can have more room to roam 
at a safe social distance. 
  
And whilst it remains to be seen whether or not 
such changes will persist as the pandemic fades, it 
feels like there is an opportunity to test out new 
street interventions, so we can bounce back better.  
 
A long line of evidence shows that, even when cities 
aren’t facing a generational public health threat, 
street design explorations can improve well-being, 
social cohesion, sustainable transportation, and 
other quality-of-life areas. 
 
Obviously the A6 Crescent intersects these 
proposed plans. I would welcome the opportunity to 

Regarding your comments on 
'street design', the 
Development Framework 
includes a number of 
objectives related to this, 
including radically changing 
and enhancing existing 
infrastructure and public 
realm and providing new 
green infrastructure and 
public realm that will allow for 
sustainable travel and 
connectivity throughout the 
area and into adjacent 
communities. Opportunities 
are also being explored to 
create a new high-quality 
transport hub centred around 
Salford Crescent Station, 
including potential new 
Metrolink connections to 
Salford Quays and the City 
Centre. A range of proposals 
will be set out in the draft 
Development Framework 
related to enhancing walking 
and cycling infrastructure 
across the area, including 
proposals for making the A6 
more cycle/pedestrian 
friendly.  
 
The wider A5063 / Albion 
Way corridor is not covered 
by the Development 
Framework, but the 
Framework will set out 
proposals for future 
enhancements to Salford 

Page 237



explore an alternative to the constant, trundling 
traffic that currently characterises this road. 
 
I’ve been reading the work of Luca Bertolini, a 
planning scholar at the University of Amsterdam. 
His new paper, published in the journal Transport 
Reviews, helpfully compiles n four common street 
design explorations: re-marking streets, repurposing 
parking, repurposing street sections, and closing 
whole streets. All with the aim to support a policy 
shift “away from ‘streets for traffic,’ and towards 
‘streets for people.’ ” 
 
I in particular would welcome repurposing of the 
entire A6 Crescent (if only for one Sunday every 
month). 
 
To close down the whole of the A6 Crescent up to 
Chapel Street one Sunday of the month, and create 
a pop-up street for rollerblading - e-scooting - 
cycling - eating - drinking. Cutting pollution and 
enabling people to create something other than just 
a thorough thru to the city. Let people stay and 
engage in Peel Park, the River Irwell and the 
surrounding businesses.  
  
Bertolini, the scholar I’ve been reading up on, 
focuses on two expressions of this effort: ciclovias 
(“open streets”) and “play” streets. 
  
Ciclovias are temporary street closures, often made 
in conjunction with a set of community activities 
planned for the street space. While they date back 
to Bogota, Colombia, in the 1970s, ciclovias really 
took off in the last 20 years. In 2015 alone, some 
500 cities around the world — spanning every 
continent — held at least one ciclovia event. 
 
Bertolini documents “sizable positive impacts” on 
physical activity, social interaction, and social 
capital. In Bogota, for example, children who 
frequently use ciclovias on Sundays engage in 
greater amounts of vigorous physical activity and 
less sedentary time, compared with occasional 
users or non-users. 
  
Whereas ciclovias aim to engage a wide 

Crescent Station and the 
wider A6 corridor which will 
have an impact on Albion 
Way. While Albion Way is 
currently not suitable for 
pedestrians and cyclists, a 
walking and cycling route is 
now in place along Cross 
Lane to Salford Quays.   
 
In response to comments 
about creating a 'district of 
entrepreneurship', the 
Partners are working with 
Solid Ground who work local, 
independent businesses to 
make a place thrive. The 
project team are preparing a 
'Place-making Strategy' for 
the area which will look at 
opportunities to deliver a wide 
range of events and activities 
across the area, including the 
type of events set out as 
examples within your 
response. For information, the 
University has secured 
planning permission to 
develop a new community 
bakery and brewery in the 
currently vacant bays of the 
old Fire Station and these 
uses will be supported by a 
wider food and beverage offer 
as new development is 
brought forward across the 
area.  
 
Regarding the 'skip garden' 
example set out in your 
response, the Development 
Framework will set out 
proposals for a new linear 
park along the line of the 
former Manchester, Bolton 
and Bury Canal which will 
provide a significant new area 

Page 238



community, a related effort focuses on repurposing 
whole streets specifically for children’s play. In 
Ghent, Belgium, where play streets have become a 
regular event since 1998, one study found that 
physical activity increased and sedentary time 
decreased for kids who lived near play streets, 
relative to those who lived near control streets. 
  
Design innovations that embed more flexibility into 
the streetscape, such as “dynamic curbs” that can 
quickly change their uses, could be an interesting 
way to proceed. 
 
Because the ultimate aim is not just to do more 
temporary explorations, but to improve quality of life 
over the long term. Reducing car-ownership, air 
pollution, street deaths, traffic congestion, even 
housing costs — achieving all these goals starts 
with recognising the role that street design plays. 
 
 
A5063 – ALBION WAY IS A SCARY ROAD  
Because of the train line that hugs the southern 
boundary of the plans, there are only 2 roads that 
lead South from the proposed plans. Albion Way 
marked on the map in the South West feels like a 
motorway. There is no suitable bike path and hardly 
even a verge to walk on. It would be marvellous if 
this could be addressed and more consideration 
made for people other than car owners. Currently it 
is off putting for me and many others to use other 
than by car, and discourages people from Salford 
Quays / Old Trafford finding their way here and vice 
versa. 
 
CREATE A DISTRICT OF ENTREPRENEURSHIP 
There are already many independent businesses in 
Salford - from coffee roasteries to breweries, to 
fashion houses and craft manufacturers.  
  
But for many people without access to large pots of 
finance - is there space for more community-based 
entrepreneurship? 
 
E.g. 
Outdoor art class: learn how to paint, or hone your 
skills 

of greenspace / public realm 
for the area which can be 
animated with a wide range of 
activities.  
 
In terms of civic participation, 
the Partners will be making 
use of a virtual consultation 
tool which has been 
developed by AECOM for the 
consultation on the Draft 
Development Framework. 
Local residents within and in 
areas surrounding the 
Development framework area 
will be informed about the 
start of the public consultation 
in due course.  
 
Regarding the discussion on 
'Sentilo: A real-time sensor 
platform', the Partners are 
also considering 
implementing a ‘digital 
strategy’ across the Crescent 
area and will be working with 
an industry lead in building 
information modelling to 
prepare the digital strategy, 
which would run across 
infrastructure, landscaping, 
transport, facilities 
management and new 
buildings / homes.  

Page 239



Outdoor exercise classes: community focused and 
outdoors 
Community picnic: eat outdoors at a family friendly 
picnic 
Farmers market: shop fresh produce direct from 
local suppliers / farmers  
Handmade goods market: Buy one-of-a-kind goods 
from local artisans 
Urban farming: etc. 
 
There are many good ideas out there but it’s hard to 
assess where the demand lies amongst local 
residents. Can we create a monthly survey to 
understand what people want? Publish the results 
and empower local entrepreneurs to set up the 
services that people demand. 
 
The results will be open source and provide a solid 
impetus for community members to get something 
started. The thinking is if we can gauge popularity of 
the ideas we can then actively search for volunteers 
/ entrepreneurs to run these events (with perhaps a 
little help from the council in terms of funding?) 
  
The Salford weekly newsletter goes out every 
Friday with updates on what we’re thinking, doing 
and planning to do.  
  
Perhaps the council can provide incentives for initial 
interactions -  e.g. 50% off vouchers to take part. 
  
SKIP GARDEN:  
The moveable community garden has been in the 
middle of the King's Cross development area, a 
construction site of 67 acres. Among the cranes and 
the cement mixers, the apartment buildings and the 
office blocks, Skip Garden was an urban oasis with 
a twist - a portable garden that moves to different 
locations on the King's Cross site as and when land 
is sold and built on.  
 
It was a garden of a thousand hands, built by young 
people and local business volunteers, together 
creating a new and sustainable community. It was a 
unique space where apple trees, pumpkins and 
beans grow out of skips, and tomatoes, ginger and 
chillies grow under polytunnels made with water 

Page 240



pipes and polythene. 
 
Could we implement something similar, considering 
the mass redevelopment that is to happen 
imminently here in Salford?  
  
SALFORD & SMART CITY MOVEMENT: OPEN 
DATA TO INCREASE CIVIC PARTICIPATION  
 
This a really interesting article and insight into the 
city municipality of Barcelona, arguably leading the 
way in term of civic participation: 
https://medium.com/sidewalk-talk/how-barcelona-is-
leading-a-new-era-of-digital-democracy-
4a033a98cf32 
 
IN SUMMARY: 
It talks about The Decidim software platform (built 
by Barcelona’s municipal council) -  an open-source 
tool available free of charge (at decidim.org) to any 
city or organization that wants to use it. Dozens of 
cities around the world, including Helsinki and 
Mexico City, are among its early adopters. 
In it’s latest project it managed to have roughly 
40,000 residents participate in consultations, 
generating a whopping 10,860 proposals from 
residents, of which 8,142 were approved and 
incorporated into the Action Plan.  And although 
many of these were repeats, e.g. ‘more investment 
in bike lanes’...The fact that many individuals can 
propose similar initiatives, and each one of them 
can see “their” idea adopted, can only be good for 
civic engagement. 
I urge you to check it out for yourself 
www.decidim.org  
 
Sentilo: A real-time sensor platform 
Barcelona has also built its own internet-of-things 
sensor network, called Sentilo. Below are some 
example case studies: 
1. The city has installed more than 1,100 LED street 
lights activated by motion sensors. The system 
allows the city to track which lights get turned on 
and for how long, and has reduced energy 
consumption for street lighting by 30 percent. 
2. In city parks, Barcelona uses sensors to track 
rainfall, humidity, sunlight, wind velocity, and 

Page 241



barometric pressure. The sensors are, in turn, 
linked to park irrigation valves, limiting their 
operation to need. The net result: a 25 percent 
increase in water conservation and cost savings of 
roughly €500,000 per year. 
3. The city also monitors energy usage in public 
buildings and is able to use that data to conserve 
energy. 
4. Sentilo can process up to 8,000 bits of sensor 
data per second, and the publicly available data 
from its sensor readings — from air quality to noise 
to energy consumption and beyond — can be 
accessed in real time via an interactive online map. 
5. The primary use for Sentilo data is to improve 
municipal operations. For example, Barcelona plans 
to use Sentilo to monitor all the city’s waste 
management and cleaning services. The city’s vast 
network of public trash, recycling, and compost bins 
features QR codes that will be read every time 
waste is collected. Waste collection and cleaning 
happens to be the city’s largest tender, involving 
multiple contractors with their own vehicle fleets, 
and a total workforce of more than 4,000 people. 
The council estimates that the project will involve 
between 12 and 15 million sensor readings per day. 
Jordi Cirera, a long term civic employee says, “By 
tracking fleets, we’ll know which streets have been 
cleaned and which have not,” “We’ll know how 
much waste has been collected from each bin, and 
how much waste they’ll be bringing to the plant.” 
Beyond municipal improvements, Sentilo has the 
potential to help make data a public asset available 
to anyone, by making some of its data available 
through the city’s Open Data portal. There, private-
sector companies and individual entrepreneurs can 
access the data and use it to build their own 
innovations. (Not all of Sentilo’s datasets can be 
released as open data, due to privacy concerns.) 
The portal turns Sentilo from a mere sensor-reader 
to a tool that can empower citizens. 
“We believe that city data is a common good and a 
public infrastructure like water, electricity, roads, 
and clean air,” wrote Francesca Bria, the city’s 
former Chief Technology and Digital Innovation 
Officer, in the Barcelona Digital City Plan 2015–
2019. “Data should be openly accessible, helping 
the local tech companies and local production 

Page 242



networks to build future data-driven and AI fuelled 
services and solutions that can create public value 
and social return.” 
 
Using Blockchain 
Consider using distributed ledgers to keep civic data 
safe and tamper free. 
Of course, making data more widely available 
increases the need to protect personal information. 
So the next step in data sovereignty is to give 
individual residents greater control over what data 
they share. To do that, Barcelona has turned to an 
open-source technology architecture called 
DECODE (short for “DEcentralized Citizen Owned 
Data Ecosystems”), a blockchain-style distributed-
ledger system that records every data transaction 
using distributed “nodes” instead of a central 
database. DECODE allows individuals to share only 
the personal data they need to share, and allows 
them to see if that data has in turn been passed 
along to others. 

30 Due to the increase in students attending the 
university and the potential increase in visitors to 
the green areas, will there be sufficient parking 
provided, as this has already impacted on our area 
meaning the roads can become extremely busy with 
cars? 
 
What guarantee is there to keep the existing green 
areas as they are and not be built on in the future? 
With so much new development going on around I 
feel its important to keep these green areas for the 
whole community to enjoy. 
 
Is there potential for a new Metro link to be created 
that links the area with Salford Quays and 
Manchester City Centre? If possible I think this 
would benefit both students and local residents. 
 
In terms of key themes for this project I think 
keeping the heritage of Salford as a city is important 
whilst also tapping into the potential that being in 
close proximity to Manchester Centre has to offer. 
Also maintaining the green spaces and the wildlife 
that frequent them is important both for the 
environment and the local community. 
 

A Draft Development 
Framework for the area is 
being prepared and will be 
subject to public consultation 
from October 2020. This will 
set out the proposed 
approach to car parking 
across the area, including the 
provision of new multi-storey 
car parks.   
 
The Meadow and Peel Park 
will be protected from 
development as part of the 
Development Framework. 
The Development Framework 
will seek to enhance access 
to existing green spaces 
across the area. 
 
Opportunities are also being 
explored to create a new 
high-quality transport hub 
centred around Salford 
Crescent Station, including 
potential new Metrolink 

Page 243



As a fairly new resident of the area I am pleased 
that there is money being spent on improving the 
run down forgotten areas of Salford. There is a lot of 
negativity about the city but hopefully this and other 
developments can change that and make it a more 
desirable place to live, work and learn. 
 
I would be happy to receive any further updates on 
the development. 

connections to Salford Quays 
and the City Centre. The 
proposals will be set out in 
detail in the Draft 
Development Framework.  
 
Conserving and enhancing 
the area’s unique historic 
environment will be a key 
objective of the Development 
Framework and  the 
framework  will establish a 
positive strategy for the 
conservation and enjoyment 
of the area’s unique historic 
environment and character, 
celebrating the Crescent’s 
many listed buildings and 
structures, historic parks and 
archaeological sites.  

31 Yet another pointless e-mail to you but having paid 
one of the highest council taxes in the country to 
you since January 1994 I feel I am entitled to an 
opinion. Your development of the university to take 
over the whole of the area is far past the proposal 
stage, I worked at the university years ago and this 
was being discussed with the council then. So, 
obviously it has been passed and the permanent, 
house-owning residents are, as usual, treated with 
contempt. We have lived through many, many years 
of the building of bed sits for rental in this area and 
the disruption to our lives. My husband, who is 
disabled, cannot leave his house much of the time 
because the pavements on Adelphi Street are 
closed and we have to walk in the middle of the 
road trying to avoid fast moving traffic. There are no 
traffic lights so that pedestrians and parents taking 
their children to school can cross safely. The noise 
and dust and closure of roads and pavements have 
caused a deterioration to our health. However, I 
know this is of no interest to you but the now taking 
over of the whole area for years of development for 
a university which is open about 14 weeks a year 
maximum is beyond understanding. The area will be 
an empty wasteland for about 36 weeks of the year. 
(See the Manchester council report on the negative 
impact of the university taking over Didsbury). You 

The University have already 
vacated the Old Adelphi and 
Centenary Building at Adelphi 
Street and these vacant 
buildings now present a future 
development opportunity. 
Similarly, the University will 
be vacating their buildings to 
the south of The Crescent / 
A6 and focusing future 
development on their Peel 
Park and Frederick Road 
Campuses, this will provide  
opportunity for future 
redevelopment of these 
vacated sites and the new 
Development Framework will 
set out proposals for what this 
future development looks like.  
Rather than the University 
'taking over the area', the 
University will be 
consolidating their activities 
onto their Peel Park and 
Frederick Road Campuses 
and the area immediately 
north of the Campus (Salford 

Page 244



would do far better to improve the education and 
standing of the university. For the past few years 
the area has been flooded for the first time is over 
100 years. Any sensible person knows this is owing 
to the over building on green sites and the 
destruction of most of the trees in this area. Our 
house insurance increased overnight from £175. per 
year to £1760. per year. Many people cannot pay 
this amount . I know, from previous experience, that 
it is a waste of my time to address your proposals 
individually but I would like to point out that I 
understood that Peel Park was left in trust for the 
use and enjoyment of the people of Salford. That is, 
all the people of Salford, the ones who actually live 
here. Before you dismiss me as some out-of date 
old fool who does not like or understand young 
people I would like to inform you that I taught in 
further education for over 30 years helping young 
people of all races, disabilities, refugee status and 
educational attainment to have a second chance at 
life. We were a grade 1 Beacon college so must 
have done something right. Our lives have been 
ruined by the disruption to the area for so many 
years with no account being taken of the quality of 
the lives of its permanent residents, so I would like 
to ask if there is a proposal for the council to buy 
any of the houses in this area. We would jump at 
this so that we could move to an area of the country 
that puts its residents before profit.  

Innovation Park), which will 
provide an opportunity for 
industry and academia to co-
locate and take advantage of 
the University's innovation 
strengths around robotics, 
orthotics.  
 
Regarding your comment that 
"The area will be an empty 
wasteland for about 36 weeks 
of the year", the Development 
Framework will set out 
proposals for significant levels 
of residential development 
across the area, facilitated by 
the University vacating its 
current buildings on Adelphi 
Street and to the south of The 
Crescent / A6. The scale of 
new residential development, 
accompanied by new food 
and beverage uses and a 
wide range of events and 
activities, will ensure that this 
part of the City Centre 
becomes an animated and 
vibrant new district.  
 
The Development Framework 
will assess the impacts of 
flood risk and will also set out 
proposals to improve 
drainage across the area 
through the provision of 
measures such a surface 
water drainage solutions. In 
addition, proposals will 
include increasing biodiversity 
across the area including 
planting new street trees 
where this is feasible. 
 
The Meadow and Peel Park 
will all be protected from 
development as part of the 
Development Framework. 

Page 245



The Development Framework 
will seek to enhance access 
to existing green spaces 
across the area. 
 
Consultation on a Draft 
Development Framework will 
take place in 
October/November 2020. 
However, the Partners will be 
engaging with residents of 
Scarsdale Street, Peel Mount, 
Strawberry Hill and Walness 
Lane in advance of the public 
consultation to discuss the 
proposals for this area and 
their potential future impacts. 
If you reside in a property on 
one of these streets we will 
contact you directly to invite 
you to meet the project team 
to discuss the proposals for 
the area.  

32 As Rector of St Philips with St Stephen’s, Salford, 
representing the 300 people or so who worship with 
us, and the wider parish which I serve, can I 
commend the council and the team working on this 
proposal for regeneration in our wonderful historic 
area. 
 
In response to the five questions I would like to offer 
the following answers: 
1) Our church community would very much like the 
church building itself to be included within the red 
line boundary. I and some of my team have spent 
some time with some of the planning teams talking 
about the desire we have for the redevelopment of 
our site to help serve the community more widely, 
and being part of the development zone would allow 
us to be more fully a part of this exciting 
regeneration. 
 
2) There is much agreement within the vision for the 
future of our area, and believe the church and faith 
community offer a significant part of the improved 
wellbeing, offering volunteering opportunities, group 
activities, and of course the well documented 

In response to each of your 
points: 
 
1) The church is not included 
with the red line boundary of 
this Development Framework 
as the building and 
surrounding area is already 
included in an existing 
Development Framework for 
the Salford Central area 
which can be viewed here: 
https://www.salford.gov.uk/pla
nning-building-and-
regeneration/regeneration/pro
jects/salford-central/. 
However, the project team will 
continue to involve the church 
in future consultations about 
proposals for the Crescent 
Development Framework 
area. 
 
2) In addition to the 

Page 246



improvement to wellbeing through prayer and 
corporate worship. I firmly believe that spiritual 
wellbeing must not be neglected in the drive for 
wider influence and improvement. 
 
3) The objectives proposed are excellent, and with 
our building being hailed by the Georgian society as 
the most iconic Georgian building in the northwest 
of England, we would very much like to be part of 
the ongoing conversation as to the redevelopment 
and renewal of this area, and of course benefit from 
some of the investment to allow us to continue to 
serve the community 200 years after the building 
was completed. 
 
4) A key area myself and some of the team have 
highlighted is parking; whilst we have no desire for 
Salford to continue as the car park for the city 
centre, we have people coming to worship here 
from many parts of the city, and coming to groups 
through the week, and many people drive. 
Consequently car parking is a key issue for us, and 
whilst we support the ideals of greater use of public 
transport, this can be a challenge with reduced 
services on Sundays, and with connectivity to other 
parts of the city region limited by having to go in, 
then out, of the city centre. 
 
5) I’d be so grateful for continued conversation as 
this progresses, and once again my apologies for 
this coming a day late. Thank you so much for the 
hard work you have been putting in to making our 
area the very best it can be. Please be assured of 
our prayers for the council and the wider teams that 
serve it in the crucial work you do in our city. 

preparation of a new 
Development Framework for 
the area, the Council and 
University's developer partner 
(the English Cities Fund) will 
be developing a number of 
other strategies to support the 
approach to development 
across the area over the next 
15-20 years, including a 
Social Value Strategy and 
Action Plan.  
 
The English Cities Fund have 
appointed Social Value Portal 
to assist with the preparation 
of the Social Value Strategy 
and Action Plan. Social Value 
Portal will be working with an 
organisation called ‘Placed’ to 
engage with local people and 
community organisations in 
the wider area surrounding 
the Development Framework 
area to understand local 
needs and issues to feed into 
the Social Value Strategy. An 
online engagement platform 
called ‘Social Pin Point’ is 
being used to engage with the 
local community and the 
website can be found here: 
https://salfordcrescent.mysoci
alpinpoint.co.uk/home  
 
The website enables people 
to comment on a range of 
themes including economy 
and employment, poverty and 
inequality, health and social 
care, climate change and 
culture and creativity. The 
platform also contains a 
mapping function to enable 
the community to highlight 
issues related to particular 
sites/buildings across the 

Page 247



area.  
 
We would welcome your 
thoughts about the challenges 
and opportunities across the 
area as part of the social 
value consultation and the 
website will be live until the 
end of November. 
 
3) The Partners will ensure 
that the church is fully 
involved in future 
consultations about proposals 
for the Crescent Development 
Framework area. 
 
4) A Draft Development 
Framework for the area is 
being prepared and will be 
subject to public consultation 
from October 2020. This will 
set out the proposed 
approach to car parking 
across the area, including the 
provision of new multi-storey 
car parks.   
 
5) The Partners will ensure 
that the church is fully 
involved in future 
consultations about proposals 
for the Crescent Development 
Framework area. 

 

Page 248



D  Draft Development Framework Consultation Letter 
 

 

Page 32 

 

D Draft Development Framework Consultation Letter 

Page 249



 
 
 
 
 
 

 

 

16 October 2020 
 
 
Dear Sir/Madam 
 
Draft Crescent Development Framework Document – Public Consultation 
 
Salford City Council is now consulting on the Draft Crescent Development Framework. The 
Framework area covers approximately 100 hectares and encompasses Adelphi Street, The Crescent, 
the University of Salford, Salford Innovation Park, Peel Park and the Meadows.  This is a priority 
regeneration area for the Council and will see significant regeneration and development activity over 
the next 20 years.   
 
Scoping Consultation 
 
On 6 July 2020, the City Council wrote to local residents and businesses to provide an update on the 
plans for the Crescent, and to request comments and feedback on the proposed Vision and Objectives 
which form the basis for the Development Framework. This consultation ran from 6 July – 20 August 
2020. All comments received during the Scoping Consultation have been taken into consideration in 
the preparation of the Draft Development Framework. 
 
Draft Crescent Development Framework 
 
The Draft Crescent Development Framework has been prepared by Salford City Council, working 
closely with its Partners, the University of Salford and the English Cities Fund, to set out an ambitious 
long-term vision for the area which will guide future regeneration and development activity.  
 
A significant amount of work has now been undertaken by the City Council and its Partners to review 
and refine the previous proposals for the Crescent; the Draft Development Framework builds upon 
previous work undertaken, to ensure that it reflects the latest evidence, City Council and University 
priorities, and that it aligns with the emerging Salford Local Plan: Development Management Policies 
and Designations document.   
 
The Draft Development Framework establishes an overarching Vision and Objectives for the area and 
sets out development principles that will facilitate high-quality place-making, capitalise on the area’s 
unique existing assets, and meet the needs of local communities. The Draft Development Framework 
promotes radical improvements to the public realm and aims to establish strong links between the 
University, existing residents and businesses within the Crescent area, and the communities 
surrounding the area. 
 
The revised vision and objectives for the Development Framework are set out below: 

 Planning 
 Salford City Council, Civic Centre 
 Chorley Road, Swinton, M27 5BY 
 

 email plans.consultation@salford.gov.uk 

 Web www.salford.gov.uk 

  https://www.salfordcrescent.com  

 
 

  

  

 

 

Page 250

mailto:???@salford.gov.uk
mailto:???@salford.gov.uk
http://www.salford.gov.uk/
http://www.salford.gov.uk/
https://www.salfordcrescent.com/


 
 
Vision  
 

“The Crescent Development Framework aims to transform this part of Salford into a globally 
recognised destination for people to live, learn, work, visit, play and be active. It will build on 
the existing positive characteristics of Salford, such as the historic environment around the 
Crescent Conservation Area, to deliver a distinctive sense of place. It will create an inspiring, 
attractive and sustainable place which generates professional and educational opportunities 
for the benefit of the wider community, whilst also protecting and enhancing the natural 
environment.” 

 
Key Objectives  
 
Underpinning the Vision are a series of key objectives, grouped under seven key Partner policy 
priorities:  
 
Learning and Innovation 

1. Support and enhance the future development of the University  
2. Enhance the local experience for students and University staff 

 
People, Community and Tackling Inequality 
 3. Provide high quality homes and a mix of tenures  
 4. Respond to and integrate with local communities  
 5. Create opportunity for all and ensure nobody is left behind 
 6. Support healthy lifestyles, improved wellbeing and enhanced opportunities to be physically 

active 
 
Culture and Creativity 
 7. Create a place with culture at its heart 
 
Strong and Diverse Economy 

8. Generate high-quality employment opportunities and create a truly unique and compelling 
innovation district 

 
Connectivity, Movement and Sustainable Transport 
 9. Radically change and enhance existing infrastructure and public realm 
 
Environment and Blue-Green infrastructure 
 10. Enhance the wealth of existing green assets and significantly increase biodiversity 
 11. Conserve and enhance the area’s unique historic environment 
 
Climate Change and Sustainability 
 12. Lead the way to carbon neutrality 
 
The Vision and Objectives form the structure around which a series of Framework-wide and character 
area-specific principles and the accompanying Illustrative Masterplan have been developed to guide 
future development and investment across the area over the next 20 years. 
 
Public Consultation 
 
Public consultation on the Draft Development Framework will take place for a 6 week period from 
Tuesday 20 October until Tuesday 1 December 2020.  Due to the ongoing restrictions relating to 
COVID-19 and the need to social distance, this will take the form of a virtual consultation which is 
available at: https://salfordcrescent.consultation.ai/  

Page 251

https://urldefense.proofpoint.com/v2/url?u=https-3A__salfordcrescent.consultation.ai_&d=DwMFAw&c=jozbAXBGpZCeJmn-Q9SThA&r=s9ZiXClaSksYLLQne5bK7VoaEIBfiqPwU7iYWs7USnc&m=xTbCrUdiHWaTL1YVYpvNkhzT8JMTPi61aE-GQqTMb2M&s=rG4fzx_mAevi_H_hXVSU7DstBRaxZkEUSrfUk9FOlFI&e=


 
 
 
This virtual consultation will contain a number of boards, which provide an overview of the proposals, 
and the Draft Development Framework will also be available to view and download.  
 
We are eager to ensure that everyone with an interest in the proposals is able to review them and 
provide their views. We appreciate that not all residents/ businesses in the area will be able to 
access the virtual consultation. If this is the case, please contact the project team on the telephone 
number below or by email and we can discuss alternative arrangements which will enable you to 
review the Draft Development Framework and provide us with your comments. 
 
Submission of Comments  
 
These proposals are ‘draft’ at this stage and all views are welcomed. Your comments will assist in 
developing the ‘final’ Framework, which will eventually be adopted by Salford City Council. All 
comments should be received by the City Council no later than 5pm on Tuesday 1 December 2020.  
 
Comments may be submitted by any of the following means:  
 

• Through the feedback form within the virtual consultation website (available to fill in and submit 
through the virtual consultation, and available for download in Word for return via email) 

• By email to plans.consultation@salford.gov.uk   
• By phone 0161 958 6296 
• By post to:  

 
Draft Crescent Development Framework Consultation  
Spatial Planning  
Salford Civic Centre  
Chorley Road  
Swinton  
M27 5BY  

 
The City Council’s preferred communication method is via email, and therefore if you have received 
this letter by post, we would be grateful if you could provide an email address for all future 
correspondence. 
 
If you have any queries regarding the proposed review of the Crescent Development Framework, 
please contact the spatial planning team via plans.consultation@salford.gov.uk   
 
Social Value Strategy 
 
The Partners are eager to ensure that local people benefit from development across the Crescent 
area.  Therefore, in addition to consulting on the Draft Development Framework, the Partners are also 
inviting you to help shape a ‘Social Value Strategy’ for the area; a commitment from those leading the 
development about how they will support both the existing and new community and address priorities 
across the area. An interactive website has been set up for the Social Value consultation, where you can 
share your ideas. This can be accessed at: https://salfordcrescent.mysocialpinpoint.co.uk/home  
  
Data Protection 
 
Please note that all comments will be held by Salford City Council and will be available to view publicly. 
Comments cannot be treated as confidential. Your personal information, such as your postal and e-
mail address will not be published, but your name and organisation (if relevant) will. 
 

Page 252

mailto:plans.consultation@salford.gov.uk
mailto:plans.consultation@salford.gov.uk
https://urldefense.proofpoint.com/v2/url?u=https-3A__salfordcrescent.mysocialpinpoint.co.uk_home&d=DwMGaQ&c=jozbAXBGpZCeJmn-Q9SThA&r=iC-az-Mqpc0Mkk70GjSAUEIBGrkPaNVBb0oIBpv4oxI&m=EYRyS0Ne0KUkyMdVbWYZfy9IN6A5hteOjbzu2SJn3hw&s=6eAtLD4chRlEJ55xN01RgBzicC1uozwM42GVe8I0ml0&e=


 
 
In responding to this consultation your contact details will automatically be added to the Council’s 
planning policy consultation database. If you do not want to be contacted about future stages of the 
Crescent Development Framework Document, or other planning policy documents, please let us know 
in your response. 
 
Yours faithfully, 
 

 
 
James Shuttleworth  
Head of Planning 
 

Page 253



E  Virtual Consultation Feedback Form 
 

 

Page 33 

E Virtual Consultation Feedback Form  

Page 254



 

Draft Crescent Development Framework (October 2020) 

Thank you for attending our virtual public exhibition on the Draft Crescent Development Framework. We 
welcome your feedback.  

In order to provide your views on the proposals you have seen today, please complete the feedback form below 
and email it to plans.consultation@salford.gov.uk by 5pm on Tuesday 1 December 2020  

An interactive version of this form is also available within the exhibition which allows you to click through and 
submit immediate feedback. 

 

1. About you 

Name: 

Postcode: 

Email: 

Organisation (if applicable):  

2. What are your overall thoughts on the vision for The Crescent? 

☐ Really like   ☐ Like    ☐Neutral    ☐Dislike    ☐ Really dislike 

Please provide further detail: 

………………………………………………………………………………………………………………………………………………………………

………………………………………………………………………………………………………………………………………………………………

…………………………………………………………………………………………………………………………………………………………….. 

3.  What are your aspirations for the area covered by the Crescent Development Framework?   

………………………………………………………………………………………………………………………………………………………………

………………………………………………………………………………………………………………………………………………………………

…………………………………………………………………………………………………………………………………………………………….. 

And does the Draft Development Framework deliver these aspirations? 

………………………………………………………………………………………………………………………………………………………………

……………………………………………………………………………………………………………………………………………………………… 

……………………………………………………………………………………………………………………………………………………………… 

 

 

Page 255

mailto:plans.consultation@salford.gov.uk


4. What are your thoughts on the draft proposals included within the Draft Development Framework? 

☐ Really like   ☐ Like    ☐Neutral    ☐Dislike    ☐ Really dislike 

Please provide further detail: 

………………………………………………………………………………………………………………………………………………………………

………………………………………………………………………………………………………………………………………………………………

…………………………………………………………………………………………………………………………………………………………….. 

5. Is there anything else you would like to see included within the Draft Development Framework? 

………………………………………………………………………………………………………………………………………………………………

………………………………………………………………………………………………………………………………………………………………

……………………………………………………………………………………………………………………………………………………………… 

6. Based on the information you have seen, do you have any further comments or feedback on the Draft 

Development Framework? 

………………………………………………………………………………………………………………………………………………………………

………………………………………………………………………………………………………………………………………………………………

……………………………………………………………………………………………………………………………………………………………… 

7. Overall, how did you find accessing information on the virtual exhibition? 

 
☐ Easy to access  ☐ Not very easy to access  ☐ Not sure 

Please expand your answer below…. 

………………………………………………………………………………………………………………………………………………………………

………………………………………………………………………………………………………………………………………………………………

……………………………………………………………………………………………………………………………………………………………… 

Thank you for your feedback. Your responses will be taken into consideration in the preparation of the final 
Crescent Development Framework.  

Data Protection 

Please note that all comments will be held by Salford City Council and will be available to view publicly. 
Comments cannot be treated as confidential. Your personal information, such as your postal and e-mail address 
will not be published, but your name and organisation (if relevant) will. In responding to this consultation your 
contact details will automatically be added to the Council’s planning policy consultation database. If you do not 
want to be contacted about future stages of the Salford Crescent Development Framework Document, or other 
planning policy documents, please let us know in your response. 

Page 256



F  Draft Development Framework – Representations 
 

 

Page 34 

 

F Draft Development Framework – Representations   

Page 257



Responses from Statutory Consultees - Draft Development Framework 
 

Consultee Comment 

1 Natural 
England  

Natural England has no comments to make on the Draft Crescent 
Development Framework 

2 Highways 
England 

In regard to this specific consultation, we would welcome early 
discussions where any of the proposals are likely to impact the SRN, 
which would primarily be the M602 near this location. 
 
Zone 4 – The Transport Hub encompasses Salford Crescent Station, a 
portion of the A6 corridor, and a proposed extension to the Metrolink 
network, and links directly to the Junction 3 roundabout via the A5063 
Albion Way. As such, changes to the layout of streets and the traffic 
being generated by the proposals may impact upon SRN. As the 
development of any proposals within this Framework come forward, 
would we need to gain an understanding of the current transport 
provision, alongside individual and cumulative transport impacts of the 
proposals within each Zone. 
 
In principle, we are supportive of any plans which seek to reduce the 
need for private vehicle use and welcome the Draft Framework’s focus 
on sustainable travel and the creation of the Transport Hub in order to 
facilitate easier passenger movement. However, given that the 
proposed Transport Hub is within a short distance of the SRN, we 
would need to give consideration as to whether this location may 
become attractive to road users who would seek to use it as a start 
and end point to their journeys, and potentially increase car usage 
along the M602 motorway. We would therefore request that Highways 
England be provided with the necessary transport evidence through 
the development of a Transport Assessment for the site as it comes 
forward 

3 National 
Grid 

We have reviewed the above document and can confirm that National 
Grid has no comments to make in response to this consultation. 

4 Canal & 
River Trust 

As you will be aware, the Canal & River Trust (the Trust) is a charity 
formed in 2012 and entrusted to care for 2,000 miles of waterways and 
associated infrastructure across England and Wales. We are a 
statutory consultee on planning applications in England and Wales 
and believe that the planning system has a vital role to play in both 
protecting waterways from inappropriate development and unlocking 
their potential to secure positive place-making and high quality 
waterside developments which can make a real difference to the 
health and wellbeing of local communities and contribute to wider 
environmental, social and economic objectives.  
 
The line of the former Manchester Bolton & Bury Canal (MB&B) 

Page 258



crosses the development framework area, passing through defined 
zones 1, 4 and 6. The Trust is not responsible for the majority of the 
line of the MB&B within the site but is aware of aspirations for its future 
restoration . Therefore, whilst the Trust is broadly supportive of the 
significant regeneration opportunities identified in the development 
framework we are keen to ensure that future development does not 
adversely impact upon or prejudice the potential for future restoration 
of the MB&B and maximises the opportunities it presents to secure 
wider community benefit. This is consistent with saved policies of the 
Salford UDP and emerging Local Plan and we welcome the 
recognition given to this matter in the document. We would offer the 
following general advice on the content of the draft development 
framework.  
 
It is advised that the full extent of the line of the MB&B should be 
identified within the document together with the approach to be taken 
towards it as part of wider regeneration proposals. Unfortunately, this 
is not overly clear within the document where reference to the MB&B 
is somewhat inconsistent and piecemeal. Greater clarity in respect of 
this matter would be welcomed. For example, whilst proposals for a 
linear park along the length of the former MB&B are identified within 
Zone 6, no reference at all is made to it within details provided for 
Zones 1 and 4. The line is also not recognised in figure 1.4 which is 
intended to identify existing assets. We have previously advised that to 
avoid prejudicing future restoration of the MB&B and to maximise the 
opportunities it presents as a green corridor careful consideration will 
need to be given to the design and layout of adjoining development. 
Whilst development may initially adjoin a green corridor this could, in 
the longer term, become a restored waterway corridor and 
development should be considered in this context, particularly with 
regard to scale, massing, layout and design, to ensure an appropriate, 
high quality development with active frontages. Such corridors can 
also make a positive contribution to place making which should be 
acknowledged. Guidance on creating successful waterside places can 
be found on the Trust website at: 
https://canalrivertrust.org.uk/specialist-teams/planning-and-
design/creating-successful-waterside-places 
 
The ability to undertaken future restoration in terms of building setback 
and access should also be highlighted to ensure that development 
does not prejudice future restoration works. 
 
In addition to the above general points we would also offer the 
following detailed comments:  
 
Introduction: Figure 1.4  

Page 259



Identifies existing assets and should be amended to identify the line of 
the former MB&B with the framework area.  

Section 04 Contextual Analysis 
• page 58  
We would recommend that the section entitled “Non-designated 
(Locally Listed)Buildings” should be changed to refer to “Non-
designated Heritage Assets”, with locally listed buildings and the 
Manchester Bolton & Bury Canal (which we consider to be a non-
designated heritage asset) comprising subsections beneath this wider 
heading. 
 
The final line of the paragraph titled “Manchester Bolton and Bury 
Canal” should be amended as follows: 
"The former line of the Manchester, Bolton and Bury Canal is located 
to the south of the Crescent within the Framework area. The canal 
was commissioned by local landowners and businessmen and was 
constructed c.1791-1808 to connect Bolton and Bury with Manchester. 
The canal, when fully opened, was 15 miles long and was accessed 
via a junction with the River Irwell in Salford. Since its demise in the 
1960s the canal has been culverted and some sections in-filled.” 
 
If further history is required you could refer to the MB&B having been 
constructed primarily to carry coal as many mines were situated close 
to the waterway with loading directly from pit to boat.  
Lime, limestone, manure, stone, sand and slate were also key cargoes 
and, prior to the construction of the railway between Bolton and 
Manchester both passengers and parcels were carried on the packet 
boats. 

• Pages 74 & 75 
We note that the line of the MB&B is identified as a constraint under 
heritage. We would also wish to see it fully recognised as a potential 
opportunity, in terms of placemaking, realising the heritage value of 
this asset, and in terms of making provision for active travel and 
access to green space. 
 
Section 5 Development Framework Area:  
Development Principles 
 
• page 92 
Reference should be made to the MB&B, as outlined in the general 
comments above, within the development principles set out in this 
section of the development framework (especially ‘Placemaking”) and 
the potential recognised in figure 5.3 

• Page 98  
Embracing the Area’s History and Heritage 

Page 260



Amend the final line of this paragraph to refer to “ongoing 
conservation, restoration and protection” in recognition of the potential 
to reveal existing historic features associated with the former canal 
and, In the longer term, its potential restoration. 

• Page 112  
Manchester Bolton & Bury Canal  
Suggested minor rewording as follows to highlight aspirations for 
potential future restoration of the canal and the potential to reveal 
existing features associated with the canal where appropriate, such as 
coping stones etc.  
“The line of the former Manchester, Bolton and Bury Canal will be 
protected as an important heritage asset. In order that people can 
appreciate the history of the canal, reference will be made to its former 
line by way of a new pedestrian/ cycle route that signposts the route 
and provides heritage interpretation along the way whilst protecting it 
for future restoration. Where historic 
features areas of the canal can potentially be revealed…….” 
 

• Pages 114 and 115 
Environment and Blue Green Infrastructure 
The approach to the line of the MB&B is somewhat confusing. It 
appears, in part, in figure 5.5 as a “greenway” but there is no 
accompanying text anywhere to expand upon this.  

 
Section 06 Character Areas 
The following three zones contain the line of the former MB&B canal. 
This is however only recognised in respect of Zone 6 The Crescent 
where reference is made to the creation of a new linear park along its 
length. 

 
Zone 1 innovation  
The site includes part of the line of the former MB&B. which should be 
acknowledged within the text, including with regard to design layout 
and orientation of buildings, and shown on the  
accompanying illustrative masterplan.  

 
Zone 4 Transport Hub 
The site includes part of the line of the former MB& which should be 
acknowledged within the text, including with regard to design layout 
and orientation of buildings, and shown on the accompanying 
illustrative masterplan.  

 
Zone 6 The Crescent 

Page 261



The site includes part of the MB&B which is referenced in terms of its 
potential use for a new linear park containing pedestrian and cycle 
routes. Further reference should also be made to its protection to allow 
for future restoration and the need for appropriate design, layout and 
orientation of buildings as highlighted above. 

Delivery 
It is important that proposals for any linear park in the vicinity of the 
canal are dealt with in a comprehensive manner across the whole 
area, both as part of the overall planning of the area and by 
developers to avoid a piecemeal approach to its creation and 
enhancement for the wider public benefit. 

Format: 
A number of the plans contained in the document and associated keys 
are very difficult to interpret and would benefit from greater clarity in 
any final version of the document. 
In our capacity as landowner we would also advise that the Trust 
currently owns land at Upper Wharf Street within the masterplan area 
and notes the content of this document. 
 

5 Manchester 
City Council 
- planning 
policy 

• The framework broadly appeared to support the regions key growth 
sectors and complement MCC’s investment in these areas. 
• There appears a commitment to sustainable development within the 
area, however these opportunities should be maximised and play a 
fundamental role in development. Manchester has declared a climate 
emergency and has ambitious and challenging targets to meet to 
ensure it realising its carbon neutral targets. Given the proximity of the 
framework area, development should support the cities work in this 
area. 
• A number of aspects of the framework relate to transport 
infrastructure, all of these elements should be consistent with the 
emergent City Centre Transport Strategy which could also be 
referenced in post consultation drafts. Manchester City Council are 
working with Salford City Council and TfGM on the development of this 
strategy to ensure a cohesive, holistic approach to transport into and 
around the region’s economic hub. 
• The proposals for “de-engineering” A6 could have significant 
implications for the function of the city centre, in addition to its 
businesses and residents. We would recommend further 
conversations between the City Centre Growth & Infrastructure service 
in addition to Manchester City Council’s Highways team to fully 
understand the implications on the strategic highways network. 

6 Historic 
England 

The draft Development Framework covers an extensive area lying on 
the edge of central Salford and forming a key gateway into the inner 
urban area from the west. The area identifies as Salford’s academic 
and cultural heart, as well as historically its civic heart, incorporating 
the university campuses (at Peel Park and Frederick Rd), Salford Art 
Gallery, Museum and Local History Library, as well as Salford 
Crescent mainline railway station, and swathes of green space (The 
Meadows, Peel Park, David Lewis Sports Ground) alongside the River 

Page 262



Irwell. 
 
However the area is not without its issues, bisected by the A6 running 
east/ west, and the railway lines running north/ south (and the forming 
the southern edge), the area is dominated by infrastructure and suffers 
from connectivity issues, incohesive public realm and - as a result - the 
pedestrian experience is often poor. Furthermore, Salford Crescent 
station lacks any sense of arrival, and there are many vacant or 
underutilised sites - often used as surface car parking - interspersed 
throughout the area, but largely centred towards the southern and 
eastern boundaries. 
 
In terms of Historic England’s interests, the area abutting the A6 and 
addressing the meander of the River Irwell lies within the Crescent 
Conservation Area (designated 1981, extended 2008). The Crescent 
Conservation Area is currently identified by Historic England as ‘at risk’ 
(Heritage at Risk register, last updated October 2020). We will 
therefore focus our comments on the proposals that most closely 
relate to the Crescent Conservation Area. 
By way of context, the Crescent Conservation Area derives its name 
from the crescent of Grade II listed town houses to the east of the area 
(towards Chapel St) that front the A6, built by businessmen wishing to 
reside close to their businesses at the beginnings of the industrial 
revolution. It originally benefited from expansive views of the River 
Irwell and associated Meadows some 15m below road level. 
 
The conservation area is primarily centred around the A6. To the north 
of the A6 lies the University campus (Peel Park), which contains a 
number of Grade II listed buildings including Salford Museum, Art 
Gallery and Local History Library and the Peel Building, that flank an 
area of formal open space. To the south and set back from the A6, 
there are three squares, each including buildings of interest that are 
either Grade II listed or of local significance. On approach from the 
west the conservation area is clearly defined by the Peel Building and 
former Queens Royal Jubilee Nursing Home, now the Working Class 
Movement Library (both Grade II listed) which bookend this gateway 
into the area. 
 
There is a clear visual harmony to the earlier phases of development 
within the area in scale, materials and relationship to the street. 
Development is characteristically fine grained, with buildings 
addressing and aligned perpendicular to both streets and squares and 
benefiting from a generally consistent eaves/ parapet line. This is 
mirrored by later (pre-1960s) development such as the former Police 
Station and Masonic Hall. There is however a strong contrast between 
this and the later steel and glass university-related development that 
fragment the appearance of the conservation area. 

Page 263



 
The Crescent Conservation Area was extended in 2008 to incorporate 
Peel Park/ David Lewis playing fields. Peel Park, the first public park in 
the UK to be funded entirely by people’s subscription, opened in 1846 
- alongside Philips Park and Queen’s Park in Manchester - as 
Salford’s contribution to a joint project with Manchester involving the 
simultaneous opening of the first municipal parks constructed in a 
major industrial city. The development of Peel Park alongside the 
museum, art gallery and free public library are considered pioneering 
social and cultural initiatives (the museum being one of the first free 
local museums and home to the country’s first free public library), and 
their collective impact by the Salford’s authorities at such an early date 
is seen as a hugely innovative. 
 
Turning now to the Framework document, we commend the 
embedding of heritage within the ‘Vision’ (Chapter 3). We also 
welcome the key objectives proposing a positive strategy for the 
conservation and enjoyment of the area’s unique historic environment 
and character, and the Framework considering this area holistically. It 
is currently somewhat disjointed in character, and a joined-up 
approach will be key to tacking this and addressing fundamental 
issues such as poor connectively. We also acknowledge the potential 
of the area, and the detrimental impact that vacant and underutilised 
land have on its appearance. 

We recommend that the ‘Historic Environment’ section within the 
‘Contextual Analysis’ (Chapter 4) is strengthened to help better inform 
a positive strategy for the historic environment and the ‘Character 
Areas Development Principles’ (Chapter 6). It would benefit from a 
larger map so that the heritage assets are clearly identifiable, as well 
as the plotting of the line of the Manchester, Bolton & Bury Canal, 
which is referenced but not illustrated within the Framework. We would 
also support the development of a more detailed analysis to underpin 
the ‘Character Area Development Principles’ - particularly the 
principles relating to ‘Scale, Massing & Density’ - including an analysis 
of views within, into and out of the area. We recommend that this 
section generally draws further upon - and cross references - the 
research and analysis available in the Crescent Conservation Area 
Appraisal (2008), the Peel Park Conservation Plan (2014) and the 
Adelphi/ Bexley Square Conservation Area Appraisal (2007). 
 
In relation to our interests and the ‘Character Areas Development 
Principles’ and associated ‘Illustrative Masterplans’ (Chapter 6/ 7), we 
have the following comments: 

Zone 6: The Crescent 
We particularly welcome proposals to downgrade the A6 and enhance 
the associated public realm. Currently the A6 has a significant impact 

Page 264



on the cohesion of the Crescent Conservation Area and negatively 
impacts on the way that it is appreciated. Its downgrading and 
rationalisation will not only enhance the setting of heritage assets 
along the A6 but also the visual and physical relationship between the 
Crescent, River Irwell and Meadows beyond, reinstating and 
reinforcing the river as a focal point within the conservation area. We 
also support proposals seeking the active reuse of vacant or 
underutilised buildings that make a positive contribution to the 
character of the area such as the Old Fire Station and former Police 
Station. 
 
However, the residential proposals along the A6 and to the south 
towards the railway line will have considerable impact on the character 
and appearance of the Crescent Conservation Area, which is already 
considered to have been heavily denuded by later development, 
evident from its inclusion on the Heritage At Risk register. The 
proposals will further erode any sense of an historic street pattern, 
creating linear development that runs counter to the historic grain of 
the area, dominating in oblique views, and failing to provide the 
characteristic enclose of the street, thus replicating the issues of 
existing later development (1960s onwards). The conservation area 
appraisal identifies that the character and appearance is partially 
defined by the scale of the historic buildings, which are grand and 
imposing. However, were the proposals to come to fruition, these 
buildings would be some of the lowest elements in the area, harming 
their significance, and impacting on the way in which the conservation 
area is appreciated. 

We would also draw your attention to the line of the Manchester, 
Bolton & Bury Canal and the proposals for a linear park. The 
proposals do not read particularly clearly, and the space appears to 
mainly be addressed by a multi storey car park, so may benefit form 
enhanced natural surveillance. We would encourage further thought to 
be given to making this an attractive and usable space that evokes 
some sense of its past. 
 
Zone 4: Transport Hub 
We welcome proposals to enhance the sense of arrival at Salford 
Crescent Station, improving connectivity and the public realm, and 
have some sympathies with proposals to enhance density around the 
station. However, the railway line at this point clearly forms the 
juncture between two areas of very different character, the mixed 
scale residential development to the west that bares little relation to 
the A6, and the Crescent Conservation Area to east where buildings 
and fairly intimate spaces address the street. In view of this and the 
Peel Building and former Queens Royal Jubilee Nursing Home (both 
Grade II listed) forming a distinct gateway into the conservation area 
from the west, we have reservations about the impact of a residential 

Page 265



tall building cluster immediately to the west of the railway line and 
particularly a mid-rise residential cluster immediately to the east, on 
this gateway, its setting and the way that the conservation area is 
appreciated. 

Zone 2: Parks & River and Zone 3: Peel Park Campus 
We generally welcome proposals to enhance both physical access to 
the parks and River Irwell and the visual relationship between the 
conservation area and the river and parks. We also note that the Zone 
3 illustrative masterplan incorporates proposals for further student 
residential blocks within the park adjacent to those existing, and 
consider that any such proposal will need to be based on a clear 
understanding of the character and significance of the conservation 
area. 
 
To conclude, whilst we support the vision and objectives of the 
Crescent Development Framework and welcome many of its 
aspirations, we do have concerns about its articulation within the 
Illustrative Masterplan and Character Areas Development Principles in 
a number of areas, as set out above. In developing the positive 
strategy for the heritage, we recommend that the conservation area 
appraisals are revisited alongside the undertaking of further work in 
relation to view analysis, and this understanding is used to inform 
refinement of the principles and subsequently detail shown within the 
illustrative masterplan. 

7 Sport 
England 

Thank you for consulting Sport England on the Draft Development 
Framework. Unfortunately, the online form was not in a format that 
allowed me to make the specific comments I have so I hope you will 
accept this email instead. 
 
1. Zone 2 – Parks and River.   

This includes David Lewis Playing Fields. It is noted that a sustainable 
stormwater management strategy will be developed.  Whilst this is 
welcomed, any features that directly affect the functional area of the 
playing field (all areas not just the pitches currently marked out) should 
be discussed in detail with Sport England.  Sport England is a 
statutory consultee on all applications that affect or prejudice the use 
of playing fields and we would wish to work with the Council to ensure 
any development retains the flexibility of the site to accommodate 
pitches. With respect to Green Infrastructure any proposed tree 
planting will need to be undertaken sensitively.  Trees located on 
playing fields can cause a range of issues such as: 
a. overhanging canopies creating shading and increase in moss 
growth which causes a slip hazard for pitch users as well as 
maintenance issues. 
b. Tree roots coming up through the surface causing trip hazards 

Page 266



Again Sport England would wish to be consulted on any proposals for 
tree planting to ensure there is no prejudicial impact on the use of the 
playing field. 

 
2. Zone 3 – Peel Park Campus.   
a. The improvement of the sports facilities is welcomed.  However, it 
should be informed by a Feasibility Study which will help identify the 
right mix and size of sports facilities required to meet current and 
future demand.  Sport England have a range of strategic planning 
tools which may be of assistance, please contact the undersigned for 
more information. Sports Facilities owned and managed by Education 
Institutes can also become a valuable venue for a Community Sports 
and Well Being Hub. The feasibility of creating such a hub should be 
explored using the Council’s Indoor Built Facilities Strategy to help 
inform any community need in the area. 
b. It is noted the student accommodation is to increase by around 
2,000 units.  This increase in the student population in the immediate 
vicinity should help inform any Feasibility Study undertaken for the 
improved sports facilities on site.  The increase in population in this 
area may also affect existing indoor and outdoor sports facilities in the 
locality, such as David Lewis Playing Fields, and improvements may 
be required to meet the additional demand for sport. 

 
3. Zone 4 – Transport Hub.   

This is welcomed as it promotes the use of sustainable transport.  
However, consultation with the GM Moving Team (part of Greater 
Sport) may assist with the inclusion of innovative ideas to promote 
Active Travel: 
info@gmmoving.co.uk  

 
4. Zone 5 and 6 – Adelphi Village and The Crescent.  

There are plans to create additional residential units in this area.  The 
increase in population to this location is likely to generate additional 
demand for sport placing pressure in existing sports facilities within the 
locality. Sport England have a range of strategic planning tools that 
can help estimate the additional demand for sport which in turn can 
help inform which sports are likely to be impacted.  This assist with 
identifying whether existing facilities have the capacity to 
accommodate the new demand, improvements to existing, or new 
provision is required.  Please contact the undersigned for further 
information. 

 
5. Although an overarching Illustrative Masterplan has been produced 

Page 267

mailto:info@gmmoving.co.uk


it is not clear whether the principles of Active Design will be used as 
the design progresses. Sport England would welcome a specific 
reference to the use of Active Design to help inform the design 
process. 
Active design - it's clear there is an overarching objective to promote 
health and wellbeing throughout the objectives and adopting the 
principles of Active Design will help to achieve those objectives. Active 
Design is a key priority of the GM Moving Strategy and is contained 
within the emerging Greater Manchester Spatial Framework draft 
policy GM-E-5.  
https://www.sportengland.org/how-we-can-help/facilities-and-
planning/design-and-cost-guidance/active-design  
 
Sport England and BRE Global have worked together to map the 
individual issues and criteria in each BREEAM Scheme with the Active 
Design principles outlined by Sport England. The built environment 
can have major impacts on people’s health and wellbeing, designing 
the Principles of Active Design into new, emerging and established 
areas of the built environment is becoming increasingly desirable at 
national and local planning levels. BREEAM, HQM and CEEQUAL are 
schemes which can be used to ensure that the high level principles of 
active design are met and implemented where possible during each 
stage of a projects lifecycle. 
https://www.breeam.com/engage/research-and-
development/consultation-engagement/active-design-and-breeam/  

8 Environment 
Agency 

Thank you for notifying the Agency of the opportunity to provide further 
commentary on Salford’s DCDFD. This request for commentary, under 
public consultation, was received by the Agency on the 20th October 
2020. N.B. we have previously provided commentary on the ‘Initial 
Vision and Objectives’ of the DCDFD (EA Letter: 
SO/2006/000349/OR-09/IS1-L01). The commentary made within this 
initial letter remain pertinent to the DCDFD and should be used to 
guide further environmental assessment and help deliver the aims and 
objectives of the DCDFD. 
 
DCDFD Documentation Reviewed:- 
§ Salford Crescent - Draft Development Framework. Online PDF. 
Accessed via: https://salfordcrescent.consultation.ai/ 
Environment Agency Commentary 
Please see outlined below our response and commentary to each of 
the sub-sections of the DCDFD. 
 
Vision and Key Objectives 
DCDFD Amended Vision Wording: 
In line with our previous commentary, we are pleased to see that our 
recommendations to amend the wording of DCDFD Vision to include 
direct reference to protecting and enhancing the natural environment 

Page 268



have been encompassed. The alteration aligns with increasing local, 
national and global awareness on the importance of retaining and 
protecting our natural assets. 
 
DCDFD Key Objectives: 
We are pleased to see the inclusion of key objectives for the 
‘Environment and Blue-Green Infrastructure’ and ‘Climate Change and 
Sustainability’. 
Having re-reviewed the wording for the ‘Environment and Blue-Green 
Infrastructure’ objective, we suggest that sub-objective 10 could be 
further strengthened by altering the wording to as follows:- 
‘Enhance the wealth of existing green assets and significantly increase 
biodiversity ensuring that future development provides a measureable 
net-gain’ 
To help achieve this objective, we recommend that any proposed 
environmental enhancements/alterations are guided by appropriate 
ecological assessment of existing green space and the riparian 
corridor; the results and recommendations of said assessments should 
be positively integrated into future development proposals. 
 
Contextual Analysis 
We have no issues with the current wording of the contextual analysis 
for the DCDFD however, we would recommend that any references 
made to the Greater Manchester Strategic Framework (GMSF) and 
figures associated are checked and updated to the most recent 
version of this document. As Salford will be aware, the latest version 
GMSF is currently undergoing consultation for its adoption, we would 
advise that further iterations/ advanced versions of the DCDFD reflect 
the final determination of this in its wording. 
 
Zone 1 – Health & Innovation 
Having reviewed the illustrative masterplan provided and compared 
this against EA Flood Mapping, we have identified that the north-
eastern boundary of ‘Zone 1’, alongside Wallness Lane, could be at 
risk of fluvial flooding from the River Irwell. Flood Zone 2 is shown to 
affect the edges of this area and indicative development proposals. 

Development proposals will need to follow the sequential approach. In 
accordance with the National Planning Policy Framework (paragraph 
158), development should not be permitted if there are reasonably 
available sites appropriate for the proposed development in areas with 
a lower probability of flooding. It is for the local planning authority to 
determine if the sequential test has to be applied and whether or not 
there are other viable sites available at lower flood risk. Our flood risk 
standing advice reminds you of this and provides advice on how to 
apply the test. 
When the impact of climate change is considered against the 1% AEP 
design flood of National Planning Policy Framework, the lowest part of 

Page 269



the ‘Zone 1’ development area could be at risk. 
In line with the above, we would advised re-consideration of the 
current layout for Zone 1 siting “more vulnerable” residential 
development in the lowest risk areas. Alternatively, if current siting can 
be justified development proposals will need to include sufficient 
mitigation measures to reduce the risks to occupiers. Additionally, 
development proposals will need to show how the development would 
be safe whilst ensuring the risks of flooding are not increased 
elsewhere within floodplain. 
 
Zone 2 – Parks and Rivers 
We welcome the proposals to retain open green space as shown 
within the indicative mapping for ‘Zone 2’, the majority of which is flood 
plain associated with the River Irwell. 
We note that ‘blue infrastructure’ identified as part of the open green 
spaces will be retained and enhanced, acting as part as overarching 
sustainable stormwater management strategy for the wider framework 
area. 

We note from the indicative diagram of the management strategy 
provided under ‘Zone 2’ that large areas of green-space are identified 
as part of an ‘infiltration park’. We are aware from records held by the 
Agency that areas of this parkland, in particular in the vicinity of the 
current David Lewis Recreation Ground (overlying historic landfill), 
have been subject to former uses which could have introduced 
contaminants to the underlying ground. Whilst the Agency welcomes 
the use of Sustainable Urban Drainage Systems (SuDs), in 
accordance with approved Document Part H of the Building 
Regulations 2010. It should be establish via appropriate and 
comprehensive ground investigation that any infiltration measures 
proposed are feasible and that drainage features can be adopted, 
effectively maintained and finally would not result in environmental 
detriment. 

Further to the above and for example, using soakaways or other 
infiltration methods on contaminated land carries groundwater 
pollution risks and may not work in areas where a high water table is 
identified. Where the intention is to dispose to soakaway, these should 
be shown to work through an appropriate assessment carried out 
under Building Research Establishment (BRE) Digest 365. 
Further information on SuDS can be found within: 
§ The CIRIA C697 document SuDS manual 
§ HR Wallingford SR 666 Use of SuDS in high density developments 
§ CIRIA C635 Designing for exceedance in urban drainage – good 
practice 
§ The Interim Code of Practice for Sustainable Drainage Systems – 
the Interim Code of Practice provides advice on design, adoption and 
maintenance issues and a full overview of other technical guidance on 
SuDS.  
 

Page 270



The Environmental Permitting (England & Wales) Regulations 2016 
make it an offence to cause or knowingly permit a groundwater activity 
unless authorised by an environmental permit which we will issue. A 
groundwater activity includes any discharge that will result in the input 
of pollutants to groundwater. 
We note as part of indicative proposals for ‘Zone 2’ that several new 
crossings over the River Irwell are proposed. Any new crossings of the 
River Irwell should preferably be single span with deck levels situated 
above modelled flood levels. New footbridges and any other new 
structures over, adjoining or within the River Irwell are likely to require 
a Flood Risk Activity Permit (FRAP) granted by the Environment 
Agency, please see: https://www.gov.uk/guidance/flood-risk-activities-
environmental-permits for further details. 

Further to above and other indicate changes detailed within the 
DCDFD for ‘Zone 2’, we would also welcome additional intervention 
opportunities to benefit the River Irwell (Ref: GB112069061451) which 
is currently failing its statutory ecological objectives under the Water 
Framework Directive (WFD). 

In line with the vision and objectives for the DCDFD, future riparian 
development should seek to explore all opportunities to help address 
and meet the Irwell’s ecological objectives under the WFD. 

A key opportunity identified by the Agency we which advise 
consideration and inclusion of within the illustrative masterplan is the 
creation a new fish pass at Adelphi Weir. A fish pass in this location 
would help address and improve ecological connectivity mitigating the 
impact of the in-channel weir structure and play an important role in 
aiding the recovery of existing coarse and salmonid fish stocks. 
Finally, we would also seek that all opportunities to preserve and 
where possible enhance the ecological value of existing local wildlife 
site(s) and associated interest features, marginal aquatic habitats 
within the riparian zone are explored and highlighted. 
 
Zone 3 – Peel Park Campus 
The additional student accommodation proposals for ‘Zone 3’ (Peel 
Park Campus) appear to be located within or on the boundary of Flood 
Zone 2. When the impact of climate change is considered against the 
1% AEP design flood of NPPF, there is potential for this development 
to be at risk or increase risk elsewhere by displacement of flood plain 
storage. 

In line guidance previously detailed within our commentary for ‘Zone 2’ 
above, we recommend that the location of this additional “more 
vulnerable” development be reconsidered. If the current siting is 
deemed the only available location for the accommodation, the 

Page 271



proposals will need to show how the development would be safe whilst 
ensuring risks are not increased elsewhere on the flood plain. 

Zone 4 – Transport Hub 
We would take this opportunity to remind Salford that for the areas 
within ‘Zone 4’ that there is a strong possibility that historic uses 
(including rail) will have introduced adverse contamination to the 
ground. A large area of Zone 4 also overlies bedrock principal aquifer 
a high value groundwater asset which should protected in line with ‘the 
Environment Agency’s approach to groundwater protection’. Any 
development within areas of suspected contamination and or overlying 
vulnerable high value groundwater assets should: 
§ Follow the risk management framework provided in Land 
Contamination: Risk Management, when dealing with land affected by 
contamination 

§ Refer to our Guiding principles for land contamination for the type of 
information that we require in order to assess risks to controlled waters 
from the site 
 

§ Consider using the National Quality Mark Scheme for Land 
Contamination Management which involves the use of competent 
persons to ensure that land contamination risks are appropriately 
managed. 
Further information to the above can also be found on the gov.uk 
contaminated land pages. 
 
Zone 5 – Adelphi Village 
The proposals alongside the River Irwell within Zone 5 (Adelphi 
Village) should include riverside access. This should continue the 
riverside walkway provided by the two recent riverside developments 
immediately to the north of the site. Although flows for the River Irwell 
appear to be retained within the channel and according to indicative 
flood mapping there are no formal Flood Zone 2 or 3 Flood 
designations, we would advise that any proposals in vicinity of the 
Irwell are checked against flood level data especially if lower levels are 
to be included in designs i.e. basement features. 
 
Zone 6 – The Crescent 
Please see previous advice above regarding the use of SuDs and 
undertaking ground investigations in areas suspected of potential 
contamination. 
-- 
As previously noted, given the opportunities the Development 
Framework will create to positively influence future development in the 
area, we offer our own knowledge and support to Salford City Council 
in the development of the new DF where requested. 

Page 272



Should you have any queries or questions regarding the contents of 
this letter, then please do not hesitate to contact me. 
 

9 Coal 
Authority 

The Coal Authority records do not indicate that there are any coal 
mining features at shallow depth or surface coal resource present in 
the area identified for the Crescent Development Framework.  On this 
basis the Coal Authority has no specific comments to make in respect 
of the consultation document.   

10 Trafford 
Council 

Trafford Wharfside and the Innovation Triangle 
One of the aims is that the Crescent Development Framework is to 
contribute towards the ‘Innovation Triangle’ interconnected with 
Salford University, MediaCityUK and Salford Royal NHS Foundation 
Trust. This includes the continued growth of the tech cluster already at 
the Quays and the planned doubling in size of MediaCityUK and the 
wider Quays over the next 10 years. 
Trafford Wharfside is adjacent to MediaCityUK, on the other side of 
the Manchester Ship Canal. Trafford’s Core Strategy defines Trafford 
Wharfside as a Strategic Location. Core Strategy Policy SL2 states 
that Wharfside is identified for a major mixed-use area of regional and 
international significance where the focus will be on opportunities for 
new economic (particularly digital and media industries), leisure 
(hotels and visitor attractions) and residential development. The 
justification text of Policy SL2 states that the area will provide 
significant scope for substantial mixed use development capitalising 
on the proximity to Salford Quays to create a thriving media and 
knowledge based business focus in this location. The justification text 
also states that Trafford Wharfside lies within the Salford Quays/Irwell 
Corridor Strategic Regional Site as identified in July 2009 by the North 
West Regional Development Agency. The purpose of this designation 
is to expand and integrate the area with the rest of the regional centre 
of Manchester through a mixed-use framework. 
 
It is noted that the Innovation Triangle is a separate project from the 
Crescent Development Framework, however they are interconnected. 
Trafford Wharfside has the potential to contribute to joint economic 
objectives of the Innovation Triangle by providing mixed use 
development that includes digital and media industries along with 
leisure and residential development. This can create a thriving 
economic location at The Quays for creative, digital and media 
industries that integrates with the rest of the regional centre of Greater 
Manchester, contributing to the planned doubling in size of 
MediaCityUK and the wider Quays area over the next 10 years. 
Therefore, the role of Wharfside should be considered for its role in 
how it can contribute to economic growth in the area including how the 
area can contribute to the Innovation Triangle. 
 
Trafford Wharfside and Metrolink linkages 

Page 273



An aim of the Development Framework is to explore potential new 
Metrolink connections between Salford Crescent Station and Salford 
Quays. 

The justification text of Policy SL2 states that Wharfside is well located 
for accessibility and it is necessary to improve linkages to existing 
Metrolink facilities linking to the Regional Centre. In 2020, the Trafford 
Park Metrolink line opened and it runs from Pomona through 
Wharfside and onto Trafford Park. The two Metrolink stops of 
Wharfside and the Imperial War Museum are within the Wharfside 
Strategic Location. 
The aim of the Development Framework to explore connecting Salford 
Crescent and Salford Quays by Metrolink should take account of 
making adjacent Wharfside more accessible through public transport 
connections. Increasing the accessibility of the Quays and wider area 
shall contribute to creating a thriving mixed use area for economic, 
leisure and residential development. It shall also contribute to planned 
economic growth of the Innovation Triangle. 
 
Identifying land within Trafford 
Figure 2.2 ‘Strategic Location’ shows Cornbrook, Pomona Island and 
Trafford Wharfside shaded in pink, which gives the impressions that 
these areas fall within Salford. It should be made clear that these 
areas fall within the Trafford Local Authority area. 
If you would like to get in touch with Trafford Council about any of the 
issues raised in our consultation response to the Draft Crescent 
Development Framework, please contact 
strategic.planning@trafford.gov.uk. 

11 United 
Utilities 

The documents hold an appreciation for the details in our response 
earlier this year. There are links to Planning Policy in the draft Local 
Plan which we very much supported. The document contains 
reference to the water movement across the area towards the River 
Irwell and also highlights the indicative phasing and timing of 
proposals outlined coming forward. United Utilities is supportive of 
Policy EF2 within the Local Plan. We are pleased to see Salford 
Council use the above policy in the Masterplan and hope it can be 
used to influence a co-ordinated approach to ensure sustainable 
development is delivered between sites and landowners in the area. 
 
The expectation will be for only foul flows to communicate with the 
public sewer. We therefore wish to see the area achieve a multi-
functional and connected green / blue water environment which has 
the management of surface water as one of its main features. 
 
Yes. The principle of a connected environment is touched upon in the 
document in numerous places, but there could be more direct 
reference to surface water management or the associated planning 

Page 274



policies to ensure the most sustainable drainage solution is achieved 
for the area. New development should ensure unfettered access for 
new sustainable drainage infrastructure through a connected series of 
green and blue infrastructure. It is appreciated that the document is 
only establishing a principle and specifics will not be understood in 
detail at this stage, but it is important to now consider how the Council 
intends for landowners to work together to achieved a connected 
environment. As we’ve highlighted previously, to deliver the most 
sustainable drainage solution, design of development should plan new 
green and blue features around existing topography as this will help 
understand how development sites can link and account for any 
naturally occurring flow paths or low lying areas within the area where 
water will naturally accumulate and eventually discharge. 
 
In terms of the phasing approach, it’s important there is access left as 
part of Phase 1 to allow subsequent phase’s to discharge surface 
water to the River Irwell. We would request further discussions are 
undertaken by the Council, ourselves and the LLFA to understand the 
proposals for this in greater detail. 
 
There is opportunity for the document to refer to surface water 
management and make reference to the relevant Local Plan policies. 
We would like to highlight the opportunity for the document outline the 
opportunities for new public realm features to be used for the 
sustainable disposal of surface water. The aim of including such 
references aims to ensure sustainable drainage concepts are fully 
identified within the document. There is an opportunity to use the 
improved connectivity and link sustainable drainage systems with 
multi-functional benefits as part of a high quality, connected green and 
blue water environment. There is further opportunity to use the 
document to link surface water management as a requirement for new 
development as part of a new, connected urban landscape. We’re 
happy to discuss this further and would like to refer you back to our 
response in August for recommended wording. 
 
As above, we’d like to understand how the landowners at this stage 
are proposing to work together and how the phasing between parcels 
will interact. We would appreciate early discussions as soon as 
possible to understand more about the future development proposals. 
We are currently in discussions with parties regarding protection of our 
assets and we’re happy to feedback on this aspect as part of any 
future meetings. 
 
Very well thought out and would recommend use of it again as part of 
future consultations. 

12 Manchester, 
Bolton & 

MBBCS welcomed the changes made to the original document but 
expressed concerns about the full restoration of the Manchester Bolton 

Page 275



Bury Canal 
Society 

& Bury Canal not being given greater prominence. The value of 
waterside developments elsewhere in Manchester and Salford was 
noted. It was pointed out that whilst protection of the canal route stated 
in the document was welcome, securing funding and addressing land 
ownership were major issues to achieve full restoration. 
Land Ownership 
It was confirmed that the proposed Linear Park in Zone 6 “The 
Crescent” would be created on land which is presently in separate public 
and private ownership. Once created, the Linear Park would then be 
held and maintained on behalf of the community either by Salford 
Council or by an organisation to do this on behalf of the Council. It was 
confirmed that the Council does have the powers to acquire land 
required for canal restoration and creating the Linear Park if needed. 
Funding 
The framework document should refer to S106 contributions and 
equivalent funding from developers which would be sought from each 
individual planning application.  
 
It was agreed that the present government and GMCA funding initiatives 
on active travel, walking, cycling and green/blue environmental 
improvements should be explored jointly by MBBCS and relevant 
Salford Council Active Travel Champion to fund improvements and 
canal restoration. Restoration of the canal will have wide health and 
wellbeing benefits for people in the area.  
 
Policy 
The strategic focus should refer to Council Policy CH7:  

Manchester, Bolton and Bury Canal. This identifies that where the 
restoration or improvement of the canal or towpath is necessary to 

enable development to proceed satisfactorily, or where the 
development would benefit directly from the restoration or 

improvement, contributions will be sought with a view to securing such 
restoration or improvement. 

and to Policy OB5:  
Transport contribution. The city council will seek a financial 

contribution towards the provision or improvement of transport 
infrastructure or services on a case by case basis from relevant 
developments comprising 11 or more dwellings, or 1,000 square 

metres or more of non-residential floorspace. The appropriate scale of 
any contribution will be negotiated having regard to site-specific 

circumstances. 

Aim and Content of Framework Document 
It was explained that best practice and guidelines outlined in the 
National Planning Policy Framework (NPPF), Salford City Council Local 
Plan “A Fairer City” and GM Spatial Framework document would shape 
the planning and proposed developments in the CDF.  
Social Value consultation was to ensure quality of life and human 
dimensions for local residents and community groups are addressed in 
the CDF proposals.  
The CDF proposals are aimed at sharing the improved assets and 
benefitting neighbouring Salford residents living in for example 

Page 276



Middlewood, Islington, Pendleton & Charlestown. It was accepted that 
access and use of the Linear Park, cycle/walk route and the restored 
canal would be a valuable community benefit available to all Salford 
residents and visitors free of charge.  
MBBCS confirmed they will use the consultation process to propose 
further improvements which will help to strengthen the CDF: 
1. Recognition of the multiple benefits for the local community 
and the commercial advantages for landowners / developers of 
restoring the canal and its towpath in Salford - health, wellbeing, 
environment, heritage, recreation & leisure, increased property prices 
& rateable values. The great heritage value of the canal needs 
stressing. 
 
2. Encouragement and support for developers of sites which are 
near the line of the canal to use designs that make full use of water 
and towpath features. Thereby adding commercial value to owners, 
improving quality of life for the occupants (office staff, residents and 
visitors) and generating increased rateable values to the Council. 
 
3. Insert a sentence to the effect that “Salford Council and their 
partners will encourage and support landowners, developers and 
community groups to secure grants, Section 106 and other sources of 
external funding for the full restoration of the canal and its towpath.” 
 
4. Enhance the design of the linear park in Zone 6 to include water 
(1 – 2 meters depth for aquatic habitat) along the canal. This creates 
an eco-highway and increases the natural asset value of this land. It 
improves bio-diversity and provides cooling at times of global warming 
to this inner-city area. It also offers a public space for leisure, canoeing 
and fishing activities for residents and supports the draft GM Spatial 
Framework guidance on establishing green/blue corridors. 
     Water supply could come from back pumping from Middlewood 
under Oldfield Road and/or from SuDS on new developments adjacent 
to the canal which would help to mitigate flood control issues on the 
River Irwell. A SuDS expert who is working with the design team will 
be asked to discuss options with MBBCS and perhaps C&RT, EA and 
UU.  
                            
5. Restore the locks in the linear park, near Oldfield Road, put up 
interpretation boards to feature and explain the industrial heritage of 
nearby wharves and links to the nearby restored Middlewood Locks. 
Any industrial heritage materials (for example stone setts, coping 
stones, ironwork, milestones, stone work) which are reclaimed by 
developers, archaeology teams & community groups from 
development sites could be recycled, reused and displayed in the linear 
park, adding a sense of place. Access to historic maps for the area and 
other resources held by MBBCS showing likely locations of industrial 
heritage sites would be welcome.     
     
6. It was agreed to explore options to extend the proposed 
connectivity of the Linear Park for cycle, walking & eco-highway 
northwards along the route of the canal. The Linear Park would then 
go from the restored section of canal at the Middlewood under Oldfield 
Road through the proposed transport hub and the University campus 

Page 277



to Frederick Road. This would provide a valuable “off-road” clean air 
route for residents to join up Zones 6, 4 and 1.  
 
7. Both the “Enhanced greenspace and improved public realm” 
and “Enhanced Biodiversity” paragraphs on the CDF page headed 
“Regeneration Benefits” could be strengthened by making reference to 
creating the Linear Park as a blue/ green corridor or eco-highway.
  
8. The paragraph on the penultimate page of the CDF document 
“Manchester, Bolton and Bury Canal line protected and referenced” 
should be revised to reflect a staged or step approach to full 
restoration. It was noted that space had been built into the design of 
the Salford Crescent station booking hall to allow restoration of the 
canal underneath, but that a nearby electricity sub-station was on the 
line of the canal. It was agreed that a site visit will be arranged for early 
in the New Year (on a dry day!) to walk the potential routes. 
        
9.    There was agreement and support for appropriate planting and 
landscaping between the canal and railway to screen off the visual 
eyesores and air pollution from some industrial sites located south of 
the railway line south of Salford Crescent.  
     

The meeting closed by confirming there will be a follow-up meeting in 
the New Year to progress these agreed actions and develop a long-term 
relationship between MBBCS, MUSE and Salford Council.  
 
It was agreed that Councillors would identify an appropriate Salford 
Councillor to join the Canal Joint Steering Committee which next meets 
on Tuesday, 8th December and half-yearly thereafter.  
 

 

Page 278



Responses from Residents and Businesses - Draft Development Framework  
Q1. What are your overall thoughts about the 
proposals you have seen for Salford Crescent? 

Q2. What are 
your aspirations 
for the area 
covered by the 
Crescent 
Development 
Framework? 

Q2a. Do you think 
the Draft 
Development 
Framework 
delivers these 
aspirations? 

Q3. What are your thoughts on the draft 
proposals included on the Draft Development 
Framework? 

Q4. Is there anything else 
you would like to see 
included within the Draft 
Development 
Framework? 

Q5. Based on the 
information you have 
seen, do you have 
any further 
comments or 
feedback on the 
Draft Development 
Framework? 

 

R
ea

lly
 li

ke
 

Li
ke

 

N
eu

tr
al

 

D
is

lik
e 

R
ea

lly
 d

is
lik

e 

Further detail... 

R
ea

lly
 li

ke
 

Li
ke

 

N
eu

tr
al

 

D
is

lik
e 

R
ea

lly
 d

is
lik

e 

Further detail... 

1 x         Ambitious, sustainable but also 
realistic 

For a city hub that 
is similar scale to 
the success of 
MediaCity - it 
deserves 
recognition 

Yes x         The Salford Crescent station 
regeneration is the most 
exciting proposal - hope the 
end result looks as green as 
possible 

Further info of how the 
framework area can link 
with Salford city centre 

Access to Peel Park 
and the Meadow 
needs to be a priority 
and realised early 

2   x       I think the ambition is fantastic. To connect 
Salford Royal, 
media City and 
Salford Crescent 
with Manchester 

Possibly. I think at 
the moment the area 
around Salford 
Shopping Centre 
needs to be 
considered and 
incorporated within 
the vision. The plans 
seem to abruptly 
end past the 
transport hub. 

  x         I would like to see the area 
and communities 
surrounding Salford 
Shopping Centre 
acknowledged and invested 
in within these plans. These 
areas could be the vibrant 
medium between Salford 
Royal, Media City and 
Salford Crescent but at the 
moment are needing 
investment/ redevelopment. 

Access to Peel Park 
and the Meadow 
needs to be a priority 
and realised early 

3     x     I have concerns about some of 
it sounding like areas of the A6 
will be virtually pedestrianised 
that are major thoroughfares 
from the East Lancashire Road 
into Manchester and other roads 
in the surrounding area will not 
be able to accommodate 
additional traffic, but 
transportation options 
suggested will not 
accommodate this traffic with 
alternatives. 

I enjoy the 
Heritage area of 
the Crescent and 
hope this is 
preserved. 

I saw mentions of 
historic buildings, 
but it seems to be 
modifying them not 
preserving them, 
which would not 
deliver my 
aspirations. I would 
like to see Metrolink 
connections to 
Wigan/Bolton over a 
connection to 
Salford Quays. 
Buses and the 

    x     I have concerns about the 
vision, but the details don't 
seem to be there to know if it 
will satisfy my concerns. 
Though it isn't promising 
overall, but some thinks like 
improving the intermodel 
connections are good. I think 
a metrolink track next to the 
rail line or a 'super tram' 
would benefit a Manchester to 
Wigan and Manchester to 
Bolton through Salford 
Crescent but one between 
Salford Quays and Salford 

Provisions to maintain the 
(architectural) character of 
the Crescent, realistic 
provisions for private 
vehicles using the 
thoroughfare, and realistic 
tram plans (Leigh/Wigan) 
have BRT already. 

  

P
age 279



current BRT are 
much better. 

Crescent will be awkward for 
the network as well as is 
going to be a quite obtrusive 
as a project for the narrow 
roads along the route. 

4 x         The Working Class Movement 
Library is very pleased to offer 
its wholehearted support for the 
regeneration of Salford 
Crescent. We have occupied 
what, in effect, is the last site to 
the West of the proposed 
regeneration area for more than 
30 years now and , we feel, 
provide a very important place 
not only to the cultural wellbeing 
of the City but of the whole 
region with users coming from 
all over the country and, indeed, 
abroad. 
There are two things that 
concern us. Firstly, the 
proposed building of new 
houses on the East of Aldred 
Street would seem to take away 
our current car parking. Many of 
our readers and volunteers 
come by car and parking is of 
vital importance to us. We hope 
that the least that can be done if 
we are to lose our current 
spaces is the allocation of 
spaces in the new multi storey 
carpark proposed for the site off 
Christchurch Avenue.  
The second concern is may a bit 
subjective. We are currently the 
last building to the West of the 
Crescent, we make, with the 
Peel Building, the Museum and 
Art gallery and the Georgian 
buildings of the Crescent and 
Albion street the only remaining 
large scale area of conservation 
quality  buildings in the city. We 
are concerned that any possible 
development to the West 

For the Crescent 
to become the 
cultural heart of 
Salford 

                I think some pieces 
need to have more 
clarity/a rethink. 

P
age 280



beyond us would overshadow 
the area and detract from the 
present harmonious architecture 
of what, we see as the cultural 
heart of our city. 

5 x         the area has been very 
neglected and this proposal is a 
very positive step 

To create a 
destination and 
node in its own 
right, to give the 
area some 
identity and 
purpose of its 
own, rather than 
just a place to 
pass through  

yes broadly  x         I like the covered railway to 
bring the two halves of the 
campus together  

Focus on cycling 
infrastructure  

  

6 x         The development scheme is 
excellent but needs to be co-
ordinated with other 
development programmes 
including those for Metrolink 
(TFGM) and Network Rail. 
There also needs to be due note 
of associated City of Salford 
programmes for Chapel Street, 
Pendleton and Langworthy. 
Such programmes exist and it is 
mainly a case of synchronising 
planning horizons.  

Good quality, fit 
for purpose, 
student 
accommodation 
is integral to a 
good university 
experience. I 
would like to see 
the development 
of this in line with 
any expansion of 
the University. 

Given the above 
provisos - yes 

x         The removal of general traffic 
from the Crescent is key and 
its redevelopment as a "tram-
bahn" is in line with best 
European town planning 
practice. I would like to see 
this reflected in TfGM's long 
term planning. Salford 
Crescent station is a key 
bottleneck in the Greater 
Manchester Rail Network and 
features in their recent 
congested infrastructure 
report. For the Crescent 
development to work both of 
these issues needs to be 
addressed.  

    

7 x         Fantastic option with A6 and 
access to the river from the 
Crescent , train station idea is 
great too.  

Think The 
Meadows needs 
extra 
infrastructure and 
lighting. There is 
nothing 
mentioned what 
will be done to 
this natural area. 
Definitely New 
pedestrian lines , 
brand new 
benches and the 

In 80% yes. The 
meadows and peel 
park should be taken 
care of it. Access to 
the water with 
seating areas where 
people can enjoy 
free time and nice 
weather.  

  x         Think all infrastructure and 
development should be 
expanded to the Adelphi 
footbridge ( green bridge ) 
which needs refurbishment 
and new lighting for people 
to cross the river and 
access park and meadow. 
New waterside pedestrian 
area should be extended to 
the Adelphi bridge too.  

New stories are 
essential for this area. 
Would love to see 
more different retails 
and cafes to establish 
over here.  

P
age 281



most important 
lights ( lamps) for 
safety people. 
Also new trees 
and flowers will 
be good for this 
place.  

8 x         Clearly a well thought out 
masterplan which will bring 
huge economic benefits to the 
area.  

Regeneration is 
key but also 
retaining and 
enhancing blue 
and green 
infrastructure, as 
well as tackling 
climate change 
issues. It will be 
key to address 
these at the 
strategic level to 
then guide 
development at 
the project level.  

Somewhat. I do not 
support the 
extension of the 
student 
accommodation 
within Peel Park / 
David Lewis Sports 
Ground. In terms of 
good planning, the 
existing scheme 
shouldn't have been 
built as it truncates 
the green space. Its 
slightly disappointing 
that the land to 
deliver this 
accommodation has 
been transferred 
from SCC to the 
University already.  
 
I am fully supportive 
of the overall 
proposals but do not 
support the further 
loss of green space 
and vegetation 
where it isn't 
necessary, 
especially given the 
scope of brownfield 
land within the 
Framework area.  

x         Refer to above comment on 
the loss of green space.  

It will be good to see a 
strategy solely for blue and 
green infrastructure, and 
climate change. This is an 
opportunity to place Salford 
on the map and this should 
go above and beyond to 
create a world class 
development. Has there 
been any thought to the 
principles of the circular 
economy etc.? 

  

9                                 

P
age 282



10   x       I like the ideas for some of the 
zones however I have issues 
with the 'Transport Zone'  

Better use of 
land, reducing the 
use of private 
vehicles, 
increased student 
accomodation to 
reduce students 
in private rent. 
More social rent 
housing 

Yes to all except 
social housing (no 
mention of it) 

  x       I like the ideas for some of the 
zones however I have issues 
with the 'Transport Zone'  

Affordable housing Zone 1 - Looks like 
decent plans. Have 
my support 
Zone 2 - Looks good. I 
wonder if perhaps a 
pavillion could be built 
here so then teams 
can hire out a pitch for 
training or events. May 
help the fields be more 
used. 
Zone 3 - Full support  
Zone 4 - I think you 
need to undertake 
more work on this for 
example working with 
Network Rail to get the 
station upgrade done 
at the same time since 
building over the 
station and then NR 
doing the upgrade 
would mean a lot more 
cost and it would 
make it much more 
difficult to do and thus 
jeopardise the whole 
project.  
Secondly, I would 
welcome some more 
details on the 
proposals as I fear 
that your proposals 
will either add to bus 
journey times or 
decrease punctuality. 
There are a LOT of 
buses along this 
corridor and any works 
which will negatively 
affect them, even 
short term during 
construction, I am fully 
against. Buses need 
more priority and less 
of the silly speed 
bumps and shicanes 

P
age 283



in the area. 
Otherwise, I support 
the removing of 
access to/from Albion 
Way to/from the 
crescent. I also 
support removing the 
Crescent underpass.  
 
Zone 5 - fully support. 
No complaints 
Zone 6 - I support but 
question some of the 
parking. Would it 
perhaps be better to 
have a lower deck of 
parking and above 
have the apartment 
blocks. This then 
maximises the amount 
of car parking and 
allows the proposed 
car park site to be 
developed on.  

11   x       just hoping that there are plans 
for the manchester bolton bury 
canal.  

I'm hoping that 
the development 
doesn't obstruct 
the restoration of 
the canal .  

unknown   x       my interest is with the 
manchester bolton bury canal 
that runs under the main road 
and my hope is that any 
development doesn't prevent 
the preservation of what could 
be a great asset for Salford . 

    

12   x       Like Improve Yes   x       Like No We don’t think the 
linear park to the rear 
of Fire Station Square 
is a good idea. It is 
very likely to be under-
utilised, most 
pedestrians/cyclists 
will be using the A6, it 
would also provide 
easy access to the 
rear of properties in 
Fire Station Sq, a 
problem we had 
regularly in the past 

P
age 284



13     x     It's not particularly 'visionary'; 
with no mention of all-electric 
vehicles or self-driving cars. It 
seems all about cyclists and 
pedestrians. Very 2000's. 

Social spaces. 
Places to meet. 
To drink. To eat. 
To play. 

No     x         A footpath, or cycle 
path, adjacent to the 
canal behind 
Firestation Square 
would do nothing other 
than to compromise 
the security of the 
residents living there. 

14   x       this is an ambitious and good 
plan for the area. I am 
somewhat concerned by the 
increase in the influx of 
individuals to the area. it would 
be useful to know numbers of 
flats, houses planned. It will be 
crucial to encourage car-less 
travel, i.e. walking, cycling. this 
will involve making sure that it is 
SAFE to walk through the park, 
apropriate lighting, cctv, 
policing. also with a large 
increase in population it is 
important to consider needs of 
children and young people in 
the area: will there be a nursery 
anywhere in the new 
development, play areas. those 
things are important because 
even if now this are is meant to 
atrract young professionals they 
may decide to have families in 
the future. I also hope that this 
development is considering 
neighbouring large 
developments like middlewood 
locks. despite that area being 
outside the remit of this 
development this will no doubt 
have impact on them. 

that it becomes a 
safe, family 
friendly area 
where people can 
thrive 

I think it aims to do 
it. 

x         I like the inclusion of reserach 
spaces with labs. I do hope 
that this will deliver prosperity 
to the area and people who 
live here. however it is 
important to have spaces for 
young people. I now often see 
teenagers aimlesly (in my 
view) wandering the streets, 
occupying playgrounds which 
are meant for younger kids. 
teens should have places to 
go, things to do. I hope that 
this developemnt will create 
job 
prospects/apprenticeships/int
ernships for young people 
from the area and not only 
Salford Uni students.  

makre sure that any 
solutions are future proof, 
no relient on fossil fuels, 
waste. that the solutions 
focus on growth and 
sustainability, that plans 
have evidence base and 
are rooted in research and 
things that have worked in 
a comparable environment, 
i.e. if a solar street lamps 
worked in California that 
thay are not considered 
here as this is not a 
comparable environment, 
but if they worked in 
Denmark then great, that 
sort of thing. instances 
where big, expensive 
projects are let down by 
lack of forward and 
cohesive thinking are too 
common. public should be 
regularly involved in the 
review of plans. it is all well 
and good to have a 
consultation prior to the 
start but best would be to 
have a representative 
group of individuals from 
the area to work with the 
stakeholders during the 
project. bring everyday 
people in, they will tell you 
what they want, what they 
need, what communities 
lack etc.  

I hope public is 
continously involved in 
this development 
framework.  

P
age 285



15 x         Walking and Cycling, Liveable 
cities, Parks green space all 
wonderful.  

To make active 
travel the main 
form of transport 
in the area 

Yes x             Residents of Fire 
Station Square use 
the land where the 
former canal is and 
this will be a big 
problem for a path 
along there. The 
residents of the 
square would need to 
meet with the council 
and ECF to discuss 
alternatives to your 
plan, as the current 
path is not realistic or 
feasible. 

16   x       Doesnt appear to be any real 
detail around the impact on 
surrounding areas. 

Better retail and 
non sports 
leisure. 
Integrations with 
the metrolink 
network. 
Improvements to 
the parks to make 
them more 
accessible and 
safer. Integration 
between the 
university and its 
surrounding 
residential 
neighbourhoods. 

Not all of them. It 
retains a separation 
between the 
university and the 
surrounding 
residential areas. 

  x       Still misses out on the impact 
on the surrounding areas and 
given the push for it to be 
environmentally sustainable 
I'm surprised to see a multi 
storey car park included. 

Impact assessment on 
surrounding areas for each 
of the zones, as some of 
the proposals will have a 
significant impact on local 
networks.  

You need to detail the 
impact on the wider 
surrounding areas and 
perhaps consider that 
there is more than just 
the university here! 

17 x         I think the plans look great. 
Better transport and 
infrastructure and really 
develops the area.  

Metrolink & better 
local social spots. 
A foot bridge from 
the meadow to 
the A6 

Mainly    x         Foot access to the meadow 
from the A6 

  

18 x               x               

19   x       I think the public transport link 
improvements such as metrolink  
should be created first as this 
will drive the rest of the 
development. The transport 
route (only one way in and out 

A real place or 
destination to be, 
live and work. 

Yes, in part.   x         Working with current 
communities and low 
income areas to provide 
affordable access to a 
cultural environment. 

  

P
age 286



via the A6) is a real barrier to 
any development taking place. 

20 x         I'm a fan of the overall idea of 
regenerating this part of Salford 

Any development 
that improves this 
area for residents 
is positive in my 
books. Alongside 
the leisure/parks 
improvements, 
I'm keen that 
sustainable 
transport is 
prioritised. The 
cycling routes are 
good, but the 
junction by 
Salford Crescent 
station is awful to 
navigate - 
learning from 
Mancunian Way's 
could be good. 
Perhaps lowering 
the speed limits 
along Bolton 
Road/Chapel 
Street would help 
cyclists 
commuting too, 
as it's already 
difficult during 
lockdown. 

Yes, I believe so but 
with some room to 
deliver more (as 
above) 

x           As above really   

21   x       The only think I don't like is 
talking about building new stuff 
bridges, metrolink, not 
buildings...) When we can't even 
keep what is already there! Most 
of the bridges area a shame, 
look abandoned, dirty and no 
ilumination what leads to anti 
social behaviour and robberies! 

To be a great and 
safe place mainly 
for residents and 
students 

Not completely   x       Same as a above Yes! The recovering of the 
bridges and meadow park 
that have been left 
abandoned! 

You should start by 
recovering what is 
already there 

P
age 287



22   x       In general the proposals to 
create an environment that will 
improve the quality of living and 
work for residents are welcome. 
I am not sure proper 
consideration has been given 
regarding the impact of existing 
residents though I am confident 
plans will be updated to ensure 
residential security and safety.  

To create a 
community and 
learning 
environment that 
impacts positively 
on individuals 
well being. 

In some part, 
concerns are that 
some plans could 
pose a risk to 
resident safety and 
security. 

  x       Increased green spaces and 
improving transport links 
whilst creating an 
environment that enriches 
peoples lives is most 
welcome. Ensuring changes 
don't create new risks is key. 

Emphasis on residential 
security. 

No 

23 x           Better transport 
and overall 
connectivity in the 
area 

yes x         I think it's fantastic as a 
resident of the new build 
estate by Peel Park / The 
Meadows. I like the idea of 
introducing bridges 
connecting the A6 to the 
Meadow but need re-
assurances this won't 
introduce further anti-social 
behaviour / illegal moped / 
motorbike use in the 
meadows as this is where I 
walk my dog and children so it 
needs to be safe. 

    

P
age 288



24                               I’ve recently looked at 
the latest plans for the 
Crescent and 
University area and 
welcome the 
improvements and 
benefits that this new 
framework will bring to 
residents and 
businesses in the 
area. 
 
There is one area of 
the plan, however, 
which I think will not 
work well and I 
urgently request that 
you look at this again 
and consider an 
alternative:- 
 
The plan includes a 
new 
footpath/cycleway/par
k area running parallel 
with the crescent but 
at the back of of the 
existing buildings (the 
crescent terrace, 
police station and Fire 
Station Square 
houses). This would 
be a much needed 
route, away from the 
traffic but it would 
serve users better if it 
was on the opposite 
side of the A6).  
 
The proposed route in 
the plan would give 
users views of the 
railway cutting, the 
Cemex factory 
(including its very 
unpleasant noise and 
polluting odours) and 

P
age 289



the various scrapyards 
and rubbish tips! 
An alternative route on 
the opposite side of 
the A6 would provide 
panoramic views of 
the meandering River 
Irwell, the meadows 
beyond and finally, 
Peel Park and the 
University Campus. 
 
It seems a common 
sense alternative that 
provides all the same 
benefits but with a 
vastly more pleasant 
environment. I urge 
you to reconsider this 
minor but important 
revision to the plan, 
and allow users to fully 
enjoy our 
neighbourhood. 

25 x         I am glad to see that the 
proposed draft plan respects 
and promotes the history of the 
area, prioritises sustainability, 
and makes the most of existing 
assets, modernising and 
repurposing, rather than 
replacing characterful features. 
It is good to see that the 
University is an organic element 
in these developments 

I would like to see 
the area being 
revitalised and 
becoming a 
destination -- a 
place where 
people want to go 
and spend time. 
As identified in 
the plan, people 
drive through or 
move away from 
the area at the 
end of the day 
because there is 
little to do here. 
For example, in 
the 12 years I 
have been living 
here, it always 
stroke me as odd 
that you hardly 
see any students 

It is an ambitious 
plan and depending 
on how it is 
delivered, it is 
certainly a step in 
the right direction 

x         It is a comprehensive set of 
proposals that takes a fresh 
look at the historical 
significance of existing 
facilities while taking the 
needs of current and future 
residents into consideration 

It is shocking that an area 
so close to key parts of 
Salford and Manchester 
remains the home to heavy 
infrastructure, including 
unsightly recycling facilities, 
MOT businesses, and a 
very prominent cement 
processing plant. These 
features, so dominant 
around Oldfield Road and 
Frederick Road, are not 
addressed in the 
Framework, and will 
continue to have a very 
negative impact on the 
profile of the Crescent. 

In addition to my 
comments under Q5, 
the Framework seems 
to overlook a number 
of significant 
properties which have 
been vacant and 
boarded up for quite 
some time -- eg The 
Crescent pub. Not 
only are they 
underutilised spaces, 
but they also 
undermine the 
character and profile 
of the area.  

P
age 290



around. That's 
because they go 
to Manchester 
when they finish 
classes. 

26                               I strongly advise 
Salford council not to 
use peel Park and 
meadow in your 
regeneration plans.  
Peel Park was the first 
public Park in the UK 
opened and named 
after Sir Robert be 
Peel. 
It is the gem of Salford 
Parks. 
Do not use it in your 
plans. 
Leave Salford's green 
spaces alone. It is a 
haven for the people 
of Salford and 
university students  

27 x         Exciting vision Contemporary 
city area with 
better connection 
via tram to city 
centre  

Partially. Yes for the 
vision of the area 
and the quality of 
build environment. 
Would like to see 
more information on 
the connectivity with 
tram and city centre.   

x           More information of the 
tram connection, the green 
corridors design and the 
public space design.  

no 

P
age 291



28   x       Apart from being surrounded by 
a building site for a long time, I 
believe overall it is a good thing 
that the area be developed. I'm 
excited to welcome in the 
proposed developments. 
That said, I have an issue with 
the proposed ‘linear park’ 
behind numbers 12-20 of 
Firestation Square. I'm really 
against this idea. This proposed 
path creates negative security 
implications for the houses of 
Firestation Square. Neighbours 
have in the past experienced 
break-ins, a path there would 
only provide even easier access 
to the rear of these houses. 
Surely it would be better along 
the Crescent, where people 
could enjoy the park and 
simultaneously enjoy views 
along and across the river. The 
'views' that they would have 
along this proposed pathway 
would be of a railway line and a 
Cement factory. It would be 
better to invest the money into 
the Crescent and make this a 
main thoroughfare for people, 
bikes and e-scooters. The 
alternative river views are much 
more attractive and could be 
enhanced by hotels and cafes. 
These ideas I very much 
welcome.Also - maybe you're 
not aware but the land behind 
the Firestation Square, and part 
of this proposed linear park / 
footpath is currently being used 
as a community garden. 
Neighbours are growing fruit 
and veg and keeping chickens. 
It is a little oasis, a welcome 
rest-bite in an area that is soon-
to-be a massive construction 
yard. Please, don't take this 

A healthy, 
creative and 
empathetic place 
to live. One with 
community and 
happiness as 
core markers of 
success. 

To further enhance 
the area’s 
connectivity and 
access to 
sustainable 
transport, the de-
engineering of the 
A6 and improved 
access to the River 
coupled with 
enhanced green 
spaces and public 
realm is proposed 
Although personally 
I'd like to see more 
'living walls' and 
urban allotments.  

  x       No to linear park, unless they 
are community gardens and 
allotments with adequate 
security. 

I LOVE the sound of this. 
"To further enhance the 
area’s connectivity and 
access to sustainable 
transport, the de-
engineering of the A6 and 
improved access to the 
River coupled with 
enhanced green spaces 
and public realm is 
proposed."  
In my mind this means - no 
cars  / lorries, or at least no 
polluting vehicles, a clean 
river which people could 
use and even swim in 
(barge boat swimming 
pool?!), lots of 'living walls' 
and urban allotments.  
I would like to see explicit 
reference to the above or at 
the very least - 'no polluting 
traffic' to be using this road.  

No to linear park 
behind the houses of 
Firestation Square as 
there is already a well 
used and well liked 
community garden 
there. I'm not against 
opening this path up 
and development per 
se - but really I must 
emphasise that this 
would not to be nice 
as a thoroughfare. If 
anything it needs to be 
community allotment 
extension. With 
adequate security! 

P
age 292



community garden away from 
them. Indeed, perhaps a more 
suitable option would be to 
extend this community garden 
idea. IF the plan were to 
encourage people to grow and 
create as opposed to just pass 
through then I would perhaps be 
more inclined to agree with the 
development.... assuming the 
right security measures are in 
place 
So my only recommended 
adjustment to the plans would 
be instead of a linear park / 
footpath, they should be 
allotments instead. And 
preferably restricted access ... 
not a public right of way. 

29   x       The area should be filtered or 
completely closed off to motor 
traffic and offer a car free are 
where cyclists and pedestrians 
can co exist.  

A pedestrian and 
cycle friendly 
neighbourhood 
which ties in with 
other bee network 
scheme to create 
a Dutch style 
cycle network 
across the whole 
of Salford 

Nearly. There is not 
enough provision for 
segregated cycle 
lanes on the major 
roads around the 
developments. 
Cyclops junctions 
should also be used. 

  x       Area should be designed to 
discourage car use and 
promote active travel and 
public transport. 

Bus services.  Already mentioned  

P
age 293



30 x         Cresent Draft Development 
Framework Dated Nov 3, 2020 
- Zone 2 Parks And River  
- Zone 6 The Cressent  
 
Zone 2 Parks and River  
1- Priority should be given to 
cleaning, trees and planting of 
the greenery adjacent to chapel 
street, this would have an 
immediate affect on the quality 
of life of the local residents this 
would include the new 
construction of  two bridges 
giving access to the open fields. 
 
Zone 6 the Cresent  
1- With regards to the planning 
of the construction Zone 6 this 
should take precedence  over 
other zones as this would have 
the greater impact on people’s 
day to day Quality of life and 
also contribute to the 
environment of Salford 
University students. 
 
2- HQ 2,,Albert Bentley Sq,,The 
former police station has been 
in a dilapidated state since 2004 
resulting in most terrible building 
in a prime position located  
across the road from Salford 
University. A fast track approach 
should be implemented to get 
the building developed.  
 
3 - The Fire Station sq  
conservation area roads and 
pavements are in very poor 
condition they require to be 
surfaced. It would benefit the 
area,,,, could be completed as a 
priority. 
The Lacal  Council do not have 
the money to do this. 
Please see images. 

Cresent Draft 
Development 
Framework Dated 
Nov 3, 2020 
- Zone 2 Parks 
And River  
- Zone 6 The 
Cressent  
 
Zone 2 Parks and 
River  
1- Priority should 
be given to 
cleaning, trees 
and planting of 
the greenery 
adjacent to 
chapel street, this 
would have an 
immediate affect 
on the quality of 
life of the local 
residents this 
would include the 
new construction 
of  two bridges 
giving access to 
the open fields. 
 
Zone 6 the 
Cresent  
1- With regards to 
the planning of 
the construction 
Zone 6 this 
should take 
precedence  over 
other zones as 
this would have 
the greater 
impact on 
people’s day to 
day Quality of life 
and also 
contribute to the 
environment of 
Salford University 

  x           Could not upload images,, 
will follow up with email  

Could not upload 
images,, will follow up 
with email  

P
age 294



 
4- The development of the 
Police Station on the back of 
Fire Station Sq houses need to 
ensure that the hight does not 
have a negative impact with 
regards to closeness of the 
building overlook and privacy 
and light,, 
This relates to 27 Fire Station 
square houses and other 
houses. 
See image. 
 
Plans.consultation@salford.gov.
U.K.  
 
  

students. 
 
2- HQ 2,,Albert 
Bentley Sq,,The 
former police 
station has been 
in a dilapidated 
state since 2004 
resulting in most 
terrible building in 
a prime position 
located  across 
the road from 
Salford 
University. A fast 
track approach 
should be 
implemented to 
get the building 
developed.  
 
3 - The Fire 
Station sq  
conservation area 
roads and 
pavements are in 
very poor 
condition they 
require to be 
surfaced. It would 
benefit the 
area,,,, could be 
completed as a 
priority. 
The Lacal  
Council do not 
have the money 
to do this. 
Please see 
images. 
 
4- The 
development of 
the Police Station 
on the back of 
Fire Station Sq 
houses need to 

P
age 295



ensure that the 
hight does not 
have a negative 
impact with 
regards to 
closeness of the 
building overlook 
and privacy and 
light,, 
This relates to 27 
Fire Station 
square houses 
and other houses. 
See image. 
 
Plans.consultatio
n@salford.gov.U.
K.  

P
age 296



31   x       As a local resident, I'm excited 
by the prospect of better 
transport links, more cultural 
sites and the retail and 
entertainment opportunities that 
a bigger local population will 
bring.  

I hope this will be 
done in a way 
that is 
sympathetic to 
the historic 
buildings and 
maintain the 
Conservation 
Area. The 
revitalisation of 
the Crescent 
gives us much to 
look forward to. 
The residents 
already living 
here could play a 
vital part in the 
development of 
the area, by 
encouraging 
others to join us 
here and 
spreading our 
strong and 
inclusive 
community spirit. 
I hope we won't 
be forgotten. 

These plans promise 
considerable 
improvements to the 
Crescent area and 
those of us who live 
or work in it. I am, 
however, concerned 
that little 
consideration has 
been given to the 
impact on the 
existing residents of 
Fire Station Square, 
who - through the 
Salford Crescent 
Neighbourhood 
Association - have 
put considerable 
effort into improving 
their local area's 
safety, appearance 
and green spaces 
over recent years. 
The Square has a 
thriving community 
of all ages and 
backgrounds, from 
university students 
who rent rooms to 
elderly residents 
who have owned 
homes for decades, 
who work together to 
look after the local 
environment and 
socialise together at 
neighbourhood 
events. It is 
therefore worrying 
that the Draft 
Crescent 
Development 
Framework doesn't 
even appear to know 
where we are. It 
incorrectly labels 
Albert Bentley Place 

  x       The transformation of the 
former Fire Station and 
garages into community and 
retail facilities would give a 
welcome boost to the area 
and local economic activity. 
As residents we would, of 
course, stand to benefit from 
this and I hope it will allow the 
communities that currently 
exist as "pockets" along the 
A6 to join up and mix more 
along with the residents of 
new developments. I 
understand and encourage 
the reduced reliance on cars 
reflected in the plans, but 
increased housing and 
business in the area would 
still bring more vehicles 
needing to park - such as 
vans delivering to retail units 
and the cars needed by 
people who rely on disabled 
access. For this reason, I urge 
the council to consider 
creating loading bays and 
disabled parking spaces on 
Albert Bentley Place and 
implement a 24/7 resident 
parking scheme on Fire 
Station Square to ensure 
residents maintain access to 
parking outside our homes. 
Not everyone is physically 
able to cycle, walk or access 
public transport. 
While I welcome plans to 
conserve the line of the 
former canal as green space, 
I can see little reason why 
pedestrians would choose to 
use it as a route between 
Salford and Manchester when 
the A6 Crescent already 
provides a more obvious route 
- especially with plans for it to 

Input from the police eg 
speed cameras on the 
Crescent to ensure buses 
and taxis don’t flout the 
20mph limit, an 
assessment of lighting, 
CCTV and the identification 
of design features which 
might encourage anti-social 
behaviour 

More homes in the 
area would boost 
regeneration, but I 
hope they will be 
quality homes rather 
than “build-them-high” 
flats crammed into 
small spaces. Thought 
needs to be given to 
the effects tall tower 
blocks could have on 
blocking light from 
other properties.  

P
age 297



as Fire Station 
Square. I assume 
that the paragraph 
considering 
"alternative uses of 
this underutilised 
asset" therefore 
refers to Albert 
Bentley Place, not 
Fire Station Square 
as is written. 

be closed to traffic. Instead, I 
fear the linear park would 
become a haven for crime 
and antisocial behaviour. The 
community garden currently 
on part of the canal behind 
Fire Station Square provides 
a vital way of supporting 
healthy lifestyles - one of the 
framework's objectives. 
Through the hard work of 
residents, it has also become 
a haven for biodiversity, with a 
wildflower meadow, woodland 
and resident wildlife that 
would inevitably be disturbed 
and damaged by higher 
footfall. The fences erected 
with the creation of the 
community garden have 
helped to reduce burglaries 
on the terrace which backs 
onto the canal. Prior to this, 
crime, drug use and 
prostitution were a problem in 
the area - a problem I fear will 
return if this becomes a 
corridor which anyone can 
access, and easily use to hide 
in. If the plans for a linear park 
go ahead, I hope the council 
will provide appropriate 
lighting, CCTV and security 
measures to prevent people 
from accessing private homes 
and gardens and to ensure 
the safety of park users. 

P
age 298



32 x         The vision protect the history of 
the area including green space 
while allowing for forecast 
growth in residential demand. 
The permeability of the 
university forms a central part of 
the vision to further cement 
strong relations between the 
university and residents in the 
area.  

This area is my 
home and one of 
my key 
aspirations is to 
continue living in 
this area so 
would like to see 
less investor only 
development. 
This is a natural 
area for first time 
buyers living and 
working in the 
regional centre to 
buy, this is 
currently 
restricted by the 
nature of 
developments. 
There is already a 
strong move to 
supporting 
infrastructure but 
with the scale of 
the framework 
there will need to 
be further 
enhancement to 
facilities including 
leisure and social, 
of notable 
mention further 
GP/Dentist 
facilities will be 
required to 
support the scale 
of the 
development. In 
terms of transport 
there is a strong 
baseline and this 
could be 
achieved through 
improved quality 
bus corridors 
rather than 
Metrolink. If bus 

To extent, however 
the mix of housing 
needs to clearly 
protect different 
groups to allow long 
term residential 
status in the area. 
This will only be 
achieved with the 
necessary 
supporting 
community facilities 
from GP services 
through to more 
cultural/social hub 
activities, i.e. 
community space.  

x         The integration of a transport 
hub is essential to the 
success of the framework, 
taking note of my earlier 
comments on quality bus 
alongside other modes. A 
critical success factor of the 
framework is phasing and 
constructability, for the 
framework to deliver this must 
be carefully considered with 
less closures of footways for 
construction activity for 
example. If the area is to 
prosper it must be an 
enjoyable place to live 
through development as well 
as after, this must be carefully 
considered. To further 
integrate the community the 
inclusion of community 
facilities within the footprint of 
the university would be 
beneficial. 

Further leisure facilities 
including theatre, cinema 
and gym space should be 
considered to ensure 
appropriate supporting 
infrastructure for the growth 
in population. There is a 
significant cultural base to 
growth from with the history 
of the area this must be 
protected and developed 
through the framework.  

  

P
age 299



routes between 
the study area 
and Manchester 
City 
Centre/MediaCity
UK were 
established with 
integrated 
ticketing the 
transport goals of 
the framework 
could be 
achieved.  

33 x         A very impressive document.  A restored 
Manchester, 
Bolton and Bury 
Canal for multi-
purpose leisure 
pursuits.  

No, the canal should 
be restored and 
towpath used for 
walking, cycling and 
fishing.  

x         Very impressive.  Restoration of the 
Manchester, Bolton and 
Bury Canal. A new marina, 
canal visitor centre and 
boaters facilities could be 
created near Oldfield Road. 
This was the site of the 
original terminal wharves of 
the canal in Salford.  

Restoration of the 
Manchester, Bolton 
and Bury Canal. A 
new marina, canal 
visitor centre and 
boaters facilities could 
be created near 
Oldfield Road. This 
was the site of the 
original terminal 
wharves of the canal 
in Salford.  

P
age 300



34 x         The site area has huge potential 
located close to the City Centre 
and increased provision of 
dwellings will enable more 
people to use sustainable 
transport, taking advantage of 
the high number of buses and 
trains which travel through the 
site area. 

The area should 
be walkable, 
green, safe but 
not be at the 
determinant to 
buses which 
provide vital 
connections 
between 
Manchester City 
Centre and 
Salford, Bolton 
and Wigan 

Yes x         I think this shows a great 
vision for the future of the 
area. I would like to see, at 
the appropriate stage, 
consideration for the platform 
environment for rail users if 
the station is built over (to 
resolve any issues from 
emissions from trains starting 
and stopping). It is essential 
that a joined-up detailed 
transport model for the site 
area and the wider area is 
undertaken to understand the 
impact of re-routing cars and 
the impact on key junctions. 
Understanding the wider 
impact on the surrounding 
area will especially be key at 
junctions and the 
development will need to 
ensure improvements to bus 
journey times (quicker and 
more reliable) are achieved in 
order to demonstrate the 
development is having a 
positive impact to bus users. 
On page 33, I think there 
should be reference to all V 
Buses to strengthen the 
reference to the importance of 
bus travel through the 
corridor. 

Provided  in 3a n/a 

35   x       This is a welcome development 
apart from the lack of primary 
and secondary school provision 
that will impact on the already 
stretched availability in this area 
H 

That it will bring 
prosperity and 
improvement to a 
sadly unused part 
of the city 

In the main yes but 
as in answer one the 
strain this 
development will 
bring onto the 
already stretched 
social framework in 
this area ie 
education health and 
commercial  

  x       This is a part of the city sadly 
neglected and any 
improvement would be 
welcome 

As with my previous the 
lack of educational spaces 
is a real worry 

I would hope the 
council would only 
allow developments 
the would enhance the 
lives and wellbeing of 
the residents of 
Salford but l can’t see 
that as they seem hell 
bent on cramming 
more and more 
residential properties 
with no social or 
educational framework 

P
age 301



36   x       seeks to address sustainability  That it should 
recognise that 
existing 
sustainable land-
uses should be 
protected and 
enhanced where 
possible to 
protect their 
licence to operate 
whilst softening 
their impacts on 
adjoining land-
uses  

Proof will be in the 
implementation 
through the 
development control 
process  

  x       As above  Recognition of sensitive 
land-uses located on the 
immediate boundaries to 
the development framework 
area 

As above 4  

37         x I have sent an email My aspirations 
are for an 
improved area 
between Salford 
and Manchester 
that makes one 
feel proud of our 
city. 

No         x The proposals go against 
what ordinary citizens want. 

No No 

P
age 302



38   x       We broadly like the concept, but 
the canal and its towpath should 
be restored and made an 
important heritage, health, 
environmental recreational and 
leisure feature linking three of 
the zones.  

Our ambition is to 
see a fully 
restored 
Manchester 
Bolton & Bury 
Canal through 
this area which 
would bring 
multiple benefits 
to the local 
community  
including meeting 
aspirations for 
biodiversity, 
enhancing green 
space and 
improving the 
public realm. This 
would add 
commercial value 
to owners, to 
improve the 
quality of life for 
occupants and 
generate 
increased 
rateable values to 
the Council.The 
value of 
waterside 
development in 
urban areas is 
important as can 
be seen, for 
example, at 
Castlefield and 
Salford Quays. 

There has to be a 
recognition of the 
multiple benefits for 
the local community 
and the commercial 
advantages for 
landowners and 
developers of 
restoring the canal 
and its towpath in 
Salford - health, 
wellbeing, 
environment, 
heritage, recreation 
and leisure, 
increased property 
prices and rateable 
values. The great 
heritage value of the 
canal also needs 
stressing. 
The document must 
stress 
encouragement and 
support for 
developers of sites 
which are near the 
line of the canal to 
use designs that 
make full use of 
water and towpath 
features. This will 
add sustained 
commercial value to 
owners, improving 
quality of life for the 
occupants (office 
staff, residents and 
visitors) and 
generate increased 
rateable values to 
the Council. 

  x       Good as far as they go, but 
we feel that omitting restoring 
the canal is serious. 

Yes. 
 
Land Ownership 
 
The proposed Linear Park 
in Zone 6 “The Crescent” 
would be created on land 
which is presently in 
separate public and private 
ownership. Once created, 
the Linear Park should then 
be held and maintained on 
behalf of the community 
either by Salford Council or 
by an organisation to do 
this on behalf of the 
Council.  
 
Funding 
 
The framework document 
should refer to s.106 
contributions and 
equivalent funding from 
developers which would be 
sought from each individual 
planning application.  
 The document should 
highlight the external 
funding opportunities from 
central government and 
GMCA funding initiatives on 
active travel, walking, 
cycling and green/blue 
environmental 
improvements. 
Insert a sentence to the 
effect that “Salford Council 
and their partners will 
encourage and support 
landowners, developers 
and community groups to 
secure grants, s.106 and 
other sources of external 
funding for the full 
restoration of the canal and 
its towpath.” 

No 

P
age 303



 
Policy 
 
The strategic focus should 
refer to Council Policy CH7:  
Manchester, Bolton and 
Bury Canal. This identifies 
that where the restoration 
or improvement of the 
canal or towpath is 
necessary to enable 
development to proceed 
satisfactorily, or where the 
development would benefit 
directly from the restoration 
or improvement, 
contributions will be sought 
with a view to securing 
such restoration or 
improvement. 
and to Policy OB5:  
Transport contribution. The 
city council will seek a 
financial contribution 
towards the provision or 
improvement of transport 
infrastructure or services on 
a case by case basis from 
relevant developments 
comprising 11 or more 
dwellings, or 1,000 square 
metres or more of non-
residential floorspace. The 
appropriate scale of any 
contribution will be 
negotiated having regard to 
site-specific circumstances. 
 
Securing Community & 
Environmental Benefits 
 
The document should 
enhance the design of the 
linear park in Zone 6 to 
include proposals for water 
along the canal to create 
aquatic habitat (1 – 2 

P
age 304



meters depth). This 
provides connectivity and 
an eco-highway to increase 
the natural asset value of 
this land. It improves bio-
diversity net gain and 
provides cooling at times of 
global warming to this 
inner-city area. Providing 
blue/green public space for 
leisure, canoeing and 
fishing activities for 
residents and visitors 
supports the draft GM 
Spatial Framework 
guidance and Salford 
Council policies on 
establishing green/blue 
corridors. 
 
It should explain that the 
water supply would come 
from back pumping from 
Middlewood under Oldfield 
Road and from a 
sustainable drainage 
system on new 
developments adjacent to 
the line of the canal. This 
will help to mitigate flood 
control issues on the River 
Irwell.  
 
It is important to explore 
options to extend the 
proposed connectivity of 
the Linear Park for cycle, 
walking & eco-highway 
north of Salford Crescent 
station along the route of 
the canal.  
 
The extended Linear Park 
would then go from the 
restored section of canal at 
the Middlewood under 
Oldfield Road through the 

P
age 305



proposed transport hub and 
the University campus to 
Frederick Road. This would 
provide a valuable “off-
road” clean air route for 
residents to join up Zones 
6, 4 and 1. Both the 
“Enhanced green space 
and improved public realm” 
and “Enhanced 
Biodiversity” paragraphs on 
the page which is headed 
“Regeneration Benefits” 
would be strengthened by 
referring to the Linear 
Park as a blue/ green 
corridor or “eco-highway”.  
 
The paragraph on the 
penultimate page of the 
Framework document 
“Manchester, Bolton and 
Bury Canal line protected 
and referenced” should be 
revised. It needs to reflect a 
staged or stepped 
approach to achieving full 
restoration. It should be 
noted that space has been 
built into the construction 
underneath Salford 
Crescent station booking 
hall to allow restoration of 
the canal. 
 
Reference should be made 
to plans for appropriate 
planting and landscaping 
between the canal and 
railway in the proposed 
Linear Park. This would 
screen the visual eyesores 
and air pollution from some 
industrial sites which are 
located south of the railway 
line behind Salford 
Crescent.  

P
age 306



39 x         The proposed scheme looks 
very impressive 

Improvements in 
bringing access 
the 
natural/amenity 
features of the 
area, making it a 
destination 
because of the 
green space that 
is here by 
improving access  

Yes x         Generally everything look 
really good, I have concerns 
that the proposed tram line  
down Broadway/chapel st 
supposedly won’t continue 
into the city centre which is 
nonsensical to me. Access 
from chapel st to the meadow 
area by the proposed new 
footbridge would also be a 
huge improvement. 

As above, continuation of 
tram down chapel st and 
into the city is very 
important, without it I dont 
really see the point. Is there 
scope to do this? 

  

40   x       I am sceptical that the vision will 
come true - e.g. the beach 
pictures, how is this going to be 
the case by the River Irwell 
when so far they can't even get 
the litter cleared and a basic 
standard of cleanliness 
achieved in the city?  Also, I 
don't understand how the tram 
is going to go up Chapel street 
when there are no trams at this 
side of the city centre to connect 
with that route.  

It needs to be 
much much 
cleaner.  The 
green spaces 
need to be kept, 
maintained and 
extended. There 
needs not to be 
more housing on 
brown field sites - 
these need to be 
changed into 
green spaces 
rather than built 
on.  

      x       There needs to be an 
increase of green space, it 
looks like there are no 
plans for additional green 
spaces.  There needs to be 
an onus on developers to 
clean up the section of the 
river that they are adjacent 
to and for them to make the 
river side suitable for 
pedestrians - it is really sad 
that this has not happened 
with the Adelphi Wharf 
flats, they section of the 
river bank near them is a 
complete mess. There 
needs to be better 
pedestrian routes e.g the 
section of the rive that goes 
from by the bridge that 
crosses between Linen 
Court and Riverside to the 
Meadows, I cannot see 
anything in the plans about 
improving this section, 
there could be a great path 
there and remove the 
railings so that it is not an 
alleyway that is scary to 
walk through.     

I disagree with the 
proposal to build 
houses on the Farmer 
Norton car park - this 
space could be used 
instead to provide 
things that meet the 
aims e.g. the 
"placemaking areas" 
that are proposed - it 
could become a great 
community leisure 
area in the form of 
community allotments 
or a small city farm or 
a public lido. London 
has city farms and 
lidos and we don't 
have anything like that 
in Salford (or in 
Manchester) and this 
could be achieved on 
this space instead of 
more housing.  Some 
things like this really 
need adding to the 
proposals or else it is 
mainly just housing 
that is occurring when 
in fact the 
neighbourhood needs 
development of other 
things not just houses.    
It says in the 
document that it is 
going to be 

P
age 307



"preferable" to keep 
some of the interesting 
buildings/architecture 
e.g the building that is 
on the corner of Peru 
Street and Adelphi 
Street - I think that 
instead of "preferable" 
it should be 
"mandatory" for these 
interesting buildings to 
be kept/redeveloped 
as if it is only 
"preferable" then this 
won't happen and the 
heritage of the area 
will be lost.   Similarly 
it needs to be 
mandatory that the 
items like Doctors and 
Library are included as 
part of the 
redevelopment.     I 
also disagree with the 
proposal to 
pedestrianise Adelphi 
Street - I cannot see 
how this will work at all 
for local residents who 
do need to drive given 
the road changes in 
the adjacent area that 
are part of the modal 
street changes (ie 
road blocks on North 
George Street, St 
Stephen Street and 
Frederick Street) - I 
think the proposals 
need to take into 
consideration what is 
happening just outside 
of the CHapel Street 
zone that the proposal 
relates to because 
otherwise they will just 
not work  - and I 

P
age 308



believe Adelphi Street 
cannot be 
pedestrianised given  
the other roads that 
are already shut 
nearby.  

41   x       Good ambitions for densification 
and green links. 

Designed for 
walking, cycling, 
and public 
transport for low 
pollution, low 
congestion, and 
human friendly 
area.  

It depends how the 
details of movement 
network are 
delivered, but 
generally seems to 
be going in the right 
direction. 

  x       Developing car parks as 
residential, commercial, office, 
education, and green space 
will be brilliant for the area. 

More uses of the park 
space, particularly the 
playing fields. Could there 
be tennis courts, boules 
courts, or a public cricket 
wicket? 

  

42   x       I like many elements of the 
Vision and endorse the key 
drivers. As a resident of 
Timekeepers Square (Great 
George Street), I particularly 
welcome the plan for the 
Adelphi Village and the 
improvement in green space. I 
am, however, disappointed that 
that vision for transport, retail 
and other facilities appear to 
have been developed in 
isolation from other 
developments on Chapel Street 
and Salford Central. Surely any 
proposals for rail need to 
reference Salford Central 
Station as well as Salford 
Crescent? Just as plans for 
traffic, pedestrians and metro 
link need to take account of the 
plans for Chapel Street and 
access too Manchester City 
Centre. No details of these 
considerations or this alignment 
are provided. 

As well as the 
University 
learning hub, we 
should be 
building 
sustainable 
communities, but 
also a 
recreational 
destination for 
green spaces, 
culture and 
hospitality venues 
that is just a short 
walk or public 
transport ride 
from Manchester 
City Centre 

No. It is too self 
contained and 
doesn't reference its 
proximity to 
Manchester City 
Centre or alignment 
with plans for 
Chapel Street and 
Salford Central. 

  x       Plans for redevelopment of 
Salford Crescent station look 
expensive and over 
developed 

Greater research and 
explanation of the likely 
community and cultural 
uses for some existing 
facilities such as Fire 
Station and Centenary 
Buildings. I have no sense 
what is meant here or 
whether they will be 
sustainable. 

Traffic flows along 
Crescent/Chapel 
Street is not 
adequately addressed. 
Pedestrian, cycling 
and public transport 
needs on this route 
need to be reassessed 
post COVID-19. The 
most important traffic 
flows for students, 
workers and visitors 
will be in and out of 
Manchester City 
Centre, yet these 
appear to have been 
little addressed in your 
plans. 

P
age 309



43     x     Whilst I appreciate the work that 
has gone into the vision I find it 
slightly patronising. I've lived in 
Fire Station Square for 23 years 
and always championed the 
area and have creating a 
thriving community albeit on a 
small scale. It seems as though 
we have been disregarded in 
the plans as the language 
seems to indicate that there is 
no such community spirit and 
the whole area is in need of 
'renovating'. I'm sure this isn't 
intentional but I find this 
disrespectful to our community.  

A more pleasant 
and stimulating 
environment with 
more cultural 
amenities and 
independent 
venues.  

On the whole, yes.        x   Whilst there are a number of 
positives I have answered 
'dislike' due to concerns about 
the impact of the development 
of the former Christchurch 
site, now a car park, adjacent 
to Fire Station Square. Whilst 
I am aware of the need for 
more housing, I am really 
concerned by the plans for 
this site as they seem to 
indicate buildings of 4 storeys 
very close to the wall behind 
our small garden. Light is at a 
premium and a development 
of buildings more than 2 
storeys high this close to our 
boundary will only be 
detrimental to this. Indeed any 
height development so close 
would be unacceptable on the 
basis of impaired light and 
impact on our privacy. 
Perhaps the layout of this site 
could be reconsidered? Light 
is so important to our mental 
health and this really should 
be a major concern especially 
considering how many of us 
now work from home.  

More of an 
acknowledgement that Fire 
Station Square is part of 
the future vision for the 
area and not just part of its 
past. To realise what an 
asset our little square is.  

  

44 x           More varied 
employment in 
the area and 
green spaces 

Yes x               

45   x       The walking route behind the 
old police station (i hope this 
doesnt get left because it is not 
a profitable aspect) the fact the 
police station is beign kept 
rather than demolished. The 
knowledge the station will be 
served by somewhere to obtain 
a drink when waiting for a train 
or somewhere warm to sit 
because the current platform is 
a cold and open wind tunnerl.  

To focus on the 
cultural aspects 
and rich history of 
the cresent.  keep 
Salford apart from 
manchester, not 
just become a 
continuation of 
large high rise 
characterless 
buildings.  The 
sustanable and 

In part yes   x       The beautiful swathes of 
green seem aspirationsal,  but 
i do so hope that the finished 
development has this soft 
character alongside the 
industrial history. The 
infrastructure of the tram will 
be a tremendous assesst to 
the university 

Board being placed to 
denote the past history of a 
building.  A walk way 
beside the old pint pot to 
enjoy the river/a bridge 
from "The meadow" to the 
old pint pot. Some variety 
of food outlets, not just 
salfood or takeaways 

I really hope that it is 
delivered as it is 
presented 

P
age 310



dreadful in the winter months 
and no place to purchase a 
snack or warm drink.  the tram 
looks to be finally coming! 

eco aspects are 
very forward 
thinking and 
again sets salford 
apart and 
strengthen it 
current green 
credentials.  To 
link the area with 
public transport 
and cycle routes 

46           I emailed a question to your 
department on 22 October 2020 
but unfortunately did not receive 
a reply (a read message was 
received).  Consequently, I 
provide my feedback to the 
proposal below. 
 
I am Technical Director for 
INSPEC International Limited 
and our business is located at 
56 Leslie Hough Way in Salford.  
We have been based in Salford 
since 1987 and at this site we 
have 30 employees. 
 
We work in sectors primarily 
related to Personal Protective 
Equipment and are heavily 
involved in the Testing and 
Certification of such products.  
As a consequence, a significant 
aspect of our work is related to 
European Regulations and in 
this regard Brexit has resulted 
in, and continues to result in, 
significant challenges and 
increased cost for our business. 
 
In addition, like many 
businesses we have faced 
challenges from the COVID-19 
pandemic.  However, despite 
these challenges, our dedicated 
team continues to provide vital 
support to the healthcare sector 

                    

P
age 311



during the pandemic. 
 
INSPEC International Limited 
owns premises situated on land 
under long term lease.  These 
premises have been purpose 
built and we have installed 
dedicated facilities to allow us to 
perform the specialised work 
that we undertake in our UKAS 
accredited operations.   
 
Our premises are located within 
the proposed Innovation Zone 
and I note that Phase 1 of the 
plan proposes demolition for this 
zone in the period 2020-2024. 
 
To relocate a business such as 
ours is very disruptive, not 
straightforward and would 
involve significant cost. 
 
For the proposed development 
to be a success, it is vital that 
sufficient consideration be given 
to the difficulties that such plans 
would impose upon existing 
employers located within the 
areas that are proposed to be 
developed, and appropriate 
provision be put in place to 
support the relocation of such 
employers.  At present it is 
unclear whether any support, let 
alone appropriate support, 
would be forthcoming. 
 
We recognise the importance 
for continued development of 
the local area and note that the 
plans are highly ambitious in 
this regard.  However, the plans 
must not penalise existing 
employers. 
 
I would very much like to 

P
age 312



receive information concerning 
the support that will be made 
available to businesses that 
would be being forced to 
relocate under the plans, and 
would welcome the opportunity 
to be involved in further 
discussions concerning the 
proposal. 
 
Yours faithfully 

P
age 313



47           As a resident of Salford for 
almost eighty years,I am 
opposed to this plan which is in 
my opinion ill conceived and 
appears have designed to go 
completely against the wishes of 
the majority of the residents of 
our once great city. 
My main concerns are as 
follows- 
(1)Some years ago when the 
Crescent and Chapel Street 
were redesigned it turned out to 
be a shambles and actually 
makes the journey through the 
area for many people on a daily 
basis due to the stupid traffic 
calming measures, only one 
lane plus a bus lane, with huge 
road humps which apart from 
having no logical benefit must 
have caused lots of damage to 
vehicles and one wonders if any 
of the people responsible for the 
design and construction have 
ever travelled on that route via 
public transport especially on 
the upper deck of a bus,it looks 
like an aircraft crash landing 
when all the passengers take 
evasive action when buses 
approach the road humps. 
(2)The area in front of the 
Cathedral were block paved 
during the redesign some years 
ago, and low and behold the 
block paving failed in several 
places due to either poor 
design, poor workmanship or 
both of these things and once 
again these things could happen 
once more. 
(3)The Crescent and Chapel 
Street are the main artery from 
Salford into Manchester and 
what was a pleasant route is 
now a complete and utter mess 

                    

P
age 314



and in my travels throughout the 
UK and Europe I have never 
seen a main route from one city 
to another that gives such a 
poor impression especially to 
any newcomers. 
(4)This whole area has been 
over developed and it has 
become a soulless place when 
one feels depressed and 
embarrassed at what the 
planners, council and 
developers have done to our 
city. 
(4)If any new properties are to 
be constructed in this area the 
council should insist that these 
properties are fully affordable 
ones that meets the needs of 
the residents of the city not just 
the developers. 
(5)If a congestion charge or 
similar were brought in which 
route would the private vehicles 
take, what financial damage 
would be done to local 
businesses who traverse the 
area several times a day, 
keeping people in employment 
etc. 
Thanks, 

48   x       We broadly agree with, and are 
supportive of, the vision for the 
Crescent set out in the Draft 
Development Framework.  

We are a land 
owner with a 
property within 
Zone 6. – The 
Crescent. We are 
also a developer. 
Our aspiration is 
to redevelop this 
site. We are keen 
to bring forward 
and deliver 
development in 
this location that 
aligns with the 
Council’s vision 
for the wider area 

Yes, broadly – see 
comments below. 

  x       The Draft Document seems to 
provide a sound framework 
for guiding future 
development in the area.  
In particular we welcome the 
identification in the document 
that opportunities for high 
density development of scale 
exist to the south of the 
Crescent taking in Irwell Place 
Car Park and Hulme Street. 
Given the scale of recent 
redevelopment that has taken 
place on adjacent sites we 
feel that this is appropriate 
and will support the creation 

We note that significant 
land ownership in the area 
(c. 90%) sits with the 
partners. The framework 
identifies the other limited  
ownerships as a potential 
constraint.  We appreciate 
that this may be the case in 
some instances, however in 
instances where the 
landowner is supportive of 
the vision and keen to 
deliver in line with the 
development framework, 
that ownership presents an 
opportunity to provide 

  

P
age 315



and with this 
emerging 
Development 
Framework. We 
are therefore very 
interested in 
seeing a 
Framework and 
delivery strategy 
produced for the 
area that builds 
on its many 
positives and 
assets (and those 
of the 
surrounding 
areas) that will 
help to guide the 
creation of an 
interesting, 
vibrant and 
successful 
neighbourhood, 
where people 
want to be.  

of a dense, vibrant community 
in this zone. 

complementary 
development, while also 
bringing different 
approaches, ideas, 
designs, etc. to ultimately 
produce a neighbourhood 
with a more varied and 
interesting urban grain.  
Rather than a whole area 
that is developed and 
delivered by just one 
developer. It may also 
enable more development 
to be delivered earlier. We 
would therefore like the 
framework to recognise and 
encourage this potential 
where possible.  
We appreciate and 
understand the rationale for 
having a main private 
sector partner to lead on 
and co-ordinate much of 
the development as well as 
help to deliver infrastructure 
improvements. We strongly 
believe however that there 
is also a role for other 
private sector partners in 
delivering this vision, and 
that this role is vital in 
creating an interesting, 
diverse and vibrant urban 
neighbourhood. We would 
like to see this reflected 
and encouraged more in 
the Development 
Framework. 

P
age 316



G  Draft Development Framework – Schedule of Amendments 
 

 

Page 35 

 

G Draft Development Framework – Schedule of Amendments  

Page 317



   
 

 

Page 1 

Schedule of main changes made to the Draft Development Framework  

Comment (if 
applicable) 

Relevant Sections  Changes to be made 

- All sections Removed reference to “Draft Development 
Framework” and updated to “Development 
Framework” 
 
Date changed to January 2021 

- Visuals Updated visuals have been added to the document 
reflect the revised proposals following consultation  

- Consultation section Section updated to reflect public consultation which 
has taken place on the Draft Development 
Framework and development of the Final 
Development Framework 

GMSF Throughout – particularly 
Section 2 

Ensure all text and figures updated to latest version 
(30 October 2020). New section added on draft 
GMSF Publication Plan (October 2020) 

Planning White Paper Section 3 Update section to reflect that the consultation has 
now closed on 29 October 2020 

Canal & River Trust  
 
Manchester, Bury & 
Bolton Canal Society 

Section 1 - Figure 1.4 
 
Section 4 – Opportunities 
and Constraints and 
Historic Environment 
Text and accompanying 
Figure 4.5 
 
Section 5 - Figure 5.3 
 
Section 6:  
Zone 1 – Health & 
Innovation  
Zone 4 – Transport Hub 
Zone 6 – Crescent  
 

Figure updated to show location of canal 
 
Section 6 
Full extent of the canal to be identified within the 
document and the approach to be taken to it to be 
set out in all relevant Zones. 
 
The section entitled “Non-designated (Locally Listed) 
Buildings” to be changed to refer to “Non-designated 
Heritage Assets”, with locally listed buildings and the 
Manchester Bolton & Bury Canal (which is 
considered to be a non-designated heritage asset) 
comprising subsections beneath this wider heading. 
 
The final line of the paragraph titled “Manchester 
Bolton and Bury Canal” should be amended as 
follows: 
"The former line of the Manchester, Bolton and Bury 
Canal is located to the south of the Crescent within 
the Framework area. The canal was commissioned 
by local landowners and businessmen and was 
constructed c.1791-1808 to connect Bolton and Bury 
with Manchester. The canal, when fully opened, was 
15 miles long and was accessed via a junction with 
the River Irwell in Salford. Since its demise in the 
1960s the canal has been culverted and some 
sections in-filled.” 
 
Section 4 
List of opportunities to include and recognise 
heritage assets including the former canal as a 
potential opportunity, in terms of placemaking, 
realising the heritage value of this asset, and in 
terms of making provision for active travel and 
access to green space. 
 
Page 92 

Page 318



   
 

 

Page 2 

Comment (if 
applicable) 

Relevant Sections  Changes to be made 

Reference to be made to the MB&B within the 
development principles (especially ‘Placemaking”) 
and the potential recognised in figure 5.3 
 
Page 112 Manchester Bolton & Bury Canal  
Rewording as follows to highlight aspirations for 
potential future restoration of the canal and the 
potential to reveal existing features associated with 
the canal where appropriate, such as coping stones 
etc.  
“The line of the former Manchester, Bolton and Bury 
Canal will be protected as an important heritage 
asset. In order that people can appreciate the history 
of the canal, reference will be made to its former line 
by way of a new pedestrian/ cycle route that 
signposts the route and provides heritage 
interpretation along the way whilst protecting it for 
future restoration. Where historic 
features areas of the canal can potentially be 
revealed…….” 
 
Delivery 
Add text to state that proposals for any linear park in 
the vicinity of the canal are dealt with in a 
comprehensive manner across the whole area, both 
as part of the overall planning of the area and by 
developers to avoid a piecemeal approach to its 
creation and enhancement for the wider public 
benefit. 

Residents of Fire Station 
Square 

Throughout the DF Ensure that the square outside the Old Fire Station is 
correctly labelled as Albert Bentley Place (rather than 
Fire Station Square, which sits behind this). 

TfGM Zone 4 – Transport Zone Amendments to the illustrative masterplan to include 
the Mainline Station building to be moved to the 
south of the A6 bridge; Metrolink platforms to be 
moved to the east along the A6 

Manchester City Council  Section 5 - Regarding 
de-engineering the A6 as 
part of wider city centre 
proposals  
Appendix A 

Add reference to discussions ongoing with relevant 
stakeholders including TfGM and Manchester City 
Council.  
Emergent City Centre Transport Strategy to be 
referenced in Appendix A. 

Historic England  Appendix A 
Section 5 – Priority 3 

Conservation Area Appraisals to be referenced 
within Appendix A. 
Reference added to the need for heritage 
assessment where necessary as proposals come 
forward.  
Add reference to CCA being on heritage at risk 
register. Section 5.  
Crescent Zone – changes to illustrative masterplan 
with larger masses rationalised to give better building 
separation in the higher density part of the 
masterplan 

Sport England  Section 5/ Section 6 Add reference to engagement with Sport England as 
part of future proposals 

Page 319



   
 

 

Page 3 

Comment (if 
applicable) 

Relevant Sections  Changes to be made 

EA Section 5 – Flood Risk 
and Drainage 
Development Principle  
 
Section 5 – Blue 
Infrastructure  
SuDS & contamination 
 
Adelphi Zone 
 
 

Sequential approach to be followed – add ref. in 
Section 5 
 
Add ref. to consideration of contamination where 
there is reference to use of SuDS 
 
 
Plots adjacent to the river to include continuation of 
riverside access, continuing the riverside walk 
started by the developments to the north. 

Trafford Council  Figure 2.2 
 

Ensure Cornbrook, Pomona Island and Trafford 
Wharfside are shown as being within Trafford area 
(Fig. 2.2) 
Mark TC LA area. 

Climate Change team Throughout and 
particularly section 5 – 
include wording on Urban 
Heat Islands 

Add text on Urban Heat Island: 
 
"Urban heat islands" occur in areas with dense 
concentrations of pavement and buildings that 
absorb and retain heat. This effect increases heat-
related illness and mortality. Climate change will 
likely lead to more frequent, more severe, and longer 
heat waves during summer months. Extreme heat 
events often affect our most vulnerable populations 
most seriously. 
Trees, green roofs and green walls can help reduce 
urban heat island effects by shading building 
surfaces, deflecting solar radiation, and releasing 
moisture into the air and as such opportunities to 
introduce such features will be considered across the 
Crescent area.” 

United Utilities  Sustainable Drainage – 
add detail 

To be added from scoping comments: 
‘New development will be expected to incorporate 
exemplary Sustainable Drainage methods and follow 
the surface water hierarchy. Applicants will have to 
submit clear evidence of why more sustainable 
options within the hierarchy have been discounted. 
The expectation will be for only foul flows to 
communicate with the public sewer. 
Development proposing new public realm should 
allocate provision for the management of surface 
water through the use of sustainable drainage 
systems with multi-functional benefits as part of a 
high quality, connected green and blue water 
environment. Any green and blue network must 
demonstrate a consideration for site topography to 
understand any naturally occurring flow paths and 
any low lying areas within the proposal where water 
will naturally accumulate. Resulting layouts should 
ensure the most sustainable drainage solution is 
achieved by mimicking existing circumstances such 
as topography, landscaping and ground conditions. 
Any development must have regards to an 
underpinning strategy that will promote the use of 
connecting sustainable drainage systems between 

Page 320



   
 

 

Page 4 

Comment (if 
applicable) 

Relevant Sections  Changes to be made 

multiple phases of development as part of a 
connected green and blue environment. New 
development should ensure unfettered access for 
new sustainable drainage infrastructure through a 
connected series of green and blue infrastructure. 
New green and blue features must consider the 
topography of the site to understand how 
development sites will link and account for any 
naturally occurring flow paths or low lying areas 
within the boundary where water will naturally 
accumulate.’ 
 
New development should ensure unfettered access 
for new sustainable drainage infrastructure through a 
connected series of green and blue infrastructure. 
To deliver the most sustainable drainage solution, 
design of development should plan new green and 
blue features around existing topography as this will 
help understand how development sites can link and 
account for any naturally occurring flow paths or low 
lying areas within the area where water will naturally 
accumulate and eventually discharge 
In terms of the phasing approach, it’s important there 
is access left as part of Phase 1 to allow subsequent 
phases to discharge surface water to the River Irwell. 
We would request further discussions are 
undertaken by the Council, ourselves and the LLFA 
to understand the proposals for this in greater 
detail.There is opportunity for the document to refer 
to surface water management and make reference to 
the relevant Local Plan policies. 
 

Residents Section 5 and Section 6 Ensure issues relating to safety and security are 
referenced in the text, with regard to secure by 
design principles and natural surveillance. 

 

Page 321



H  PLACED Social Value Workshops Poster 
 

 

Page 36 

 

 

 

 

 

 

H PLACED Social Value Workshops Poster 

Page 322



Help to shape a new Development Framework and
Social Value Strategy for the Crescent area

Salford City Council and the University of Salford have appointed The English
Cities Fund (a Joint Venture between Homes England, Legal & General, Muse
Developments) as development partner to deliver the Crescent masterplan - a 
£2.5bn, 240-acre major regeneration programme, which will be delivered over the 
next 20 years. It is one of the largest investments in the country and is the next
major key development in regeneration taking place across the city.

THE SOCIAL VALUE STRATEGY 
The Partners are eager to ensure that local people benefit from the development 
long-term and are therefore inviting you to help shape a ‘Social Value Strategy’ for 
the area; a commitment from those leading the development about how they will 
support both the existing and new community and address priorities including:
 
•  What you feel is most needed from a social, community and economic
      perspective?

•  What you want the developers, local authority and partners to invest in?

•  What is already working well in the area that can be built on?

•  What concerns you may have about the impact of the development in the local
      community and what can be done to address them?

HOW TO SHARE YOUR VIEWS ON THE SOCIAL VALUE STRATEGY?

• An interactive website has been set up, where you can share your ideas.
     The details are: salfordcrescent.mysocialpinpoint.co.uk/home

• A series of online workshops have been arranged, the dates of which can be
     found below

• Join the discussion on Twitter and Facebook

WHAT ARE YOUR PRIORITIES 
FOR THE CRESCENT AREA?

THE DEVELOPMENT FRAMEWORK

The Partners have prepared a new Draft Development Framework for the area, which sets out 
future development proposals. You can find out more about the development proposals and 
have your say on the Draft Development Framework by visiting www.salfordcrescent.com from 
20th October - 1st December 2020

Page 323

https://salfordcrescent.mysocialpinpoint.co.uk/home
https://twitter.com/CrescentEngage
https://www.facebook.com/CrescentEngage/
http://www.salfordcrescent.com


WORKSHOP DATES:
We’re holding a series of online workshops and discussion groups to help 
shape the Social Value Strategy.

Each event will take place on Zoom, but you do not need a Zoom account. We will send 
you sign up details nearer the event.

For more information about these sessions email:
info@placed.org.uk

22ND OCTOBER, 2 - 4PM

Share your thoughts on the themes identified in our previous session, as we 
explore them in greater detail. Book here

28TH OCTOBER, 3 - 5PM

An opportunity for local young people to share and discuss their priorities 
and key issues for the Crescent Area. Book here

3RD NOVEMBER, 6 - 7.30PM

A conversation to explore how a social value strategy can help to ensure 
everyone local to the development benefits from it. Book here

DATE TBC

A session inviting University students to engage in the discussion, focussing 
on what investment could be made to encourage them to stay in the area 
long term. 

17TH NOVEMBER, 2 - 4PM

Review session. A chance to provide key reflection to community
representatives and ensure all key issues have been covered. Book here

1

2

3

4

5
Page 324

https://www.eventbrite.co.uk/e/the-crescent-social-value-have-your-say-event-3-tickets-124699669067
https://www.eventbrite.co.uk/e/shaping-salford-aged-14-18-have-your-say-tickets-117336389299
https://www.eventbrite.co.uk/e/the-crescent-social-value-have-your-say-event-5-tickets-124701953901
https://www.eventbrite.co.uk/e/the-crescent-social-value-conversation-session-7-tickets-117333462545


I  PLACED Social Value Key Findings 
 

 

Page 37 

PRIORITIES 
At the beginning of each session, PLACED asked participants to identify their key priorities for a Social Value 
Strategy for Salford. At this stage, they were limited to using just a few words or phrases for each idea. 

The word cloud below shows the most frequently used words and phrases. Many of these comments mention 
supporting existing organisations, local people and the community. Young people and employment opportunities 
were also recurring themes. 

 
Key priorities identified by residents were grouped into broad categories, depicted in the chart below. ‘Economy 
and Jobs’ and ‘Collaboration and Community’ were the most prominent categories. This confirms the trend 
highlighted in the word cloud. Some of these categories cut across all the themes discussed below in more detail, 
and as a result do not have their own section in this document, for example, tackling inequality. 

I PLACED Social Value Key Findings 

Page 325



I  PLACED Social Value Key Findings 
 

 

Page 38 

 

WHAT IS WORKING WELL? 
Participants were invited to share what is already working well in the area, and what could be better supported by 
the Crescent development. The following were the key responses: 

• The people and the strong sense of community. 

• Green spaces: The quality of green spaces was praised and seen to be something which could be 
further celebrated/ enhanced. Workshop participants considered the Meadow, Peel Park and the 
River Irwell to be significant local assets. They also mentioned the local wildlife and the successful 
restoration of Peel Park. 

• Not overdeveloped: Many felt that - unlike in nearby Manchester which has been ‘over-developed’ 
- there is still a lot of opportunity in Salford.  

• Community involvement in green spaces: People highlighted organisations such as the Friends 
of Peel Park and Salford Rangers and spoke about local community pride in the environment. 

• The River Irwell and nearby canal: Participants identified these as assets, with potential to be used 
as an eco-highway, linking up the area with the rest of the city and further afield. 

• Cultural facilities: Salford Museum and Paradise Works (outside project boundaries) are already 
attracting visitors from a broad demographic. 

• Cultural organisations: There are several dynamic, proactive organisations operating in the area. 
Participants mentioned Islington Mill (Chapel Street), Walk the Plank (Pendleton), Start in Salford 
(Pendleton), and events such as Sounds from the Other City (music festival across Chapel Street 
area). The Salford Culture and Place Partnership was launched this year and could also be part of 
the conversation.  

Page 326



I  PLACED Social Value Key Findings 
 

 

Page 39 

EXISTING CHALLENGES 
Attendees identified the below as challenges that must be addressed in order to ensure those living in Salford 
benefit from the Crescent development: 

• Community engagement and involvement: There is a real and very significant issue around trust, 
community involvement and transparency. Participants were sceptical about promises of social 
value, engagement and whether Partners would genuinely listen to the local community. They did 
not believe promises would be kept and were concerned that engagement was tokenistic.  

• Lack of ownership: People feel disconnected from the urban and green fabric of the area and feel 
the sense of place has been significantly diluted. They worry that the new development will erase 
what is left of Salford’s heritage. The development framework needs to reflect the identity of local 
people.  

• Green spaces and the river: The ‘blue routes’ are currently underused. It was noted that some local 
people feel green spaces have been gradually ‘taken over’ by university development, leaving them 
feeling that these spaces are not for them. Lack of greenery in the streets was also mentioned as an 
issue. 

• Fragmentation: Participants reported experiencing ‘invisible barriers’ in the area, in particular 
around the university. They worry that the zones designed as part of this development will worsen 
the perceived barriers and sense of disconnection in the area.  

• Education: There are a range of issues related to education, aspiration and connections with 
employment and education offers. This is exasperated sixth form by young people in Salford having 
to leave their secondary school at 16 years old and go to a separate 6th form provision. As a result 
of transitional challenges, the city has a higher-than-average rate of young people Not in Education 
Employment or Training (NEET). 

• Economy: There are strong calls to prioritise local businesses, local job opportunities and ensuring 
the realisation of community ambitions for a ‘Salford Pound’ where money is retained in the area, 
and a circular economy is created. These themes were the most frequent when talking about key 
priorities and what is needed in the area and cut across many of the other discussions. 

• ‘Localness’: The definition of ‘local’ needs to be tangible and specific. There are concerns that 
businesses from Greater Manchester will be deemed to be ‘local’ in tenders, and beneficiaries of 
social value will be drawn from the wider geographical area.  

WHAT IS NEEDED? 
After identifying individual priorities, the groups agreed key areas on which to focus a more in-depth discussion, 
based on the most frequently occurring themes. The following themes were identified by participants and explored 
as a longer conversation. They indicate what action participants feel is needed to address key areas of need: 

a. Economy 

• Greater collaboration: Across all sessions, it was stressed that there needs to be collaboration with 
partners, existing community groups and businesses, so that the development supports what is 
already there, rather than ‘reinventing the wheel,’ which would have a detrimental impact across the 
board. 

• Diverse job offers: There needs to be flexibility and a diverse range of opportunities, not an 
assumption that ‘one size fits all’. Not everyone wants an apprenticeship or to work in construction.  

• Support and include local businesses: There is a desire to see local businesses, charities, social 
enterprises and start-ups supported and money to be kept in the local economy. This includes a mix 

Page 327



I  PLACED Social Value Key Findings 
 

 

Page 40 

of funding, mentoring and business support to enable local business to thrive. It is the aspiration that 
local suppliers are prioritised.  

• Policies: Participants spoke of the need to link the development with Salford Living Wage City and 
Social Enterprise City initiatives. They also stressed making social inclusion a part of the bid 
management process. 

b. Community involvement 

• Accountability: Participants want to be sure that the partners will deliver on their commitments and 
asked for a formal way to embed social value in the contract, with consequences if promises are not 
kept.  

• Power balance: There was real disappointment that a draft Social Value Strategy would not be 
shared before council approval and implementation. This was considered to be good practice and a 
standard process when developing strategies of this scale. Participants from key organisations had 
expected to be able to comment, particularly when they had inputted into its’ development. People 
also expressed the desire to see the community being part of the decision-making process: ‘How 
does the community have a seat at the decision table rather than just being “acknowledged”?’ 

• Strategy and long-term thinking: Participants asked that the strategy ‘really considers everyone’ 
and embodies ‘a new way of engaging local community groups together’. It was repeatedly stressed 
that involvement needs to be done throughout the whole duration of the project, not just at the start. 

• Community involvement in physical plans: People asked for ‘an early connection between the 
physical masterplan and the Social Value Strategy’. Some felt that it was difficult for them to discuss 
social value without physical plans, as ‘the buildings being considered are already setting the 
agenda’. 

• Collective ownership of public spaces: There is feeling that a proportion of residents feel excluded 
from green spaces and other public spaces in the area. They asked for ‘truly public spaces’ over 
which the community has agency. 

• Accessible space: There were calls for the development to provide spaces and places that are 
clearly accessible to all. These should be flexible, communal, well maintained spaces with clear 
ownership that can be used for a multitude of activity and by everyone. In addition to public spaces, 
there were calls for community / voluntary organisations to be able to access office space / spaces 
from which to deliver activities and services within the development. It was felt that providing such 
facilities would be a way to ‘help local voluntary organisations with some of the things it’s hard to 
fund’. 

c. Climate change and green spaces 

• Aspirational: Participants called for ‘a game changing approach to sustainability that as a 
community we can be proud of’ and ‘long term investment and sustainability.’ 

• Protect existing green spaces: There were calls to encourage greater use of the Meadow and Peel 
Park. Participants saw these spaces as a ‘lost opportunity.’ Many would not use these spaces and 
mentioned how other green spaces were better promoted. 

• Develop the riverbank and the canal: Both are seen to have potential to be dynamic and attractive 
areas, as well as promoting a sustainable transport link. People considered the river as a potential 
tourist attraction and would like to see it valued more. They also mentioned that a river is an asset 
when dealing with global warming and rising temperatures in the city. 

• Better transport: The poor quality of bus links cause people to use their cars instead. To tackle this, 
a better bus service and more parking spaces are needed. Additionally, cycle paths across the city 
were suggested. 

Page 328



I  PLACED Social Value Key Findings 
 

 

Page 41 

• Accessibility: Some see Peel Park as part of the university, in which they do not feel welcome, 
mentioning interventions such as football pitches for students ‘pushing local young people out’. The 
A6 adds to the challenges of accessing green space. Additionally, a sense that these spaces are not 
always safe puts people off using them.  

• Community management: Green spaces could be owned by community organisations. Participants 
would also like it to be clear on ‘what is public and what is closed green space access and why’. 

d. Education 

• Preparing people for employment: Better links between training / education and employment 
opportunities are needed. Participants talked about pre-employability, describing the significant 
support needed to enable local people to access potential careers. This includes support such as 
CV and job interview support, apprenticeships, awareness of career paths, alternative interview 
approaches and access to role models.  

• Promote the university as an option for local young people: Participants would like to see the 
barriers for local young people in accessing the university disappear, and more local young people 
feeling that Salford University is ‘their university’. Ensuring the university reaches out to the local 
community is key; both through outreach programmes to enable access and through physically 
making the university feel like a space that non-students of all ages can access by promoting facilities 
such as the library and sports facilities. 

• Involve local community organisations: There are well established, connected local organisations 
who understand local issues and provide critical support to communities. They are key to the 
successful delivery of a Social Value Strategy and should be incorporated into the delivery of training 
solutions and resourced to ensure the Social Value Strategy has the maximum impact. More broadly, 
there is a real need to promote and develop what already exists in the area, using an asset-based 
approach. 

• Flexible approach to support and training: A training and support offer centred around the needs 
of individuals should be provided, with opportunities stretching beyond the built environment. 

• Local apprenticeships and jobs: There are calls for investment in local businesses so they can 
provide job and apprenticeship opportunities. 

e. Connectivity 

• Attractive places with a wide range of activities: Participants noted the importance of recreation 
and fun, calling for cultural, sports / leisure and environmental activity. Participants felt that this would 
help develop a sense of agency and pride in the area. 

• Developing link with the immediate environment: It was felt that this would help people to better 
connect with their local environment through activities, encouraging people to interact with the built 
environment. Participants mentioned litter picking, youth-led urban build projects and urban 
explorations, amongst other ideas. 

• Understand and address the existing boundaries: People talked about needing a ‘purpose’ to go 
into an area, in particular, areas where they feel they do not automatically have ‘permission to 
occupy’. Development of greater activities – both low level interventions and larger scale - could offer 
this purpose and give residents a reason to explore the Crescent or go to a specific location that they 
may not typically go to e.g., within the university grounds.  

• Link with the rest of the city: Participants stressed that social value should not stop at the ‘red line’ 
and that the relationship with surrounding communities, the rest of the city and surrounding cities 
must be considered. 

Page 329



I  PLACED Social Value Key Findings 
 

 

Page 42 

• Transport: More cycling and walking routes were called for to ensure local facilities are accessible. 
Parking can be expensive, public transport poorly connected / expensive and roads busy. There was 
discussion about pedestrianisation of the A6, closing it to traffic. This was broadly popular, provided 
that those who lived locally and who need to drive can do so. 

• Sense of place: There is a need to preserve historical buildings as a link with the past and as a 
mechanism for celebrating local identity. 

f. Inclusivity 

• Social care support: Participants mentioned the need for mental health services and highlighted 
that there are people within the community who require additional support, including care leavers 
and young offenders. Good practice examples include The Works in Manchester, in which local 
organisations are working with the university to deliver ‘real’ social value. The Broughton Trust were 
very knowable of the scheme and talked positively about it. 

• Include everybody: People feel excluded from most developments and would like to see an 
emphasis on developing the potential of local people. ‘It’s not about bringing good people in but 
allowing the people who live there to be the amazing human beings they are.’ 

g. Young people 

When asked to rank the five themes in order of priority in the survey, where 1 is most important and 5 is least, they 
were ranked as follows: 

1. Jobs, skills and training 

2. Keeping people healthy 

3. Creating a more equal city 

4. Tackling climate change 

5. Supporting arts and culture 

The following points are drawn from both the workshop discussion and a survey completed by young people. 

• Activities: Support local organisations that provide creative and recreational activities for young 
people. Participants would like to see opportunities for young people to ‘test new ideas and try things 
out that they otherwise wouldn’t have come across’.  

• Education: Work with schools and training providers to ensure that there are options for young 
people out of mainstream education and/ or leaving school at 16 years old. ‘I would prefer to go to a 
training centre in school rather than the only option being sent to a PRU (Pupil Referral Unit) type 
alternative because there is a stigma and you’re seen as naughty to have been sent away from 
school. Some pupils do not thrive in mainstream.’ (Survey respondent.) 

• Financial support: Enabling young people to access the university is important and may require 
additional support and intervention. The provision of bursaries for local young people to attend 
university was recommended. 

• Preparation for employment: The main challenge / concern for young people as identified in the 
Crescent Young People’s Views survey was ‘getting a job’. Most of the ideas put forward for 
improving the Crescent / Salford by young people focused on providing work placements and 
apprenticeships. 

• Alternative routes to recruitment: There is a real and immediate need to provide additional and 
alternative support. Many local young people experience significant challenges succeeding in the 
recruitment process, with interviews, CVs, lack of confidence and increased competition from those 
who would previously have gone to university turning to apprenticeships being just some of the 

Page 330



I  PLACED Social Value Key Findings 
 

 

Page 43 

challenges. There needs to be intensive support to ensure young people can access opportunities, 
and do not simply lose out to those more able to compete in a traditional recruitment approach. One 
participant summarised it as there being real danger that the delivery of Social Value through offering 
apprenticeships would be at risk of simply ‘picking the low hanging fruit.’ 

‘Without the support of the Alternative Provision I attended I wouldn’t have been able to get an 
apprenticeship as easily.’ (Survey respondent.) 

• Inclusion and diversity: It is important to acknowledge the diversity in the area – one solution might 
not benefit all groups in the same way. As one participant pointed out, ‘We need to make sure we 
create opportunities to listen to lots of voices’. 

• Need to build confidence and aspirations for the future: Young people need to feel like they can 
make a difference. They also need positive future prospects. Participants would like to see 
‘opportunities to raise children’s aspirations from an early age’. This includes career workshops in 
schools from a primary age. 

• Physical and mental health: Health comes second in the priorities ranked by young people as part 
of the Crescent Young People’s Views survey. Some comments mention depression and anxiety as 
the main challenge for young people in Salford. 

• Resources and accessibility: There needs to be a strategy to ensure those who the Social Value 
Strategy seeks to support can benefit. ‘All activities cost money so you can’t make things a weekly 
activity. But if they had something to go to each week and focus on then it would get them off the 
streets, give them something to look forward to and help with their mental health and depression.’ 
(Young People’s Views survey, support worker) 

SOCIAL MEDIA 
Responses and engagement with social media was largely ‘ReTweets’, tagging others and ‘likes’. The responses 
below were also received, supporting wider engagement themes:  

“Let’s do it for the Crescent #Salfordfamily” 

“What would be good is if the University of Salford took the Manchester off their badge/emblem” 

“The BW Canal regen in Salford has made a signif improv to places&people as well as improve 
health/wellbeing&economy. My tours on local hist engage residents & welcome visitors. Salford is the 
cradle of Ind Rev” 

“Would love to see some investment on the River Irwell path between Littleton Rd and Agecroft 
Cemetery. We also need path clearing near Rakes Ln towards Clifton Country Park ( Near tunnel under 
railway at Pilkington Tile site)” 

“Get rid of these pointless road closures for bikes there killing our community” 

“Would love to be able to see sky instead of concrete and glass” 

“Green space improvement, trees, biodiversity, low carbon / green buildings, social value at the heart of 
all development, of benefit to local people” 

“Please don’t get rid of any green space” 

 

 

 

 

Page 331



I  PLACED Social Value Key Findings 
 

 

Page 44 

CONCLUSIONS 
There is a real depth of local knowledge, expertise and experience across Salford. By drawing on that and 
collaborating for the duration of the project, the Crescent can bring about real change. 

It is clear that the Social Value Strategy cannot work in isolation. There is an opportunity to have an incredibly 
positive impact locally, but only by aligning the priorities of the Crescent Strategy with those of local organisations. 
Resources for all are stretched and therefore working in partnership is the only way of ensuring change. 

By working together and building trust, there is scope to align resources, support delivery of joint targets, guarantee 
depth of impact and ensure local people feel part of the Crescent. Going forward, taking meaningful engagement 
to a local level should enable more in-depth discussion and input, with people being able to relate to ideas on a 
smaller scale. Being able to deliver face-to-face, accessible engagement will also have a significant impact on the 
potential reach of future engagement delivered by Partners, especially if delivered with the support of local 
community leads and organisations. 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Page 332



 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Crescent Development Framework 

 

Community Impact 

Assessment (CIA) 

Page 333



   
  

Page 1 

THE DRAFT CRESCENT DEVELOPMENT FRAMEWORK - COMMUNITY IMPACT 

ASSESSMENT (CIA) 

 

Title of proposal:  Crescent Development Framework 

Service Group/ Team:  Regeneration 

Date of assessment:  December 2020 

Lead CIA Officer:  Daniel Welsh 

Officers in Assessment Team:  Kurt Partington, Daniel Welsh, James 

Shuttleworth   

Review Date:  December 2021  

 

The findings of your CIA MUST be included within the report for decision and this document attached as 

evidence of your consideration of potential impact on communities. 

Summary of Community Impact Assessment 

Brief summary of proposal or what you are impact assessing 

The City Council, working with Partners, is preparing a new Development Framework which once endorsed will 

help guide development in the Salford Crescent area, superseding the current Crescent Development Framework 

(2014). The overarching purpose of this Development Framework is to establish a clear vision, objectives and set 

of development principles that will catalyse the delivery of transformational change over the next 10+ years, 

securing a range of long-lasting economic, social and environmental benefits across the Framework area and 

adjoining communities. It has been prepared in the context of Salford’s adopted ‘Saved’ Unitary Development Plan 

(UDP), emerging Local Plan and wider regeneration initiatives.  

How did you approach the CIA and what did you find? 

Once endorsed, the Crescent Development Framework will have positive community impacts, helping to secure 

the long-term regeneration of the area to the benefit of local residents and businesses. Comprehensive 

consultation has been undertaken in respect of the Draft Framework which has helped shaped the key priorities 

for the area. The City Council has sought to make this process as inclusive as possible. In light of the ongoing 

COVID-19 pandemic restrictions, a virtual public consultation process has been undertaken as well as wider 

engagement with local community committees (Ordsall and Langworthy and East Salford). A separate, but inter-

related, social value engagement exercise has also been undertaken to further understand local issues of 

importance to the local community and to hear the views of harder to reach groups.  

What are the main areas requiring further attention?  

There is not considered to be any requirement for further attention.  

Summary of recommendations for improvement 

Not applicable. 

 

 

Page 334



   
  

Page 2 

1. THE PROPOSAL 

This section should outline details of the proposal. This could include (where applicable)  

• Description of the current service (policy, procedure, strategy, function) 

• Explanation of the proposal 

• Reason for the proposal 

• Aim or purpose of the proposal 

• Who should benefit from the proposal 

• Who are the key stakeholders 

• What outcomes are required from the proposal 

• Details of other services on which the proposal could impact 

• Social value considerations 

Proposals for development within the Development Framework area, including the University and the entirety of 

the area captured by the red line boundary, are currently guided by the 2014 Crescent Development Framework, 

which remains a material planning consideration, alongside the ‘saved’ UDP policies and the emerging Salford 

Local Plan policies. Following endorsement by the Council, the Crescent Development Framework will guide 

development across the Framework area over the next 10+ years and will form a material consideration in the 

determination of all future planning applications.   

The Development Framework will not form part of the adopted Development Plan. However, it has been prepared 

having full regard to relevant legislation, national planning policy contained in the National Planning Policy 

Framework (NPPF) (2019), ‘saved’ policies of the Salford Unitary Development Plan 2004-2016 (UDP) (2006), the 

Draft Publication Greater Manchester Spatial Framework (GMSF) (2020), and emerging policies within the “A 

Fairer City” Publication Salford Local Plan: Development Management Policies (SLP:DMP) (2020).   

The 2014 Development Framework has provided a clear framework which has been successful in guiding 

development and significant progress has been made in recent years in terms of regeneration.  However, due to 

the changing regeneration and policy context this guidance is now considered to be out-of-date and requires 

reviewing and refreshing.  The 2014 Development Framework will be superseded by the new Development 

Framework, once endorsed, which will reflect the latest National Planning Policy Framework (dated February 

2019), and other changes to guidance and legislation.   

The City Council consulted on the revised Vision & Objectives for the Development Framework between 6 July - 

3 August 2020.  This took the form of a Scoping Letter and was issued to approximately 6,000 addresses including 

those within the red line area and the immediate surrounding area (approximately 150m around the boundary on 

all sides). Comments received were reviewed and a ‘draft’ Framework was then prepared which was subject to 

formal consultation for  6 week period between 20 October – 1 December 2020.   

The Crescent Development Framework has been developed by a tripartite partnership including the City Council, 

the University of Salford (UoS) and the English Cities Fund (ECF) which is itself a partnership made up of Muse 

Developments, Legal & General and Homes England. 

A wide range of stakeholders have the potential to benefit from the updated Development Framework and have 

had the opportunity to contribute towards its vision and objectives in order to shape the overall masterplan for the 

area. These stakeholders include local residents, businesses, landowners, and statutory consultees. Local 

residents, local businesses and students and staff of the University will benefit from the proposals in terms of an 

enhanced public realm, new infrastructure, greater transport connectivity, improved access to housing, job 

opportunities and new community facilities.  The Development Framework will not just affect the immediate area 

but forms a key part of Salford’s Innovation Triangle which consists of the following three enterprise clusters:  

Page 335



   
  

Page 3 

• The University of Salford Innovation Cluster, which includes the University of Salford and 

Crescent Development Framework area and the Liverpool Street Masterplan area – and has been identified 

as ‘a new industrial innovation district’;  

• MediaCityUK and the Quays: the largest digital, creative and media cluster outside London; and  

• Salford Royal Hospital - the most digitally mature provider trust in the National Health Service.  

In terms of outcomes, the Development Framework sets out clear guidance for the phasing and delivery of the 

masterplan, which in turn, will deliver the vision and objectives set out.  In order to fully realise the transformational 

vision for the area and the significant benefits that can be generated locally, a clear implementation and delivery 

strategy is proposed that forms a ‘golden thread’ running through the Development Framework.   

The Partnership has been cognisant of the need to generate tangible social value through the delivery of the 

Crescent Development Framework.   Indeed, one of the key objectives of the Framework is to “create opportunity 

for all and ensure nobody is left behind”.  This means that future development will take advantage of all 

opportunities to maximise wider social value and contribute to social inclusion, with the aim of leaving a positive 

lasting legacy for communities within and surrounding the area.  A Social Value Strategy for the Crescent area is 

being developed and the key principles of this have been embedded within the Development Framework itself.    

 

 

 

Page 336



   
  

Page 4 

2. EVIDENCE AND RESEARCH 

What equality information (qualitative and quantitative), research or other intelligence have you used to develop 

this proposal?  

This can include; equality monitoring information, census data, customer satisfaction surveys and feedback, 

inspection reports, desktop research (local, regional and national), professional journals, feedback from individuals 

and groups. Details of information considered when assessing the impact should be published (whilst ensuring 

individual confidentiality). 

Information source What has this told you? 

National Planning Policy Framework (NPPF) and 
National Planning Policy Guidance (NPPG) 

The National Planning Policy Framework (February 
2019) sets out the Government’s planning policies for 
England and how these should be applied. It provides 
a framework within which locally-prepared plans for 
housing and other development can be produced. 
 
Paragraph 8 establishes a social objective for the 
planning system which seeks to “support strong, 
vibrant and healthy communities, by ensuring that a 
sufficient number and range of homes can be provided 
to meet the needs of present and future generations; 
and by fostering a well-designed and safe built 
environment, with accessible services and open 
spaces that reflect current and future needs and 
support communities’ health, social and cultural well-
being.” 
 
The government has also published National Planning 
Policy Guidance which provides additional guidance at 
a national level (last updated 1 October 2019). 

 
In reviewing the Development Framework, full account 
has had to be taken of the NPPF and the NPPG. 

Draft Publication Greater Manchester Spatial 
Framework (GMSF)  

The updated document (October 2020) sets out a clear 
vision for Salford Crescent as part of the City Centre 
Core Growth Area which straddles the boundary 
between Manchester and Salford and includes Chapel 
Street and the Crescent to the west, which will deliver 
a significant number of new jobs and new homes.  
 
There is a clear commitment to improved connectivity 
and provision of infrastructure between the City Centre 
and adjacent areas, such as between The Quays and 
Salford Crescent, which will support growth across the 
City Centre, as well as in edge-of-centre locations that 
benefit from this improved connectivity and become 
increasingly suitable for higher density and the 
expansion of further knowledge based clusters of 
development. A potential Metrolink extension is 
identified within the Draft Publication GMSF Plan from 
Salford Quays to Salford Crescent. 

“A Fairer City” Publication Salford Local Plan: 
Development Management Policies (SLP:DMP) 
(2020) 

Provides the main policies that will be used to manage 
development and determine planning applications 
identifies the designations that will protect the city’s 
most important environmental assets, town centres 
and infrastructure, and support the key deliver of key 

Page 337



   
  

Page 5 

infrastructure, such as transport and utilities, over the 
period to 2037. 

The Crescent Development Framework (May 2014) 
 

The 2014 Crescent Development Framework provides 
an established baseline document and guidance which 
has been refreshed to take into account policy 
changes since its endorsement.  

Scoping consultation (6 July – 3 August 2020) Feedback from interested organisations and 
individuals in relation to the proposed refresh of the 
Salford Crescent Development Framework, 
highlighting information that it should include and 
expand upon. Letters were sent to over 6,000 
households and local businesses in the Development 
Framework area and within the immediate surrounding 
area. 42 representations were received from 
organisations including statutory consultees, residents 
and landowners. 

 

The full suite of policy and regeneration guidance that has informed the preparation of the Crescent Development 

Framework is set out at Appendix A and B of the Crescent Development Framework document.  

Page 338



   
  

Page 6 

3. ENGAGEMENT / CONSULTATION 

When considering your proposal, you should be engaging with individuals and groups covering the following protected characteristics (You can use 

evidence from existing consultations if this evidence is relevant to your proposal): 

• Age 

• Disability 

• Gender 

• Gender reassignment 

• Marriage and Civil Partnership 

• Pregnancy and maternity 

• Race 

• Religion and belief 

• Sexual orientation 

We also advise you to consult people on a low income, carers, ex-offenders, refugees and people seeking asylum, gypsies and travellers, where 

appropriate. 

You should detail below your engagement activities (Please note; you must ensure individual confidentiality) 

Date(s) of 
engagement 

Who was involved? Main issues identified 

Scoping Consultation 
(6 July – 3 August 
2020) 

The City Council sought the views of stakeholders 
and consultees through a scoping consultation 
letter on its intention to refresh the Salford 
Crescent and University District Development 
Framework. 
 
The City Council consulted approximately 6,000 
residents and local businesses falling within the 
Development Framework area, and the area 
immediately adjacent to the area, together with all 
statutory consultation bodies. 
   

The purpose of the Scoping Consultation was to inform stakeholder, residents and 
businesses of the desire to update the Framework for the Crescent Area and to seek 
views upon the vision and objectives for the development of the Framework.   No formal 
documents were produced for the consultation, but a letter was sent to the identified 
consultees together with details of how comments could be submitted.   
 
40 organisations and individuals submitted representations, whilst 2 organisations 
responded to confirm that they had no comments. A detailed schedule of responses is 
included within Tables 4.1 and 4.2 of the accompanying Consultation Statement. In 
summary the following themes were raised: 
 
 
 

P
age 339



   
  

Page 7 

Details of the scoping consultation were also 
published on the Council’s website and an 
electronic version of the letter was available to 
download.  
 
Finally, details of the scoping consultation were 
also published on the dedicated website for the 
project (https://www.salfordcrescent.com/) where 
an electronic version of the letter was available to 
download.  
 

Vision & Objectives  
Various comments were received from statutory consultees in relation to the proposed 
vision and objectives, with additional wording for inclusion suggested. 
 
Red Line Boundary  
Comments were received in respect of the proposed red line boundary with suggestions 
made as to additional land which should be considered.  
 
Mix of Development  
Representations were made in respect of the potential uses to be included as part of the 
proposals with a focus on enhanced cultural/ leisure offerings. A number of consultees 
also highlighted the need for affordable housing.  
 
Open/ Green Space 
A number of responses requested that all public parks and green space within the 
Framework area be protected from development.   
 
Transport Connectivity 
In terms of the area’s transport connectivity, representations were made in terms of the 
proposed Metrolink extension and focus on sustainable transport measures.  
 
Development Details 
Given that the scoping consultation only sought comments on the draft vision and 
objectives and red line boundary, a number of consultees requested further information 
on the proposals for the area.  
 
 

Draft Development 
Framework 
Consultation (20 
October – 1 
December 2020) 

Following the initial scoping consultation, the City 
Council undertook a full consultation with key 
stakeholders and consultees on the Draft 
Development Framework over a 6 week period 
between 23 October and 1 December 2020.   
 
A letter was issued to approximately 6,000 
residents and local businesses falling within the 
Development Framework area, and the area 
immediately adjacent to the area, and all 
statutory consultation bodies which provided 

The purpose of the public consultation was to present the Draft Development and seek 
comments from local residents, businesses and key stakeholders on the emerging 
proposals.  As previously noted, a virtual consultation room was set up to maximise 
engagement in light of the COVID-19 restrictions. In total 1,007 no. visitors were 
recorded to have viewed the consultation room.  
 
56 organisations and individuals submitted representations, whilst 3 organisations 
responded to confirm that they had no comments. A detailed schedule of responses is 
included within Tables 5.1 and 5.2 of the accompanying Consultation Statement. 
 
 

P
age 340

https://www.salfordcrescent.com/


   
  

Page 8 

details of the Draft Development Framework 
consultation and the mechanisms by which the 
Draft could be reviewed and comments could be 
submitted.  
 
Full details are set out within the Consultation 
Statement which accompanies the Development 
Framework, and a summary is provided below: 

• A dedicated virtual consultation ‘room’ 
containing boards and a copy of the 
Framework was accessible at: 
https://salfordcrescent.consultation.ai/ 

• An online feedback form was available to 
be completed online and submitted within 
the consultation room. 

• A word version of the feedback form was 
available to be downloaded and 
completed and submitted via email 

• Comments could be submitted via email 
at plans.consultation@salford.gov.uk 

• A freephone number was available. 
 
Details of the consultation were also published on 
the dedicated website for the project 
(https://www.salfordcrescent.com/). 
where an electronic version of the Draft 
Development Framework and an electronic 
version of the feedback form was available to 
download.  

 

Ordsall and 
Langworthy 
Community 
Committee (10 
November 2020) 

Council Regeneration Officers and 
representatives from ECF attended a virtual 
Ordsall and Langworthy Community Committee 
Meeting on 10th November 2020. The Draft 
Crescent Development Framework was 
presented to the Committee and interested 
members of the public encouraged to submit 
comments.  

The Draft Development Framework was generally well received during the community 
committee meeting. No specific comments were received in respect of the proposals. 
Residents were encouraged to view the consultation room and to provide comments 
using the available channels.  

P
age 341

https://salfordcrescent.consultation.ai/
mailto:plans.consultation@salford.gov.uk
https://www.salfordcrescent.com/


   
  

Page 9 

East Salford 
Community 
Committee (19 
November 2020) 

Council Regeneration Officers and 
representatives from ECF attended a virtual East 
Salford Community Committee Meeting on 19th 
November 2020. The Draft Crescent 
Development Framework was presented to the 
Committee and interested members of the public 
with comments sought. 

Following the presentation to the committee, one respondent sought assurances that 
the proposals would be delivered, as it was felt that previous iterations of the plans 
hadn’t been, and that the benefits derived from the regeneration would positively 
impact the local community. Specific mention was made of the need to bring the 
community along and require local employment to be mandatory as part of any future 
construction works. Residents were encouraged to view the consultation room and to 
provide comments using the available channels. 

 

P
age 342



   
  

Page 10 

4. ASSESSING THE IMPACT 

From your evidence gathering, you will have identified potential disproportionate negative impacts. Please provide details and your actions to overcome these 

below. We would also like to know if there will be any positive impacts that your proposals will make to improve equalities: 

• Potential impact: If the proposal could result in some groups (including customers and/or staff) being disadvantaged or treated unfairly. 

• Mitigations and actions: Where there is a potential for disadvantage or unfair treatment, what are your plans to eliminate, reduce, mitigate or justify it? 

Could making these changes have a negative effect on any other group(s)? Explain why and what you will do about this. You should include details of 

who will be responsible for the actions and target dates for completion: 

• Promoting Equality: Could the proposal result in an opportunity to promote equality or inclusion? Explain how. 

Please note: this table will form the basis of your action plan. 

Protected 

characteristic 

or other group 

Potential impact Mitigations and 

actions 

Responsible officer Target date Promoting equality 

Age Not anticipated to have a negative impact    Once endorsed, the Crescent Development 

Framework will be a material consideration in 

the determination of planning applications and 

will apply to all development proposals within 

the defined Framework area.  

 

P
age 343



   
  

Page 11 

The Development Framework is concerned with 

the overall regeneration of the Crescent area 

and seeks to bring about positive change 

through a wide range of measures. As such, the 

proposals contained within it will be of benefit to 

all people, regardless of age. In addition, as the 

Framework area takes in the University of 

Salford, it is anticipated that there would be a 

positive impact for younger people/students as 

there will be significant investment across the 

Campus, the creation of a new Innovation 

District directly adjacent to the Campus will also 

provide job opportunities for graduates.     

Disability Not anticipated to have a negative impact   Once endorsed, the Crescent Development 

Framework will be a material consideration in 

the determination of planning applications and 

will apply to all development proposals within 

the defined Framework area.  

The Development Framework has the potential 

to have a positive impact for people with a 

disability by facilitating the delivery of high 

quality development, new transport 

connections, green space and public realm 

which is accessible to all.  

P
age 344



   
  

Page 12 

Gender Not anticipated to have a negative impact   Once endorsed, the Crescent Development 

Framework will be a material consideration in 

the determination of planning applications and 

will apply to all development proposals within 

the defined Framework area. The Development 

Framework is concerned with the overall 

regeneration of the Crescent area and seeks to 

bring about positive change through a wide 

range of measures. As such, the proposals 

contained within it will be of benefit to all people, 

regardless of gender. 

Gender 

reassignment 

Not anticipated to have a negative impact   Once endorsed, the Crescent Development 

Framework will be a material consideration in 

the determination of planning applications and 

will apply to all development proposals within 

the defined Framework area. The Development 

Framework is concerned with the overall 

regeneration of the Crescent area and seeks to 

bring about positive change through a wide 

range of measures. As such, the proposals 

contained within it will be of benefit to all people 

and will therefore not result in any negative 

impact on people in terms of gender 

reassignment. 

P
age 345



   
  

Page 13 

Marriage and 

Civil Partnership 

Not anticipated to have a negative impact   Once endorsed, the Crescent Development 

Framework will be a material consideration in 

the determination of planning applications and 

will apply to all development proposals within 

the defined Framework area. The Development 

Framework is concerned with the overall 

regeneration of the Crescent area and seeks to 

bring about positive change through a wide 

range of measures. As such, the proposals 

contained within it will be of benefit to all people 

and will therefore not result in any negative 

impact on people in terms of marriage and civil 

partnership. 

Pregnancy and 

maternity 

Not anticipated to have a negative impact   Once endorsed, the Crescent Development 

Framework will be a material consideration in 

the determination of planning applications and 

will apply to all development proposals within 

the defined Framework area. The Development 

Framework is concerned with the overall 

regeneration of the Crescent area and seeks to 

bring about positive change through a wide 

range of measures. As such, the proposals 

contained within it will be of benefit to all people 

and will therefore not result in any negative 

impact on people in terms of pregnancy and 

maternity. 

P
age 346



   
  

Page 14 

Race Not anticipated to have a negative impact   Once endorsed, the Crescent Development 

Framework will be a material consideration in 

the determination of planning applications and 

will apply to all development proposals within 

the defined Framework area. The Development 

Framework is concerned with the overall 

regeneration of the Crescent area and seeks to 

bring about positive change through a wide 

range of measures. As such, the proposals 

contained within it will be of benefit to all people 

and will therefore not result in a negative impact 

on any particular racial group. 

Religion and 

belief 

Not anticipated to have a negative impact   Once endorsed, the Crescent Development 

Framework will be a material consideration in 

the determination of planning applications and 

will apply to all development proposals within 

the defined Framework area. The Development 

Framework is concerned with the overall 

regeneration of the Crescent area and seeks to 

bring about positive change through a wide 

range of measures. As such, the proposals 

contained within it will be of benefit to all people 

and will therefore not result in any negative 

impact on people in terms of religion and belief. 

P
age 347



   
  

Page 15 

Sexual 

orientation 

Not anticipated to have a negative impact   Once endorsed, the Crescent Development 

Framework will be a material consideration in 

the determination of planning applications and 

will apply to all development proposals within 

the defined Framework area. The Development 

Framework is concerned with the overall 

regeneration of the Crescent area and seeks to 

bring about positive change through a wide 

range of measures. As such, the proposals 

contained within it will be of benefit to all people 

and will therefore not result in any negative 

impact on people in terms of sexual orientation. 

Other groups Not anticipated to have a negative impact   Once endorsed, the Crescent Development 

Framework will be a material consideration in 

the determination of planning applications and 

will apply to all development proposals within 

the defined Framework area. The Development 

Framework is concerned with the overall 

regeneration of the Crescent area and seeks to 

bring about positive change through a wide 

range of measures. As such, the proposals 

contained within it will be of benefit to all people 

and will therefore not result in any differential 

impact in terms of other equality groups. 

P
age 348



   
  

Page 16 

5. ASSESSING THE IMPACT ON COMMUNITY COHESION 

Community cohesion is what must happen in all communities to enable different groups of people to get on well together. A key contributor to community 

cohesion is integration which is what must happen to enable new residents and existing residents to adjust to one another.  

An integrated and cohesive community is based on three foundations:  

• People from different backgrounds having similar life opportunities.  

• People knowing their rights and responsibilities.  

• People trusting one another and trusting local institutions to act fairly.  

And three ways of living together:  

• A shared future vision and sense of belonging.  

• A focus on what new and existing communities have in common, alongside a recognition of the value of diversity.  

• Strong and positive relationships between people from different backgrounds.  

Detail below if the proposals is likely to impact on community cohesion, including if there is likely to be a positive impact. 

 

The Framework area comprises a varied and diverse community, including University students and local residents. The Development Framework has 

been prepared with a clear focus on integrating the University, students and local residents to ensure that both the existing and future communities can 

thrive. The Framework represents an opportunity to embed social value in the vision to ensure that the needs of the local community are addressed. 

 

As more and more people are choosing Salford as a place to live, work and visit it will be essential to ensure that both the existing and future community in 

and around the Crescent share in the benefits of growth and that the Development Framework tackles inequality and promotes fairness. 

 

One of the key partner priorities relates to “people, community and tackling inequality”. A series of key objectives make up this priority as summarised 

below: 

• Providing high quality homes and a mix of tenures – The Framework will enable a varied mix of high-quality, adaptable, low energy homes for all 

to be delivered. 

• Responding to and integrating with local communities – The Framework will respond to, and fully integrate with existing communities which 

surround the area. It will also create new connections to surrounding communities to ensure that new buildings, places and infrastructure created 

within the Development Framework area benefit communities adjoining it. 

P
age 349



   
  

Page 17 

• Creating opportunities for all and ensuring nobody is left behind – The Framework will create opportunities for everyone, reducing inequality, with 

the aim of leaving a positive legacy for communities within and surrounding the area. It will also deliver social value for the local area by promoting 

social, economic and environmental sustainability through the Framework’s life cycle employing a Social Value Strategy for the design, 

construction, occupation and estate management. 

• Supporting healthy lifestyles, improved well-being and enhanced opportunities to be physically active – The Framework will support healthy 

lifestyles and the improved wellbeing of students and University staff and of current and new residents and employees through the provision of 

safe and accessible green infrastructure, sustainable transport, enhanced public realm, quality new homes and a range of employment 

opportunities. It will also explore opportunities to develop and enhance physical health.  

 

These objectives have resulted in the creation of a series of development principles which are presented in Section 5 of the Development Framework. By 

applying these development principles in the assessment of development proposals, the Framework will have a positive impact on community cohesion 

and ensure that all benefit from the regeneration of the area. 

 

 

  

P
age 350



   
  

Page 18 

6. MONITORING 

You should ensure that any actions within your CIA are monitored and reviewed regularly within Covalent. You 

should review progress on your action plan annually.  

7. REVIEW  

Your CIA should be reviewed after the proposals have been implemented to review actual impact. You should 

record an appropriate review date below. 

Review date: December 2021 

8. SIGN OFF 

When you have completed your CIA, it must be signed off by a senior manager within your service group 

(Assistant Director or above). 

Name  Signature Date 

Jim Wensley 

Assistant Director, Regeneration 

 

         

         December 2020 

 

When your CIA has been signed off and after the decision has been made, send it to Equalities & Cohesion 

Team in Policy and Strategy for publishing on the council’s website. 

Page 351



This page is intentionally left blank



 

Crescent Development Framework 

Sustainability Audit  

Page 353



 

 

Page 2 

Contents 

1 Introduction .................................................................................................................... 3 

2 Sustainability Audit Methodology ................................................................................ 8 

3 Sustainability Audit Findings...................................................................................... 10 

4 Development Framework Sustainability Objectives ................................................. 13 

5 Conclusion ................................................................................................................... 16 

APPENDICES 

A Sustainability Audit ..................................................................................................... 18 

 

 

 

Page 354



 

 

Page 3 

   INTRODUCTION 

Background  

1.1 The City Council, working with its Partners the University of Salford (UoS) and the English Cities Fund 

(ECF), is preparing a new Development Framework which once endorsed will help guide development 

in the Salford Crescent area, superseding the current Crescent Development Framework adopted in May 

2014. The overarching purpose of this Development Framework is to establish a clear vision, objectives 

and set of development principles that will catalyse the delivery of transformational change over the next 

10+ years, securing a range of long-lasting economic, social and environmental benefits across the 

Framework area and adjoining communities.  

1.2 The Development Framework covers a significant area of approximately 102 hectares and will have 

wide-reaching impacts, aiming to transform the area into a globally recognised destination for people to 

live, learn, work, visit and play, and creating an inspiring, attractive and sustainable place which 

generates jobs and knowledge for the benefit of the wider community.   

   VISION AND OBJECTIVES  

The Vision 

1.3 The Vision as set out in the Crescent Development Framework aims to transform this part of Salford into 

a: 

“Globally recognised destination for people to live, learn, work, visit, play and be active. It will build on 

the existing positive characteristics of Salford, such as the historic environment around the Crescent 

Conservation Area, to deliver a distinctive sense of place. It will create an inspiring, attractive and 

sustainable place which generates professional and educational opportunities for the benefit of the wider 

community whilst also protecting and enhancing the natural environment.” 

1.4 In order to deliver this ambitious Vision, twelve key objectives for the Development Framework have 

been identified, informed by the UN’s Sustainable Development Goals (UN SDG’s), national and local 

planning policy, and Salford’s regeneration initiatives together with the site’s specific constraints and 

opportunities.  

Key Objectives 

1.5 As noted above, underpinning the Vision are a series of key objectives, grouped under the key Partner 

policy priorities of Learning and Innovation; People, Community and Tackling Inequality; Culture and 

Creativity; Strong and Diverse Economy; Connectivity, Movement and Sustainable Transport; 

Environment and Blue-Green Infrastructure, and  Climate Change and Sustainability. These form the 

structure around which the Framework-wide and character area specific principles and Illustrative 

Masterplan have been formulated to guide future development and investment across the area over the 

next 10+ years. The 12 key objectives are as follows: 

1. Support and enhance the future development of the University - Transform the University’s 

Campus and the surrounding area to make it an outstanding place to study, work, live and visit 

and raise the profile of the University regionally, nationally and internationally. Enhance the 

Campus, bridge barriers between the various University zones and enhance existing assets. 

Create a new innovation district to forge stronger links between University teaching and research 

and industry and employers, bringing economic growth and added value to the Salford economy. 

Crystallise new opportunities to better connect the University with industry. New infrastructure 

and public realm will better connect the campus to cultural facilities and fantastic green 

recreational spaces across the area. 

2. Enhance the local experience for students and University staff - Enhance the local 

experience for students and University staff and ensure that the University campus and wider 

Crescent area provides an attractive and safe long-term home-from-home base to improve 

1 Introduction 

Page 355



 

 

Page 4 

academic performance and graduate retention rates within the City. Create a ‘sticky campus’ 

which would include 24/7 activity to drive economic growth and provide a vibrant and exciting 

staff and student experience as well as opportunities for local businesses. A ‘sticky campus’ 

refers to one which encourages students to stay on campus longer rather than go home or 

elsewhere for entertainment or food and beverage options. 

3. Provide high quality homes and a mix of tenures -  Bring forward a varied mix of high-quality, 

adaptable, low energy home for all. 

4. Respond to and integrate with local communities - Respond to, and fully integrate with 

existing communities which surround the area. Create new connections to surrounding 

communities to ensure that new buildings, places and infrastructure created within the 

Development Framework area benefit communities adjoining the area. 

5. Create opportunity for all and ensure nobody is left behind - Create opportunities for 

everyone, reducing inequality, with the aim of leaving a positive legacy for communities within 

and surrounding the area. Deliver social value for the local area by promoting social, economic 

and environmental sustainability through the project’s life cycle employing a Social Value 

Strategy for the design, construction, occupation and estate management of the site. 

6. Support healthy lifestyles, improved well-being and enhanced opportunities to be 

physically active - Support healthy lifestyles and the improved well-being of students and 

University staff and of current and new residents and employees through the provision of safe 

and accessible green infrastructure, sustainable transport, enhanced public realm, quality new 

homes and a range of employment opportunities. Explore opportunities to develop and enhance 

physical health infrastructure and facilities in the locality. 

7. Create a place with culture at its heart - Build on the fantastic existing assets across the area 

to create a place rich in culture. Create a new cultural hub, centred around the landmark Salford 

Museum and Art Gallery and former Fire Station. Redevelop Maxwell Hall to create a modern 

conferencing and event centre. Connectivity between assets across the cultural hub will be 

significantly enhanced by high quality public realm enhancements. 

8. Generate high quality employment opportunities and create a truly unique and compelling 

innovation district - Generate high-quality employment opportunities across the area. The 

innovation zone will be an attraction to both skilled and creative workers, innovative firms, 

researchers and investors. The innovation zone will be interconnected with the University, 

MediaCityUK and Salford Royal NHS Foundation Trust to help realise the ambition of the Salford 

Innovation Triangle. The University Industrial Collaboration Strategy (ICS) will be used as a 

fundamental principle to encourage industry partnership schemes. 

9. Radically change and enhance existing infrastructure and public realm - Enhance existing 

and provide new green infrastructure and public realm that will allow for sustainable travel and 

connectivity throughout the area and into adjacent communities. Opportunities will be explored 

to create a new high-quality transport hub centred around Salford Crescent Station, including 

potential new Metrolink connections to Salford Quays, creating a destination that is accessible 

to all. 

10. Enhance the wealth of existing green assets and significantly increase biodiversity - 

Capitalise on the fantastic green spaces and the River Irwell that already exist in the area and 

create new infrastructure and public realm full of rich greenery that will encourage walking, 

cycling and recreation. 

11. Conserving and enhancing the area’s unique historic environment - Establish a positive 

strategy for the conservation and enjoyment of the area’s unique historic environment and 

character, celebrating the areas many listed buildings and structures, historic parks and 

archaeological sites. 

Page 356



 

 

Page 5 

12. Lead the way to carbon neutrality - Lead the way to carbon neutrality with sustainability placed 

at the heart of new development proposals; creating sustainable transport and infrastructure, 

ensuring climate resilience, increasing biodiversity, creating healthy streets and public realm and 

developing highly sustainable and environmentally friendly buildings. 

Status of the Development Framework  

1.6 Following adoption by SCC, the Crescent Development Framework will guide development across the 

Framework area over the next 10+ years and will form a material consideration in the determination of 

all future planning applications across the area. 

1.7 The Development Framework does not form part of the Council’s adopted Development Plan. However, 

it has been prepared having had full regard to relevant legislation including national planning policy 

contained in the National Planning Policy Framework (NPPF) (2019), the ‘saved’ policies of the Salford 

Unitary Development Plan 2004- 2016 (UDP) (2006), the Revised Draft Greater Manchester Spatial 

Framework (2019), and emerging policies within the “A Fairer City” Publication Salford Local Plan: 

Development Management Policies and Designations (2020). 

1.8 Once adopted by SCC, the Crescent Development Framework will supersede the previous Crescent 

Development Framework (adopted May 2014). 

REQUIREMENT FOR SUSTAINABILITY APPRAISAL (SA) / STRATEGIC 

ENVIRONMENTAL ASSESSMENT (SEA) 

Legislative Context  

1.9 Section 19 (5) of the Planning and Compulsory Purchase Act 2004 requires a local planning authority 

(LPA) to carry out SA of each of the proposals in a plan, during its preparation. More generally, section 

39 of the Act requires that the authority preparing a plan must do so “with the objective of contributing to 

the achievement of sustainable development.” A SA is a systematic process that must be carried out 

during the preparation of local plans and spatial development strategies. Its role is to promote sustainable 

development by assessing the extent to which the emerging plan, when judged against reasonable 

alternatives, will help to achieve relevant environmental, economic and social objectives. 

1.10 SAs incorporate the requirements of the Environmental Assessment of Plans and Programmes 

Regulations 2004 (commonly referred to as ‘the SEA Regulations’). The requirement for SEA is set out 

in the ODPM’s practical guidance on applying the European Directive 2001/42/EC1. The SEA 

Regulations apply to any plan or programme which relates either solely to the whole or any part of 

England, or to England and any other part of the UK. 

1.11 The SEA Regulations together with the guidance set out the requirement for LPAs to undertake SEA on 

land use plans or programmes which “set the framework for future development consent of projects.” 

Under Article 3(3) and 3(4) of the EIA Directive, environmental assessment is required for certain 

categories of plans and programmes only where they are determined to be likely to have significant 

environmental effects. Plans and programmes in these categories are: 

• Plans and programmes of the types listed in Article 3(2) which determine the use of small areas at 

local level, or which are minor modifications to plans and programmes; 

• Plans and programmes of types which are not listed in Article 3(2), which set the framework for future 

development consent of projects (not limited to projects listed in the Annexes to the EIA Directive). 

Page 357



 

 

Page 6 

1.12 The European Commission guidance1 (paragraphs 3.33–3.35) suggests that plans or programmes which 

determine the use of small areas at local level might include: 

“a building plan which, for a particular, limited area, outlines details of how buildings must be constructed, 

determining, for example, their height, width or design…. The complete phrase … makes it clear that the 

whole of a local authority area could not be excluded (unless it were itself small). …The key criterion for 

the application of the Directive, however, is not the size of area covered but whether the plan or 

programme would be likely to have significant environmental effects”. 

1.13 In this case, LPAs must carry out screening to determine whether plans or programmes of the types 

covered by Article 3(3) and 3(4) are likely to have significant environmental effects, and hence whether 

SEA is required under the Directive. Annex II of the Directive lists criteria for determining the likely 

significance of the environmental effects of plans or programmes. 

SA/ SEA Screening  

1.14 The Crescent Development Framework has been prepared as a non-statutory planning document. As 

such there is no legislative requirement for the Framework to undergo SEA/SA, as set out within the 

relevant legislation, and national planning practice guidance. Furthermore, SA has been undertaken in 

respect of both the adopted policy (‘saved’ policies of the UDP) and in support of the emerging Local 

Plan (SLP:DMP).  

1.15 Notwithstanding this, a SEA Screening Statement, prepared by CBRE on behalf of the Council, was 

issued to the Environment Agency, Natural England and Historic England in July 2020 to request 

confirmation that SEA was not required in relation to the Crescent Development Framework. The 

Screening Statement concluded that: 

• There are a limited number of statutory designations which cover the Development Framework area, 

primarily relating to heritage assets including two conservation areas and a number of listed 

buildings, and a number of locally important biological and environmental designations;  

• The Development Framework will be a non-statutory planning document, therefore there is no 

legislative requirement for non-statutory documents to undergo SEA/SA, as set out within the 

relevant legislation, and national planning practice guidance.  Furthermore, SA has been undertaken 

in respect of both the adopted policy (‘saved’ policies of the UDP) and in support of the emerging 

policy (SLP:DMP), which comprise the relevant policies of relevance to the Crescent area; and  

• Finally, the criteria from Annex II of the SEA Directive and Schedule 1 of the Environmental 

Assessment of Plans and Programmes Regulations (2004) were used in order to consider the 

relevance of the ‘plan’ (i.e. the Development Framework) to the SEA Directive.  This assessment 

clearly demonstrated that the delivery of the Development Framework will result in positive impacts 

across a broad range of social, economic and environmental objectives and that the Development 

Framework will not give rise to any significant environmental effects. 

1.16 In conclusion, the Screening Statement considered that SEA/SA was not required in this instance.  This 

conclusion was confirmed by Environment Agency, Natural England and Historic England.  

 

 

 

1 “Implementation of Directive 2001/42/EC on the Assessment of the Effects of Certain Plans and Programmes on the 

Environment” – European Commission 

Page 358



 

 

Page 7 

   PUBLIC CONSULTATION  

1.17 As detailed in the accompanying Consultation Statement, the Crescent Development Framework was 

subject to an initial scoping consultation in July 2020 and a subsequent 6 week public consultation 

between October and December 2020. Comments received during consultation have been taken into 

consideration by the Council and have helped inform the final Development Framework for the area.  

   SUSTAINABILITY AUDIT 

1.18 Notwithstanding the above, a high level sustainability ‘audit’ has been prepared to assess the 

Development Framework against the Council’s sustainability objectives as defined in the Sustainability 

Appraisal (SA) accompanying the emerging SLP:DMP dated January 2020. This is to ensure that 

sustainability issues have been appropriately embedded within the Development Framework as they 

relate to emerging Local Plan policy.   

Page 359



 

 

Page 8 

   SUSTAINABILITY OBJECTIVES 

2.1 This Section presents the methodology for a high level Sustainability Audit which has been prepared to 

assess the Development Framework against the sustainability objectives that the Council has adopted 

for the purposes of the emerging SLP:DMP. 

2.2 The SA (January 2019) identifies 21 no. sustainability objectives covering a broad range of issues, for 

example relating to health, biodiversity, air, water, climate, heritage, landscape, prosperity, housing, 

accessibility, and community cohesion.  

2.3 These objectives correspond broadly with those adopted for the ‘saved’ UDP SA. The key difference 

with the 2020 SA objectives is that one further objective was included relating to securing a self-

sustaining and balanced population sufficient to support a full range of local services.  

2.4 The 21 objectives are set out in table 2.1 below: 

Table 2.1 – Sustainability Objectives  

Topic  SA Objective  

Health  1) To improve physical and mental health 

Biodiversity, flora and fauna 2) To protect, enhance and restore biodiversity resources 

Geodiversity  3) To protect, enhance and restore geological resources 

Soil and land  4) To protect and improve soil and land resources 

Water 5) To protect and enhance water resources 

6) To minimise the risk and impacts of flooding 

Air 7) To improve air quality 

Climatic factors  8) To minimise contributions to climate change 

Material assets  9) To minimise the use of non-renewable resources 

Cultural heritage  10) To protect, enhance, and enable the appreciation of, the city’s heritage 

Landscape and townscape 11) To maintain and enhance the quality and character of landscape and townscape 

Amenity 12) To protect and enhance amenity 

Crime 13) To reduce crime and the fear of crime 

Economic health  14) To maximise economic growth that can be sustained in the long-term 

Prosperity 15) To enhance economic inclusion 

Education 16) To improve the city’s knowledge base 

Housing  17) To ensure that everyone has access to a good home that meets their needs 

Accessibility  18) To improve the accessibility of facilities and opportunities 

Community cohesion 19) To improve community cohesion 

Decision-making  20) To increase involvement in decision-making 

Image  21) To improve perceptions of the city 

ASSESSMENT OF OPTIONS 

2.5 This assessment considers two options:  

• Option 1 – No Development Framework. No Development Framework is produced, and future 

development takes place in an ad hoc, un-coordinated manner through individual planning 

applications.  

• Option 2 – Development Framework applied. The Development Framework is adopted for the 

area, providing guidance for its future development and regeneration. 

2 Sustainability Audit Methodology   

Page 360



 

 

Page 9 

2.6 Each option has been assessed on the basis of a five-point scale, with an additional ‘uncertain’ category 

where the impact is not known: 

   Table 2.2 – Five Point Scale for Assessing the Framework 
 

Type Code 

Major positive ++ 

Positive + 

Neutral 0 

Negative - 

Major negative - - 

Uncertain ? 

2.7 In addition, a broad description has been provided together with the action necessary to mitigate the 

negative effects or maximise the positive effects, where appropriate.  

2.8 The full assessment is set out in Appendix A. 

 

Page 361



 

 

Page 10 

3.1 In summary, it is considered that the implementation of the Crescent Development Framework will result 

in positive impacts across a broad range of social, economic and environmental objectives. In all 

instances, the application of the Development Framework would result in impacts that are either the 

same as, or more positive, than those that would be realised under the no change option.  

3.2 The full assessment is provided at Appendix A.  

   Option 1 - No Development Framework 

3.3 While it is considered that the main impacts of not producing a Development Framework for the Crescent 

area are either uncertain or neutral, an important negative impact is that the lack of up-to-date guidance 

for the area would hamper or prevent the area’s comprehensive regeneration. Instead, future 

development would proceed via a series of ad hoc planning decisions. This in turn would hamper the 

ability of the area to develop amenities, which would assist in creating a sustainable community. In 

addition, the lack of a Development Framework would reduce opportunities to increase stakeholder 

involvement in decision-making about the future of the area as a whole, since stakeholders would only 

be consulted on individual applications rather than the "bigger picture". 

   Option 2 – Development Framework is Prepared and Applied 

3.4 The application of a Development Framework would result in positive impacts across a broad range of 

social, economic and environmental objectives. There are a number of objectives where the application 

of the Development Framework is likely to have a neutral impact; however, in all cases, this is either the 

same as, or more positive than, the impact that would be realised under the no change option. 

3.5 Table 3.1 below considers the range of issues which must be effectively dealt with through the 

Development Framework to ensure that it fully contributes towards the Council’s overarching 

sustainability objectives.  

    Table 3.1 – Action to achieve sustainability objectives  
 

No. Theme  Objective  Action 

1 Health To improve physical and mental 

health 

Ensure that the Framework is used to promote 

regeneration and the provision of an attractive and 

accessible environment. Existing physical health 

infrastructure such as the David Lewis playing fields 

should be protected and enhanced, and where possible, 

additional physical health infrastructure could be 

incorporated into the Illustrative Masterplan which 

accompanies the Development Framework.  

2 Biodiversity, 

flora and 

fauna 

To protect, enhance and restore 

biodiversity resources 

Ensure that important open space, green infrastructure 

and blue infrastructure (water assets) in the area are 

protected and enhanced. 

3 Geodiversity To protect, enhance and restore 

geological resources 

Where appropriate, ensure that any important geological 

assets in the area are protected, enhanced and recorded.  

4 Soil and land To protect and improve soil and 

land 

resources 

Ensure that important open space assets in the area, such 

as Peel Park, the Meadows, and the David Lewis playing 

fields are protected and enhanced and that brownfield 

sites are fully utilised.  

5 Water To protect and enhance water 

resources 

Ensure that important blue infrastructure (water assets) in 

the area such as the River Irwell are protected and 

enhanced. 

6 To minimise the risk and impacts 

of flooding 

Ensure that the Framework addresses the flooding issues 

associated with bringing forward proposals for individual 

sites, particularly those located adjacent to the River Irwell, 

and makes suitable provision of systems such as SuDs. 

3 Sustainability Audit Findings 

Page 362



 

 

Page 11 

7 Air To improve air quality Ensure that the Framework includes proposals to improve 

the existing network of cycle and pedestrian routes and 

wider connectivity to adjacent areas. Incorporating 

proposals such as the de-engineering of the A6, planned 

improvements to Salford Rail Station and provision of 

Metrolink to connect this area will also encourage a move 

to sustainable transport modes and in turn, a reduction an 

improvement in air quality.  

8 Climatic 

factors 

To minimise contributions to 

climate change 

Ensure that the Development Framework incorporates the 

provisions of the Sustainable Design and Construction 

SPD (2008) and shows how they could apply at the local 

level as a minimum. Furthermore, the Framework 

identifies a set of sustainability objectives for the 

Framework area which are embedded into the Framework 

in order to contribute to SCC’s carbon neutrality/ net zero 

carbon objectives and to mitigate climate change.  

9 Material 

assets 

To minimise the use of non-

renewable resources 

Ensure that the Development Framework incorporates the 

provisions of the Sustainable Design and Construction 

SPD (2008) and shows how they could apply at the local 

level. Furthermore, the Framework encourages the use of 

renewable technologies, including renewable zero carbon 

technologies, such solar PV and heat pumps and future 

developments shall look to incorporate appropriate zero/ 

low carbon measures to offset energy requirements.  

10 Cultural and 

built heritage 

To protect, enhance, and enable 

the appreciation of, the city’s 

heritage 

Ensure that the Framework promotes a unified townscape 

in both of the Conservation Areas (and throughout the rest 

of the area) which responds to the Crescent’s heritage. 

The proposed creation of a ‘cultural quarter’ around some 

of the area’s most significant heritage assets along the 

Crescent will contribute towards this objective. 

11 Landscape 

and 

townscape 

To maintain and enhance the 

quality and character of 

landscape and townscape 

Ensure that the Framework promotes a design approach 

which maintains and enhances the quality and character 

of the areas landscape and townscape. Development of a 

‘cultural quarter’ around some of the area’s most 

significant heritage assets along the Crescent will 

contribute towards this objective.  

12 Amenity To protect and enhance amenity Ensure that the Framework provides a strong lead for the 

protection of existing and provision of new amenities. 

13 Crime To reduce crime and the fear of 

crime 

Ensure that the Framework incorporates design guidance 

which promotes a reduction in opportunities for crime 

(including secure by design principles), promotes greater 

levels of activity in the area, particularly at ground floor 

level, and promotes safe pedestrian routes and alternative 

car parking provision. 

14 Economic 

health 

To maximise economic growth 

that can be sustained in the long-

term 

Identify ways in which the Framework can enhance 

economic growth, for example through the development of 

the proposed Health & Innovation Zone and associated 

public realm and infrastructure improvements, and in the 

short term, promotes raising the profile of the area to 

commercial occupiers and developers, while in the long 

term, promotes commercial development which takes full 

advantage of the areas strategic location and unique 

qualities to create a truly compelling mixed-use district. 

Page 363



 

 

Page 12 

15 Prosperity To enhance economic inclusion Identify ways in which the Framework can enhance 

economic inclusion and create new employment 

opportunities. The proposed creation of a new Innovation 

District at scale is key to this.  

16 Education To improve the city’s knowledge 

base 

Use the Framework as the basis for promoting existing 

opportunities for knowledge-based development as well as 

providing opportunities for new knowledge-based 

development. The development and success of the 

University of Salford will be key in contributing towards this 

objective.  

17 Housing To ensure that everyone has 

access to a good home that 

meets their needs 

Ensure that the Framework provides for new residential 

development across a range of housing types and tenures 

which will meet a broad range of housing needs.  

18 Accessibility To improve the accessibility of 

facilities and opportunities 

Ensure that the Framework includes provision for facilities 

to serve the existing and new population within the area. 

This includes the development of small scale retail, 

restaurant/ Food & Beverage/ cafe uses and provision of 

leisure facilities across the Framework area. 

19 Community 

cohesion 

To improve community cohesion Given the relatively small scale of the existing community 

and the scale of development that will ultimately take 

place, it will be important to ensure that the existing 

community are fully involved in developing the Framework 

to ensure that any ideas they have for the development of 

the area can be included and any concerns they may have 

about the potentially significant increase in population are 

addressed. This has already begun through the 

Development Framework consultation process and the 

Social Value engagement piece which will inform a new 

Social Value Strategy for the area.  

20 Decision-

making  

To increase involvement in 

decision-making  

Ensure that there has been widespread consultation on 

the draft Framework with local residents, businesses and 

other stakeholders. Establish an on-going dialogue with 

stakeholders as the Framework is implemented and 

throughout the delivery of the Framework over the next 

10+ years. 

21 Image  To improve the perceptions of 

the City 

Ensure that the impressions of the Crescent area are 

transformed through the development of the area as a new 

vibrant, high quality, sustainable quarter within City Centre 

Salford, building upon the area’s existing assets and 

making it somewhere for Salfordians to be proud of.  

 

 

Page 364



 

 

Page 13 

4.1 The findings of the assessment set out in Section 3 demonstrate that the Framework results in positive 

outcomes against the Council’s identified SA objectives.   

4.2 However, the concept of sustainability goes to the heart of the Development Framework and what it is 

seeking to achieve and is enshrined within the vision and objectives (as set out in section 1).  To this 

end, a series of Sustainability Objectives have been developed for the purposes of the Framework, in 

order to guide future development. These are discussed in further detail below.   

  SUSTAINABILITY OBJECTIVES AND DEVELOPMENT PRINCIPLES  

4.3 Flowing from the vision and objectives identified above, are a set of overarching Development Principles 

which have been established in order to ensure high-quality development to deliver this ambitious vision. 

These are set out in Section 5 of the Framework.  

4.4 In July 2019, the Council declared a ‘climate emergency’; this included setting a date of 2038 for carbon 

neutrality in Salford, which matches the target for the whole of the sub-region established in the 5-Year 

Environment Plan for Greater Manchester. To help achieve carbon neutrality by 2038, a target has been 

set in the emerging Local Plan that all new development should be net zero carbon from 2028. 

4.5 In light of this, there are specific sustainability objectives set out within the Development Framework 

which seek to contribute to achieving this aim within the Framework area under the ‘climate change and 

sustainability’ priority.  These are set out below: 

• Net Zero Carbon; To be net zero carbon on construction and in operation; 

• Sustainable Transport; To transition to active and sustainable transport with greater local and 

regional connections; 

• Climate Resilience; To be resilient against the impacts of climate change, adapting to our changing 

world; 

• Sustainable Water Management; To conserve and reuse water onsite and strive towards water 

positive; 

• Zero Waste/ Circular Economy; Eliminating waste and improving resource efficiency through 

circularity; 

• Biodiversity Net Gain; Delivering a net gain in biodiversity, whilst providing high quality green 

spaces; 

• Quality Places; Creating communities that have a strong sense of place and identity, maximise 

shared value, and that delight; 

• Health and Wellbeing; Enhancing health and wellbeing through sustainable placemaking; and 

• Social Value; To have a positive impact on the local community and significantly increasing social 

value. 

4.6 Consideration of how these objectives will be implemented has led to the following Development 

Principles being developed which have been set out within the Development Framework: 

• Promoting Safe and Attractive Opportunities for Active Travel – In order to encourage more 

people to choose to walk and cycle when making local journeys, pedestrian connectivity will be 

enhanced throughout the Framework area together with improvements to the public realm. Special 

attention will be paid to ensuring that routes are safe and secure through the incorporation of 

additional lighting and better legibility.  

• Reducing Reliance on Private Motor Vehicles – A key aspiration is to reduce reliance on private 

motor vehicles and to encourage a model shift toward active travel (walking and cycling) or 

sustainable modes of transport including bus, Metrolink and train. Measures including the de-

4 Development Framework Sustainability Objectives 

Page 365



 

 

Page 14 

engineering of the A6 Crescent, rationalisation of car parking and creation of a new transport gateway 

will be pursued to secure a lower carbon future in the area.  

• Minimising the Need to Travel – In order to minimise the need to the travel and maximise the ability 

to make trips by sustainable modes of transport, higher density development will be directed to the 

most accessible and sustainable locations within the Framework area, subject to other policy 

considerations.  

• Energy Efficient, Low Carbon Design of New Buildings – Developers will be encouraged to 

ensure that new buildings are designed to incorporate a high-performance envelope to minimise heat 

loss/ gain, maximise the use of natural and use low energy lighting systems, and use low temperature 

heating and cooling systems based on heat pumps where practicable.  

• Refurbishment and Re-use of Existing Buildings – Proposals to refurbish or re-use existing 

buildings will be encouraged to reduce energy consumption including through improving the building 

fabric, lighting and heating and ventilation systems and to ensure that technology is used effectively 

to analyse and manage the operational performance of the buildings, subject to other policy 

considerations including heritage interests. 

• Energy Networks - Energy networks could have an important role to play in enhancing energy 

efficiency, particularly around the University campus or denser residential communities. They are 

especially effective at providing heat for developments with high demand (e.g. leisure facilities, 

student accommodation and high density residential) together with existing buildings that may not be 

suitable for retrofit with heat pump systems. Opportunities to deploy phased energy networks in 

clusters to address specific needs should be fully investigated and implemented subject to further 

feasibility and viability.  

• Maximising the Use of Renewable Technologies – Building on the University’s reputation for 

innovation in the built environment, the use of renewable zero carbon technologies, such solar PV 

and heat pumps will be embraced. Developments should look to incorporate appropriate zero/low 

carbon measures to offset energy requirements.  

• Flexibility as Standard – Efforts should be made to futureproof new buildings through design, 

ensuring that spaces are flexible and adaptable, whilst recognising that openness needs to be offset 

by the provision of internal and external private spaces.  

• Energy Management – Innovative solutions to energy management that utilise new and emerging 

technologies will be supported. These may include opportunities for peer-to-peer energy generation 

and storage underpinned by emerging blockchain and novel energy storage technologies.  

• Electric Vehicle Charging Points – Opportunities to enhance the electric vehicle charging 

infrastructure in suitable locations throughout the Framework area will be supported, having regard 

to existing provision in the local area. 

• Whole Life Carbon Assessments – In developing new buildings and infrastructure elements the 

commissioning of whole life carbon assessments will be encouraged. 

• Climate Change Risk and Adaptation Appraisals – In bringing forward development across the 

Framework area, developers will be encouraged to provide Climate Change Risk and Adaptation 

Appraisals to support proposals. 

• Nature-Based Solutions - Nature-based solutions should be prioritised as a means of reducing 

flood risk and reducing urban heat island within the Framework area. 

• Sustainable Urban Drainage (SuDS) – An overarching SuDS Masterplan will be developed for the 

Framework area in order to better utilise raingardens and swales to maximise retention of water on-

site for re-use and to avoid flooding downstream. 

Page 366



 

 

Page 15 

• Delivering Net Gains – New development within the Framework area should deliver net gains in 

natural capital, biodiversity and social return on Investment. 

Page 367



 

 

Page 16 

5.1 This Sustainability Audit has demonstrated that, when assessed against the Council’s emerging SA 

objectives, the implementation of the Development Framework will result in positive impacts across a 

broad range of social, economic and environmental objectives. In all instances, the application of the 

Development Framework would result in impacts that are either the same as, or more positive, than 

those that would be realised under the no change option. 

5.2 Furthermore, the Development Framework goes one step further and identify a series of specific 

objectives relating to sustainability (as set out in Section 4) and development principles which will further 

guide future development of the area over the next 10+ years. 

5 Conclusion 

Page 368



 

 

Page 17 

 

 

  

  

 

 

APPENDICES 

 

Page 369



 

 

Page 18 

No. Theme  Objective  Option 1 – No Development 
Framework 

Option 2 – Development 
Framework Applied 

1 Health To improve physical and mental 

health 

0 ++ 

Comments: Whilst it is difficult to quantify, there is evidence that a poor quality local environment can have a negative impact 

on mental health. At present, parts of the area are characterised by derelict land, heavily used roads and environmentally 

damaging land uses. These undermine its appearance and this unattractive environment has an impact on local perceptions 

of the area and quality of life. Bearing this in mind, the absence of a Development Framework could make it difficult to 

promote development in the area and ensure that such development provides adequate open space and other amenities, 

which would have a negative impact on physical and mental health.  The application of the Development Framework can be 

expected to have a positive impact on physical and mental health through promoting the comprehensive regeneration of the 

area. Encouraging environmental improvements will help create an attractive environment with high quality public realm and 

areas of greenspace. The comprehensive approach to regeneration will bring derelict and empty sites back into use and 

positively raise aspirations across the area.  Where possible, new physical health infrastructure or services (in addition to 

those existing facilities such as the David Lewis playing fields) could also be incorporated. 

Action: Ensure that the Framework is used to promote regeneration and the provision of an attractive and accessible 

environment. Where possible, new physical health infrastructure could be incorporated. 

 

Relevant DF Objectives: 

• Support healthy lifestyles, improved wellbeing and enhanced opportunities to be physically active 

• Enhance the local experience for students and University staff 

• Create opportunity for all and ensure nobody is left behind 

2 Biodiversity, 

flora and fauna 

To protect, enhance and restore 

biodiversity resources 

0 + 

Comments: The application of the Development Framework is likely to have a minor positive impact on biodiversity. The 

comprehensive regeneration of the area will include the development of high quality public realm, a new linear park and 

greening/ landscaping. This will facilitate some new habitat creation, together with the improvement of existing greenspace 

areas such as Peel Park and The Meadows. Measures to improve blue infrastructure including the River Irwell will also 

facilitate new waterside habitat creation. The relevant policies within the emerging Local Plan, the saved policies of the UDP 

and the adopted Nature Conservation and Biodiversity Supplementary Planning Document (2006) would apply under both 

options. These policies promote habitat creation and the incorporation of measures to protect and enhance biodiversity as 

part of new development. It is likely that the scale of the development and the comprehensiveness of approach under the 

application of the Development Framework could realise more positive impacts in terms of supporting these biodiversity 

policies through a holistic joined up approach than the more piecemeal approach to development under the no change option. 

Action: Ensure that important open space, green infrastructure and blue infrastructure (water assets) in the area are 

protected and enhanced. 

 

Relevant DF objectives:  

• Enhance the wealth of existing green assets and significantly increase biodiversity  

• Radically change and enhance existing infrastructure and public realm 

3 Geodiversity To protect, enhance and restore 

geological resources 

  

Comments: It is unlikely that either option would have a significant impact on geological resources. 

4 Soil and land To protect and improve soil and land 

resources 

0 0 

Comments: It is unlikely that either option would have a significant impact on soil and land resources. 

5 Water To protect and enhance water 

resources 

0 0 

Comments: The relevant policies within the emerging Local Plan, the saved policies of the UDP and the adopted 

Sustainable Design and Construction Supplementary Planning Document (2008) would apply under both options. It is 

unlikely that either option would have a significant impact on water resources.  

A Sustainability Audit 

Page 370



 

 

Page 19 

6 Water To minimise the risk and impacts of 

flooding 

? / 0  0 / + 

Comments: The Crescent area lies outside of High Flood Risk Zone 3 but Peel Park, David Lewis Playing Fields, The 

Meadows, parts of the Health & Innovation Zone and parts of the Adelphi Village Zone lie within a Medium Flood Risk Zone 

2 as identified in Salford’s Flood Risk and Development Planning Guidance (2008) (equivalent to the Environment Agency’s 

indicative 1:100 year and 1:1000 year flood risk zones respectively). 

 

National planning policy and guidance on flooding (contained within the NPPF and NPPG) adopts a sequential, risk-based 

approach to determining the suitability of land for development. This approach aims to steer development to areas at the 

lowest probability of flooding in the first instance and only where it can be clearly demonstrated that development cannot be 

located in such areas, should an area within the next zone be considered.  For plan-making, this means that local planning 

authorities (LPAs) must apply a sequential approach to site selection so that development is, as far as reasonably possible, 

located where the risk of flooding (from all sources) is lowest, taking account of climate change and the vulnerability of future 

uses to flood risk. In plan-making this involves applying the ‘Sequential Test’ to Local Plans and, if needed, the ‘Exception 

Test’ to Local Plans.  For decision-taking, where necessary, LPAs also apply the ‘sequential approach’. In decision-taking 

this involves applying the Sequential Test for specific development proposals and, if needed, the Exception Test for specific 

development proposals, to steer development to areas with the lowest probability of flooding. 

 

The Development Framework provides an opportunity to highlight this issue and the solutions required by national and local 

policies although these policies would be applied through the normal development management process in the absence of 

the Development Framework. The positive impact of a Framework is therefore marginal.   

 

Action: Ensure that the framework highlights the flooding issues associated with future development in the area. 

 

Relevant DF objectives:  

• Radically change and enhance existing infrastructure and public realm  

• Enhance the wealth of existing green assets and significantly increase biodiversity  

• Lead the way to carbon neutrality  

 

7 Air To improve air quality 0 + 

Comments: One of the biggest causes of deterioration in air quality in urban areas is traffic. At a city-wide scale (or wider) it 

is likely that neither option would have a significant impact on air quality. At a local level, de-engineering the A6 through traffic 

calming and the associated reduction in levels of traffic along The Crescent (and increased provision for pedestrians and 

cyclists) could significantly improve local air quality. This could deliver positive health impacts for local residents. Should this 

traffic calming and road narrowing encourage a modal shift amongst road users towards increased use of public transport 

(or cycling and walking), this could realise air quality improvements at a wider level.  Other projects such as the improvement 

of Salford Crescent Station as well as potential provision of Metrolink in future years will also encourage modal shift away 

from cars towards public transport and therefore realise a net improvement in air quality in the longer term.  The 

implementation of the traffic calming works and improvements to Salford Crescent Rail Station are not dependant on the 

production and adoption of the Development Framework, but the Framework will promote better co-ordination between the 

projects.  The Framework may also encourage the removal of polluting land uses through the regeneration process, 

potentially resulting in air quality improvements. The inclusion of new pedestrian and cycle routes and improved connectivity 

through the area will also encourage a modal shift, resulting in further improvements to air quality.   

 

Action: Ensure that the Framework includes proposals for a network of cycle and pedestrian routes and helps to co-ordinate 

on-going projects such as the calming of the A6 and improvements to Salford Crescent Station to help promote a modal shift. 

 

Relevant DF objectives:  

• Radically change and enhance existing infrastructure and public realm  

• Enhance the wealth of existing green assets and significantly increase biodiversity  

• Support healthy lifestyles, improved wellbeing and enhanced opportunities to be physically active 

• Lead the way to carbon neutrality  

 

Page 371



 

 

Page 20 

8 Climatic factors To minimise contributions to climate 

change 

0 / + + 

Comments: Planning policy at all levels provides the basis through which new development is encouraged to reduce 

contributions to climate change. Therefore, under both options it is likely that bringing forward new development would 

broadly support this objective; however, the Framework goes further than this and identifies a set of specific sustainability 

objectives.  SCC’s Sustainable Design and Construction Supplementary Planning Document (SPD) (2008) would be used to 

assess new development proposals under both options. This document encourages new development to incorporate 

measures which embrace sustainable construction and energy efficiency. Each of these measures would support the 

objective of reducing contributions to climate change.  However, the urban location of the Crescent area means that 

development here may be more accessible by public transport which has a smaller CO2 footprint than the private car. The 

Framework also provides an opportunity to demonstrate how the Sustainable Design and Construction SPD (2008) may 

apply at a local level. 

 

Action: Ensure that the Development Framework incorporates the provisions of the Sustainable Design and Construction 

SPD (2008) and shows how they could apply at the local level as a minimum. Furthermore, the Framework identifies a set 

of sustainability objectives for the Framework area which are embedded into the Framework in order to contribute to SCC’s 

carbon neutrality/ net zero carbon objectives and to mitigate climate change. 

 

Relevant DF objectives:  

• Radically change and enhance existing infrastructure and public realm  

• Lead the way to carbon neutrality  

• Enhance the wealth of existing green assets and significantly increase biodiversity  

9 Material assets To minimise the use of non-renewable 

resources 

0 / + + 

Comments: Planning policy at all levels provides the basis through which new development is encouraged to minimise the 

use of non-renewable resources, and therefore under both options it is likely that bringing forward new development in the 

area would broadly support this objective; however, the Framework goes further than this and identifies a set of specific 

sustainability objectives including those relating to non-renewable resources specifically.  SCC’s Sustainable Design and 

Construction SPD (2008) would also be used to assess new development proposals under both options and would encourage 

the incorporation of measures which minimise the use of non-renewable resources. The Framework also provides an 

opportunity to demonstrate how the Sustainable Design and Construction SPD (2008) may apply at a local level. 

 

Action: Ensure that the Development Framework incorporates the provisions of the Sustainable Design and Construction 

SPD (2008) and shows how they could apply at the local level. Furthermore, the Framework encourages the use of renewable 

technologies, including renewable zero carbon technologies, such solar PV and heat pumps and future developments shall 

look to incorporate appropriate zero/ low carbon measures to offset energy requirements. 

 

Relevant DF objectives:  

• Radically change and enhance existing infrastructure and public realm  

• Lead the way to carbon neutrality  

• Enhance the wealth of existing green assets and significantly increase biodiversity  

10 Cultural and 

built heritage 

To protect, enhance, and enable the 

appreciation of, the city’s heritage 

0 / + + 

Comments: The Development Framework area falls within the Crescent Conservation Area to the south and partially within 

the Adelphi/Bexley Conservation Area to the south-east.  SCC has prepared Conservation Area Appraisals to describe the 

character of each Area respectively. In addition to this, the policies within the UDP and emerging Local Plan provide strong 

protection for the city’s heritage, including conservation areas. Within this context, under both options, future development in 

this area is likely to have a neutral impact on the realisation of this objective.  However, the comprehensive nature of 

redevelopment that would be realised through the application of the Development Framework could deliver a more positive 

impact in terms of this objective, through creating a unified townscape that effectively responds to the area’s heritage. By 

contrast, a more piecemeal approach to development under the no change option is unlikely to deliver such a high quality 

built environment. Therefore Option 2 has a positive benefit.  

 

Page 372



 

 

Page 21 

Action: Ensure that the Framework promotes a unified townscape in both of the Conservation Areas (and throughout the 

rest of the area) which responds to the Crescent’s heritage. 

 

Relevant DF objectives:  

• Create a place with culture at its heart  

• Radically change and enhance existing infrastructure and public realm  

• Respond to and integrate with the local communities  

• Conserving and enhancing the area’s unique historic environment  

11 Landscape and 

townscape 

To maintain and enhance the quality 

and character of landscape and 

townscape 

0 / + ++ 

Comments: Not producing a Development Framework will mean that achieving this objective would rely on the application 

of the saved UDP and emerging Local Plan design policies which require a high standard of design in all new development 

– noting that these policies are supplemented by SPDs relating to design including the Design SPD - ‘Shaping Salford’ (2008) 

and Shaping Salford’s spaces and places – Public Realm Handbook (2009).  However, a Development Framework would 

provide the basis for a comprehensive approach to redevelopment which will deliver high quality urban design in terms of 

townscape and public realm that reflect the area’s important location and character. This comprehensive approach would 

deliver a more unified townscape as opposed to incremental development on a piecemeal basis and as a result would result 

in a major positive impact. 

 

Action: Ensure that the Framework requires a design approach which maintains and enhances the quality and character of 

the landscape and townscape. 

 

Relevant DF objectives:  

• Enhance the local experience for students and University staff 

• Radically change and enhance existing infrastructure and public realm  

• Provide high quality homes and a mix of tenures  

• Conserving and enhancing the area’s unique historic environment  

• Support healthy lifestyles and improved wellbeing 

 

12 Amenity To protect and enhance amenity 0 / + ++ 

Comments: The area currently suffers from poor levels of amenity for its existing resident and business communities, with 

poor environmental quality, high levels of dereliction and vacancy, underused open space, traffic congestion and associated 

air pollution and an undersupply of local retail and community facilities. Without a comprehensive approach to regeneration, 

this situation is unlikely to significantly change.  The Development Framework would have a strong positive impact on amenity 

through ensuring a comprehensive approach to regeneration which would facilitate the creation of a sustainable mixed 

community with a range of facilities and local services.  Without a Development Framework, regeneration of the area would 

rely on individual planning applications without the lead that a Framework could provide in ensuring a range of facilities are 

provided.   

 

Action: Ensure that the Framework promotes the development of new and protection of existing amenities. 

 

Relevant DF objectives:  

• Enhance the local experience for students and University staff 

• Create opportunity for all and ensure nobody is left behind  

• Radically change and enhance existing infrastructure and public realm  

• Enhance the wealth of existing green assets and significantly increase biodiversity  

• Respond to and integrate with the local communities  

• Conserving and enhancing the area’s unique historic environment  

• Support healthy lifestyles, improved wellbeing and enhanced opportunities to be physically active 

13 Crime To reduce crime and the fear of crime - + 

Page 373



 

 

Page 22 

Comments: Whilst some progress has been made in recent years, the levels of dereliction and vacancy within the area, in 

combination with the frequency of vandalism of vacant/derelict properties undermine perceptions of the area. The amount of 

surface level parking also makes the area a hotspot for vehicle related crime.  The no change option is likely to have a 

negative impact on this objective as there is a risk that crime levels and perceptions of crime may worsen.  A Development 

Framework would facilitate the comprehensive regeneration of the area and help ensure areas of dereliction and vacancy 

would be replaced with high quality new development. In urban design terms, the Framework will help ensure that 

development creates active frontages with high levels of overlooking of the street to provide natural surveillance.  

Redevelopment of the vacant sites and replacement of surface car parking with secure alternative car parking may also help 

reduce perceived and actual levels of crime. Such proposals would both improve the physical image of the area and also 

bring in significantly greater levels of activity.  New mixed-use development will bring activity throughout the day and evening 

with business uses, residential accommodation, and evening economy uses.  Cumulatively, the impact of these 

improvements will serve to significantly improve perceptions of safety within the area and reduce the opportunities for criminal 

activity.   

 

Action: Ensure that the Framework incorporates guidance on reducing opportunities for crime, creates greater levels of 

activity in the area and promotes safe alternative car parking provision. 

 

Relevant DF objectives:  

• Support and enhance the future development of the University  

• Enhance the local experience for students and University staff 

• Radically change and enhance existing infrastructure and public realm  

• Respond to and integrate with the local communities  

14 Economic 

health 

To maximise economic growth that 

can be sustained in the long-term 

0 / - ++ 

Comments: There is significant demand for the development of high quality employment opportunities associated with the 

University of Salford and within the Health & Innovation Zone which would attract skilled and creative workers, innovation 

firms, researchers and investors. This area forms part of Salford’s ‘Innovation Triangle’ alongside MediaCityUK and Salford 

Royal Hospital NHS Trust and has potential to accommodate larger scale development proposals. In the short term, there is 

a need to raise the profile of the area, particularly the existing Salford Innovation Park and Forum but in the medium to long 

term, the Development Framework provides a vehicle to initiate and promote the commercial development of the area, 

alongside the University’s Industrial Collaboration Strategy (ICS), to encourage industry partnership schemes to deliver a 

truly compelling mixed-use district which takes full advantage of its location. The Framework will also promote environmental 

improvements and new public realm which will help to attract potential investors. Without the Framework it is likely that it will 

be difficult to attract investors and ensure that identified market demands are met. There is a risk that without the 

Development Framework, the current low value commercial uses in the Frederick Road area and in the area to the south of 

the A6 will be perpetuated through new development, or that parts of the area will become solely residential.  

 

Action: Identify ways in which the Framework can enhance economic growth, for example through the development of the 

proposed Health & Innovation Zone and associated public realm and infrastructure improvements and in the short term 

promotes raising the profile of the area to commercial occupiers and developers, while in the long term promotes commercial 

development which takes full advantage of the areas strategic location and unique qualities to create a truly compelling 

mixed-use district. 

 

Relevant DF objectives:  

• Support and enhance the future development of the University  

• Generate high quality employment and create a truly unique and compelling innovation district  

• Create opportunity for all and ensure nobody is left behind  

• Radically change and enhance existing infrastructure and public realm  

• Provide high quality homes and a mix of tenures  

• Enhance the wealth of existing green assets and significantly increase biodiversity  

• Respond to and integrate with the local communities  

• Conserving and enhancing the area’s unique historic environment  

• Support healthy lifestyles and improved wellbeing 

 

Page 374



 

 

Page 23 

15 Prosperity To enhance economic inclusion ? + 

Comments: The application of the Development Framework to promote commercial uses as part of the mixed-use 

development of the area can be expected to deliver positive benefits in terms of enhancing economic inclusion.  The 

promotion and comprehensive regeneration of the area could deliver significant new employment opportunities. The council 

will work together with local communities to ensure that they are able to access new employment opportunities created in 

the area. This will involve ensuring the area is physically accessible to nearby communities.   

 

Action: Identify ways in which the Development Framework can enhance economic inclusion. 

 

Relevant DF objectives:  

• Create opportunity for all and ensure nobody is left behind  

• Generate high quality employment and create a truly unique and compelling innovation district  

• Radically change and enhance existing infrastructure and public realm  

• Provide high quality homes and a mix of tenures  

• Respond to and integrate with the local communities  

• Conserving and enhancing the area’s unique historic environment  

 

16 Education To improve the city’s knowledge base 0 + 

Comments: Saved UDP Policy E3 identifies an ‘Arc of Opportunity’ for the development of a Knowledge Capital; this will 

consist of a cluster of knowledge-based employment, education related uses, cultural facilities and other complementary 

uses to be developed around the University of Salford and linking through to the universities within the city of Manchester. 

The Crescent area lies at the heart of the ‘Knowledge Capital Arc of Opportunity’.  Policy AP1 and AP4 of the emerging Local 

Plan also identify the University of Salford and the surrounding area as a key location for knowledge-based businesses as 

part of the wider ‘Innovation Triangle’.  To date, the area has failed to fully capitalise on this opportunity. The no change option 

is unlikely to see this situation change. The implementation of the Development Framework will facilitate the comprehensive 

regeneration of the area, including a significant element of new employment floorspace and job opportunities through the 

creation of a new Innovation District of scale. This will enable the Crescent area to develop as an integral part of City Centre 

Salford’s knowledge-based economy and the Framework can expand upon and provide a vehicle for the realisation of this 

objective. The Development Framework therefore has the potential to make a significant contribution to developing the city’s 

knowledge-based economy. 

 

Action: Use the Framework as the basis for promoting existing opportunities for knowledge-based development.  

 

Relevant DF objectives:  

• Support and enhance the future development of the University  

• Enhance the local experience for students and University staff 

• Create opportunity for all and ensure nobody is left behind  

• Respond to and integrate with the local communities  

17 Housing To ensure that everyone has access 

to a good home that meets their 

needs 

0 + 

Comments: The Development Framework will support the creation of a sustainable mixed community through the provision 

of a range of housing types and tenures, providing housing choice to existing and new residents.  

 

Action: The Framework needs to identify suitable housing types which will meet a broad range of housing needs.  

 

Relevant DF objectives:  

• Provide high quality homes and a mix of tenures  

• Enhance the local experience for students and University staff 

• Create opportunity for all and ensure nobody is left behind  

• Respond to and integrate with the local communities  

Page 375



 

 

Page 24 

18 Accessibility To improve the accessibility of 

facilities and opportunities 

0 ++ 

Comments: One of the key problems that the area currently faces is a lack of local facilities. While the area is not identified 

as being suitable for large scale retail developments, there may be opportunities to promote small scale retail facilities and 

food and beverage outlets to serve the local area. There may also be opportunities to provide new leisure facilities in 

association with the University.  A Development Framework would provide a suitable vehicle to promote the development of 

amenities as part of the comprehensive redevelopment of the area. This will improve accessibility to facilities and 

opportunities for both existing and new residents and businesses. It is unclear whether similar opportunities would be created 

without the Development Framework.   

 

Action: Ensure that the Framework includes provision for facilities to serve the existing and new local population within the 

area. This might include the development of small scale retail, restaurant/Food & Beverage/cafe uses and provision of leisure 

facilities across the Framework area. 

 

Relevant DF objectives:  

• Create opportunity for all and ensure nobody is left behind  

• Support and enhance the future development of the University  

• Enhance the local experience for students and University staff 

• Respond to and integrate with the local communities  

• Support healthy lifestyles, improved wellbeing and opportunities to be physically active 

19 Community 

cohesion 

To improve community cohesion 0 / - 0 / + 

Comments: Communities within the Framework area are small and dispersed throughout the area. Elsewhere in Salford, 

new development has become a source of tension within existing communities where new residential development fails to 

integrate with the existing community. Without the guidance provided by a Development Framework, new piecemeal 

development may replicate this situation in the Framework area.  The implementation of the Development Framework will 

facilitate the comprehensive regeneration of the area and will ensure that new development makes a positive contribution to 

the wider area, in terms of, for example, environmental and public realm improvements, attracting new local services and 

facilities, and facilitating the development of a range of housing types. It also provides an opportunity for communities to be 

involved in the future planning of their area. This will support community cohesion and help to prevent the polarisation of the 

area’s existing communities by ensuring that there are tangible regeneration benefits in which all can share.  

 

Action: Given the relatively small scale of the existing community and the scale of development that will ultimately take 

place, it will be important to ensure that the existing community are fully involved in developing the Framework to ensure that 

any ideas they have for the development of the area can be included and any concerns they may have about the potentially 

significant increase in population are addressed. This has already begun through the Development Framework consultation 

process and the Social Value engagement piece which is now underway. 

 

Relevant DF objectives:  

• Respond to and integrate with the local communities  

• Create opportunity for all and ensure nobody is left behind  

• Create a place with culture at its heart  

• Generate high quality employment and create a truly unique and compelling innovation district  

• Radically change and enhance existing infrastructure and public realm  

• Provide high quality homes and a mix of tenures  

• Conserving and enhancing the area’s unique historic environment  

20 Decision-

making  

To increase involvement in decision-

making  

- + 

Page 376



 

 

Page 25 

Comments: The Development Framework consultation process provided opportunities for the engagement of residents, 

businesses and other stakeholders in establishing the vision and direction for change in the area. This will be an ongoing 

and iterative process as the Development Framework is implemented. Without a Development Framework, local residents 

and businesses would only be consulted on planning applications submitted within the area on a piecemeal basis, or via pre-

application consultation (where this is undertaken) and therefore there would be no mechanism for them to meaningfully 

express their wider aspirations and desires for the future of their area. Consultation on the Development Framework presents 

this opportunity and will therefore realise this objective.  

 

Action: Ensure that there has been widespread consultation on the draft Framework with local residents, businesses and 

other stakeholders. Establish an on-going dialogue with stakeholders as the Framework is implemented and throughout the 

delivery of the Framework over the next 10+ years. 

Relevant DF objectives:  

• Respond to and integrate with the local communities  

• Create opportunity for all and ensure nobody is left behind  

21 Image  To improve the perceptions of the City - ++ 

Comments: The Crescent area forms the gateway to City Centre Salford and the University and is one of the most high-

profile locations within the city. The conditions within some parts of the area currently present a negative impression of City 

Centre Salford.  The comprehensive regeneration of the area will deliver a step-change in the image of the area, setting a 

benchmark for the high standards of urban design that City Centre Salford deserves.  The implementation of the Development 

Framework offers the potential to transform perceptions of the Crescent area, and perceptions of Salford more generally. A 

comprehensive approach to regeneration would deliver a vibrant, high quality new quarter and the scale of the transformation 

would demonstrate that Salford is ‘open for business’ and that its transformation is well under way.  Under the no change 

option, it is unlikely that the present situation would significantly improve through smaller scale incremental development that 

would fail to realise the necessary step-change required. 

  

Action: Ensure that the image of the Crescent area is transformed through the promotion of the area as a new vibrant high 

quality quarter. Ensure that the Framework promotes the high quality of development that is expected in the area and ensure 

that this is enforced throughout the life of the document. 

 

Relevant DF objectives:  

• Support and enhance the future development of the University  

• Enhance the local experience for students and University staff 

• Create opportunity for all and ensure nobody is left behind  

• Create a place with culture at its heart  

• Generate high quality employment and create a truly unique and compelling innovation district  

• Radically change and enhance existing infrastructure and public realm  

• Provide high quality homes and a mix of tenures  

• Lead the way to carbon neutrality  

• Enhance the wealth of existing green assets and significantly increase biodiversity  

• Respond to and integrate with the local communities  

• Conserving and enhancing the area’s unique historic environment  

• Support healthy lifestyles and improved wellbeing 

 

Page 377



This page is intentionally left blank



 1 

Part 1: Open to the Public – Item No. 

 
 

REPORT OF THE STRATEGIC DIRECTOR PLACE 

 
 

TO THE CITY MAYOR’S PROPERTY AND REGENERATION BRIEFING  
25th January 2021 

 

ORDSALL RESIDENTIAL DEVELOPMENT SITES - REVIEW OF DEVELOPER 
PROPOSALS AND COMPARISON AGAINST COUNCIL SELF BUILD OPTION  

 

RECOMMENDATIONS: 

 
The City Mayor is recommended to: 
 
Note the proposals detailed below in the body of this report and on the detailed terms 
set out in an accompanying Part 2 report for approval elsewhere on the agenda. 
 

1. Note the outcome of the review of developer submissions received from 
interested parties for the Ordsall residential development sites; 
 

2. Note the outcome of the advertising of the intention to dispose of areas of public 
open space under Section 123(1), (2a) of the Local Government Act 1972, if the 
sites are to be offered for sale/development; 
 

3. Note the conclusions of the financial review of the proposed income-strip 
delivery models received in comparison with a Council self-delivery option; 
 

4. Support the recommendation to proceed with a Council/Derive “self-build” 
option following the comparison of that option against the submitted proposals 
as detailed in the Part 2 report; 
 

5. If a “sale/development” to a third party is preferred, to shortlist three bids as a 
basis for going back to those parties seeking best and final offers based on the 
Council’s revised brief for the sites; and 

 
6. Authorise officers to revert back to the bidders to advise them of the proposed 

way forward. 
 

 
  

Page 379

Agenda Item 4a



 2 

EXECUTIVE SUMMARY: 

 
Four proposed residential development sites in Ordsall, identified on the plan at 
Appendix A, were marketed for sale and six bid submissions have been received which 
are detailed within the Part 2 report.   
 
Following scoring of the bids, there are three bidders, which when considering the 
indicative design, financial model and tenure flexibility required by the Council, score 
above the rest. 
  
In taking the sites to the market the Council made it clear to bidders that it would 
consider all bids against a potential Council “self-build” option. That has been 
undertaken, with both internal and external financial input, the detail of which is set out 
within the report. 
 
That financial analysis identifies that a “self-build” option could represent the best value 
for money option for the Council, subject to seeking to maximise Homes England and 
other available grant opportunities, and that such an approach provides the opportunity 
to deliver significant numbers of properties as part of the Derive Housing Company 
ambitions. The report provides detailed analysis as to why this conclusion has been 
reached. The report also points out some of the potential challenges and issues 
associated with a self-build approach. 
 
The City Mayor is asked to support the Council/Derive “self-build” option, subject to the 
preparation of a detailed business case. If the above recommendation is not supported 
and a decision is taken to progress with a third party it is recommended that three bids 
are shortlisted as a basis for going back to those parties seeking best and final offers 
based on the Council’s revised brief for the sites.  
 
The report also details that the sites have been advertised as a potential disposal of 
public open space, with no formal objections having been received. 
 

 

BACKGROUND DOCUMENTS: Marketing brief 

 

KEY DECISION: Not at this stage

 
 
1.0 BACKGROUND 

 
1.1 The four development plots on the Ordsall estate were marketed in April/May 

2020 with a brief to seek innovative proposals for the delivery of a high quality 
mixed-tenure development that would create a legacy/return for the Council 
rather than just generating a simple land receipt. A relatively high density of 
development of 400 to 500 units was envisaged across the four sites, based on 
indicative site layouts that had previously been under discussion with previous 
potential developer partners on the sites.  

Page 380



 3 

 
1.2 The marketing prospectus suggested that options for delivery could include: 
 

 innovative development partner delivery models; 

 the Council retaining units on completion; 

 lease-wrap/income-strip models; 

 or a hybrid of approaches. 
 
1.3 The prospectus provided that all bids would be scored against a weighting 

system. The weighting system was provided to enable the Council to 
 take into consideration other elements of the bid submission rather than 
 solely the price. The chosen weighting system provided that: 

 

 Experience & track record would attract 10% of bid weighting; 

 Scheme proposals, sustainability and tenure mix 25% weighting; 

 Financial proposition & delivery model 25% weighting; 

 Flexibility to meet tenure and financial requirements 20% weighting; 

 Social & community value 20% weighting.   
  
1.4 The closing date for bid submissions was 29th May 2020 and a total of 6 bids 

were received.  
 

2.0      DETAILS 
 

2.1 The potential disposal of areas of public open space has been advertised 
without any representations being received. 

 
2.2 Given the range of delivery options and supporting information submitted the 

review process has not been straightforward and comparison between delivery 
models with widely varying development densities and tenure mixes has been 
challenging. In addition, various planning and design issues have been raised 
by officers during the bid review process that would need addressing as part of 
any further dialogue with shortlisted bidders and may impact on eventual 
development densities and receivable capital receipt.    

 
2.3 A summary of the bid submissions is provided in the Part 2 report.  
 
3.0 SCORING AND MODERATION 
 
3.1 Bid submissions have been reviewed against the weighting/scoring criteria set 

out in 1.3 above, with input sought from the Council’s Planning (Development 
Control, Spatial Strategy and Sustainability), Regeneration, Housing Strategy 
and Finance teams. After scoring and moderation the submissions have been 
ranked 1 to 6, with the detailed scoring matrix supporting the ranking contained 
in the Part 2 report.  
 

3.2 The assessment has identified three stand out bids and our recommendation 
 would be to shortlist those three developers for further detailed dialogue if the 
 decision is made to proceed with a developer partner. 
 

Page 381



 4 

3.3 If a decision to proceed with shortlisting is made, the three shortlisted bidders 
will be provided with initial planning feedback on their respective schemes and 
further guidance on anticipated site densities and tenure mix on which to base 
their updated submission. The bidders will be asked to consider the comments 
and proceed with a pre-planning application. Once the pre-planning application 
process is complete the shortlisted bidders will be asked to submit their best 
and final offers, subject to contract, and these will be the subject of a further 
report.  
 

3.4 By requiring shortlisted bidders to take on board initial planning comments on 
their respective schemes and provide further guidance from Planning and 
Housing Strategy on acceptable site densities and tenure mix, it is anticipated 
that comparison between shortlisted bid submissions should be more 
straightforward than experienced during this initial review stage. 

 
3.5 Shortlisted bidders would be asked to share their social value proposals for the 

project at the next stage of the selection process.  Using the agreed themes, 
outcomes and measures will allow us to evaluate bidders proposals on a 
consistent basis and these proposals should form part of any resulting 
Development Agreement or build agreement with the selected party to 
safeguard the delivery of social impact, with progress to be reported through the 
Social Value Portal.   

 
4.0 COUNCIL SELF-DELIVERY CONSIDERATION  
 
4.1 The Ordsall sites marketing prospectus highlighted to prospective bidders that 

the Council would benchmark development proposals against a self-delivered 
scheme to test submissions from a best value perspective. Whilst some initial 
modelling was undertaken internally, given the specialist nature of the matter 
and the scale of the Council’s housing delivery aspirations it was deemed 
prudent to seek some external financial advice from a specialist consultant on 
the self-delivery funding considerations.  

 
4.2 The underlying objective of the analysis was to identify, at a high but robust 

level, whether there was any potential financial advantage to the Council in 
pursuing “self-delivery” by securing debt finance itself and appointing a private 
sector developer/construction partner on a design and build type basis.  

 
4.3 The model also assumes that an additional resource capacity is required by the 

Council to enable it to initiate and deliver the development management and 
client management functions, either directly or indirectly. An allowance of a sum 
as detailed in the accompanying Part 2 Report has been adopted over the 
period of the development, however it is expected that this sum could also 
support overheads on other Council housing delivery schemes if delivered as 
part of a combined programme. 

 
4.4 The conclusion of the financial review is consistent, in that the Council should 

be able to secure a better value for money outcome through a self-delivery 
approach rather than through the arrangements as set out within the bids, 
subject to the form of the scheme tenure, maximising any available Home 

Page 382



 5 

England grant funding and utilising other available funding sources such as 
Brownfield land remediation allocation. This approach would allow the Council 
to control the tenure mix and specification of construction and use its covenant 
strength to secure the most advantageous interest rates for the required 
financing of the scheme in a similar way to that used in recent years to support 
commercial investment in Central Salford. 

 
4.5 This conclusion is predominantly driven by the Council being able to achieve a 

lower cost of funding, than through a developer partner.   
 
4.6 Full details of the financial review and the assumptions adopted are provided in 

the accompanying Part 2 report.   
 
4.7 Whilst the above conclusion and suggested way forward is consistent with 
 the strategy for the Council to proactively self-deliver housing within the 
 City, there are additional matters that need to be considered in coming to a 
 decision on a self-build way forward; these factors are outlined in the Part 2 
 report.  
 
5.0 SELF DELIVERY OPTION – Wider considerations 
 
5.1 To support the Council’s drive and ambition to deliver new affordable housing 

at scale, Property Services have undertaken a high-level review of the 
authority’s existing land holding to better understand the overall tone of potential 
capacity to self-deliver that new housing. 

 
5.2 The Council has sold significant land assets over the last 20 years and its 

residual asset base is therefore much diminished. Prime opportunities are 
limited in number, and our review has had, by necessity, to focus on mainly 
smaller sites that are likely to be more problematical and less cost effective to 
bring forward for development.   

 
5.3 In addition to the housing schemes already being progressed we have identified 

all non-operational Council land assets of 0.25 acres or above that we consider 
have housing development potential. The assessment has been based on 
limited sifting parameters which considered location, access and site 
orientation. We have discounted those sites that have significant known 
development constraints, for example flood risk, that we believe renders them 
undevelopable in the short to medium term. 

 
5.4 Land assets that are either committed disposals or at an advanced stage in 

negotiations have also been discounted.  
 
5.5 Our review has indicated a potential housing land supply that could deliver an 

additional circa 2,100 homes across 40 site locations.  
 
5.6 We now need to undertake detailed due diligence (title, planning, GI viability 

assessment) on the sites identified to further refine which may, or may not be, 
feasible development sites. We would envisage actual delivery potential to be 

Page 383



 6 

significantly lower than the headline housing capacity figures suggested, and it 
could realistically fall between 1,200 and 1,500 homes.   

 
5.7 From those opportunities identified approximately 800 homes would be 

delivered in two locations, Ordsall (this site) being one of them. This reflects the 
importance of the Ordsall sites in providing the opportunity to help directly 
deliver units that the Council/Derive would own.  

 
6.0 CONCLUSION & NEXT STEPS 
 
6.1 Our approach to exposing the Ordsall sites to the market to explore the “art of 

the possible” on the delivery of new housing has been the subject of 
considerable market interest that has generated some interesting and thought-
provoking proposals. It has required a complicated technical evaluation exercise 
to assess those bids and to consider the bids against a Council self-build 
scenario. It has highlighted that the Ordsall sites represent a significant 
opportunity for the Council as a self-delivery project and has greatly assisted 
the wider thinking around city wide strategic housing delivery. 

 
6.2 The analysis of the bids against a Council self-build option concludes that a 

Council self-build option is the preferred and likely to be  the most cost effective 
way forward using anticipated available funding sources, however given the 
considerations set out in detail in the Part 2 report the City Mayor will need to 
determine whether to proceed with the recommended Council/Derive “self-
build” option or progress with the “sale/development” of the sites to a third party 
and to shortlist three bidders if that is the preferred option.  

 
6.3 The Part 2 report and appendices set out in full the reasoning as to why a self-

build option is the preferred way forward. 
 
6.4 If the City Mayor supports the “self-build” way forward officers will start to work 

up detailed proposals for further consideration with a view to presenting a 
business case for the self-delivery option at the earliest opportunity. 

 
6.5 If the City Mayor does not support a self-delivery approach, preferring to 

proceed with a developer partner solution, officers will progress that approach 
by proceeding to enter into further dialogue with the proposed three shortlisted 
bidders. 

 

KEY COUNCIL POLICIES:  

Council’s capital receipt programme, Regeneration, Housing. 

 

EQUALITY IMPACT ASSESSMENT AND IMPLICATIONS: Not applicable 

 

ASSESSMENT OF RISK: Medium 

 

Page 384



 7 

LEGAL IMPLICATIONS Supplied by:  Jon Paramor, Deputy Head of Property, 
Shared Legal Service 
 
In accordance with the provisions of Section 123 (2) of the Local Government Act 
1972, a disposal by either of the two options, will have to be at a consideration that is 
not less than the best that can reasonably be obtained.   

 

FINANCIAL IMPLICATIONS Supplied by: Chris Mee Strategic Finance Manager 
Ext 0434 

 
Whilst the proposals used in the comparison with a council self-delivery model differ 
in tenure mix and numbers, consistent modelling assumptions have been used in this 
analysis (as set out in the Part 2 report). This has demonstrated that a council self-
delivery model would potentially offer better value for money / return to the council in 
financial terms. However, members should also be aware of the significant capacity / 
resourcing which would be required to deliver these proposals (alongside existing 
commitments) and risks associated with delivery that would be passed to the 
successful bidder when considering whether to go for a self-delivery model.        

 

PROCUREMENT IMPLICATIONS Supplied by: Richard Purcell, Principal Solicitor, 
Shared Legal Service 

 
A competitive bidding process has been undertaken following the advertisement as a 
development opportunity on the Council's website and notification of the opportunity 
to a number of developers/agents/consultants. Bids have been evaluated and scored 
on the basis of the evaluation criteria made known and disclosed to bidders prior to 
bidding. 
 
If a development partner is to be selected, a robust form of development agreement, 
giving the Council suitable rights, remedies and protections, will be developed, 
negotiated and agreed with the successful bidder. 
 

HR IMPLICATIONS Supplied by: Not applicable 

 

 
MEMBER COMMENTS: Not sought at this stage. 

 

CLIMATE CHANGE IMPLICATIONS Supplied by: Mike Hemingway x3209 

 
Sustainability issues considered during scoring process.   

 

Page 385



 8 

OTHER DIRECTORATES CONSULTED: Regeneration, Planning, Housing Strategy, 
Finance. 

 

CONTACT OFFICER: John Nugent   TEL NO: 779 6072 

 

WARDS TO WHICH REPORT RELATES: Ordsall 

 
 
 
 
 
  

Page 386



 9 

APPENDIX A: SITE  
 
 
 

Page 387



This page is intentionally left blank



L Twr

L Twr

HULTON STREET

L Twr

L Twr

PLACE

14

Juniper House

1 to 31

1
7

8

Bowling Green

2

27

COLLINGBURN AVENUE

HULTON STREET

Playground

5
3

8

Ordsall Park

29.6m

39

90

1

19

1
1

W
E

S
T

 C
R

A
V

E
N

 S
T

R
E

E
T

2

Playground

29

NAPIER GREEN

1
4

1
0

2
6

47

41

3
4

35

4
9

PHOEBE STREET

ESS

Posts

GREENWOOD TERRACE

H
o

lli
e
s
 L

a
n

e

Posts
1

11
15

19

16
32

2
18

1
5
 t
o
 2

5
 (

o
d
d
)

18

12

2

31
1

1
4
 to

 2
4
 (e

ve
n
)

2
 to

 1
2
 (e

v
e

n
)

H
o

ll i
e

s 
L

a
n

e

1
 t
o
 1

1
 (
o

d
d

)

15
17

11
19

3
27

29

Posts

C
O

O
K

E
 P

L
A

C
E

31

25
21 23

37 39

45 47

1
1

1
5

2
3

1
5

2
5

33 35

41 43

49 51

HULTON SQUARE

Agate Mews

3
5
 t
o
 5

7

2

12

3
2

1
6

3
4
 to

 3
8

1
8
 t
o
 2

8

31

15

2

1

3
5

29

3

23
5

21

1117

25

1
4

33

1
6

3
7

1
9

2
9

2

92 to 106

1 to 31

47

11

1

ST

32

1

452

17

30

5

46

1 to 12

20

20

18

12

1
7

8

10

2
2

40

2
7

24

46

39

14

101

15

33

16

11

1
8

15

3
8

23

16

2

B
U

C
K
F
IE

LD
 A

V
E
N

U
E

10

7

18

C
LE

M
E
N
T'S

 D
R
IVE

30

25

10

26.6m

11

Rectory

31

21

2
6

18

49

16

38

WEST PARK STREET

W
IN

D
M

IL
L 

AV
EN

U
E

7

C
O

L
M

A
N

 G
A

R
D

E
N

S

Brighton Court

15

28

22

37

3
5

14

El Sub Sta

G
R

O
V

E
S

 A
V

E
N

U
E

3
5

19

27

1

The Parish Church

of

St Clement

Sub Sta

W
YATT A

VE
N
U
E

1
5

23

1
1

Warehouse

Warehouse

1
8

25

W
O

D
E

N
'S

 A
V

E
N

U
E

30.7m

Court

15

1

ROBERT HALL STREET

Posts

1
6

11

1
7

ORDSALL LANE

2

O
L
D

F
IE

L
D

 R
O

A
D

Depot

17

Warehouse

27.0m

6

27.1m

TCBs

Warehouse

Carmel

3

Mount

2
6

11

Warehouse

5

B
R

A
M

B
L
E

 A
V

E
N

U
E

1

223

221

El

22

3

1

2

7

2

El Sub Sta

M
O

U
N

T
 C

A
R

M
E

L
 C

R
E

S

1

WHIMBERRY CLOSE

10

2
0

WEST PARK STREET

1
 to

 3
3

Works
2

8

12
10

Youth Centre

W
ORRALL S

TREET1a
 to

 4
9a

23
2

2
5

2
7

3
6

3
7

5
5

4
3

5
3

4
1

3
4

3
5

4

Welcome

Inn
(PH)

3

Woden Stree

27.2m

EVERARD STREET

W
O

D
EN STREET

Foot Bridg

River Ir
well

D
Y

E
R

 S
T
R

E
E

T

Mill

7

5

Warehouse

Gresham

Warehouse

Renolds House

Slater House

El Sub Sta

Steele House

Posts

CR

Boro C
onst &

 M
et D

ist B
dy

Moorin
g P

ost
16

33

1

12

6

2

1
6

4

1
0

29.3m

5

1

1

PHOEBE STREET

3
8

31

25

7

19

3
5

27

26

2

E
l 
S

u
b
 S

ta

Primary School

9

RC Church

LB

1
1

1
5

M
A

Y
F

L
O

W
E

R
 A

V
E

N
U

E

7

St Joseph's

1

1
21

St Joseph's RC

1

10

8

RYALL AVENUE SOUTH

20

23

15

Presby

9

1

2
9

K
N

O
W

S
L
E

Y
 A

V
E

N
U

E 1
2

2
6

P
H

O
E

B
E

 S
T

R
E

E
T

42

24

1
0

2
1

18

17

R
Y

A
L
L

 A
V

E
N

U
E

45

11

3
5

TCBs

28

L
E

D
B

R
O

O
K

E
 C

L
O

S
E

36

Pond

Primrose Hill

and Childrens Centre

Community Primary School

Health Centre

3
3

4
9

2
3

Croydon Court

Club

21

6

5
9

87

11

M
a

jo
r 

W
a
lk

1
5
0

R
U

D
M

A
N

 D
R

IV
E

10

95

R
E

G
E

N
T

 S
Q

U
A

R
E

2

TATTON STREET

2
3

1 to 12

B
E

L
F

O
R

T
 D

R
IV

E

99

ROBERT HALL STREET

1
6

0

1
6

87

1

2
6

4
1

B
R

O
W

F
IE

L
D

 A
V

E
N

U
E

2

26

77

Church

1
6

KING EDWARD STREET

3
8

5

2
6

4

77

1
6

2

6

R
E

G
E

N
T
 S

Q
U

A
R

E

C
a

p
ta

in
 W

a
lk

6
3
7

172

C
L

O
U

G
H

F
IE

L
D

 A
V

E
N

U
E

45

65

134

148

130

55

126

128

41

43

Posts

39

24

77

19

1
6

1

1
0

3
3

3
0

2

5
1

R
U

D
M

A
N

 D
R

IV
E

1
6

6
0

The Rectory

5
0

18

23

Queen Alexandra Close

FREYA GROVE

Community

20

2
 to

 1
7

9

3
2

1

1
5

 t
o
 3

7

5
3

7

2
5

12

35

1

29

2

19

29

19

Centre

4
5

1
6

7
3

O
L

D
F

I E
L

D
 R

O
A

D

31

S
A

IN
T 

B
A

R
T
H

O
LO

M
E

W
'S

 D
R

IV
E

14

9

1
2

El Sub Sta

PARSONAGE CLOSE

4
1

34

30

2

1
9

2
6

18

11

19
5
9

2

CARMEL CLOSE

9

1

15

2
9

3
4

1
3

10

1

C
H

A
N

C
E

L
 A

V
E

N
U

E

C
A

R
M

E
L
 A

V
E

N
U

E

2

17

14

28

5
0

3
8

3
2

T
H

O
R

 G
R

O
V

E

G
A

R
D

E
N

 W
A

L
L
 C

L
O

S
E

2
2

6
3

31

1
2

4
8

G
L
O

U
C

E
S

T
E

R
 S

T
R

E
E

T

11

1
5

3
1

1

1
7

1
7

124

122

33

35

14

7

2

8

1

75

C
A

M
B

R
ID

G
E

 P
L

A
C

E

1
 t
o

5

15

C
a
m

b
ri
d

g
e
 P

la
ce

O
liv

ia
 C

o
u
rt

1
0
6
 to

 1
1

3

A
S

G
A

R
D

 D
R

IV
E

11

27.1m

SO
U

TH H
ALL STR

EET33

26

3
7

3

3
5

2

R
o

sa
lin

d
 C

o
u

rt

19

1
7
 t
o
 2

4

2
4

Im
o

g
e

n
 C

o
u

rt

A
S

G
A

R
D

The Lodge

8
2
 to

 8
9

4
9

14
8

5
0
 t
o
 5

7

1
 t
o
 8

El Sub Sta

14

1
6
3
 to

 1
7
0

1
1
4
 t

o
 1

2
1

3
3

15

27.2m

M
ir

a
n

d
a
 C

o
u

rt

3
3

1

1
0

1
4
7
 t
o
 1

5
4

GROVE

5

2
5
 t
o
 3

2

DERW
ENT S

PH

1
2

C
a

ss
a

n
d
ra

 C
o
u

rt
O

R
D

S
A
LL

 L
A
N
E

1
3
8

8

5
8
 to

 6
5

The

1 
to

 7
0

Delany

Building

Irwell Building

1 to 80

1
3
5

2
1

23

82

1
2
9

1
7

23

10

N
A

T
IO

N
A

L
 D

R
IV

E

ST JOSEPH'S DRIVE

2
5

1
5

8

14

3
3

20

18

27

1
1

12

12

17

1
5

27

BURNETT AVENUE

26

2
9

1
9

2

39

16

2
4

9

1
8

6

1
2

1
4

St Ignatius

34.3m

1

3
0

1

2

S
t 
Ig

n
a
tiu

s
 W

a
lk

38

2

1
1

1
2

1
9

H
U

D
D

A
R

T
 C

L
O

S
E

1
5

1

1
4

2
6

1
2

4
2

2
0P

A
R

IS
H

 V
IE

W

1
1

Club

2
5

2
7

1

REGENT ROAD

54

1

93

2

84

1
5

1

2

83

18

CORONATION STREET

80

52

75

3

82

1

32

98

1
4

1
5
5
 to

 1
6
2

El Sub Sta

100

1.

2.

3.

4.

1

Ordsall sites

Property
Services Section

Salford Civic Centre
Chorley Road

Salford
M27 5AS

Plan Ref:
Scale @ A3:
Date:
OS Map Ref:

1:2500
06/09/2019
SJ8197

This map is based upon Ordnance Survey material with the permission of
Ordnance Survey on behalf of the Controller of Her Majesty's Stationery
Office © Crown Copyright. Unauthorised reproduction infringes Crown
copyright and may lead to prosecution or civil proceedings. 100019737 2019

P
age 389



T
his page is intentionally left blank



PUBLIC INTEREST TEST – CHECKLIST 
Schedule 12A Local Government Act 1972 

 

 
Name of Report:   
Ordsall: Development Sites Review 
and Comparison with Council Self 
Build Option 
                         
 

 

Committee: 
Regeneration Briefing   
Date  25th January 2021 

 

Category of exemption applied:  Paragraph 3  Information relating to the 
financial or business affairs of any particular person (including the 
Authority holding that information ) 

 
 

Public Interest Test Questionnaire 
This is not a definitive list. However, it does provide a series of questions that you 
should ask yourself when recommending confidentiality. 
 

FACTORS WHICH SUPPORT DISCLOSING INFORMATION 

Will disclosure help people to understand and participate in 
public debate about current issues? 
 
 

No 

Will disclosure help people to understand why the Council has taken 
certain decisions?  
 
 

No 

Will disclosure give the public information about the personal 
probity (or otherwise) of elected members or council staff? 
 
 

No 

Will disclosure encourage greater competition and better value for money 
for council taxpayers?  
 
 

No 

Will disclosure allow individuals and companies to understand 
decisions made by the Council that have affected their lives?  
 
 

No 

Is the information about factors that affect public health and public 
safety? (NB you should be careful if considering the release of 
information which might adversely affect public health and safety)   
 
 

No 

Will disclosure reveal incompetent, illegal or unethical decision-
making or examples of malpractice? 
 
 

No 

Page 391

Agenda Item 6a



 
 
 
 
 
 

FACTORS WHICH SUPPORT WITHHOLDING INFORMATION 

Will disclosure damage the Council’s interests without giving the 
public any useful information? 
 
 

Yes 

Will disclosure damage another organisation or person’s interests, 
without giving the public any useful information?  
 
 

Yes 

Will disclosure give an unfair, prejudicial or inaccurate view of a 
situation? 
 
 

No 

Will disclosure prevent the effective delivery of services without giving 
the public useful information?  
 
 

No 

Will disclosure put the health and safety of any group or 
individuals at risk?  
 
 

No 

Is there a clear and coherent reason why the community in general 
would benefit more from information being withheld?  
 
  

Yes 

 

Justification of decision 

(Please provide explicit reasoning) 

 

Disclosure of financial bids before contractual commitment would be inappropriate as 
it would disclose confidential information and is likely to adversely affect the financial 
position of the Council and the interested parties. 

Other documents attached? N/A 

Name and Title: John Nugent, Development Surveyor 

Date: 3rd December 2020 

 

 

Page 392


	Agenda
	3a Salford Roosters ARLFC, Winton - Clubhouse Project
	03aii Appx A Salford City Roosters Legal Title Plan

	3b Crescent Development Framework 2021
	03bii Annex A - Final Development Framework
	03biii Annex B - Consultation Statement
	The Crescent: A Unique Regeneration Opportunity
	Delivery Partners
	The Framework Area
	PROGRESS TO-DATE
	Legislative Framework
	National Planning Guidance
	Local Planning POLICY
	Stage 1 – Pre-production
	Stage 2 – Production
	Stage 3 – Adoption
	Responses Received
	revisions made resulting from these responses
	Formal Consultation on the Draft Development Framework
	REPRESENTATIONS ON THE draft development framework
	revisions made resulting from these responses
	Scope of social value Consultation
	Workshops and Social Media
	Social Pin Point Website

	next steps
	APPENDICES
	Priorities
	What is working well?
	Existing challenges
	What is needed?
	a. Economy
	b. Community involvement
	c. Climate change and green spaces
	d. Education
	e. Connectivity
	f. Inclusivity
	g. Young people

	Social Media
	Conclusions

	03biv Annex C - Community Impact Assessment
	03bv Annex D - Sustainability Audit

	4a Ordsall Residential Development Sites review - Developer Proposals v Self-Build Option (see item 6(a))
	04aii APPENDIX A Site Plan

	6a Ordsall Residential Development Sites review - Developer Proposals v Self-Build Option



